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OUR MISSION

We make products that are trusted to protect
the world’s militaries and first responders.

Our dedicated teams achieve this by
developing mission-critical solutions that enhance
our customers’ performance, efficiency and
capability, whilst providing ever-increasing
levels of protection.

With a portfolio that includes respiratory and
head protection systems, we are renowned for our
innovative thinking and our steadfast approach
to manufacturing unrivailed products.

FINANCIAL HEADLINES

Orders received Revenue Adjusted operating profit Operating foss

§280Im  $271.9m §10.1m S[2)m

Adjusted basic earnings per share Basic ioss per share Dividend per share Closing order book

20.4c [25.7)c 44.3c $151.3m



HIGHLIGHTS

Our mission is only achievable as a result of the exceptional people we have across
the business. We are incredibly proud of their hard work and dedication
and have watched them achieve great things together this year.

WE ARE GROWING OUR CORE BY
MAXIMISING OPPORTUNITIES

Delivering Growing The Core: Kent's Story on page 27

Read more on our strategy on page 26

WE ARE ADVANCING OUR PRODUCT

DEVELOPMENT TO PROTECT PEOPLE

Advancing Product Developmenit: Justin's Story on page 29

Read mare on our strategy on page 26

WE ARE INTEGRATING RECENT ACQUISITIONS
TO BUILD A STRONGER BUSINESS

Integrating Acquisitions: Lauren’s story on page 31

Read more on our strategy on page 26
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AT A GLANCE

OUR PURPOSE

We make products that are trusted around the world to protect militaries
and first responders in the most hostile of environments. Our products enable
our customers to not only complete their mission safely and with confidence,

but also enhance their capability and performance.

—

Pre-emptive
We use our ingenuity to design
next generation protection,
constantly anticipating and
adapting to the ever-increasing
needs of our customers.

N

Growing
the core
We are recognised as the leader
within our chosen market segments.
There are further opportunities
W maximise growth from our
product portfolio.

Our people
and culture ‘
Our people are at the heart
of everythirg we da.

Robust risk
management
We have an estabiished
process for the identificatior
ard maragement of nsk

Sead ~oe onpags 2

BUR CULTURE

Fearless
We are |eaders in our field,
pushing the boundaries of what
others think is possible

Read mere on our culture o7 page 52

OUR STRATEGY

Selective product
development
We have a reputation for
technolagical excellence and
innovation, with a strong traditicn
of new product developrnent.

Read more cnou- sirategy o1 cages 26-31

.
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SUPPDRTED BY
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Responsible approach
to sustainability
We Fave a fundamental
role ta play in minwmising
Gl zrvironmenzal impact
on ine world

Sead more or page 22

Targeted
We set a clear strategy, identifying
key priorities and the resaurces
we require for success - and then
wark to make this a reality 1o
grow and evolve,

Value enhancing
acquisitions
We target carefully selected,
value enhancing acquisitions to
complement our rganic growth
and enable us to enter adjacent
product and market segments

Effective
governance
We are committed to high
standards of corporate
governance as set outin
the UK Corporate
Govermance Code.

iesd ~crecncage 72



OUR PRODUCTS

of revenue (excl. armor)

Respiratory protection
We have an extensive history of providing respiratory
pratection and a comprehensive knowledge of our customers’

requirements for respirators, powered and supplied air systems,

filters, spares and accessories.

Read ~ore on page 16

of revenue (excl. armor)

Head protection
We have a deep understanding of traumatic brain
injury (TBI} which enables us to design next generation
ballistic helmets and bump protection helmets, as well as
helmet liner and refention sysiems,

Read rmare on page 18

OUR MARKETS

u.s.DOD Commercial Americas

S130m

Total market opportunity

§5218m

Total market opportunity

Read mare on page 10

Read mare on page 12

U.K. & International

S56Tm

Total market opportunity

Read more an page 14

OUR PEOPLE

Global operations
We operate on a glabal scale with sites
locatec in the LS, and the U1K,

b

Sites in the U.K. and the U.S.

Talented people
Our people are at the heart of everything
we do, with everyone focused on
protecting our customers.

1,000+

Number of employees
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INVESTMENT CASE

ODUR INVESTMENT CASE

IS DRIVEN BY OUR CLEAR

STRATEGY TO GENERATE
LONG-TERM GROWTH

LARGE ADDRESSABLE
MARKETS

Our world-leading portfoho, combined with strong
relationships with our long-term custorers, like the US ©OD
and UK. MOD, pasitions us well i growing markets with
opportunities for share gain

S9.8bn

Total market opportunity
(2021-2030)

Head MQe JoOUT our Markets 00 ege 1T
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INVESTING IN
INNOVATION

We cantinue 1o develop our product portfolio in partnership
with our customers to ensure their exacting performance
requirernents are met, whilst providing a commiitted

and commercal route to market to maximise our return

on nvestment,

4-7%

Total R&D as a percentage of revenue

Read ~we a0CJf cur dusress mede! or gage 27

TALENTED AND
DEDICATED PEOPLE

Cur people are at the heart of everything we do We aim o
artract and retain the besi people to establish a culture that
gives all indraduals the ooporturity and support to develop 10
their full patential

VWe are committed 1o making Avan Protection a great place
10 work by investng in the development and wellbeing of
our people, ceebrating diversity and inciusion and listening
and responding 1o our coiteagues through increased levels
of engagemant.




WE HAVE A HIGHLY SKILLED TEAM,
STRONG MARKET POSITIONS AND
WORLD-LEADING TECHNOLOGY.
COMBINED WITH OUR LONG-TERM
STRATEGY TO DRIVE SUSTAINABLE
GROWTH WE ARE CONFIDENT IN
OUR ABILITY TO DELIVER VALUE
FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS.

STRONG CASH DEVELOPING

CONVERSION SUSTAINABILITY AGENDA

Our objective of delivering adjusted EBITDA cash conversion We protect; it's Ingrained within our culture and 1s at the heart
of 90% or more provides the cash flow to fund our of everything we do. This includes a commitment to protecting
growth strategy the communities and environment in which we operate 10

ensure a sustainable future for us all.

90%+ 2045

Adjusted EBITDA cash conversion Net Zero target

Read mare sbau® cur f rancial performerce or page 36

DISCIPLINED APPROACH
TO CAPITAL ALLOCATION

Key priorities for capital

1. Invest in the business « R&D pipeline {including
business development)

« Manufacturing capacity

INNOVATION - New products
2, Dividends - Targetincrease in cover before
IMEROVED returning to dividend growth
PERFORMANCE CASH — - - e e
GENERATION 3, Other M&A « Strict discipline on value creation

4, Other returns to shareholders - Special dividends and
share buynacks

TRUST
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CHAIR’'S STATEMENT

A STRONG PIPELINE OF
OPPORTUNITY

| want to thank our people for their continued effort, focus and
commitment to delivering this year's results.

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

| want 1o start by thanking our people in our operatians across the world,
who have continued to work with enthusiasm and datermination in what
has been a chalienging period for the Group As COVID-19 restrictions
eased, | and the rest of the Board were delighted to have the opportunity
1o visit aur U.S, operating sites and meet a number of pur teams face to
face. Itis clear to see that at the core of our DNA s pride for our products
and the protection they provide the user

Strategy and results

At Avor Protection, our purpese 1s clear - 1o provide trusted and
innovative solutions to enshle those at risk 1o perform their mission safely
and with confidence.

To deliver this purpase and create value for ail our stakeholders, our strategy
has three main elements. Firstly, we grow the care by leveraging our existing
product portfolio to widen cur customer base, Secondly, we Invest selectively
in new praduct development to mantain our leadership in innovation and
finaily we airn to extend our business capabilities and accelerate our orgaric
growth through carefully selectad, value enhancing acquisiuons,

2022 has been my first fuli year as Chair of the Board and has presented
both challenges and apportunities for the Group. In the first half of the
year, we experienced subdued demand post-Afghanistan and pre-
Ukraine leading to delays in orders and approval processes, Impacting
both operationai planning and supply chain management As reported
at the half year, additiona* manufacturing costs due to supply chain

and process neffioiencies and the level of product development work
impacted profitability I addition, following the strategic decision 1o exit
the armor business announced last year, body armor has continued ta be
a headwind in cur reported results, but we expect to have fully exited this
business by the end of 2023

6 Avon Pratection pic Annual Report and Accounts 2022

After the challenges encountered during the first half, | am pleased

1o repart the second half was characterised by a step-up in finandial
performance and improved operational delivery Given the current
increased threat environment, prompted by the ongoing events in
Ukraine, the Group experienced increased demand with more urgency

in order placement and technical approvals. In Respiratory, we have
delivered over 65,000 50 series respirators to protect military, government
and humanitarian personrel in Ukraing throughout the year This increase
in demand has given us canfidence to buy-forward inventory and lean
forward into production which has improved our ability to react to the
current higher threat envircnment,

I Head Protection, the award of the .S DOD next generation Advanced
Combat Helmet {ACH GEN 11} contract earlier in the year and the first
delivery order in September from the U.S Army under the Nex{ Generation
IHPS (NG IHPS! contract have established Avon Protection as the global
leader in head protection technalogy This has been achieved by
combining the strengths of Ceradyne’s baifistic shell technalogy with
Tearn Wendy's nelmet liner and retention system technotogies

Now more than ever it 15 clear aur world-leading products and solutionsin
both the respiratory and head protection markets have a key roie to play in
protecting service personnel in an increasingly unstable environment,

Dividend

The Board I1s recommending a final dividend of 30.6 certs per share which
tagether with trie 14 3 cents per share intenm dividend, gives 3 total
dividend af 449 cents, corsistent with last yea~

Our policy s to grow dividerds 'n 1'ne witn adjusted earnings grawih
Giver the decling in earrings over the 'ast two years, we would not seek
to grows dratends ‘urther anead of an increase n divizend cover



DEA

We talked to Jos Sclater,
incoming Chief Executive Officer,
on his appointment.

Q Can you tell us about your career history?

A I've spent the last three years as Group Chief Finandial
Officer at Ultra Electronics plc where | led a broad-based

uansformarion programme focused on improving grawth

and efficiency. 1 also had group-wide responsibility for
the Finance, Treasury, T, Procurernent, Transformation,
Continuous Improvement and Risk functions, as well
as direct oversight of Ultra's Forensic Technology and
Fnergy business.

Prior to this, | was Group Chief Financial Officer at Castrol

Lubricants and, befare that, spent seven years at GKN plc,
including as Group Chief Financial Officer and Director of

Corporate Finance and Strategy. | started my career as a
qualified selicitor and have held in-house legal and M&A
roles at ICl ple, AkzoNobel NV and GKN plc.

Q What excites you about joining Avon Protection?

A Avon Protection is a business with a proud history and an

exciting future. The Group has unigue technelogies with
global market-leading positions in respiratory and head
protection markets, | am excited by its growth potential,
and I very much look forward to leading the next stage
of irs development,

Jos Sclater
Incoming Chief Executive Officer

Advancing our sustainability agenda

Establishing the foundations of our sustainability agenda has been a
key furus in 2022 and | am pleased with the progress made this year. We
recagnise the importance of ensuring we proactively engage with our
stakeholders in this area as expectations continue o grow. This year we
carried out a materiality assessrment t© ensure our efforts are focused on
the sustainability aspects that are most material to our stakeholders.

We committed in last year's report to achieving net zero by 2045 at the
latest. This year we have focused on gaining a better understanding of
our data, in order 1o ensure accuracy and set an appropriate base year for
setting targets against, as we continue working on our detalled Net Zero
Plan. In addition, this year is our first year publishing our Task Force on
Climate-Related Financial Disclosures {TCFD) Staterment. To ensure focus
and greater transparency of our sustainabllity agenda, a new governance
framework has been putin place. The Board takes overall respansibility
for our sustainability agenda, disclosure and reporting A Sustainability
Steering Committee, chaired by our Chief Financial Officer, Rich Cashin,
has been established with responsibility [or the irmplementation and
delivery of our sustainability agenda on behalf of the Board.

Health, safety and wellbeing of our people

Pratecting the health, safety and wellbeing of our people rernained a key
priosity in 2022. In line with our goal of zero harm, we continue to actively
promote a strong safety culture at all our sites.

Previously, the Board established a Giobal Employee Advisory Forum as

its employee engagement mechanism. This has generated a significant
increase in dialogue between the Board and the Group's employees. With
easing travel restrictions, the Board this year has been able to visit the sites
in person and hear directly from employees about issues they face on a
day-to-day basis,

Governance and the Board

The Board brings together a diverse range of relevant skills and expertise.
There have been several changes to the Board during the year. Nick Keveth
retired as Chief Financial Officer on 31 March 2022 and was replaced by Rich
Cashin, who has proved to be a strong addition to the Board. After 5 years
as Chief Executive Officer, and more than 19 years with the Company, Paul
McDonald stepped down as Chief Executive Qfficer on 30 September 2022
On 17 October | was delighted to announce Jos Sclater will join the Board
as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 16 lanuary 2023 As previously
confirmed to shareholders In September, | have taken on the rale of Executive
Charr for the intenm period until Jos is in place as our new Chief Executive
Officer The Board therefore currently comprises one Executive Director,
three independent Non-Executive Directors and myself as Executive Chair.

We conducted an internal Board performance evaluation this year and
remain confident that the Board continues to operate to high standards as
a cohesive body with a good balance of support and challenge. Full details
of this year's evaluation are contained in the Gavernance section of this
Annual Report. The Board regularly reviews its composition to ensure it has
the necessary breadth and depth of skills and experience to support the
development of the Group and will repeat this review once the new Chief
Executive Officer is in place and established.

Looking ahead to 2023 with confidence

We have made good progress in 2022 preparing Aven Pratection for anew
chapter of growth and future value generation, iIncluding restructuring several
areas of the business, improving operatonal efficiency, right-sizing overhead
costs and strengthening Executive management with the appointments

of Rich Cashin as Chief Financial Officer and Jos Sclater as our new Chief
Executive Officer. While not underestimating the challenges in execution of
our strategy, | am confident the Group is well positioned meving forward to
deliver long-term sustainable growth for the benefit of all our stakeholders,

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

22 November 2022
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| TRULY FEEL LIKE | AM PART OF A
GROUP THAT MAKES A DIFFERENCE
AND | STILL GET CHILLS WHENEVER
| HEAR ONE OF OUR HELMETS HAS
HELPEDO SAVE A LIFE.

Ryan Doris
Mechanical Engineer

STRATEGIC
REPORT
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MARKET OVERVIEW

MARKET OVERVIEW
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Defence budgets are expected to flatten over the next
five years, but the U.S. will remain the world’s largest and

most sophisticated market.

2022 ANNUAL REVENUE OPPORTUNITY FOR BALLISTIC HELMETS
AND RESPIRATORY PROTELCTION IN ADDRESSABLE DOD MARKETS™

RESPIRATORY

S92m

HEIGHTENED THREAT
ENVIRONMENT

The war in Ukraine has hac far-reaching
consequences on the gecpohtical climate
Inresponse, the U5 kasled military support
to Ukraine and has praovided significant
security assistance, including technology and
equipment transfer In addition, the US and
other countries arcund the world have imposed
unprecedented sanctions and expart controls
resticting Russiz’s access 1o funding and
wrinal technology.

TOTAL

S218m

INCREASED SPENDING

The U5 arnounced it will increase spend

10 5813 billior or 3 8% of GDP Chna also
announced anincrease in military spending,
with 3 7.1% rise planned for 2022 relative 1o the
previous year. Neither appear to be directly
related 1o the warin Ukraine, but rather to
international and regicnal geopalitics. Ch na's
growing assertiveness in and around the South
and East China Seas has also become a major
driver of m-itary budgeting in countries such
a5 Austral & atid lapan

Forecas i 202t pror tu kg 28 S0m il g d STR8” T KeT CE e GETIEN TS
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HELMET

S126m

MANAGING INFLATION

Energy prices have been rising since last year
as the economic recovery from the pandermic
encountered overturdened supply chains
and the warin Ukraire has caused trade and
production disruptions Despite global defence
budgets being increased, we expect therm to
be put under pressure by ncreased inflation
Inflation s expected to have an impact on
busiress operations and emphasises our
cortinued focus on internatonal expansion
to mritgate the risk of exposure to fixed-pnice
centacts which are common in the U.S



LINK TO STRATEGY

GROWING
THE CORE

Enduring revenue streams

We are the sole-source supplicr to the

U.5. DOD for the Joint Service General
Purpose Mask (JSGPM), M69 aircrew mask,
MS3A1 mask and powered arr system and
ACH GEN I, as well as dual-source supplier
of the NG IHPS. These contracts solidify
our position as the principal choice with
the U.S.DCO lar respiraloty and head
protection with four major branches of the
DOD using aur products including the Army,
Navy, Air Force and Marine Corps. Our large
base also positions us well for through-life
SUPPOIL progranmes.

ADVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

1HOd3H DiD3LIVHLS

New programmes

We received the first delivery order frorm

the U.S. Army worth $42.1 million for

the NG IHPS. Manufacturing ramp-up

is progressing to plan after completing
rigorous testing The receipt of this first
delivery order is an important milestone for
the NG IHPS, and a critical step in getting our
advanced life-saving technology rolled out
to U.S. military personnel. This programme
cements our position as a global leader in
head protection technology, and specifically
as a centre of excellence in high-specification
ballistic helmets.

INTEGRATING
ACQUISITIONS

Cross-functional collaboration
During the year, Head Protection
collaborated to develop an updated liner
system for the NG IHPS which utilises
technology from the Team Wendy product
line This is expected to be introduced

in 2023 following the receipt of the first
delivery order.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Profecticn sl 1



MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

MARKET OVERVIEW
COMMERCIAL AMERICAS
MARKET

The increased threat posed by terrorists and civil unrest is driving
demand for more advanced respiratory and head protection.

2022 ANNUAL REVENUE OPPORTUNITY FOR BALLISTIC HELMETS AND
RESPIRATORY PROTECTION IN ADODRESSASLE COMMERCIAL AMERICAS MARKET*

NORTH SOUTH
AMERICA AMERICA

S82m S48m
o o
TOTAL

S130m

* Sorecgcr ~ X021 ororts Lkrarecer® ctang arrer Matket s 2 coment

INCREASED VIOLENT DEMONSTRATIONS CHANGING THREAT

Terrorist attacks, civil unrest and organised cnme are mulziplying The world 15 confronuing overlapping crises of unprecedented scope
the nisks of chemical, biolagical radialogical ard nuclear (CBRN) and and scale, A ongst other regative conssuuences, the pendemic
batiistic threats continues to Famper econamic and social activity and the threat

enviranment continues to shift across the world,
he fre uency and severt Of\."OlE T demonsirations has increased acrass
g Y b

almost all regicns of the world resulting ir clashes with first respanders. Firstresponders are expectad to roact 1o these snifting threat
Nerth America recorded the second largest detenaration of any region in environments which continue to demand the level of protection often
the 2022 Global Peace Index associated with military apphcatons

12 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



LINK TO STRATEGY

GROWING
THE CORE

Salesrecord

The team in Cleveland has completed four
major annual e-commerce sales this year for
Tearn Wendy helmets including Fourth of
July dnd Amazon Frime Day.

During the Fourth of july sale, the team
processed 800+ orders with total sales 72%
higher than last year with the EXFIL LTP the
maost popular helmet sold.

ADVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

Recognised for innovation

The CH15 Compact Escape Hood won Best
International Industrial Product Design award
at The Plastics Industry Awards, an annual
event dedicated to rewarding innovation
and exceptional performance. One of the
key design objectives for the product was
to reduce the number of camponents
compared to the previous generation
product, which led 1o an overall reduction
in rmass by 22%.

INTEGRATING
ACQUISITIONS

Strengthened brand recognition
For many years Team Wendy has been

at the forefront of traumnatic brain injury
prevention, through parucipation in cutting-
edge research programrmes and thoughtful
design of complete helmet systems frorm the
inside aut,

Though Team Wendy and Avon Protection
are distinct brands with different product
lines, their shared dedication to protecting
those who risk their lives every day makes
them compiementary within the Group.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Aven Protection ple
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MARKET OVERVIEW CONTINUED

MARKET OVERVIEW
U.K. & INTERNATIONAL

MARKETS

The current threat environment is driving a greater focus on protective
technologies and capabilities throughout Europe and beyond, giving rise

to a dynamic-demand envirenment.

2022 ANNUAL REVENUE DPPORTUNITY FOR BALLISTIC HELMETS
AND RESPIRATORY PROTECTION IN ADDRESSABLE U.K. F

AFRICA

14m S268m

INTERNATIONAL MARKETS™*

EUROPE MENA

~
\//

TOTAL

SBB1m

ForecanT © 2021000010 wxra NE L3¢l CTATC T e mar<Et e 2 Ccoments

CHANGED SECURITY THREAT

We continue to see the ever-present threat

of the use of CBRN capabilities against NATO,
with China cantinuing to Increase ks stockpile
of ruclear capable weapons, lran claiming to
be nuclear weapon capable and North Karea
testing missiles of varying ranges to carry
nuclear and chemical warheads

The non-state threat s also high as e
Industrial chemicals are unregulated in maos:
countries presenting little obstruction 1o tose
who would use ther o achieve their aimns,

NATO RESPONSE

Evenif CBRM threats are considered a remote
possibility, the effects of such an attack would
be devastating and are increasingly considered
by NATO nat:ons and their broader allies as they
recapitalise and grow investment in their ability to
defend agairst such an attack, whilst continuing
to operate in the hostiie conditions it creates.

MATO pursued the biggest overhaul af its
collective deterrance since the Cold War this
year. The number of troops on high alert has
increased from 40,000 to 360,000 trocps and
it has also pledged to provide Ukraine with
protective aguipment against CBRN threats

14 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

S95m $184m

APAC

INCREASED BUDGETS

We are seeing higher public aefence spending
as a rosult of the increased demand for personal
praotective equipment n the medium and long-
term, with world military spendirg reaching an
all-urme high of $2.7 tnlhon in 2021

Mary NATO countries have alsa announced
clear plans to reach 2% GDP target by 2024
This wedl kely result in upgrade programmes
across NATO and militaries glokally over the
coming years



LINK TO STRATEGY

GROWING
THE CORE

Diversified customer base

The sole-source framework respirator
contract with the NATO Support and
Procurement Agency {NSPA}, which allows
NATO and assutiate members to arder

from our portfolio of respiratory products
under standard pre-negotiated terms, Is

an important route to market for us. The
benefits of this contract are ever-more
evident in the current environment where
ease of ordering is paramount in a fast-
rmoving situation. On behalf of varous NATO
governments, we have delivered over 65,000
50 series respirators to protect military,
government and hurmanitarian personnel in
Ukraine throughout the year.

ADVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

Adjacent technologies

I response to risirg chermical weapon
threats, we developed the EXOSKIN range of
CBRN boots and gloves to protect personne|
without compromising the wearer's tactical
agility in the field. In expanding our offerings
inta protective garments, we aim to provide
the full scope of integrated protective wear
that can be scaled to suit changing threat
environments and readiness levels.

INTEGRATING
ACQUISITIONS

Working in partnership

Head Protection has collaborated on major
tender processes as well as opportunities to
enhance our helmet portfolio. In particular,
collaborated efforts have focused on the
development of the FE0, our first combined
commercial helmet for first responders

and Rest of World militaries. This helmet
combines the Ceradyne ballistic helmet shell
forming capabilities and Tearn Wendy's liner
and retention.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

RESPIRATORY
PROTECTION

Qur leading range of respiratory protection includes respirators, powered and supplied air
systems, filters, spares and accessories, as well as underwater systems and CBRN protective wear.

POWERED & SPARES &

RESPIRATORS SUPPLIED AIR ACCESSORIES

6 Avon Protection ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022



EXAMPLES OF OUR RESPIRATORY
AND CBRN PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

RESPIRATORS

50 SERIES

The M5S0 and FMS0 rmasks are the most advanced military general service respiratory
protection masks to date, offering significant improvement in comfort, usabiity,
operational effectiveness and protection. The C50 mask is based on the M50 and is
the leading mask used by US. law enforcerment agencies, offering high protection,
outstanding field of vision, and superior comfort. The PC50 was developed for
budget challenged prisons, correctional officers, border control and other non-CBRN
requirements that require protection in dangerous and contaminated environments.
The FM53 and FM54 masks were developed specifically for specialist applications
where the user needs to respond to ever-changing operational conditions.

GSR

The standard issue to all UK, service personnel across the Army, RAF and Navy, the
General Service Respirator’s {(GSR) twin-canister, single-visor design 1s to the UK.
MQD's precise specification and features high-performance filtration technology

SPARES AND ACCESSORIES

We offer service suppart 1o glabal customers through replacement filtars, sparcs,
accessories and tactical mask communication systerns providing through-life
support to our range of respirators and other life sustaining equipment.

ESCAPE HODDS

Qur range of escape hoods, including the new CH15 escape hood, provides
portable protection. The ultra-low profile makes thern more convenient to carry and
enhances the range of respiratory protection available to escape a hostile situation.

POWERED AND
SUPPLIED AIR

Designed for specialist capabilities, our complementary value-added subsystems
extend operational capability. Gur range of Powered Air Purifying Respirators (PAPR],
Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA} or a combination of the two (CS-PAPR)
can be deployed with our respirators to provide clean, breathable air.

UNDERWATER
SYSTEMS

Our MCMI100 is & fully closed circuit, electronically controlled, mixed gas rebreather
suitable for a range of specialist military or tactical diving disciplines, such as mine
clearance or explosives disposal.

THERMAL
IMAGING
CAMERAS

Qur Mi-TIC range of Thermal Imaging Carmeras includes the lightest and smallest
thermal imagers available certified to comply with NFPA 1801:2021, alongside a
wider range of cameras developed from the same technology.

CBRN
PROTECTIVE
WEAR

With an extensive knowledae of military and first responder CBRN requirements,
wer developed EXOSKIN-BT CBRN 300t anu EXOSKIN-GI CBRN Gloves, designed 1o
meet the unigue requirerncnts of the modern warfighter and tactical operator

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc 17
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PRODUCT PORTFOLIO CONTINUED

HEAD
PROTECTION

Qur head protection portfolio is focused on next generation ballistic helmets
and bump protection helmets, as well as helmet liner and retention systems.

LINER AND
RETENTION HELMETS
SYSTEMS

Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022



EXAMPLES OF OUR HEAD
PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

HELMETS

ACH GEN NI

ACH GEN Il is 2 new lighter
weight version of the US
military’s general 1ssue
ballistic helmet, making it
more comfortable for the
User to wear.

NG {HPS

The Next Generation Integrated
Head Protection System (NG
IHPS) is one of four major
components of the US Army's
Scldier Protection System. The
NG IHPS provides lightweight
and high-performance head
protection to U.S. soldiers.

Fa0

The F90 ballistic helmet features
the perfect combination of
performance and lightweight
materials at an economical price
point. innovative ‘No Thru-Hole’
technolegy for mounting
accessories increases the shell's
effective protection area

EXFIL BALLISTIC 5L

The EXFIL Ballistic is the general
issue ballistic helmert for the
Australian Defence Force, whilst
the EXFIL Ballistic SL is used

by efite teams and agencies
around the warld including
LAPD and Brazilian DPF.

EXFIL LTP

The EXFIL LTP {Lightweight,
Tactical, Polymer) bump helmet
provides impact protection and
a stable, comfortable platform
for mounting night vision and
other accessories,

SAR
BACKCOUNTRY

The Team Wendy SAR s the
first purpose-built search

and rescue helmet to

provide accessary maunting
capabilities while meeting key
industrial and mountaineerng
performance standards.

LINER AND
RETENTION
SYSTEMS

CAMFIT
RETENTION
SYSTEM

The CAM FIT Retention System
uses a micro-adjustabie BOA

Fit System that stabilises

the weight of the helmet by
distributing light, even pressure
around the head.

ZORBIUM ACTION
PAD (ZAP] 7-PAD
NSN LINER SYSTEM

Since 2005, the ZAP 7-Pad

NSN Liner System is tne

standard issue systermn authorised
for use in all U.S. Army, U.S,
Marine Corps and U.S. Navy
ground combat helmets. More
than seven million pad sets

have been supplied since the
programme’s inception,

EPIC AIR LINER
SYSTEM

The EPIC Air design utilises
proven Zorbium foam
technology, offering leading-
edge impact protection
withaut adversely affecting
weight or heat dissipation

EXFIL MARITIME
LINER SYSTEM

The EXFIL Maritime Liner
System features scaled pads
optimised to withstand routine
exposure to water. The liner's
quick-drying capability helps
reduce the added helmet
systern weight and discom®
that results from waterlogge
helmet pads.
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BUSINESS MODEL

OUR ROBUST
MODEL

Our products and services maximise the capabilities of our customers
and create value for all our key stakeholder groups.

HOW WE CREATE VALUE

OUR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES

Intellectual Property ! Efficient manufacturing | In-house capabilities
We protect aur global market-leading We airm ta optinise and refine our Our peaple provide extensive skills
position by registering trade marks ‘ praduct design for manufacture ‘ and experience to strangthen
and filing patents that protect aur and strive for high asset utilisation our in-hause capabilities and
innovative solutions | and productivity. | manufacturing excellence,
l |

OUS wnprovement at o,

Wl @fy
S g,
. (]
B Qe
o &5
NE ®
NG yol
& o
N Reinvest Understand (?{}‘
for growth customer
needs
Provide Perform
world class Protecting
- research and
service and pecple
p development
maintenance
Bid on new Design and
programmes manufacture
life-saving
products

SUPPORTED BY OUR VYALUES AND CULTURE

Pre-emptive Fearless Targeted
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RESOURCES AND RELATIONSHIPS

SKILLED PEOPLE

We have highly skilled teams across our
business with 1,000~
employees across six sites.

UNIQUE TECHNOLOGY

We have a reputation for
technological excellence and
Innavation, with a strong tradition
of new product development.

ROBUST PARTNERSHIPS

We parther closely with our customers to
design products to enhance their capability as well
as provide increasing levels of protection.

ESTABLISHED DISTRIBUTION

We have a mature agent and
distributor network to provide a range
of commeraial products in over
60 countries

THE VALUE WE CREATE

OUR PEOPLE

1,300+ 55%

hours of e-learning employee
content viewed engagement

CUSTOMERS

200K+ 90K+

respirators delivered helmets delivered
to NATO countries around the world

COMMUNITIES & ENVIRONMENT

$108K+ 97%

in charitable waste recovered
donations or recycled at our
UK. facility
SHAREHOLDERS

b0%+

active shareholder
engagement

44.9c

dividend per share
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

SIGNIFICANT
LONG-TERM GROWTH
OPPORTUNITY

Our leading technology and product offering, together with our
long-term contracts and a strong pipeline of opportunities,
underpin our confidence in our future growth prospects.

We have made significant progress during the year towards delivering
our strategy to strengthen and grow our respiratory and head protection
offerings. Qur key strategic achievernents thraughaout the year include

COrganic grawth in our respiratory portfolio

NSPA continues te be a strong vehicle for providing our mission-
critical personal protection to NATO countries

Good progress in developing our head protection portfolio

- First delivery order received for NG IMPS
- Award of U5 DOD ACH GEN il contract in February
- In-sourcing of helmet shells for legacy Team Wendy products

- Integration of our helmet design and rmanufactunng capability
+ Conunued new product development

« Launch of the EXQOSKIN boots and gloves range to address growing
threats and broaden our CERN product portfolio

Strong demand environment

« Current threat environment driving greater focus on protective
technglogies and capabilities throughout Europe and beyond

A robust core business

Our 20-year relationship with the LLS DOD as a sole-source provider

of general-purpose respirators, tactical forces respirators, powered air
purifying respirators and tactical self-contained breathing apparatus
solutions has seen us design, develop and maintain a portfolio of
innovative and warld-leading respiratory protection systems We also have
a long-standing retationship with the UK MOD, and, in October 2020,
were avarded the NATO Suppart and Procurerment Agency contractin
relation to our full respiratory range. The importance of these long-term
partnerships has come to the fore as the risk environment has Increasea
and we are actively engaged with our customers as they decide bow to
co-ardinate therr response to world events

The acquisitions of 3M's ballistic pratection business and Team Wendy
have added head protection 1o our portfolio, combining world-leading
tecnnology in helmet shells and prarectve inserts. The combination of
the two will position Avon Protection a5 the leading helmet provider
tathe US DOD as we cammence delivenas on gregrammes we have
already won.
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Cur longer-term strategic aspirations include selling a wider range of bath
respiratars and helmets to our global customer base. During the year,

we have taken further steps 1o integrate the two acquired businesses,
resulting ina more strearnlined organisation with significant oppaortunities
for realising manufacturing and technological synergies that will drive
longer-term valug creation for the Group.

We have continued to invest during the year to maintain our market-
leading positions through continued development of gur existing
portfolio of innovative products, and development of the next generation
of products that will deliver future growth for the business. We continue
1a develop our product portfolio in partnership with our customers to
meet exacting performance requirernents whilst providing a comrmercialiy
rabust route o market to maximise our return on investment

Our people are at the heart of everything we do, and at the core of

our ONA 15 pride for our product and how it protects the user. The
recrganisation 1o integrate the two head protection businesses and
streamline the Group, as well as our financial performance, has been a
challenge for our people this year. However, we are making progress and
continuing our journey to shape our culture for the future. We are grateful
to our colleagues for their angoing commitment as we continue to align
the business for future growth,

Additional programme wins

Following the contract award from the U S Army for the NG IHPS in 2027,
we received the first delivery order worth $42.1 million in September 2022,
Manufacturing ramp-up is progressing to plan after completing ngorous
testing, with inital deliveries expected in the first half of FY23,

The award of the ACH GEN Il contract in February 2022 is 3 further
demanstration of the strength of our head protection portfolio, Our ACH
GEN I helmet will be submitted for first article testing {FAT) in arly FY23
with inimal revenue expected in FY24.

When NG IHPS and ACH GEN Il enter service life with the US DOD, this
will position Avan Protection as the leading helmet supplier to the LS
DOD, validating the strategic rationale for bringing the two helmet brands
together by combining Ceradyne’s helmet shell moulding capabiliues and
Team Wenrdy's beimet liner and retention systern technologies.

We continue to rake progress with our MCMI00 underwater retireather, with
several countnes having taken defivery, and others conducting full dive
test praorarmss,



STRATEGY IN ACTION
GROWING THE CORE

FM&50 MASKS PROTECTING
UKRAINE PERSONNEL

On behalf of vanous NATO governments, we have delivered
over 65,000 50 series respirators to protect military,
gavernment and humanitarian personnel in Ukraine.

The 50 series family of respirators is built on the FM50, a CBRN
full face mask, specifically designed to meet the latest NATO
forces military mask requirernents, The twin filter conformal
systern sits close against the face, providing the wearer with
hugh protection and very low breathing resistance. Wearer
comfort is enhanced by the system’s twin filters, and vision

is enhanced by our wide panoramic flexible visor that
Incorporates both visual clarity and integral durability.

Our masks are manufactured to the highest standards

with the aim of protecting the wearer from harmful CBRN
agents they may encounter, Thanks to our ability to ramp-up
production across our facilities we have been able to deliver
these orders quickly, and everyone at Avon Protection is
extremely proud to know our equipment is supporting
personnel in Ukraine.

The FM50Q is widely deployed by NATO military and
peacekeeping forces including Belgium, Denmark, Finland,
The Netherlands, Norway, Latvia, and Lithuania, More than
3.5 milhan systems have been delivered worldwide, making
the FMS0 the most operaticnally proven deployed respirator
in the world.

65,000

FM50 masks delivered to
Ukraine personnel

WE HAVE MADE FURTHER
SIGNIFICANT PROGRESS AGAINST
OUR STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES

TO DELIVER MEDIUM-TERM,
SUSTAINABLE GROWTH,

DESPITE THE CHALLENGING
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT.

Revenue split by market (5}

us nob
9%.1m 98.7m
Commercial Americas
2022
UK. and International
65.7m
53.8m
Us DOD
Commercial Americas
2021 125.2m
UK. and International
62.8m
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED

A heightened threat environment

The current threat environment is driving a greater focus on protective
technologies and capabilities throughout Europe and beyond, giving rise
e a dynamic-demand envirenment.

NATO nations continue to safeguard against the possibility of adversarial
use of CBRN capabilities, and our core competence in these arcas leaves us
well-placed to protect against the increased threat level

The sole-source framework respirator contract with the NATQO Support and
Procurement Agency, which allows NATO and associate mempers to order
from our portfolio of respiratory products under standard pre-negotiated
terms, is an impartant route to market for us. The benefits of this contract are
cvident in the current environment whers ease of ordenng is paramount in
a fasr-moving situation. On behalf of various NATO govemnments, we have
delivered over 65,000 50 series respirators to protect military, government
and humanitanan personnel in Ukraine throughout the year

We are anticipating higher public defence spending to address the
increased need for personal pratective equipment in the medium and
long-term. This will Ikely resultin upgrade programmes across NATO and
miltaries globaliy over the coming years, for which we are well positioned

Our leading position i the CBRN market means we are well positioned
1o continue our growth in supporting our customers around the

world to improve and enhance their protective measures. To further
expand our capabilities in the important CBRN market, we developed
the EXOSKIN range of boots and gioves to protect personnel without
compromising the wearer's tactical agiiity in the field. In expanding our
offerings into protective garments, we aim to provide the full scope of
integrated protective wear that can be scaled 1o address changing threat
environments and readiness levels

Successfully addressing challenges

As a result of global supply chain issues, which in some cases pushed lead
times of components that were once & weeks closer to 40 weeks, we took
the initiative to buy-forward inventory where we had identified the maost
nsk, particularly electronics and textiles, Whilst this increased cur working
capital, It greatly improved our ability to react 1o the higher demand
environment which we now find ourselves in This has also emabled us to
run our facilities at improved lfevels of productivity and efficiency.

We have made significant progress against the previgusly announced cost
savirgs programmes. Hall of the $15 riflion announced in December 202
has been executed, with the remainder linked to the closure of the armor
business. We have also debvered the ingremental 56 million reduct on
announced in May 2022, although as stated at the time of announcerment
this cost reduction was more variable in nature and costs will be added
back into the business as revenue continues 1o grow,

Foliowing FAT approval for the Defense Logistics Agency Enhanced Small
Arms Protective Insert {DLA ESAPY bady armar, we started to deliver
product to the U S, DOD in H2 2022, This Ieaves us on track to fulfil our finai
contractual obligations and allow the orderly wind-down of the armor
busness to concluce by the end cf FY23

The appontments of Rich Cashin as Chief Financial Off.cerin March 2022,
and of Jas Sclater as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 16 January
2023 brings a wealth of experience and impressive track records within the
aerospace and defence sector to Aveon Protecuon and positions us well for
future growth
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Sustainability

We protect; it's ingrained within our culture and is at the heart of
everything we do, and is why sustainability is so important to us. We
recagnise we are at the start of our sustainability Journey to achieving nct
zero by 2045 at the latest. This year, we commenced work on a high-level
sustainability vision linked to our purpose and strategy

We have concentrated our efforts on the following:

1) Identifying key sustainability areas

To ensure we focus our effarts on the sustainability issues that are most
material, we engaged our stakeholdess through a materiality review
process, Targeting the most material sustainability areas, we have
developed an impact plan consisting of four disunct pillars: an employee-
centric approach, environmental irpact, sustainable supply chains and
cybersecurity and data protection

2) Assessing our existing greenhouse gas (GHG) data and
building an action plan for delivering net zero

We have committed to achieving net zero by 2045 at the latest by

reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions (compared to

2021), Buring the year, we have been focused on ensuring data accuracy

and understanding the process by which scope 1 and 2 ernissions are

generated to provide an appropriate base year for reporting targets

against Following this work, we have now improved our data collection

and will use 2021 as a base year. We will be carrying out a further scope of

work based an recommendations to add detail to the Net Zera Plan.

3) Governance of our sustainability agenda and

TCFD reporting
To ensure focus and greater transparency of aur sustainability agenda, a
new governance framework has been putin place. The Board takes pveral]
responsibility for our sustainability agenda, disclosure and reporting.
During the year a Sustainability Committee, chaired by Rich Cashin,
was establishied with responsibility for the design. implementation and
delivery of our sustainability agenda on behalf of the Board. This approach
will ensure that delivery has top-level support and is underpinned by
SITONg govenancs.

We have made substanual progress over the past 12 months in setting the
faundations for our sustainabitity agenda which will continue to evolve
over the cormning months and years



STRATEGY IN ACTION
ADVANCING PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

LAUNCH OF EXOSKIN CERN
PROTECTIVE WEAR

The CBRN threat is a growing concern for military forces, with
the use of chemical weapons rising amaong both state actors
and terrorist groups. In response, we have developed the
EXOSKIN range of boots and gloves to supplement its CBRN
respiratory protection products to protect personnel without
compromising the wearer's tactical agility in the field.

Designed to allow for the handling and operation of
electronic touch screen devices, the EXOSKIN-GI glove
offers a critical operational advantage. The ambidextrous
glove features a rubberised outer layer textured to maintain
gnp in wet conditions, with an intelligent, seamless inner
knitted liner that has a conductive tip on both the thumb
and forefinger. Together these layers optimise the wearer's
dexterity and allow them to complete their mission safely.

The EXOSKIN-B1 boort allows improved durability and agility
in the field, with quick-release straps to secure the garment
over standard footwear. A highly textured sole improves
the wearer's manoeuvrability in all underfoot conditions.

In addition, itis 10C percent leak tested.

Manufactured fram our proven rubber techniology, bath
the EXOSKIN-GI glove and EXOSKIN-B1 boot offer Chemical
Warfare Agent and Toxic Industrial Chernical protection and
are iImpermeable to biclogical agents, Designed for quick
donning and doffing, they integrate with many protective
suit ensembles including the standard 1ssue UK and U.S,
CERN protective suits.

With mare than 100 years of experience delivering
nnavatively designed and engineered CBRN solutions, the
EXOSKIN range leverages our material science capability and
deep knowledge of protective CBRN technology.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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STRATEGY IN ACTION

WE'RE

GROWING

The focus of Growing the Core is to maximise our performance
and efficiency to imprave quality and operational excetience.
It relies on selling more of our existing portfolio to a global
customer base by investing in our organi< sales and support
teams, including expanding our reach to new customers

and geographies.

Growing the Core also Includes a focus on our internal processes
and we are cormmitted to investing in cur global facilities and
supply chain, to improve the quality, efficiency and performance
of our operations. We will continue to work In partnership with
our suppliers, ensuring they are a part of our value proposition
10 supply the best products and solutions at the highest guality
and value

Growing the Core ensures that we continuously improve our
existing portfolio, while operating in a sustainabie way and as a
force far good within our carmmmunities.

THE CORE

ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

1 Successful delivery of over 200,000 masks by the second year of our
NATO contract

2 Upgraded automated inspection as part of our filter preduction with
barcode tracking of each unique filter

3 Record-breaking year for Mi-TIC thermal imaging camera range, with
a 30% incregse in revenue

4 Record e-commerce sales of Team Wendy helmets in Fourth of July
and Amazon Prime Day sales

5 Continued progress with aur underwater partfolia bringing
the total number of countries using the MCMI00 underwater
rebireather to seven

Composition of order intake for FY22

150
$128.9m

90

s

&0

30

$68.4m $70.5m

Uus Dob
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DELIVERING GROWING THE CORE

KENT’S STORY

Revenue split by product (5}

70.5m Respiratory

Head Protection
2022

123.0m

Respiratory
73.2m

Head Protection
2021

168.6m

The U.S. DOD s always looking for a means w both
improve performance and reduce weight. There’s

a saying that ‘ounces equal pounds, pounds equa
pain’, so anything that we can do to reduce the
warfighter burden from a weight perspective is a
good thing. Over the last 20 years, helmets worn by
most soldiers have not changed in weight. Given the
availability of new materials and technology, the

LIS Army has now turned its concentration towards
weight reduction, comfort and increased protection
in its requirements, hence the introduction of IHPS
and now the ACH GEN 11,

Being the primary helmet producer to the U.S. Army
is an incredible privilege, one we can all be proud of
and one that carries immense responsibility. | have
mentioned reduced weight and increased performance
in the ACH GEN H as well as the enhbanced features
of the NG IHPS, but what we can't lose sight of is

the key protective capabifities these systems provide

| think what matters most is that our scldiers will
have confidence they have the best head protection
available, manufactured for them by a committed
and passionate partner in Avon Protection

Kent Moeller
President, Avon Protection Ceradyne
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STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

WE’'RE

ADVANCING

PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT

Our custormers continually evolve, as do the threats they face. ACHIEVEMENTS OVER THE YEAR

We will continue to invest in praduct development each year,
working in partnership with our customers to develop new
technologies and expand our partfolio into 8 wider range

of products and solutions te enhance the capablities of our 2 Multi-year contract to supply the U.S. Defense Logistics Agency with
custarners We undertake projects to develop equipment o the ACH GEN Il

specifications that no other praduct has ever met,

1 Firstorder for the NG IHPS received from the US, Army

3  Launch ofthe EXOSKIN boots and gloves range

4 {H15 Escape Hood won the Best International Product Design
award following a reduction in mass by 22% over the previous
generation NH15

5 Launchofinnovative headset adapter for the US DOD's IHPS to
seamilessiy integrate with the 3M™ PELTOR™ ComTac™ system

R&D expenditure composition ($)

10.9m 19.1m

2022 2021

Castemer-demes Canoa 380 Nom-can Ty sen
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RE&ED SPEND BY LINE OF BUSINESS

Respiratory

2021

57.8m

Head Protection

2021

$6.4m

2022

S6.0m

2022

54.9m

ADVANCING PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

JUSTIN’S STORY

Development contracts are a great prospect

far us; they provide us with the opportunity to
research new and future technology, sometimes
maoving a concept to a prototype, while cavering
the costs assaciated with the research and
development required

Throughout such pragrammes, our teams work
closely with the customer, government sgientists,
end users and stakeholder communities, building
close relationships and taking part in user feedback
workshop sessions, We get to hear first hand frem
the stakeholder communities on any issues with

their existing product or technology, whether that is

related to use, maintenance, integration with other
equipment or training, and then present sclutions
back to them It's also beneficial in that we learn
about our customer’s future requirements and

can actively be a part of the solution, aligning our
upcoming product offerings and technology with
their needs,

Justin Hine
Category Director — CBRN
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STRATEGY IN ACTION CONTINUED

WE’RE

INTEGRATING

ACQUISITIONS
FOR A STRONGER

Our priority over the past year has been the integration of 3M's
ballistic protection business and Tearmn Wendy, which were
acquired in 2020. These steps have resulted in a more streamlined
organisation with significant oppartunities for realising
commercial synergies that will drive longer-term value creation
far the Group.

We are also committed to further developing our integration
madel so we are able tc onboard these acquisitions into the Avon
Protection family with a consistent process and 0 an eff.cient
mariner as we allow these businesses 1o invest and grow

Longer rerm, we will continue 1o invest in M&A 1o further
accelerate the Group's development and continue to deliver an
industry-leading performance level Aswe continde to buid a
growing, more efficient business, we will look to invest in the
acquisition of carcfully selected, value enhancing businesses to
further accelerate our growth. These acquisitions will not only add
scate, but will extend our business inta adjzcent markets and new
geagraphies, sdding new technologies t enhance performance,
efficiency and protection levels for our customers.
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BUSINESS

ACHIEVEMENTS DVER THE YEAR

1 Undertaking a partfatio review to align afferings and determine
future investment and development

2 Integration of our helmet design and manufacturing capability,
with syneraies o follow

3 In-sourcing of helmet shells for legacy Team Wendy praducts

4 Work being undertaken to integrate MR and IT systems across
the business

§ Continucus engagemen: and inclusion in core employee
engagement programmes 1o help them feel part of the business



EXPANDING DUR CAPABILITIES INTEGRATING ACQUISITIONS

LAUREN’S STORY

Talented people joining Joining the Avon Protection family following the
our team acquisition of 3M's ballistic protection business,
along with the addition of Team Wendy, has

4 D U + positioned us as part of a global team at the
forefront of Innovative protective technologies.
The timing of the integration during the COVID-1%
pandernic presented challenges nat only for IT
integration, but also getting to meet new cofleagues
and truly feekng like part of the business, However,
we have been welcomed into the global team and

we are able w effectively share ideas between the

New helmet product lines
different sites.

added to our portfolio
8 The team really comes together under pressure,

and everyone does what it takes to get the job done.

It is highly motivating to work for a company that
makes fife-critical products!

Lauren Zinger

Quality Assurance Supervisor
Invested facilities expanding
our in-house capabilities

4

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc

el

1HOd3Y JID3LvdlS



FUTURE PRIORITIES

PROGRESS ON OUR

Qur ambition is to create substantial value for all
of our stakehalders.

To achieve this, our strategy is based upon three
key elements:

- Growing the core by maximising organic revenue
growth from within the current product portfolio
and improving cur operational efficiency;

+  Advancing our product development to protect
peaple and maintain cur innovative leadership
position; and

+ Integrating our recent acquisitions to bulld a
stronger business and accelerate growth

Cur intertion a5 a protection-focused arganisation
does not stop at developing lifesaving systems; we
care and are committed to ensuring we execute
our strategy while contnbuting positively to the

cammunities and environment in which we operate.

STRATEGY

Strategy focus area

GROWING OUR
CORE TO MAXIMISE
OPPORTUNITIES

Sead —ore on naqe 26

Metrics

>200,000

FM50 masks delivered
to NATO forces

>150

product and process
attributes streamlined

Significant progress made against
previously announced cost
reduction programmes

ADVANCING OUR
PRODUCT
DEVELOPMENT TO
PROTECT PEOPLE

Read more on page 28

>100 years

of material science capability

$204m

contract won for ACH GEN Il

Innovative range of protective
boots and gloves launched

INTEGRATING RECENT
ACQUISITIDNS TDO BUILD
A STRONGER BUSINESS

Sead —ore cngege 30

Bringing together

2

world-leading portfolios
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Our aim

How we achieve this

Progress during the year

We are recognised as the leader
within respiratory, underwater
and head protection markets,

This year, we have continued
to invest in our core products,
maintaining our position at the
forefront of the market.

Leveraging the product and
customer base

Rosponding to custonmers’
growing needs

Offering new models and solutions

Expanding our reach
through distribution

Enhancing our commercial effectiveness

Continuing focus on
operational excellence

We have completed our first year of delivering against a ten-year
framework contract to supply a complete CBRN personal respirator
systern to NATO and affiliated countries

We have continued 1o serve amajor customer in the US. DOD
having received a large order for our M&1 filters, campatible with
M50 masks, worth $15.1m.

We have also introduced a state-of-the-art autornated inspection
process as part of our filter manufacturing operations, removing
the possibility for human error in the life-saving products that we
produce. With aver 150 product and process attributes captured
for each product, the data ensures highest quality product while
facilitating data-driven continuous improverment.

We have a reputation for
technological excellence and
innovation, with a strong legacy
of new product development.

Moving up the value chain in
respiratory and head protection

Enabling technologies and
integrated systems

We have continued to Invest to maintain our innovative technology
leadership position across our existing portfolio as well as focusing
on developing the next generation of new products that will deliver
future growth for the business. Qur main facus has been the first
article testing programmes for both NG IHPS and ACH GEN 11,

We continue to design our development pipeline in partnership
with our customers so their exacting performance regquirements are
met whilst ensuring we have a committed and commercial route to
market to maximise our return on investment.

We have continued to meet the demands of ever-increasing

CBRN threats through the launch of two products under our new
'EXCSKIN' range. The EXQSKIN-B1 CBRN Boot provides improved
durability and agility in the field, with quick release straps to secure
the overboot over standard footwear, Our EXQSKIN-G1 CBRN Gloves
are designed to allow handling and ease of operation of electronic
touch screen devices, offering users a critical operational advantage,

Acquisitions have been a part of
our growth strateqy for a number
of years

In the short-term, we are focused
on the integration of our current
aperations and building cur
respiratory and nead protection
business arganically

In the medium to long-term, we
will return to acquisitions as a driver
for growth

Following the acquisitions of both 3M's ballistic protection business
and Team Wendy, we have worked to bring together the peopie
and product offerings, allowing us to offer the best helmet
moulding, shell and liner and retention capabilities in a single
platform to benefit our customers.

Once in service, the awards of the ACH GEN [l and NG IHPS contracts
will confirm our pasition as the leading helmet supplier to the U5,
DOB, reinforcing the synergies of bringing the knowledge and
expertise of two world-leading organisations together.
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KPIs

HOW WE MEASURE
FINANCIAL KPIS

The adjusted performance section contains further explanation for adjusting
items which are summarised below. The Group uses a variety of key performance
indicators which are in line with our strategy and investor proposition.

CLOSING ORDER BOOK

5151.3m

+5.7%
$143.1m $151.3m
$101.8m
Fy20 FY21 Fy22

Reason for choice
Provides an indication of revenue to be
recognised in the next financial period.

How we calculate

Orders received by the Group and not
yet fulfilled This is measured by the value
of future revenue attached to orders not
ver fulfilled

ORGANIC CONSTANT CURRENCY REVENUE GROWTH

9.1%

+1260 bps
9.1%
0.1% (3.5)%
FY20 FY21 FY22

ADJUSTED EBITDA MARGIN

9.49%

-570 bps
22.9%
15.1%
9.4%
Fy20 Fr2i Fv22

Reason for choice
Indicates the rate at which the Group's
business activity is changing over time.

How we calculate

Growth in reveriye excluding acquisitions,
comparing current period revenue with
prior period revenue translated at 2022
exchange rates

Reason for choice

Prowvides a measLre of the underlying
profitability of the ordinary activities of the
business and their potential to generate cash.

How we calculate

The ratio of adjusted EBITDA to revenue
Adjusted EBITDA s defined as aperating
profit before aepreciation, amortisation and
exceptiona items. It excludes any effect of
giscentinued operations
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Comments on results

Our closing order book of $151.3 million
(31209 miflion excluding armaor) provides
strong visibility going into FY23, including
542 mullion for our NG IHPS ballistic heimet.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Revenue was up 9.1% on an organic constant
currency basis, reflecting strong growth

I respiratory notably drven By the NSPA
contract, offsetting a small decline in

head protection.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Our adjusted EBITDA margin has seen 8
dechne as a result of the continued losses
n the winding-down armor business, as
well s operanonal challenges affecting the
core business

Link to strategy

S oTtEItE 4TI M3z ani Mianefe the cuiness



Key

Growing 11€ core

Selective product deve opment

Va ue €1hancing acquisitons

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT % OF REVENUE

4.0%

-370 bps
7.7%
5.5%
4,0%
FY20 FY FY22

CASH CONVERSION

142.7%

+5,950 bps
142.7%
81.6% 83.2%
FY20 Fy21 Fy22

Reason for choice

Provides a measure of the Group's investment
in new products and processes. Investment
provides a foundaton for the Group's

future growth,

How we calculate

Total expenditure on R&D including amounts
funded by customers, development
expenditure capitalised and amounts
expensed directly to the income statement
cxpressed as a percentage of revenue.

Reason for choice

Provides a measure of the management of
working capital and the ability of the Group
to canvert profits to cash.

How we calculate

The ratic of cash generated from operations
before the effect of exceptional items to
adjusted EBITDA.

ADJUSTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

20.4c

-40.2¢
98.6¢
60.6¢
20.4¢
FY20 Fv21 Fy22

Reason for choice

Measures the ability to generate a return to
shareholders. It takes into account our success
In growing our business organically and by
acquisition, coupled with management of the
Group's financing and tax.

How we calculate

Adjusted profit for the year divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue.
Adjusted profit excludes exceptional items
and discontinued operations.

RETURN DN CAPITAL EMPLOYED

3.0%

-280bps
22.3%
5.8%
3.0%
FY20 FY21 Fy22

Reason for choice
Measures profitability and the efficiency with
which capital is employed.

How we calculate

Adjusted operating profit as a percentage of
average capital employed Capital employed
is the sum af shareholders’ funds, non-current
liabilities and current borrowings

Comments on results

Whilst we continue to invest in selective
product developmenit, tevels have drapped
from the record high seen in FY21 as

a number of large projects have come

to fruition

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Cash conversion has improved due to more
favourable timing of FY22 revenues, as well as
tight control of receivables in the last quarter
of the period

Link to strategy

Comments on results

Adjusted earnings per share declined due to
the impact on profit from the armor business
and operational challenges for the Group.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

With a stable capital base, the decrease in
operating profit results in lower return on
capital employad.

Link to strategy

Annual Repart and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc

35

140434 31931vH1S



36

KPis CONTINUED

HOW WE MEASURE
OPERATIONAL KPIS

The Group uses a variety of key performance indicators
which are in line with our strategy and investor proposition.

EMPLDOYEE ENGAGEMENT

5%

-1,300 bps
64% 68%
55%
FY20 FY21 Fy22

GENDER DIVERSITY

21%

-700 bps
29%
21%
Fy2i Fy22

HEALTH AND SAFETY

5

-69%
16
5
£v2 Fvzz

Reason for choice

Our people are crucial to delivering future
business success. This is an objective way to
aszess how engaged our ermnployees arc with
the business

How we calculate

Empioyee engagement is measured through
regular surveys which ask employees 1o
respond to five statements with how much
they agree or disagree.

Reason for choice

A diverse and inclusive workforce is critical

10 ensuring innavative thinking and business
growth, Gender diversity at senior levels ensures
aur geople &re led by & leadership team that s
representative of aur gender-diverse workforce
and the cormmunities in which we operate

How we calculate

We calculate this based on the number of
females in leadership positions, expressed as
a percentage,

Reason for choice

We want 10 keep everyone safe and wel)
with the support of a strong heaith and
safery culture.

How we calculate

We track this using a Lost Time Inaident
Rate which measures the number of LTl
per 14500 employess
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Comments on results

The rearganisation 1o integrate the two
helmet businesses and streamline the Group,
as well as our financial performance, has been
a challenge for our people this year. However,
we are making progress and continuing our
jourmey to shape our culture for the future

Link to strategy

Comments on results

The Board 15 commitied to continuous
improvernent in this area and acknowledges
that there remains sorme way to go 0 ensure
a diverse workforce. We will continue to drive
internal initiatives 1o champion more women
into teadership roles,

Link to strategy

Comments on resuits

We are pleased with the progress we nave
made to reduce the number of L ost time
Incidents across all of qur sites globally I line
with our goal of zero harm, we continue ta
actvely promote a strong safety culture.

Link to strategy



Key

Growing e core

ON TIME DELIVERY

82%

N/A
B82%

Fy22

SUPPLIER QUALITY

883

-15.2%

1,041

883

FY21 Fy2z
ENVIRONMENT
39.9
+11.5%

35.8 39.9

rvai Fr22

Select ve product development

Va ue enhancing acquisitions

Reason for choice

Ensuring that we are meeting our customers
delivery expectations is a core component of
maintaining high levels of satisfaction.

How we calculate

We calculate this based on the percentage of
arders received, which are delivered on time
O OUr CUstamers expectations,

Reason for choice

Partnering with our suppliers 1o ensure

the best quality materials are used in our
products underpins value for our customers,

How we calculate

We measure the success of our supplier
guality in ‘Defective Parts per Million" which is
calculated by 1aking the number of defective
units In a same size, dividing that number

by the total sample size, and multiplying by

i million.

Reason for choice

Our mission is to be a growing business
with a shrinking environmental impact,
targeting net zero by 2045 by reducing
our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions
{compared to 2027},

How we calculate

We measure the success of this with an
intensity ratio calculated using the amount
of scope 1 and 2 GHG emitted per Sm

of revenue.

Comments on results

FY22 was the first full year of tracking on
time delivery and as such we do not have
any comparative data, Moving forward we
are committed ta improving this result,
providing superior levels of satisfaction for
Our customers.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

We are making good progress with
decreasing our Defective Parts per Mitlien
and we have seen a 15% reduction. There 1s

more work to do in this area to meet our goal.

Link to strategy

Comments on results

We have made progress over the past 12
months in setting the foundations for our
sustainability agenda and developing cur
transition o net zero by improving data
collection processes. We hope to see more
progress on this result in the future,

Link to strategy
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$172 STATEMENT

ENGAGING WITH OUR
STAKEHOLDERS

The Board acknowledges that positive interaction with all stakeholders is key 1o underpinning positive engagement and fully informed decision making
on materiai issues. As part of ensuring the requirements of section 172 are met and the interests of alt stakeholders have been regarded, stakeholder
engagement by the Board and the wider business takes place across the Group at all levels. This includes engagement with the Group's employees,
shareholders, customers and suppliers and the communities within which we operate,

Further information on how the Board has discharged its duties and considered the factors relating 1o section 172 are found throughout our Annual
Report, with specific detalls included in the Governance section of this report,

Key

Growing the core Seiectve product develonrrent

OUR PEOPLE

Yaiue enhancing acguisii:ons

Our people drive our culture. Continuous engagement with our people is

fundamental to ensure an engaged employee base that supports how we do
business and which is at the heart of our ability to drive value creation.

How we engage
« Throughout the year the Executive Board and the .
Board of Directors have hosted townhalls at the sites,
presenting Company updates to emnployees and
holding Q&A sessions
Each year engagerment surveys are undertaken with
all employees, seeking their feedback on a wide range .
of topics, and the output creates our focus areas of
improvement for the year ahead,

- Executive Board members and senior leaders host -
monthly Q&A live events for employees to hear from
leadership on a specific topic and submit questions

CUSTOMERS

Key topics of engagement in 2022

As a focus area highlighted inthe
engagement survey, we have looked for
feedback on how our emplayees would
like ta see their werk recognised and what
makes them feel valued,

We have also discussed our employees’
views on sustainability and how we should
approach it in the future,

Regular communications including
roadshows, townhalls and live events have

been used to provide an update on business

progress and facus for the future.

How we responded

+ Following feedback gathered
©N recognition, a remunNeration
review was launched during
the summer to explore our pay
philosophy and grade structures

With input from our employees,
we have developed our
sustainability agenda. Read more
on page 42,

Link to strategy

Our customers are at the forefront of our employees’ mind, and we are proud

of the products we create for the end users. We partner closely with our
customers and gain feedback from multiple levels within the user base to
design products which enhance their performance, efficiency and capability.

How we engage
Throughout the product development process
we engage with our customers to ensure we are
responding to their developing needs and to identify
future opportunities

« We have dedicated leadership channels to manage
and priontise our customer relauonships and hold .
User Adwisory Councils to explare feedback from
specific and key users
We wark clasely with country spedific scientific
communities, such as the Defence Science and
Techrology Laboratory in the U ¥, which provide
insight on the future capabiiity requirements within
their military user base
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Key topics of engagement in 2022

The majority of our product development
pipetine s designed in partnership with
GUr customers to ensure we are in active
dialogue and that their performance
requirements are met.

This year we have also engaged with aur
customers cn our sustarabilizy approach
1o determinz thair gr anties arcund 2ur
future direction

How we responded
We have developed tong-
standing relationsnips with
our customers which provide
OppOrtuniTies to work with user
groups to ensure their evolving
cperational needs are anticipated
in futdre proddct developments

+We mamtain an assessment of
Broadertechrology trends we
could adopt guickly to deiiver
disruptive techroiogy solutiors
1o our customers, croviding therm
with capability advantages

Link to strategy



REACHING KEY
DECISIONS

Q What are your priorities as Directors for
our stakeholders and the engagement
we have with them?

A For the continued success of the Group and

for the benefit of the Company's members as
Bruce Thompson awhole, we as a Board recognise all decisions
Executive Chair must be taken with regard to long-term

outcemes and any impact these have on

all our stakeholders, Throughout the year,

we have Interactions with our stakeholders

regarding any long-term decisions that could

hawve animpact on them, For our people, we

always want 1o account for their interests

EMPLOYEE RELATIONS

Engagement with employees has been

a focus for the Board of Directors and
Executive Board during 2022 with travel
restrictions now eased. Roadshows have
raken place across the sites and townhal!
meetings have provided our employees
an oppertunity tc hear from both Boards,
provide their feedback and discuss
priorities and focuses. Tearns across the
business have also been invited to take
partin discussion lunches to have one-1o-
one time with Board members

and align our decisions to ensure they have
the best experience with Avon Protection.
It’s a priority to foster strong relationships
with our customers, suppliers and other key
stakeholders, maintaining our reputation for
high standards of business conduct and the
need 1o act fairly

It is also a priarity for the Directars to identify
any impact the Cormpany’s operations

hiave on the cormmunity and environment,
This year we have outhined our approach

to sustainability and cecoming net zero by
2045 at the latest.

WE AS A BOARD RECOGNISE ALL DECISIONS
MUST BE TAKEN WITH REGARD TO LONG-TERM
OUTCOMES AND ANY IMPACT THESE HAVE ON

ALL OUR STAKEHOLDERS.
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$172 STATEMENT CONTINUED

Key

Growing the come Selectve product deve cpren:

COMMUNITIES

Vaiue enhancing acquisi; 073

We have an established community initiative focused on ecenomic, social and

environmental sustainability in our local communities. We continually work
with and for the communities in which we operate, recognising our role as a
major focal employer and our responsibilities with regard to any impact we

have on them.

How we engage

- Within cur community initiative is our Chantable Giving Programme,
providing match funding and donations to the erganisations in our
local areas which cur employees have close ties with.

We have continued our sponsorship for Bath Rugby's community
programmes, including support for its Primary Educaton programrme
centred around developing numeracy skills and prometing health
and wellbeing We also sponsor Bath Rugby's Girls Participation Hubs,
an initiative that aims to increase female partciparion in the sport.
We offer work experience and internship oppartunities to
enthusiastic students looking 1o start developing employability skills
and have opportunities across engineering, science and commercial
job roles,

SUPPLIERS

Key topics of
engagement in 2022

We engage with local
organisations and charities on
their funding needs and how
our donations can support
their causes

We have provided a number of
Internship and work placement
opportunities to students in
aur tocal areas. In Cadillac, 124
high school students visited
our facility to learn more about
manufacturing and who we are,

How we responded

During FY22, we made 5108,403
of chartable contributions
totocal communities and
organisations, nominated by our
employees and as part of our
comimunity programmes

We actively encourage
employees 1o use the charitabie
giving options we provide

Link to strategy

We strive to build tong-term relationships with aur suppliers, and ensure

they adhere to our supplier code of conduct and quality expectations,
We continuously engage with our suppliers to develop our knowledge

and product range.

How we engage

- Cammitted teams aim o build long-term relationships we strive for
with all cur suppliers

Through site visits and a programme of supplier audits, we ensure
their standards and expectations of behaviour reftect our own
Group-wide standards and we have a Supphier Code of Conduct to
support this

SHAREHOLDERS

Key topics of
engagementln 2022

Consistent delivery of quality
materials and services from
our long-term suppliers and
a clear understanding of our
expectations on ethical and
sustainable wrading in the
supply chain.

How we responded

Promprt and fair payrments help to
build the leng-term relationships
we strive forwith all our suppliers,
Continucus review of our supplier
code of conduct and terms and
compliance against thern.

Link to strategy

The Group regards regular communications with shareholders as extremely

important to understand their views and concerns and ensure their ongoing

investment and support.

How we engage

We consult with our shareholders through open and frequent
cemmunications, predominantly led by the Chief Executive COfficer and
Chief Fingncial Officer

There are ogen channels of commurications during the Annual
General Meeting (AGM] and through the Company Secretary where
shareholders can raise questions for the Directars

Regular dialogue rakes place with instizutional shareholders,
incluching following haif and fuli year results and other milestone
announcements with a series of direct meetngs throughout the year.

+ The Chairheld over 20 irdividual meenings with sharenolders dunng

the year to discuss key issues of concern

Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Key topics of
engagementin 2022

How we are addressing
challenges has been a key 1Gpic
of conversation dunng the year
Chief Executive Officer
succession plan following

Paul McDonals's resignation
Cansultation with shareholders
on our sustainaoility agenda
Throughout the first nalf of

the year we undertook a share
buy back scheme, which was
discussed witn shareralders

How we responded

Continucus open
cormmunication with our
shareholders remains a priority.

« We have developed cur

sustainability agenda Read
mare on Dage 42

Link to strategy




DEA

CONTINUED

Q What s in place to identify when

decisions should be made by the Board?

A The Group has a robust governance framework

in place where day-to-day decision making
15 delegated to management. There are
certain financial and strategic thresholds

in place o 1dentify matters requiring

Board consideration and approval and any
key decisions relating to strategy and its
implementation are taken by the Board.

We as a Board have a clear framework for
determining the matters within our remit and
have approved terms of reference for matters
delegated to the Committees. We strive to
have interactions with all stakeholders to
underpin decision making on material issues.

CUSTOMER RELATIONS

Driven by governments' research and
development needs, cur teams have been
working on what the future of protection
looks like through development contracts.

These contracts are essential to progress
and provide the apportunity to hear

user feedback first hand, build strong
relationships with our customers, and
partner with other companies t gain
rmore knowledge of technology outside
aur areas of expertise, all whilst developing
future protection concepts and true
technaology improvernents.

Q How does the Board gain an oversight

of engagement with the wider business?

A In addition to the summary of engagernent

detailed within this report, Executive
management prepares reports which detall
engagement activity across our stakeholder
group. Board members also attend Executive
management meetings when relevant,
giving the Board the opportunity to interact
and discuss any stakehotder issues which
may need to be escalated to the Board by
management. In my position as Executive
Chair, | have spent a great deal of time working
more closely with the teams across the
business and have enjoyad getting to know
everyone more whilst | have been on site,

| HAVE SPENT A GREAT DEAL OF TIME WORKING
MORE CLOSELY WITH THE TEAMS ACROSS THE
BUSINESS AND HAVE ENJOYED GETTING TO KNOW
EVERYONE MORE WHILST I HAVE BEEN ON SITE.

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Aven Protection plc
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SUSTAINABILITY

ODUR AMBITIOUS APPROACH TO
SUSTAINABILITY

We protect; it’s ingrained within our culture and is at the heart of everything we do.
This includes a commitment to protecting the communities and environment in which
we operate to ensure a sustainable future for us all. Last year, we commenced work
on a high-level sustainability vision linked to our purpose and strategy.

OUR IMPACT PLAN

SUSTAINABLE
SUPPLY CHAINS

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPACT

SUPPORTED BY DUR STRONG GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

We have made significant progress over the past 12 months to build
the foundations of our sustainability agenda We recagnise we are stili
at the beginning of our sustainability journey and our approach In this
area will continue to evolve, We have concentrared our efforts in the
following areas:

1) Identifying key sustainability areas

To ensure we facus our efforts on the sustainability issues that are most
material, we formally engaged our stakeholders through a materiality
review process This was carried out via industry benchmarking, oniine
surveys and one-to-ane interviews with employees, customers, suppliers
and investors. The resuits of this helped inform the development of our
sustainability agenda and our impact pian, compnsed of the following
four pillars:

»  Environmental impact
Sustainabie supply chains

- Cybersecunty and data protection
An employee-centric approach

Ne have adopred the UN Sustainatle Development Goals (50Gs) within
cur impact plan to further demaonstrate our alignment weth universal goals
a1d opportunities for collective action,

Further detalls on our impact plan can be found on page 44.

2} Assessing our existing GHG data and building an
action plan for delivering net zero

We have committed to achieving net zero by 2045 at the latest by

reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions {compared (o

2021 During the year we have been focused on ensunng cata accuracy

and understanding the process by which scape 1 and 2 emissions

are generated to provide an appropnate base year for reporting

targets against.

42 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

EMPLOYEE-CENTRIC
APPROACH

CYBERSECURITY AND
DATA PROTECTION

Read riore on page 43

We have carried out a review of existing data in addition 1o undertaking
Interviews with representatives from each of our sites to further
understand our processes that generate GHG emissions. Followenig this
work, we have now improved the accuracy of our data management
processes and will use 2021 as a base year,

We will be carrying out a further scope of work based on recomrmendations 1o
add detail to the Net Zero Plan, Further work is also required to look at scope 3
See page 45 for our Net Zero Flan.

3) Governance of our sustainability agenda and

TCFD reporting
We recognise the impaortance of putting in place a robust governance
SUrLCTUNS T Qversee aur sustainabuity agenda going forward The Board
will continue 1o oversee and have overall responsibility for setting and
ensuring delivery of our sustainability agenda, Dunng the past year, we
have established a Sustainability Steering Committee which 1s chaired by
our Chief Finang ai Officer, Rich Cashin The Committes will revieny the
Company’s progress towards the targets, reportng regularly to both the
Execunve Board and main Board

In addition, we have been prepanng to report against TCFD for the

first time. As part of this process, we have spent time developing our
understanding of cur exposure t climate change risk. We have also
carried out a gap analysis to full TCFD alignment to identify an actior p'an
to work towards meeting the four TCFD thermatic areas of goverrance,
strategy, rsk maragement and metncs relating to climate-related nisks and
opporwnities. We identified that the Group already fulfils mary of TCFD'
recommendations, ncwever, there remains work 1o do 1o ensure we are
fully aigned We have also outlined two gualitative scenar'o narratives to
help us explore tne potential ciimate change implications i our cusiness
See page 54 for our TCRO disc osure



GREATER
TRANSPARENCY

To ensure focus and greater transparency of our sustainability
agenda, a new governance framework has been put in place.

The Board takes overall responsibility for our sustainability agenda,
disclosure and reporting. During the year a Sustainability Committee,
chaired by Rich Cashin, was established with responsibility for the
implementation and delivery of our sustainability agenda an behalf of

the Board. The Sustainability Committee will recommend to the Board for
approval sustainability-related targets and review the Company's progress
towards those targets, reporting regularly to both the Executive Board and
main Board. This approach will ensure that delivery of our sustainability
agenda has top level support and is underpinned by strong governance.

EMBEDDING SUSTAINABILITY

We expect that our approach to governance of our sustainability agenda is
likely to continue to develop, alongside our evelving approach in this area
Set out below is an overview of how the governance of our sustainability
agenda will be integrated into our existing governance structure

Board of Directors
oversees and has overall responsibility for Avon Protection’s sustainability agenda, disclosures and reporting.
This includes, but is not limited to, climate risks and opportunities.

See page 74 ‘or zeva ks on our Board of Dvectors and memoersaip of the three Commitiees of the Bozard

Nomination Committee
is responsible for ensuring
the membership of the
Board and the pipeline
for successian planning
purposes reflects diversity

Audit Committee
is responsible for risk
management including
climate-related risks,

See page 82 for the Aud t
Comruttee Report

See page 80 for the
Nom ratier Carcmitsee Repers

Executive Board
is respansible for integrating
sustatnability into strategic
management.

Remuneration
Committee
is responsible for remuneration
policies and packages,
including integrating
sustainability into the executive
rernuneration structure.

See page 8o for the Remuneratior
Commitree Report

Sustainability Steering Committee
Chaired by Rich Cashin, Chief Financial Officer
acts on behalf of the Board to oversee delivery and implementation of cur sustainabiity agenda. Makes recommendations
to the Board including on sustainability-related targets and climate related matters. The Committee is made up of leaders
from across the business that have been identified as enablers for the sustainability agenda.

Employee engagement forum
is responsible far promoting the views
and interests of the waorkdoree,

Site level working groups
ermbed the sustainability agenda into the Group's
operational processes
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

MAPPING WHAT
MATTERS MOST

Introducing our new sustainability agenda
One of our objectives during the year has been to put in place a high-level
sustainability agenda.

As a business we recognise our operations around the world impact upon
anumber of sustainability areas, We understand we must make progress

in each of them to ensure we protect society, the environment and our
customers 1o secure a sustainable future for the Group and its stakehoiders
over the fong-term. Alongside this, we recognise the Importance of having
2 sustainability agenda that reflects those issues that are most material

10 our business and our stakehoiders and on which we can have the
greatest impact.

As we take our first steps in our sustainability journey, it was decided action
should be focused on those areas considered material, which means they
have the potential to substantively affect our ability to create vaiue in the
shert, medium or long-term, and are of importance 1o our stakcholders.

2022 MATERIALITY MATRIX
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TMPORTANCE TO OUR PEOPLE

ENGAGING WITH STAKEHOLDERS

EMPLOYEES CUSTOMERS

» Al ernployees were given the opportunity .
to contribute to the project, A survey was
created and employees were asked 10 say
on a scale of orne to ten kow important

each sustainability area was ta them. and legislat on.

+ One-to-one interviews with
representatives from across the business
ncluding rmembers of the Executive Board
‘aoked at the scarngs of this survey and
examined how much impact each issue
has on our 2bility 1o create value against
the likelihood of the impact.

44 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Sacial dimension

A penchmarking acTivity was conducted,
outlining our key custormers’ stance on
sustainabil’ty areas through the review
of climate and sustaimabinty polic’es

Our methodology: starting with materiality

Throughout 2022 we undertook a full materiality assessment, with

the goal of evolving our sustainability agenda. A benchmark of peers,
competitors and customers was Carried out (o create a defined list of
sustainability areas relevant to our business Stakeholder engagement
was undertaken to understand the importance of each sustainability area
10 our employees, customers and shareholders. Consideration was also
given to understand the impact of each issue on the Company’s ability to
generate value versus the likelihood of the impact This has culminated in
our materiality matrix which is shown below

The themes shown 1n the top right-hand corner are those identified as
rmost material, although all issues are important. It is important to highlight
we do not view these themes in isolation, as in many cases they are
interconnected The results of cur materiality matrix have underpinned
the evolution of our sustainability agenda, with the creation of the four key
pillars that make up our impact plan

1, Cybersecurity and data protection
2. Business conduct and ethics
Sustainability 1n supply chain
4. lLow carbon transition and

climate impacts
5. Energy use and GHG emissians
6. Product design and life cycle
7. Human rights and labour standards
8. Waste management and the
arcular economy
Talent attraction, development
and retention
10. Remuneration and payment practices
11. Water management
12, Occupational health, safety

and wellbeing
13, Diversity, inclusion and

equal opportunites

Wery mgh
14, Community welloeing

SHAREHOLDERS

+ We engaged with a number of investors o
ident.fy the material sustainability arcas that
matter most to them, and how they expect
us to respord 1o emerging issues in the
COmINg years

We ergaged with customers to allow the
opportunty 1o state what matters mos:
wa them, and in same cases, Qre-ta-one
Intersews were held



OUR IMPACT PLAN

Taking the five most material sustainability areas, we have developed an impact plan consisting of four distinct pillars
for action over the coming years. This underpins our sustainability agenda and ensures we are progressing in the areas
that matter most to our key stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL
IMPAET

SUSTAINABLE
SUPPLY CHAINS

Top:cs include:
Direct and indirect
GHG emissions

Toplcs include:
« Responsible procurement

- Transparency, traceability,
policies, standards and
reviews related to the
environment

Energy use
Efficiency

Exploration of scape

i Labour rights, h hts,
3 emissions abaour rights, human rights

forced or child labour,

+ The low-carbon transition and ethics

Minimising business
continuity risks

Management of clirmate risk

Reguiatory and
reputational risks

Alignment to SDGs Alignment to SDGs

Aead more on page 48 Read more or page 50

Our alignment with the United Nations SDGs

This is the first year that we are reporting on our alignment with the United
Nations Sustainable Development Goals {SDGs). They are a collection of

17 global objectives adopted by the United Nations in 2015 to eradicate
poverty, protect the planet and build a peaceful and prosperous world. We
have chosen to report our contribution to SDGS within aur impact plan
further dernonstrate our alignment with universal goals and cpportunities
for callective acticn.

The Group contributes to six SDGs. Throughourt the year we undertake
projects that contribute to other aspects of sustainability as part of our
everyday stewardship and as such we may also influence other SDCs.

CYBERSECURITY ANO
DATA PROTECTION

Topu:s include:
information security

Risk management
Privacy of data

Security of products and
services with internet
COnnectiviey

Alignment to SDGs

Read more o1 cage 51

Looking forward

EMPLOYEE-CENTRILC
APPROACH

Top:cs include:

Employee engagement
Diversity and inclusion
Health, safety and wellbeing
Pay and benefits

Personal development

Community engagement

Alignment to SDGs

Read more on page 52

We will be setting ourselves challenging targets against each of the four
pillars within our impact plan. These targets will be menitored at a Group
level by our new Sustainability Steering Committee and reported regularly
to both the Executive Board and Board of Directors.
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

OUR JOURNEY TO
NET ZERO

At the heart of what we do is designing and manufacturing innovative mission-critical protection systems and this makes us accountable
for the emissions that we release as part of everyday operations (scope 1 and 2). We also have a responsibility to influence our emissions
impact through our value chains, product life cycle and operating efficiencies which are classed as scope 3. This is also becoming an
increasing consideration for our stakeholders and the communities within which we operate and was highlighted as a key sustainability

area in our materality assessment; see page 44.

OUR NET ZERO MILESTONES

46

We are committed to achieving net 7ero by 2045 at the latest by reducing our abselute scope T and 2 GHG emissions

2021 compared to 2021,
This target ensures we limit our impact on irreversible climate change, providing both risks and opportunities for us As we become
more sophisticated in this area we expect to expand our knowledge and data available 1o us which could alter the target date
Our 2045 target supports the UK s agreement to limit giobal warming to well below 2 degrees Celsius compared 1o pre-industrial
levels which the UK and other countries that we aperate in have committed to. To achieve this, countries must reduce their GHG
emissions and many countries including the UK. have set aims to achicve net zero GHG emissions by 2050. As part of this, governments
are enacting policies which include requirements to detail transition plans and evidence climate resitience to drive change.
Dunng the year we carned out a review of our existing GHG dataand 2022 milestones:
2022 started to bulld an action plan to delivering net zero As partof this - Data collection and reporting methodology have
we carried out meetings with site representatives to understand our been improved
operaticnal ermissions. . !
- We have dctermined that 2021 1s an appropriate
The result of the review has led to a recommendation of seven base year for measuring targets against
actions for the Gr. cus on, to reduce s 1 H )
ort e.G ouptofo . o uce scape 1 and 2 G G + Production of a case study 1o determine the scope 3
ermussions, and in parallel begin the assessment of scope 3 emissions o
emissions resulting from air travel
These actions include.
1 Embed a net zero mindset and assign accountability
2. Assess encrgy efficiency options and set an energy
reduction target
3. Assess renewable electricity options and set a renewable
electricity target
4. Reduce natural gas consumption
5. Reduce other scope 1 impacts
A Plan for residual emissions
7. Assess scope 3 emissions
Refine the plan Share short to medium-term net zero
2023 & We beleve it is appropriate 1 continue to venfy the actions above targets and action plan publicly
1] N WARDS before setting short to mediurm-term targets 2nd releasing a detaled Following these steps, we will be abte to deliver a

plan of action for all sites to iImplement

Employee focus

The net zera transiior was highlighted as an area of Importance

for employees amongst other sustairability areas in our matenality
assessment, Jur employees are keen 1o support Lis and sustainabity
objectives have been embedded into performarce managemenrt
reviews for aur empioyees

Over the corming year we will engage with our e mployees further on
e cirection of our sustainability agenda, targets and Met Zero Plan,
Qur employees’ engagerrent wh aur Net Zero Plan will e critical for
implementing projects and collectively ackicving our goals.

ronsidered set of short to medium-term targets
and site actions that have hiad the appropriate level
of ergagement with our employees {who will be
responsibie for actioning) and the Board {which will
sign tnem off!,

Scope 3 categories

“here are 15 areas of scope 3 for us to explore and
determine the most relevant to report and track.
Ltilising our representatives across the business we wil
conduct a reviews of all scope 3 categories to determine
which are the most material for reporting against in

the future
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LEVERAGING EXPERTISE
ACROSS THE BUSINESS

We have many talented technical experts across

the business, including material scientists and
technicians. They provide research and development
capabilities in a wide range of rubibers and polymers
and have access 1o state-of-the-arr laborataries.

Qur strengths lie in the skiils and experience of our
people, many of whom are award winning and
accepted as leading industrial experts in their ficld.

Utilising the skills and knowledge of our people
will e creclal for developing solutions to meet the
exacting needs of the future Including developing
new materials and solutions 1o reduce our
greennhouse gas emissions.

10

material scientists and technhicians
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

OUR IMPACT PLAN
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT

Our approach

Energy use and GHG emissions in addition to low-carbon transition and
climate impacts came out as two sustainability areas our stakeholders
value as important to the business; due to the interconnected apgroach,
we have combined these themes under one pillar, As the economy deals
with the soating cost of energy as well as an Increased level of scruting to
reduce reliance on carben and other environmental impacts, this will be
an area of importance for us and our stakeholders for many years.

Last year we cormmitted to being net zero by 2045 at the latest by reducing
our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG (compared ta 2021}, We have undertaken
a project with a sustainability consultant during the year to review our
operational {scope 1 and 2) GHG emissions to determine actions that wili
help us achieve our target. Off the back of this work, we have created our
Net Zerp Plan which provides direction for the Group aligned to these
actions which we will continue to refine.

Our Net Zero Plan and the supporting strategy to follow support our
ambition 1o minimise the global impact of our aperations and protect our
environment as well as our response to and managernent of climate risk

JEaa e on pege 4%

Energy consumption

Cur energy consurmption in FY22 was 41,021 MWh; of this, the LK accounted
for 28% of our global energy use. Several factors have contributed o the
increase in the Group's energy use, including a ramo-up of production

in several locations which includes offering last tirme buys for key armor
bus ness custarers as we wnd-down the business A delzy in comtracts
also resulted in Increasac energy use that would have otherwise been
generated during FY2i.

The facus far the year has been o improve our process for capturing
data relating to enerdy consumption and set an appropriate base yesr
for measuring against whicn has been achieveg As a result, we did
rot undertake any Group-'ed energy efficiency projects dunng the
year; hawever, 1t s likely that sne-led process improvernents have been
undertaken that have positively impacted energy efficiency but these
hz .o not been coptured,

48 Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Carbon disclosures

A representative at each of our sites has responsibility for the reporting of
energy use throughout the year The collected dara allows us 1o calculate
and monitar carbon emissions and is a vital tool for measuring progress
towards reducing our emissions.

During the year we reviewed the sources of GHG emissions generated
at our sites to ensure we are reporting all the relevant emissions. As we
STart to extend our reparting into scope 3 we will continue to report in
alignment with the Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Standards,

In F¥22 our carbon emissions amounted to 10,856 0., of this, the UK,
accounted for 20% of our total scope 1 and 2 emissions (location based).
Wh a revenue of $2718 million this gives us an intensity ratio of 3905 tC0 e
per $million revenue. We have established that tonnes of CO e per $milion
revenue Is an appropriate business metrnc which we will continue ta

use to define our erissions data and will be helpful for assessing our
performance as we evolve,

Scope 3 - business travel

Scope 3 emissions quantify a comipany's indirect GHG throughout the
value chain This includes everything from the impact of purchased
products and services to transportation and distnbution all the way

1o end-of-life reatrnent of soid products. In total, there are 15 scope 3
categories that need to be accounted for. A top-level view on which scope
3 categories are [kely to be relevant suggests ‘purchased goods and
services categary” as significant and (kely to be greater than our scope 1
and 2 emissions We will pe staging projects thraughout the coming years
to set up apprapriate data coliector and research into each category.,

The avai'ability of data on business travel enabled us to measure our
impact ahead of schedule. Due to our COVID-19 trave! policy and country
regulations our business travel was I'mited in 2021 resuliing 1in 80 1C0O
Since travel has been allowed aur business has ensured every trip has an
intended purpese The business recognises the importance of meatng
with our colleagues outside of the virtuai ervirenmrent, but rmust rack the
environmental impact FY221s a more reflective year of t-avel amounting
10382100

There s “urther work ongaing on other scope 3 emissions 5o we can
determine how relevart e scope 3 categories are for the orgamsation,
We will continue 1o monitor business travel and report on it



Site management

Qur UK. operations continue to conforr to 1SO 14001:2015 which
reinforces how we manage our environrental responsibilities, In April, we
also obtained certification for our U.S. site in California as part of bringing
all our manufacturing sites under this certification. In support of this we
have undergaone further strengthening of our management by appointing
EHS coverage at all sites which will be responsible for managing our
licences. We will look to undertake two further certifications next year.

Global GHG emissions (tonnes CO,e)
FY22 FY21'3

Scope 1
_-Q.K 905 1,184
Outside UK. ’ 2,598 141
Total 3,503 2,595
Scope 2 (locarion based)
UK. 1,294 1,461
Qutside UK. 6,059 4828
Total 7,353 6,289
Scape 2 (market based)? 7518 6,525
Total scope 1 and 2 {location based)
UK. - 2,199 2,645
Qutside UK, 8,657 5,239
Total 10,856 5,834
Intensity ratio
tC0.e (scope 1 and 2) per Smillion revenue . 39.9 358
Selected scope 3 GHG emissions reporting
(tCO,e)
Indirect emissions for business travel 7 382 20
Energy consumption l
Energy consumed {Mwh)
UK. 11,648 13356
Qutside UK, -29,373 19,721
Total 41,021 33,077

12021 cata bas beer restatec as a result of mprovements made ro repornng merkocology ard
mcre accurdte gnergy data Gugra fguresinthe 2021 Annaal Regertwers, 11,448 tC0 e tota
GG erpssions and 33911 MWh @rergy Coreaamphor

2 Mareet based eruss or factars on v inc'ude T2 and nave beean calculated usirg U K, subpler-
specihic rates as well a5 2019 and 2020 U S Green-e 2aeegy Jesicual Mix Emissiors Rates,

3 Tearwengy was acquired ir Novemaoer 20240, bawever data for the Clevelard facihny s
includes for the fur 2021 fingnaal yedr to orov de a base year

Data ~as beer como ed accord rg to lhe cpe-anonal boundary agcroach in the Greennouse Gas

Frotocol Corparate ACcounting ang Jeporting Hiasdard andg shiges ro Soeam -ned £nergy ard

Carbor Recort g iasCR)

Dverall consurmpnon bes oeen zalculated Js rgirvo.ced dats Estmated data s used whera

invoiced zetd 1s ot ava lanle wathi the imel re fer consa dat or of year erd data Two sma

office sites Use est mated 2russons cased on CAEEM data for hear ng and electnicy consumphion
oersq It

Ermiss or factem Fave been catculated using 2020 and 2021 UK Govern~ent G4G Corversion

Faciors fur Company Repars ng ard the 2020 EPA eGR T corvers ans

Water usage

Water consumption across all six of our sites is limited to mainty domestic
use, for drinking and sanitary disposal Where water discharges do

occur due to product testing, they are disposed of in line with tocal
government guidelimes.

Waste

During the year we established centralised tracking and monitering of our
different waste streams at our UK. headquarters which identified that over
97% of waste gencrated from operations at this site is either recovered

or recycled (29015 tonnes of waste generated during FY22) For the
ourpose of establishing baseline waste figures for the Group and assessing
our scope 3 emissions we will look at setting up similar data reporting
raquirements at our ather sites.

We also commenced our partnership with one of our suppliers,

AK Industrics Limited, to reuse packaging for all products delivered. All
packaging the site receives from AK Industries 15 sent back to the supplier
in Correx packaging for them to reuse, which resulted in 5,000 boxes keing
reused during the year. By doing this we help to conserve resources, reduce
waste ard avoid emissions generated through needless reprocessing

Any hazardous waste generated, as defined by the Control of Sulbrstances
Hazardous to Heaith and U.S. Environment Protection Agency (U.5. EPA),
is disposed of in line with local guidelines,

Environmental incidents

There have been no environmental incidents as defined by the UK
Environment Agency or the WS, EPA at any of our sites or in relation to our
supply chain throughout the 2022 financial year.

Looking forward

In FY23 we will continue to focus on employees’ engagement

building in greater connection with our Net Zero Plan through internal
information campaigns, We will also expand our data collection to include
waste, water and other scope 3 categories.

HIGHLIGHTS

0 2

sites certified to
1SO 14001 2015

environmental incidents
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

OUR IMPACT PLAN
SUSTAINABLE SUPPLY CHAINS

Qur approach

Primarily, we consider sustainable supply chains to encapsulate ethical and
environmentally responsible practices Recent supply chain disruption,
which has resulted from macro events such as the ongoing conflict in
Ukraine and COVID-19 lackdawns, has heightened our stakeholders'
awareness of supply chains and ensuring they can aperate sustainably.

The risk of further disruption through extreme weather and sea level
change is suggested to Increase over time under certain climate scenarios,
see page 63, To reduce this risk, we are working towards net zero by
reducing our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions (compared to 2021},
and recognise we must suppart our supply chain 1o do the same.

This is the first year of detaled reporting on 1ssues relating t© our supply
chain and over the coming year we will look to develoo our direction and
set targets within this pillar.

Supply chain

Forus to achieve our long-term ambitions in sustainability, we recognise
that the management of and support from our suppliers will be vital to
ensure they are responsible for conveying the same level of compliance to
their supply base as we are. When we consider a new supplier to provide
products or services, a supplier survey must be carpleted before they
can be approved which inciudes evidence that they have implemented

a comprehensive Quality Management System, or progress towards
developing one with the goal of the Sub-Supplier conformity to 150 9001,

Rationalisation

Following the acquisition of 3M's ballistic protection business and Team
Wendy, we have undertaken projects 1o ratonalise our supply chain to
create manufactunng efficiencies and reduce the monitoring burden,

Policies

Our suppher Code of Conduct provices a minimum set of requiremenrts
for our supphers to adhere to and alsc ercourages supoliers to implement
their own Code of Conduct far their employees and to cascade this
throughout their supply chain If supgliers have concerns regarding any
of the mattars covered in this Code of Conduct, we expec: them to bring
these to our attention
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OUR SUPPLY CHAIN

603 |

approved production suppliers

Reas mare 20 our Tode of Zonduct or sur webste

Bead miore on our Modern Siavery State~ent wn our webare

Product development

Product safety and quality 1s at the core of all our business practices, The
majority of our products are approved to custormer or industry safety
standards which involves ngorous testing. Our production employees
receive mandatory product safety training, and all of our products
undergo internal safety and quality testing programmes. Where standards
require, external safety audits are conducted on our products,

We recognise Itis essential 1o develop products that generate long-term
value for the business and do nat compromise the enviranments and
community in which we operate or influence through cradle to grave.
As we work towards our net zero GHG target, we will be reviewing

our products scope 3 emissions which will inform our transition over
time to reduce the GHG emissions gererated through the life cycle of
CLr progucts.

Looking forward

In FY23 we will continue tc develop our knowledge of our supply cnain
and how this impacts our scope 3 emissions as well as 1ake opportuninies
to support our supphes to further this agenda



OUR IMPACT PLAN
CYBERSECURITY & DATA PROTECTION

Our approach

Cybersecurity and data protection came out strongly as a key sustainability
1ssue that was highlighted in our materiality assessment. As a contractor
for the U.S. DOD we have an cbligation to be compliant and ensure the
highest levels of security are met,

Managing data protection

As a contractor to militaries, we handle defence-related data. Through aur
work with the LS, DOD we are subject to the International Traffic in Arms
Regulat.ons {ITAR) which mandate that access to data related to defence
and military technologies is restricted to U.S. citizens only. A violation

of ITAR could resultin fines and/or loss of export licences. As with many
organisations, we face risks fram external threats that could cause sensitive
data to be lost, corrupted or accessed by unauthorised users, leading to
financial or reputational loss. Over the past 12 months, we have started

an integration pragramme 1o ensure our newly acquired sites are running
on our latest and maost secure network. This programme is ongoing

and will continue into the next year as we cover key aspects including
infrastructure, ERP desktop equipment and applications,

As of 2022, we have revisited and updated our Information Classification
Policy. We commonly exchange information, some of which could have
security classifications with external customers and partners, so as a Group,
we prigritise the placement of appropriate markings, disclosure agreements
and security measures. In addition, during the past year we have launched
the Group's new Compliance Programme alongside a reviewed and revised
Information Security Policy and Code of Conduct. These documents define
the standards expected of each employee, contractor and third party
acting on behalf of Avon Protection, including meeting physical, digital and
data security requirements, Over the next 12 months we have a target to
introduce additional compliance training covering each of aur three care
compliance pillars spanning organisational governance, export compliance
and security in an approach very similar 1o our proven and successful
cybersecurity training programme.

OUR ACHIEVEMENTS THIS YEAR

>90% 2022

employees completed annual Compliance
cybersecurity training Programme launched

Cybersecurity

As workplace COVID-19 restrictions reduce, we continue to be a flexible
employer, allowing individuals to work from home where possible and,
as a result, continue to maintain the enhanced monitoring of phishing
atternpts and other security threats both within and outside of our core
locations. We have policies and mandatory enline training delivered by

a leading provider throughout the vear, continually raising awareness of
such risks with our employees to avoid any data breach of confidential
information. Training includes online courses and questionnaires
surrounding topics such as protecting personal and sensitive data and
how 1o recognise social engineering artacks, with industry benchmarking
data suggesting users are six turmes less likely to be prone to a phishing
attack 12 months after this training. With 31% of successful data breaches
starting with a spear phishing attack, we also run regular security tests 1o
ensure aur emplayees continue to utilise the tools provided to them in
addition to their training. Since joining the programme, our cyber tests

have proven our phish-prone rating t@ be half that of the industry average.

Cybersecurity training 1s 8 key line of defence for the Group and

continues To SUPPOTT Us as we wark towards meeting the requirements

of Cybersecurity Maturity Model Certfication (CMMC) 20 CMMC 2015 a
requirement for all contractors and subcontractors of the US, DOD, as the
model brings together many cybersecurity requirements to better protect
Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI)

Looking forward
As an organisation that handles CUI, we are working towards meeting t«
requirements of CMMC 2.0
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SUSTAINABILITY CONTINUED

OUR IMPACT PLAN
AN EMPLOYEE-CENTRIC APPROACH

Employee engagement

We are committed te maintaining a high level of employee engagement
across all sites and providing an environment where all employees can
fulfil their potenuial

Maintaining high levels of cammunication with all employees is a focus

across the Group as we host monthly leadership events with members of the
Executive Board. This pravides the oppartunity for the Executive Board to give
an update on the business, their vision for the future and what requires further
focus in asingle clear message to all employees, These events also provide
employees with the appartunity to ask guessions directly and anconymously if
they sowish, Over FY22, we have also held maore in-person townhall meetings
during each Executive Board site visit, providing empioyees with a further
opportunity to engage, ask questions and hear directly from leadership.

We greatly value employee feedback and continue our initiative ta celebrate
and enhance the culture at Avon Protection. Culture Chamgpions have been
selected from every level of the crganisation with the intention of playing a
crucial role in maintaining an open communication culture within the Group.
Their role includes speaking to our employees on matters such as leadership,
learning and developmert, and scoal connection The Executive Board

also actively meets and engages with Culture Champions during each of its
ST VSIS,

Our biannual surveys provide employees with a further opportunity 1
provide feadback and suggest improvements on aspects such as leadership
communication, employee engagement, team culture and work environment
Results from these surveys are then presented 1o the Board of Directars, the
Executive Board and the wider ieadership team with areas for improvement
at both site and Group level discussed. Qur Culture Charnpions then support
ir the implernentation of the changes and give feedback 1o our employees.
This discussion 15 two-way, as Culture Champions then feed back on how this
change or feedback has beer accepted across the business

Health, safety and wellbeing

n lire with our goal of zero harm, we continue 1o actively promaote a
strong safety culture, We have mandatory training and policies in piace for
all production employees on workplace safety and pract.ces,

Thig year, across our operational sites, we recorded a total of 5 werkolace
05T UMe cases We track incidents on a monthly basis and have a global
target to reduce cur incident rate to zero, against which we are making
progress Over the past year, we have also globally aligned the way in
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which we collect safety data across all of our sites. We have developed an

online hub for UK. emplayees, providing them with access to equipment-
sperific safety training courses to becorme certified by the business upon

course completion The anline hub, once implemented across all sites, will
play an integral part in achieving our zero-incident target.

The health and weltbeing of our employees is important to us and throughout
the year we share resources with thern on how to look after thelr mentat
and physical wellbeing, We hold a multitude of wellbeing webinars based
on key topics throughout the year, such as work-life balance, exarcize and
seasonal nutrntion, These webinars allow employees to switch off from
work for an hour and ask cur expert presenters questions, InCreasing our
employee engagerment and involvernent.

Diversity and inclusion

Diversity provides a better culture for all. We are committed to equality
for all employees as we strive to provide an envirgnment where every
individual can meet their full potential.

Fernale representation across our Executive Board and direct reports

is 21% and we are committed to improving this in the future. Across all
employees, we have achieved a ratio of 42% (420 our of 995) female and
58% {575 out of 395) male.

As part of our pledge to continuously improve the balance of female

to male employees across ali aur sites, we have signed the Women m
Defence UK. charter This charter reflects our aspirations to see warnen
represented ard empowered across the defence sector and our Intention
o work with fellow industry leaders 1o enhance the gender balance,

Having estabushed the Balance@Avon init'ative two years ago, we are
proud of what we have achieved so far In addressing gender inequalities
in the workplace The initative aims to motivate, empower and support all
employees, partncularly toose who may feel that they are in a minority, to
urderstand themselves and their ams and how they might work towards
achieving them To continue gur efforts, we regularly ratate the members
of the Steering Committee to ensure that everyane has the opportiunity to
contribute new ideas Following the most recent rotation, the Committee
15 in the pracess of estatisnng a framewnrk 7o expand the Balance@Avon
urnbrella 1o grve employees a guide for how they can create further sub-
groups for other areas of diversity and irclusicn,



PUTTING OUR PEOPLE FIRST

Personal development

We strive to provide an environment that offers training and
development opportunities for all. We have continued with
our Professional Development Programme (PDP), a year-leng
talent development pragramme, with the aim to identify,
encourage and support the next generation of Internal
talent to contribute to the business beyond the scope of
their cuirent roles. Participants set petsonal development
targets which are worked on for the year with internal
mentor support. Mentors are Executive team members who
provide a source of advice and suppaort for the participants in
addition to their line manager.

Our talent management process that we call the Global
Performance Management Process (GPMP) is a critical tool
that enables the Group to ensure all employees are working
towards goals aligned with business abjectives, their career
aspirations and development needs are being discussed and
reviewed. We also continue to focus on early careers, giving
those at the beginning of their career journey the help and
support that they need to establish a successful and fulfilling
career through work experience, internships, placement
years, apprenticeships and graduate programmes.

We believe our emplayees thiive the most when they can
improve and enhance their skill sets and work on their
personal development. We have provided aur employees
with access to toals, such as LinkedIn Learning, to help

with their career progression and personal development in
whichever way works best for them. With over 30,000 videos
watched over the past year, LinkedIn Learning has proven to
be an invaluable tool for cur employees to complete online
courses in any areas of interest t progress their career paths
and expand their knowledge.

1% 30,000+

activated licences  elearning videos watched

Our US. sites report equal employment opportunities data annually
tothe LS Government and to the State of California under pay equity
requirements. Affirmative action plans are also in place which outline
goals for women and minorities, veterans and people with disabilities
by establishment,

Qur average UK. gender pay gap for FY21 {reparted in April 2022} 15 37%
The pay gap is due to the Company having more women in operations
and assembly roles in the lowest quartile {35 2%} compared to mare

men in the top quartile (82.1%) and daes not stem from paying men and
women differently for the same or equivalent work. While the percentage
of men in the upper quartile of pay has reduced since FY20, our existing
focus to address the gender balance at our Company leadership team
levels continues through initiatives such as Balance@Avon, which will
help to close the overal! pay gap with mare female representation at this
level, Our gender pay gap data can be found in the Governance section of
our website

ODUR ACHIEVEMENTS THIS YEAR

63% 85

reduction in members in
lost time cases Balance@Avon community

16

executive leadership
engagements

30%

pledged female
representation through
the Women in Defence
UK. charter

Pay and benefits

During 2022 we have engaged an HR consultant to help us with defining
our remuneration philosophy and reviewing our pay and benefits in order
10 retain and attract talented individuals. Our aim has been tc align and
simplify our approach, ensuning we are fair and consistentin the way we
treat our employees, regardless of location.

Community engagement

We continually work with and for the communities in which we cperate,
recognising our role as a major local employer. We have recently expanded
our partnership with Bath Rugby, te support its Primary Education
programme centred around developing numeracy skills and promoting
sport, health and wellbeing. ‘Attacking Maths', the programme aimed at
developing numeracy skills, has seen over 100 sessions of numeracy and
tag rugby delivered to 20 primary schools in the South-West of the UK.
The Girls Participation Hubs programme has seen cver 450 young girls
participate in training sessions and games led by Bath Rugby's grassicots
coaches. Feedback from this programme has been very positive, with
high-quality, exciting teaching for the children, upskilling of members

of staff at the schoal and enthusiasm shared between teachers, children
and parents.

Fram sponseoring local sparts teams and charitable events to our incredible
employees wha choose to push themselves for a great cause, this year we
have approved charitable giving requests totalling in excess of $108,403.
Qur employees have undertaken ten-hour, 48km hikes and local corporate
challenges spanning months to name but a few, and we will continue to
encourage such efforts, requests and donations throughout FY23

Looking forward

In the coming year we will continue 10 embed the new online health and
safety hub across our sites and expand on our successful Balance@Avon
umbrella to enable further areas of improvement in diversity and inclusion.
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STRATEG!IC REPORT

OUR APPROACH TO TCFD

(TASK FORCE ON CLIMATE-RELATED FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES)

This is the first year we have reported on TCFD requirements, as per Listing Rule LR3.8.6R. Whilst we acknowledge that we are only partially compliant this year, we
have conducted a gap analysis to identify the key areas for action to ensure that we are fully compliant against each of the four thematic areas and 11 underlying
recommendations by 2024 Our governance disclosure is fully compliant; during FY22 we established an appropriate governance structure which we intend to
further embed in the coming year. Qur strategy disclosure is partially comphant; during the year we have worked towards improving compliance by developing
twa gualitative climate scenarios far identfying climate-related risks and opportunities. Having identified these risks, we are now looking to better understand the
impact these have on businesses strategy, financial planning and budgeting, in addition to enhancing cur approach o climate scenario analysis and modelling
Qur risk management disclosure 15 partially compliant; using climate scenano analysis we have identfied and assessed climate-related risk and opportunites in
FY22 which we have begun to integrate inta our Group Risk Management process, and we will continue to review our processes for embedding the identification,
assessment and management of clirmate risks into the business. Over the coming year we wll further develop our climate scenarios and logk at epportunities for

quantitative assessment of short, medium, and long-term risks. Qur metrics and targets disclosure s parually-compliant, during FY22 we focused animproving
our data collection processes which will be a platform for disclosing additional details on targets, metncs and scope 3 emissions. In FY23 we will investigate a
wider breadth of metrics which may be applicable, and we believe this will enable us to be fully compliant in the next disclosure.

GOVERNANCE

Board oversight of climate-related
risks and opportunities and
management'’s role in managing
climate-related risks and opportunities
During the year we have established a formal
governance structure with responsibility for delivering
our sustainability agenda and the management
of clirnate-related nsks and opportunities

The Board oversees and has overall responsibility
for Avon Protection’s sustainability agenda,
disctosures and reporting. This includes, but is
not limited to, the identfication, assessment and
management of climate risks and oppartunities

During the year a Sustainability Comrnittee,
chaired by Rich Cashin, was established with

STRATEGY

What are our climate-related risks, in
the short, medium and long term?
We received technical advice on the reguirement
to disclose against TCFD; part of this was 1o
identfy an appropriate climate scenario to
support Avon Protection’s analysis of risks and
oppartunities See the case study an page &3 for
more details on our approach

We identified climate-related risk and opportunities
through the development of cur qualitative chmate
scenarios. During the year, these were reviewed
with each business unit and the Risk Comrmittee
ident fied four mew risks 1o be Integrated into our
Group Risk Management pracess, see page 63, Each
business unitapplied bespoke impact assessment
measures based on finanaal Indicatars and other
impacts relatve to the size of the business unit

o each of the identfied risks This review dlid not
hughlight any material nisks that would 'mpact the
business in the year ahead

We can sphit the firdirgs inte trans fionat and
physical nsiks and oppaortanites.

responsitility for the iImplementation and
delivery of our sustainability agenda on behalf
of the Board. The Sustainability Committee
meet monthly and will recommend to the Board
for approval, sustainability-related targets and
review the Company's progress towards those
targets, reporting regularly 1o both the Executive
Board and main Board. The employee forum

is responsible for promoting the views of the
workforce. Please see the diagram on page 43
thar illustrates ar a high level how sustainability
and climate-related issues are integrated into our
gavernance and Board Committee structures.

The Board oversees risk management using the
Three Lines of Defence methodology which is
described within our Risk Management section
on page 62.

Risks and opportunities

Transitional
Technology adoption and change in
customer requirements (new): Lack of
technology adoption and innovation to
reduce embedded carbon within products
nsks mcreased costs and misatignment wirh
customer requiremeants, Innovation inthis
area could put us ahead of our compettion.

- Inability to recruit and retain talent: Poor
sustainability results and progress towards
Qur net zero target may reduce our ability to
recruit and retain talent

Failure to reduce reliance on carbon
(new): The business could be impacred

by emerging regulations and palicies,
leading to ircreased costs in procurement,
manufacturing and distribution operaticns as
well as fres and bitigation

+ Deterioration of stakeholders’ perception
of the defence sector {newl: Stakehoider
pressure for busingsses to act responsibly
centinues 1o grow The deferice sector currently

54 Avon Protection ple Annual Report and Accounts 2022

Management is responsible for assessing and

managing these climate-related risks and

opportunities at the operational level and raising

to the attention of the Risk Committee any risks

that constitute as emerging {a risk in the next 0

o 3 years that has the potential to becomne an

increasingly higher risk through either increased !
likelinood and/or increased size of iImpact),

Looking forward !
Ta strengthen ownership on climate-related

matters we will be carrying out internal

campaigns (@ ralse awareness We will also

comsicder training opportunities for our Board

a~d management teams.

forms a significant part of governments' GHG
emissions and there is a reputational risk if
defence suppliers are seen as not meeting
expectations on climate change.

Physical

- Plant closure due to incident or natural
disaster: Likelihood of extrerne weather
events such as heatwaves, extreme winds
and flocding will lead to increasing dsruption
on production under a 4°C scenario

+ Supply chain disruption (new): Supply
chain becomes increasingly susceptible to
climate-related disruprion impaciing our
ability to deliver and negatively impacting
cur reputaticn under a 4°C scenaric

The establishrnent of a clirrate scenario was part
of a phased approach ard we recognise that our
sceraros will develop cvertire to distinguish
fisks that are shert, nediurn or long term



STRATEGY CONTINUED

What is the impact of climate-

related risks and opportunities

on our business, strategy and

financial planning?

- Products and markets: Cur products and
those of our competitors inherently have
embedded carbon. Climate-related mitigations
will evolve the way we design, manufacture
and manage our product portfolio. This offers
opportunities for us to lead in innovatcn, as
customers’ requirements may be altered 1o
favour low-carbon ernbedded technology.

+ Operations: Qur operational footprint
covers six manufacturing facilities across two
developed markets which are expected to
have increasing levels of climate scrutiny and
manitoring requirements. We acknowledge
that physical risks (such as extrerne weather
events) have potential to affect our operations
and we will continue te develop aur continuity
plans to be more forward looking.

RISK MANAGEMENT

What are the processes through
which we identify, assess and
manage climate-related risk and
how are these integrated into our
risk management programme?

Last year we identified sustainability as a new
principal risk to be developed during 2022
which would include climate-related risks and
spportunities, see page 62,

During the year with the help of a consultant,
and through consultation with a cross section of
our leadership team, we developed a qualitative
climate scenario narrative (see case study on
page 63) which has provided us with a tool

1o review our likely physical and transiticnal

risks and opportunities through the lens of

METRICS AND TARGETS

Metrics used to assess climate-
related risks and oppertunities and
the targets we use to manage the
risks and opportunities

Many of the climate-related risks and
opportunities we face are related to our
transition to net zero, Therefore, greenhouse gas
emissions data is the key metric we are currently
using to assess these risks. See page 49,

We have also established that tonnes of CO e
per million revenue is an appropriate business
metric to define our emissions data. Thisis a
new operational key performance indicator
which is in line with our strategy and investor
proposition, see page 37.

To support the progress lowards these targets,
the Remuneration Committee established

« Strategy: Last year we committed to being
net zero by 2045 at the latest by reducing
our absolute scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions.
During the year we have been focuscd
on sertng an appropriate base year for
measurement and action in the coming years
and 2021 was agreed to be appropriate. Net
zero considerations have been added to our
strateqy documents; further refinement and
communication with management teams
are required to influence the direction of our
strategy I relation to climate change,

« Financial planning: We recognise that
assessing the financial implications of climate
change will be an essential step and we
commit to conducting this assessment in fine
with refining our approach.

two different climate scenarios. This was the
first step in refining our approach to climate-
related risk. We also undertook a materiality
assessment of sustainability themes which
included stakeholder feedback and assessment
of operational and reputational impact to the
business. This work, alongside our Net Zero Plan,
has helped to identify areas of climate change
tisks and opportunities.

During the year, business units reviewed

these risks and opportunities. The risk revicw
committee identified six items to be escalated
and managed through the Group Risk
Management precess, including measures to
mitigate risk, see page 63 for details on this
process We will continue to monitor and track
other risks and opportunities through a detailed

ESG-related objectives as part of the bonus
scheme for Executive Directars in 2021 and it is
anticipated that these measures will continue
to feature as part of the bonus structure

going forward.

Our scope 1, 2 and 3 GHG emissions
During the year greenhouse ¢gas scope 1 and

2 emissions from all sites were reviewed by

a consultant 1o allow us to Improve our data
collection and reporting processes.

A top-level view an which scope 3 categorics
are likely to be relevant suggests the ‘purchased
goods and services’ category as significant

and likely to be greater than our scope

and 2 emissions. We will be staging projects
throughout the coming years to determine

How resilient is our business strategy
to different climate scenarios?

We recognise that climate change does have an
impact on our business under the two different
scenarios that have been explored, see page
63. The assessment indicated that under a
belaw 2°C scenario transitional risk would be
maore significant whereas physical risk would be
mare pertinent in the 4°C scenario As we gain
experience in assessing climate-related risks and
opportunities we will logk for oppartinities m
start developing guantitative information to
iliustrate these outcomes in the coming year

Looking forward

As our approach to clirnate-related risks and
opportunities matures we will be refining

our climate scenarios to quantfy impact on
the organisation's business strategy, financial
planning and budgeting, as well as developing
our approach to identifying short, medium and
long-term risks.

sustainabitity sub-register. Several climate-
related risks and opportunities have been
highlighted to the Risk Committee as emerging,
however they are not believed to have an
impact on the business in the year ahead.,

The risk scores from the business unit registers
are combined to determine our highest
considered risks across the Group which are
then presented to the Audit Committee, in
addition to the list of emerging risks.

Looking forward

We will continue 1o evolve how we identity and
maonitor risks and opportunities and the process
by which we escalate a risk to the Group Risk
register process.

appropriate data collection inta each category.
The availability of data enabled us to measure
our Impact on scope 3 greenhouse gas
emissions through business travel ahead

of schedule,

See page 46 for disclosure of our scopes 1 and
2 and a review of scope 3 emissions generated
through business travel,

Looking forward

During the year we were focused on improving
our data collection and setting a base year
which will be a platform for disclosing
additrional details on targets, metrics and
scope 3 emissions relevant to net zero and our
sustainability agenda in the next disclosure
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

SIGNIFICANT
LONG-TERM GROWTH
OPPORTUNITY

Full year results underpinned by a significant
step-up in H2 financial performance.

Avon Protectior has seen strong revenue growth in 2022 with revenue of 5271.9 million up 95% {9.1% on an organic constant cuirency kasis) compared
to the prior periad. However, a shift in product mix, along with operational challenges including supply chain constraints, have impacted profitability,
resulting in an adjusted operating profit of $101 million (2021, 322.0 million) which includes $13.3m of losses relating to the armor business, and a statutory

operating 1ass of $2.7 million (2021: toss of $29.0 million).

1 October 2 October

Organic

change

(constant

2022 20217 currency)®
Orders received $280.1m $282.7m {1 6%)
Clasing order book $1513m  $1431m 78%
Revenue §2719m  $248.3m 91%
Adjusted EBITDA $25.5m $376m  (38.5%)
Adjusted EBITDA margin 9.4% 151%  (71Chps)
Adjusted operatung profit S10.1m7 522.0m (61.4%)
A_djusted' net finance costs 5(4.00m $3.1Im 3330%
Adjusted prof'\f before tax 56.1m $189m (74 %)
Adiusted taxation i i $0.1m 50.3m
Adjusted broﬂt after tax $6.2m $18.6m {731%)
Adjusted basic earnings per share 204c &0.6C (72.9%)
Dividend per share ) 44.9¢ 449¢ 00%
Net debt excluding lease labiities $44.2m 526.8m 64.9%
Cash conversion i 142.7% 83.2% )
Statutory results
Operating loss 52.1m $(29.0)m
Net finance costs 5(6.4)m 5(E.6)m
Loss before tax ) $@5m  sEsEm
Taxation $2.9m S110m
L_o'ss after tax from continuing operations $(5.6)m 5{(24.5)m )
L_oss from di;contlnued operations 7 S(Z.O)mr SO01m
Eoss for the perigd $(7.60m $(25.6/m B
Basm loss per share from Cbﬁtinu\ng operaﬂt\ons ) {18.5)c {799ic -
Net debt $680m  $559m e
1 TreDieconce o2 tnaTed Jsten cndres Browice a Jsefa comiar ser of cusitess ramds ard oecformarce A5 grtec results 2@ ude axisst oral temsard gstorT raed s0etat Gra The term

s "ot o’ ren grde FRE A rIEasAres Jaea By SITEr COMTAre

2 eris e 30 Lantacer mMisee rg ary 5 200Nt rg referemra ate mpas GO IRE UTENT AT T 5T 0T DET 00 TOW STSW e 403

ot UmMoers

Order intake totalled $280 1 million (2021 52827 millior) 'n the year, down 0.9% (1 6% on an organic congtant curency basis), with increases in head
protection, ircluding the previously announced $42.1 million order for NG IHPS, of'set by decreases in respiratory following the recaipt of several large NSPA
ordersir the prior year, Order intake excluding armor totatled 5267 3 million (2021 52810 millan) down 4.7%: (5 4% an an orgamnic consiant currency Dass)

The closing order book of $157 3 million (2021:$143 1 milhon] reflects an increase of 5 7% (7 8% an an Organic constant currency basis; on the prior period,
Ciosing order book exctuding armror of $1209 millon (2021 5116 5 million) reflects an increase of 3 B% 6 2% on an organic corstant currency basis)

Revenue totalled $271.5 million (2021 $248 3 milier), up 9.5% (91% on an crganic constant currency oasish, reflecting strorg growth e respiratory notably
drver by tme NSPA contract, offsetting a small decling 'n head protect.on. Revenue excluding armer totallzd $263.5 mitlier 2021 524" 8 mllion). up 3%

(8 6% 0N an organic consiant cLIrency Basis!
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STRATEGY IN ACTICN
INTEGRATING ACQUISITIONS

EXPANDING OUR HEAD
PROTECTION PORTFOLIO

We recognise the importance of integrating recent
acquisitions to build a stronger business. Qur priority

over the past year has been the integration of the 3M's
ballistic protection business and Team Wendy which were
acquired in 2020,

During 2022, we launched the Cleveland IT Integration
Pregramme, with the objective of transitioning Team Wendy
onto the Avon Protection infrastructure and standardising IT
services under the management of the Avon Pratection IT
team. Achieving this will enable our business to operate more
efficiently and puts us in an even greater position to meet the
2024 cybersecurity requirements for the militaries and first
responders we supply.

We were also pleased to incorperate our Cleveland
employees into our ADP Payroll system and ADP Mobile
App, providing all employees with 24/7 access to their
payrolt information from therr mobile device at any time,
from anywhere

Progress has been made to intertwine our culture with

our acquisitions. Culture Champions have been selected

from every level of the crganisation to allow for an open
communication culture within the Group, Looking forward,
Culture Champions wilt be recruited at the Cleveland site also.
This year's Professional Development Programme (POP} is
also the first to include participants from Team Wendy

2

World-leading portfolios

WE HAVE SEEN STRONG REVENUE
GROWTH IN 2022. HOWEVER, A
SHIFT IN PRODUCT MIX, ALONG
WITH OPERATIONAL CHALLENGES
INCLUDING SUPPLY CHAIN
CONSTRAINTS, HAS IMPACTED
PROFITABILITY.

Adjusted EBITDA of 325.5 million s down 32.2% (38.5% on an organic
constant currency basis) compared to the prior period {2021 $376 million}
with operational challenges including supply chain disruptions and
manufacturing inefficiencies, along with shifts in product mix being the
predominant factors for the decrease. Adjusted EBITDA margin of 24%
represents a decline of 570bps (710bps on an organic constant currency
basis). Adjusted EBITDA losses for armor totalled $13.3 million with a large
averhead base supporting low levels of throughput prior to FAT approval,
resulting in adjusted EBITDA excluding armar of $38.8 million, dawn 15.7%
(21.8% on an organic constant currency basis) compared to the prior year
{2021: $46.0 million), and EBITDA margin excluding armor of 14.7%, down
430bps. Headwinds were alleviated somewhat in H2 with operational
Improvements and benefits of the overhead reduction programmes,

1850434 J1931v4LS

Adjusted operating profit of $10.0 milhon (2021: $22.0 million) is after
adjusted depreciation, amortisation and impairment of $15.4 million (2021
$15.6 million}, a decrease of 54 1% {61.4% on an organic constant currency
basis) compared to the prior period following the decrease in EBITDA.

Statutory operating loss was $2.1 million (2021 loss of $29.0 million)

after $12.2 million adjustments (2021 $51.0 million adjustments) with

the decreased loss as a result of the large amount of armor related
impairments in the prior year. The adjusted perforrnance section contains
further explanation for adjusting items which are summarised below.

2022 2021
$m $m
Statutory operating loss (2.1) (29.0)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 68 14.2
Impairments and provisions related to 18 46.8
arrnor assets
Release of contingent consideration (3.9) (15.7)
Impairment of non-current assets 36 0.7
Restructuring costs 33 —
Acquisition and transaction costs 0.6 2.6
inventory fair value adjustments — 24
Adjusted operating profit 10.1 226

Adjusted net finance costs increased to $4.0 million (2021: $3.1 million} due
to higher net debt and variable interest charges.

After an adjusted tax credit of $0.1 million {2021: charge of 50.3 million), the
Group recorded an adjusted profit for the penod after tax of $6.2 mllion
{2021 518.6 million).

Adjusted basic earnings per share decreased by 66.3% to 204 cents
(2021. 606 cents).

Statutory net finance costs of 56.4 million {2021: $6 & million) include

$1.3 million (2021 $1 3 millicn) of discourt unwind relating to the UK.
pension scheme and a discount unwind of $1.1 million (2021: $2.2 miliicn)
relating to the contingent consideration payable 1o 3M.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Statutary lass hefore tax from contnuing operations was 58 5 million (2021 loss of $35.6 million) and, after a tax crecht of $2.9 millon (307 1 credr of
S11.1 million), the [oss for the pericd from continuing operations was §5.6 million (2021 loss of $24.5 million). Basic losses per share from continuing

operations were 18.5 cents (2021: losses of 79.9 cents),

Revenue
2022 2021
Head Head
Respiratory  protection Armor Total Respiratory  protection Armor Total
sm $m $m sm 5m $m sm sm

U.s. DOD 63.2 35.5 —_ 98.7 861 391 — 1252
Commercial Americas 40.5_ 25.2 — 65.7 404 224 — 62.8
UK. & International 89.3 9.3 — 99.1 421 1n.7 — SE
Total excluding Armor ) 193.0 70.5 — 263.5 168.6 732 — 2418
Armaor i -: — 7 8.4 84 7 — — 65 6 5_
%o-tal | 193.0 70.5 8.4 2719 168.6 732 6.5 2@ I
U.s.DOD U.K. & International :

Us DOD revenue declined by 21.2% to $98.7 miilion (2021 $125.2 million)

.S, DOD respiratory revenue declined by 26.6% to $63.2 million {2021:
$86.1 miltion) as a result of the Mé9 contract coming to an end, reduced
volumes of Powered Air Purifiers, and a strong prior year comparator for
spares and accessories Head protection revenue declined by 9.2% to
$35.5 million (2021: $39.1 million} following the completion of the first-
generation IHPS contract. Deliveries against the follow-on NG IHPS will
commence in FY23

U.S. DOD closing order book for 2022 of $92.3 million {2021, $82.1
million) provides excellent revenue visibility for 2023 and 1s cornprised of
5350 million respiratory orders and $53.3 milhon heac protection orders.

Commercial Americas
Commercial Americas revenue increased by 4604 to 565.7 million
(2021 562.8 millian)

Commercial Americas respiratory revenue grew by 0.2% 1o 540 5 million
(2021: 540 4 million) with price increases within cur commercial portfolio
throughout the period giving strong momentum in the second half after
a weaker start. Head praotection revenue grew Dy 12.5% to $25.2 million
{2021 $22.4 miliom), predominantly reflecting the additiona! month of
Team Wendy ownership

Comrnercial Americas closing order book for 2022 of $7% million
(2021, %5 2 million), comprizes $4.5 mion of resparatory orders and
$3 4 milhon of head pratection orders,
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UK. & International revenue increased by 84 2% {88.9% an an organic
Lonstant currency basis) to $96.1 million (20271: $53.8 mullion).

LK. & International respiratory revenue grew by 112.1% {120.0% on an ,
organic constant currency basis) to $89.3 million (2021; $42.1 million) as a

resuit of continued expansion of the NSPA contract, with deliveries made

to seven countnes within the period, whilst head protection revenue

saw a decline of 16.2% (18.8% on an organic constant currency basis) 1o

558 million (26215717 millicn) following the switch of the Australian

Defence Forces Tiered Combat Helmet (TCH) program from production

to sustainment and refurishment.

UK. & International ciosing oraer book for 2022 of $20.8 million
{2021: 549.3 million) follows strong deliveries to NSPA resulting in

a decreased respiratory order book of $16.7 million (2021: $48 5
million}, partially offset by an increase in the head protection order
ook 1o 341 milion (2021: 309 m lion) after a strong launch into the
European market.

Armor
Armor revenue increased by 29.25 to $8.4 million (2021: 46 5 million)
following commencement of DLA ESAPI defiveries.

Armor closing order book of $30.4 million (2021 $26 6 muilion) comprises
$20.1 million of DLA ESAPI and 510.3 million of flat armer

IN LINE WITH OUR STRATEGY

TO MAINTAIN OUR TECHNOLOGY

LEADERSHIP POSITIONS, WE

CONTINUE TO INVEST IN OUR

PORTFOLIO OF PRODUCTS. TOTAL ‘
INVESTMENT IN RESEARCH AND

DEVELOPMENT AMOUNTED TO

$10.9 MILLIDN [2021: $19.1 MILLIDN).



STRATEGY IN ACTION
GROWING THE CGRE

A RECORD-BREAKING YEAR
FOR MI-TICS

This year we celebrated a record-breaking year for our
thermat imaging camera range. Contributing to this success,
were orders from the U.S Navy, amounting to 584 Mi-TIC S
thermal iImaging cameras.

The MI-TIC S is 3 premium, lightweight thermal imager with
industry-leading dynamic range and large display for top
performance in the most extreme firefighting environments.
The camera provides a crystal-clear image with a dynamic
range up 1o 2000°F (1100°C), It allowes users to clearly view
extremely high temperatures without whiteout, as well

as very low temperature abjects Proven in some of the
toughest operating environments, the MI-TIC S 1s in use with
both sea and shore-based firefighters globally

Working closely with the U.S Navy, we specifically talored the
MI-TIC 5 to meet the requirements of the US. Navy Damage
Controlman firefighting teams. These cameras are being
rolled-out across the fleet as part of an ongoing equipment
modernisation programme.

The growth and success of our Mi-TIC range this year not
only demonstrates our ability to successfully grow our core
business but also sur ability to understand and meet cur
custamer’s requirements

Research and development expenditure

In Jine with our strategy to rnaintain our technology leadership positions
we continue to investin our portfolic of products, Total investment in
research and development (capitalised and expensed) amounted to
$10.9 million (2021; $12.1 million}, of which $6.0 million (2021: $7.8 million)
retated ro our respiratery portfolio, and $4 9 million (2021: $5.4 million)
10 the developrent of our head protection pertfolio. Total research and
development as a percentage of revenue was 4.0% (2021 7.7%), with

the decrease following cessation of armor related development, which
amounted to $5.9 millionin FY21

2022 2021
$m sm
Total expenditure 109 19.1
Less customer funded B (1.4) (2.3)
Group expenditure 9.5 16.8
Capitalised (5.8) (15.0)
Amortisation and impairment of 6.7 124
development expenditure
Total income staternent impact 104 14.2
Revenue 271.9 248.3
R&D spend as a % of revenue 40% 7.7%

Within respiratory, investment centred around the development of the
EXOSKIN range of boots and gloves, and impravernents to the supplied air
5T54 tactical self-contained breathing apparatus,

Development expenditure for the head protection portfolic has focused
on the NG IHPS and ACH GEN Il programmes

Net debt and cash flow

2022 2021

$m $m

Adjusted EBITDA 25.5 376
Share-based payments and defined benefit s 1.9
pension scheme costs
Working capital 9.1 8.2
Cash flows from continuing operations 36.4 313
before exceptional items
Restructuring, transaction and acquisition (1.6) (4.4)
casls pad
Cash flows from continuing operations 348 26.9
Cash flows from discontinued operations (1.3) (3.3)
Cash flow from operations 335 236
Payments to pension plan (8.5) 2.9)
Finance costs from loans and leases (3.7) (2.7)
Repayment of lease liability 4.1) (3.7)
Tax received/(paic) excluding capital gains tax 3.7 4.3)
paid on divestment”
Caprtal e?penditure 8.9) (31.6)
Fqu-'\siﬁons and divestrnents (3.2) (137.)
Purchase of own shares — LTIP and share buyback 12.4) (4.3)
Dividends to shareholders ' (13.4) (12.1)
Foreign exchange ) {0.4) 0.6
Change in net debt (17.4) (174.5)
Opening net debt, excluding lease liabilities (26.8) 14727
Closing net debt, excluding lease liabilities (44.2) (26.8)

1 Working cazital excliaaes $1a million armor inventory mipairment (2021 517 mihorl amd
52 d million e tory acqusiton 4Coodrtrg as,usiments r 2021 These are inc uded wirt
charges rirvertary © the statutcry recand lamon of cash Pow from coerat ans

2 Cashflows “om ariestments 1 tre pror perad are shawn ret of $98 miiencapnitg @
pad This s incuded rtaxzad nine Corsohdated Cash Slow Statemart
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FINANCIAL REVIEW CONTINUED

Net debt and cash flow continued

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items were
$36.4 million (2021: $31.3 million). Total capital expenditure was $8.9 million
(2021: $31.6 million), with the decrease following large armounits of spend
related to one-off IT software programmes and armor development in the
prior year

Dividends and purchase of own shares were $25.8 million (2021,
$1&.4 milion) reflecting the share buysack pragrameme started in January
and paused In May.

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items as a
percentage of adjusted EBITDA {cash conversion) was 142.7% (2021: 83.2%)
reflecting improved working capital management.

Net debt was $68.0 million {2021: net debt $55.9 million), which includes
lease liabilities of $23.8 million (2021: $29.1 million). Excluding lease
liabilities, net debt was $44.2 million (2021 net debt $26.8 million). The
increase in net debtis principally due to the share buyback programme
and accelerated pension plan payments to lock in benefits following the
Increase in bond yields,

During the period we exercised our option o cxtend the maturity of
3142 million from the total $200 million revolving credit facility (RCF} to
B September 2025, The remaining $58 miliion matures an 8 September
2024, subject to & one-year extension option to 8 September 2025, As at
1 October 2022 $53.7 millon of the RCF was drawn

The RCF is subject to financial covenants measured on a biannual basis.
These include a limit of 3.0 times for the ratio of net debt, excluding lease
liabilities, o adjusted EBITDA (leverage). The Group complied with all
financial covenants during the current and prior financial pericds.

In addition to the RCF our U S, operations have access to a $5.0 million
overdraft facility.

Armor update

Following January's announcement regarding the decision to wind down
the armor business, the following tables summarise the contribution of the
armor busimess to the Group’s financial statements for 2022

2022 2021

Armor $m $m
Orders received $12.2 517
Closing order bock $30.4 5268
Reverue $8.4 $6.5

Respiratory

Armor & head Total

2022 adjusted sm $m $m
Orders received 12.2 267.9 280.1
Closing order book 304 1209 1513
Revenue 8.4 263.5 2719
Adjusted EBITDA (13.3) 388 255
Adjusted EBITDA margin (158.3)% 14.7% 9.4%
Ad)justed or;jerating {loss)/profit (13.3) 234 101
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Respiratory
Armor & head Total
2022 adjustments $m $m 5m
Revenue — - —
EBITDA 04 (1.6) (1.2)
Operating profit/{loss) 0.2 (12.4) {12.2)
Respiratory
Armor &head Total
2022 total 5m $m sm
Revenue 8.4 263.5 271.9
ERITDA (12.9) 372 243
Operating profit/loss) (13.1) 11.0 2.1)

Armar aoeratng lass agjusrments “aral ing & creait of 59 2 mil.on compnise s gair of

339 mill.an te radoce the provisien o cont rgent cesideat 07 payable 1o 3M, lz:s

4 ¢ milion armer ety previs ors, 408 mill on transast on costs, 50 2 mrillion nan- Lrrent
gssetimparmertsard 313 million amor specific restrugtaning costs

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group aperated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide
pension and death benefits for the employees of Aven Protection plc and
its Group undertakings In the UK. employed prior 1o 31 January 2003, The
pian was closed to future accrual of benefit on 1 October 2009 and has

a weighted average maturity of approximately 12 years. The net pension
liability for the scherne amounted to $6.3 million as at 1 October 2022
{2021: $68 .3 millian). The reducton 1s due to a higher discount rate being
applied ta pension habilities, partially offset by a fail in plan asset values,

During the period the Group madc payments to the plan of $8.5 million
(2021 2.9 milliom) in respect of scheme expenses and deficit recovery plan
payments, Including a $4 0 millior prepayment covering all contributions
due in FY23 In accordance with the deficit recovery plan agreed following
the 31 March 2019 actuarial valuation, the Group will make payments in
Fy24 of 54 3 million in respect of deficit recovery and scheme expenses.
These payments are subject t review following the March 2022 actuarial
valuation which will be finalised in 2023

Plan assets include Liability Driven Investments (LD of $54.4 million
(2021: $1229 millicn), whick are held ro manage funding risk. The fall in LDI
valuation reflects increases in government bond yields through 2022

The Group is in close contact with the trustees of the scheme to monitor
cash liguidity nisk in the conzext of recent market volatility, including
collateral requirements for the LDL To the date of this repars, the scheme
has covered all LDI collateral requirements.



STRATEGY IN ACTION
GROWING THE CORE

SUPPORTING REQUIREMENTS
FOR THE MILITARY DIVER

Military diving operations are a critical component of
delivering underwater assets in modern maritime forces.
Today's mititary and special forces divers are required w0
undertake a wider range of tasks within a single mission. This
has led to requirements from leading militaries for diving
apparatus that enables divers to complete missions that are
longer, deeper and more complicated than ever before.

The MCMI100 15 a configurable platform that offers a step
change in meeting underwater breathing apparatus eperability
requirements It is a fully closed circuit, electronically controlled,
mixed gas rebreather, CE tested to 100m and suitable for a large
range of tactical diving disciplines including shallow or deep
Mine Counter Measure, Explosive Ordnance Disposal, Mine
Investigation and Exploitation and Special Operations Forces
underwater vehicle use,

The systern’s critical advantage lies in its advanced electronics
architecture, With muitiple redundancy electronics, it features
advanced digital oxygen sensors and has a moisture tolerant
digital carbon dioxide sensor. This combined with data
acquisition facility with Bluetooth capability, and a backlit
colour handset with autormated pre-dive and command-based
alarms enables missions of greater duration than traditional
systems at extreme work rates and depths.

"We are leading the world in military diving rebreathers with
the MCM100, as illustrated by 1ts selection by major defence
forces,” said Kevin Gurr, Underwater Systemns Director for
Avon Protection. *“The military diving mission is evolving, and
legacy systems simply do not provide the capability required
going forward, The MCMI100 is a step change In technology
and safety, and its modular design is developed to ensure
operational readiness is maintained whilst reducing the
through life cost to militaries”

Foreign exchange and interest rate risk management
The Group is exposed to translational fareign exchange risk ansing when
the results of sterling denominated companies are consolidated into the
Group presentational currency, U.S dollars. Group policy 15 not to hedge
translational foreign exchange risk Due to the translational effect, a one-
cent increase in the value of the US. dollar against sterling would have
decreased revenue by approximately $0.2 million and increased operating
profit by approximately $0.2 rillion.

RCF borrowings are floating rate priced using the U S, Secured Overnight
Financing Rate {(SOFR). In 2022 the Group has implemented a new hedging
policy using interest rate swaps to fix a portion of SOFR floaung rate
interest. The notional value of interest rate swaps at 1 October 2022 was
$30.0 million {2021: Snil), expiring on 8 September 2025 in line with the RCF
The financial value of interest rate swaps at 1 October 2022 was a $0.5m
{2021 Snil}, an asset position as hedged fixed rates are lower than current
market forecasts for SOFR.

Dividends

The Baeard is recommending a final dividend of 30.6 cents per share {2021
30,6 cents) which together with the 14.3 cents per share interim dividend,
gives a total dividend of 44.9 cents (2021 44.5 cents), consistent with last
year, The final dividend will be paid in pounds sterling on 10 March 2023
to shareholders on the register at 1¢ February 2023 with an ex-dividend
date of 9 February 2023 The final dividend will be converted into pounds
sterling for payment at the prevailing exchange rate which will be
announced prior to payment.

The recommended dividend results in an adjusted cover ratic of 0.5 times
(202711 3 times), On a statutory continuing basis, the ratio was a deficit
of 0 4 times {2021: deficit of 1.8 times). In recommending this year's final
dividend, the Board has taken into account its expectations that the
adjusted cover ratio will improve in the 2023 financial period.

COur policy s to grow dividends in fine with adjusted earnings growth.
Given the decline in eamings over the last two years, we would not seek
to grow dividends further ahead of an increase in dividend cover.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

HOW WE IDENTIFY
AND MANAGE
RISK

We have completed a full year of managing risks using our enhanced
risk management process and have begun to integrate climate-related
risks and opportunities into our process for review.

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsible for the Group's risk framework and ensuring the risk management process is robust and continuously improved

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Respoensible for manitoring and reviewing the effectivencss of the Group nisk framewark,
including the integration of climate-related risks
RISK COMMITTEE

Conducts a second line of assurance assessment of those net risks highlighted by the business units {and challenges if necessary}
and maintains the Group risk register. Proposes risk management methodology

BUSINESS UNITS

Each business unit has its own risk register. Senior leaders provide an update 1o the Risk Committee on a six-monthly basis.
They are responsible for the implementation of Group risk management at the aperational level

Implementation and compliance responsibility
s3nIqisuodsal Bunodal pue uoIEILHUIPIYSIY

2022 RISK RATING AND MOVEMENT

< 1. Project delivery
z and new product
introduction risk
1 7 2. Market threat to
core business
3, Talent management
2 3 \L 9 T 4  Cybersecurty and
g infarmation technology
fug 5. Customer dependercy
= _:_% 5 6 \L 6. Financia' management
x 2 7. Manufacturing risk
il 8. Compliance and
i « a 8 10 legal matters
9. FPolincal ard
eccnomic staoility
10, Sustainability sk
5
#
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APPROACH TO ASSESSING
CLIMATE-RELATED RISKS
ANDO OPPORTUNITIES

As part of meeting TCFD, the expectation is that companies use
scenario analysis on an fterative basis and over time to test the resilicnce
of the Company's strategy by challenging the usual way of thinking,

e dentify opportunities and areas where businesses may be expased
to clirmate-related risks,

As a first step it was decided that a qualitative assessment was
appropriate and two possible climate scenarios were analysed:

+ abelow 2°C scenario outlining a rapid system transition with
significant annual GHG emission reductions required for a low
carbon ecanemy; and

- a4*Cscenario where no additional action is taken to address
climate change.

The scenario analysis used information from vanous reference scenarios
such as the Representative Concentration Pathways (RCPs) and other
relevant research to better understand how climate-related risks and
opportunities could impact businesses operations. Senior leaders from
across the business were also consulted as part of this process

Under TCFD there are two main categories of risk associated with
climate change {transitional and physical} which can also produce
some opportunities, We have identified these through the explaration
of these two climate scenarios in addition to other work undertaken

In the year, such as the review of our material sustainability themes
and progress made towards our Net Zero Plan.

Transitional
Policy & Legal

+ Fassil fuel transition

-+ Carbon taxaticn

+ Regulation

+ Disclosure burden

- Jimate change litigation

Technology
« Shiftto low carbon technalogies/ recyclable products

Market and Reputation
+ Climate change damages the reputation of the defence sector

+ Changing custarmer requirements

Physical
Operations
- Extreme weather events disrupt operations

« Charging equipment design requirements

Supply Chain
+ Increased disruption

+ Increased costs and price volatility

Under both scenarios we will face climate-related financial risks and
opportunities. Under the 2°C scenario, the transitional risks are likely
to be more significant with the focus en the shift to low emissions
technologies and energy efficiency projects. Under the 4°C scenario
the impact of physical risks on the business are likely to be higher

We recognise we are just starting and that as we gain more experience
we will start to develop quantitative information to illustrate potential
pathways and outcomes.

Our approach

Having made a number of improvements to our Group risk management
pracess last year it was important to embed these during the year. kach
business unit has continued to provide updates to the Risk Committee
on a six-monthiy basis which has allowed a full year of nisk capture and
trend analysis,

The method for measuring likelihood and impact by each business

unit involves bespoke Impact assessment measures based on financial
indicaters and other impacts relative to the size of the business unit.

The Risk Cammittee conducts a second line of assurance and manages
the Group risk register which combines the results of the business unit
registers, The risks which are considered to be higher than the Group’s
talerance level when assessed individually or as a collective are highlighted
to the Audit Committee. These most significant risks and mitigation plans
are regularly reviewed and the Risk Committee assesses whether key
controls are effective and risks rmitigated to an acceptable level.

The Risk Committee has continued with the process of annually reviewing
and categarising the principal risks affecting the Group to ensure they
remain current and this year sustainability was added as a principal risk to
encapsulate climate-related risks and opportunities alongside other new
risks forming in the sustainability space.

During the year we have increased our understanding of climate-related
risks to the business having developed our first qualitative climate scenario
narrative with the help of a sustainability consultant. We have undertaken
our first review with business units and, as a consequence of viewing our
business through these two contrasting scenarios, we have identified new
risks and opportunities. This first review did not highlight any climate-
related risks or opportunities that could impact the business in the year
ahead. Our approach to identifying and managing climate-related risks will
be refined as we mature over time.

Further enhancernents to the risk management process have been
identified but not yet implemented. These include aligning the process
with the detailed financial modelling of risk which will support cur TCFD
disciosure, The Audit Commitree has also recognised that recruiting a
dedicated risk and assurance lead role would further support a clear,
ndependent second line to drive the risk managerment and internal
audit agenda.

Principal risks

The risk rating graphic summarises the Group's principal risks for 2022 and
going into financial year 2023 by significance and their directional trend
during the year, alongside the newly added sustainability risk. The graphic
has been populated by reference to the net risk assessment during the
year. The following pages show the categorised risk themes within the
principal risk areas and their mitigations. We have also highlighted where
risks have the potential to impact our strategy and sustainability agenda.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Emerging risks

Emerging risks are captured at the six-manthly updates through
discussions with business uniticaders. These are Included in the reqular
reviews by the Audit Committee. Emerging risks are those that are

new or expected ta increase through increased likelihood or impact

to the business.

The Risk Committee has identified the emerging risks expected to
generate increased risk across the Group in the caoming year, The most
prominent are summarised below:

The Ukraine confiict has the potential to increase competition/new
market entrants due to the lmited surge capacity amaongst the existing
industrial supply base

The risk around integrating the succeassful Team Wendy business into
the Avon Protection famity without damaging the brand or causing
confusion in commercial markets

« Limited ability to address sole source dependencies for respiratory
raw materia! and components without re-engineering and
reapproving products

- Risk of reductions in LS. first responder customer funding from the
Democratic Government in FY24

- Lack of clarity of US. Government funding routes for development of
future respiratory technology and the absence of long term U.S. DOD
respirator framewark contracts

- Continued U5 DOD custorner revenue dependency/concentration
as the NG IHPS and ACH GEN || helmet programmes rmaove into
full praducrion

« Limited ability to flow through o customers input price increases and
maintain profit margins under long term contracts
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Sustainability was highlighted as an emerging principal risk for the
business last year. Through our climate scenario work we have added a
number of new risks to the register As we embed our climate scenario
process and understanding in this area we have identified some emerging
climate-related risks, but thase are not expected o impact the business

in the year ahead

+ There Is growing sustainability scrutiny and requirement for a coheront
strategy, communication and action in this area which may influence
employee recruitment patterns and ¢ustomer purchasing habits

Our products are inherently oil based and we face the challenge
of specifyirg future matenals “or replacing these components

- We are reliant on investment in products, technology and processes
to deliver our Net Zero Plan and there will be other competing
dermands for capex



PROJECT DELIVERY AND NEW
PRODUCT INTRODUCTION RISK

Business risk What happened in 2022

- Faliure to identify correct - First delivery order received for
strategic projects or to the NG IHPS
deliver them

+ Continued delivering new
product prograrmimes to meet
customer reguirements within
rapex burdget

= Failure to identify and
implement new products

« Failure o identify, complete

and integrate acquisitions + Quarterly strategy review
process to embed and align
strategy across the organisation

Impact on
» Strategy delivery

- Widerintegration of Team
wendy and development of
Team Wendy linets with NG

+ Sales, costs and profitability
IHPS helmet

+ Employee morale
« Development of our

sustainabllity agenda, in
particular the environmental
initiatives that will result in
delivery of our net zero target

Decision to wind down the
armor business following VTP
ESAPI FAT failure

MARKET THREAT TO
CORE BUSINESS

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Link to sustainability

Mitigation
Board oversight of clear strategy
definition and communication
combined with effective
management

Product development linked to
Group strategy ang customer
regquirements

+ Well resourced product
development and prograrmme
managernent teams

+ Clear acquisition strategy and
alignment with divisional
structures

« Well-resourced acquisition
team with appropriate external
adwisors retained

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Focus for 2023
« NG IHPS volume manufacturing

ACH GEN Il FAT approval and
Initial production

« Continue delivering new

product pragrammes to meet
customer requirements within
capex budget

+ Revisit strategy under new

leadership team

Consideration of new
technolagy strategies for U.S.
DOD respirator products

+ Continued commercial
integration of Team Wendy and
approval of Team Wendy liners
with NG IHPS helmet

» Further investment in

programme management office
to oversee programme delivery

- Define detailed sustainability

agenda, In particular the future
environmentaf initiatives that
will result in delivery of our net
Zero target

Link to sustainability

Business ri-s_l-( What happenedin 2022

- Lack of sales growth/ threat - Maximised NATO framework

10 current sales CONtract opportunities and
considered technaology transfer
strategy for customers who
require indigenous production

+ Loss of major bids/tenders
« Threat from competitors

- Bid for major military
opportunities, e.g. further DOD
helmet opportunities

Impacton
+ Sales and profitability

« Aligned helmet portfolio for

+ Strategy delivery UK. and International market

- Fecused on continuing to grow
our market share with cur
international and first
responder customers

Mitigation

- Custorner relationships pricritised
and managed through dedicated
leadership channels

- Product differentiation/
innovation/diversification and
protection of intellectual property

- Diversified sales channels with
comprehensive distribution/
intermediary network

« Effective and up-to-date
COMPETItor manitoring
and anatysis to maintain
competitive advantage

- Long-term sole source
programmes of record

» Coherent and targeted
pricing strategies

Key

Trend Strategy Sustainability
Na change Crowing the core Erw ronmenzal mpact
ncreasing Selective product deveiaprrent

Decreasing Value enhancing acquisiiions

5usta nao e supply chams

Cybersecurity and data crotecton

Eployee-centric approacn

Focus for 2023

« Focus on continuing to grow
our market share with our
international and first
responder customers

« Expand internaticnal sales
presence/footprint

- NSPA boots and gloves proposal

» Pricing strategies to maximise
win rate while passing on input
cost increases where possible
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

TALENT Overalltrend  Link to strategy
MANAGEMENT
B_us-iness risk What happenedin 2022 Mitigation

Inakbility to recruit and
retain talent

Poor employee competence
and failure to train and develop

Dysfunctional organisational
structures

Impact on
« Strategy delivery

- Sales, costs and profitability

- Employee morale

+ Commenced implementation
of new HR system to automate/
improve processes

- Commercial review of
indirect staff pay and benefits
1o support recruitment
and retention

+ Held flagship talent
development programme after
hiatus fast year due to COVID-19

Managed disruption arising
from the implementation of the
U 5. vaccine mandate

.

Continued high degree of focus
on safety practices across sites

Continued focus on people,
culture and prioritisation

of actioning employee
feedback, aligned with
sustainability agenda

- Continued focus on
employee safety measures
against COVID-19

+ Robust succession planning
and effective performance
managernent process

- Effective traning and
development strategy
and activities

« Appropriate organisational
structure with clear lines of
authority and communication

+ Maintaining positive Avon
Protection culture — Great
Place to Work

- Well invested and structured
HR team

CYBERSECURITY AND Overall trend  Link to strategy
INFORMATION TECHNQLOGY
Business risk What happened in 2022 Mitigation

+ Business interruption/cash cost
of cyber crime and fraud

+ AT system or cornmunications
faiture could iead to business
continuity event

- Military security requirements
resultin excess cost and
management time

Failure to comply results inloss
of contract

Impacton
Ability 1o ship products
+ Financial lass

+ Reputational damage

« Commenced implementation of
new HR systerm

Improved reporting in the
ballistic protection business

« Implemented business
intelligence and master data
ranagement strategy

Continued invesiment in
cybersecurity and CMMC 20

Implemeantation of a new CRM
systemn was put on hold

Change in ERP strategy
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- AT strategy aniicipates
forthcoming requirements

+ T sufficiently resourced wath
specialists 1o ensure compliance

- Robust network/IT controfs and
security protocols/policy

+ Cyberinsurance and IT disaster
recovery plan and backup

Link to sustainability

Focus for 2023

- Complete iImplementation of
new HR system

- Complete pay and
benefits review

- Review annual bonus scheme
structure including production
worker incentive schemes

Launch annual Employee
Opmion Survey following hiatus
during COVID-19 lockdown

« Heightened focus on succession
plans for key rales

Link to sustainability

l;ocus for 2023

Implement standalone ERP
system for Teamn Wendy

- Continue investmentin
cybersecurity and CMMC 2.0
compliance

- Continue to suppoert
the implementation of
new HR system

Implementation of
cybersecurity response plan and
information security pohcies

Support continuous
improvernentin business
systerns and regorting



5 CUSTOMER DEPENDENCY

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Link to sustainability

Business risk

- Overreliance on customers, e.g
the U.S. DOD, &nd its funding
and contract process

- Failure to diversify
customer pase

Impacton
-+ Sales and profitability

What happened in 2022

Continued to manage the
challenge of having the U.S.
DO as our main customer

+ Focused on executng first
responder and military
strategy in EMEA and major
Contract wins

+ US. DOD M50 stocking
programme/technology
insertion strategy

Consolidated relationship/future

bids with UK MCD

+ Maximised opportunity to
engage with NATO countries

under NATO framework contract

B FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

Mitigation

« Strong customer relationship
management with an
appropriate weam structure,
communication and
customer service

« Understanding our military
customer requirements and
forthcoming procurement
requirements

» Strategy provides for
diversification of customer
base with particular focus
on Rest of World and first
responder customers

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Focus for 2023

- Improved engagement with the
US, DOD on helmet supply

= Expand position with NATO
through further proposals

Implement international
strategles including the
Middle East through in-
country resource

« Deliver international sales of
MOMIGO underwater rebreather

Rewvisit strategy for
diversification under
new leadership

Link to sustainability

Business risk

- Insufficient management
of risks related to tax, cash
flows, interest and foreign
currency exposure

- Insufficient funding capacity to
meet strategic abjectives

- Insufficient overhead
control and working capital
management erode margins or
impair investrment ability

+ Poor quality financial reporting
and business information
impact decision making

Impact on
« Costs and profitability

- Reputational damage

Key
Trend

Mo change

Strategy

‘ncreasing

Decreas ng

Crowing the core
Selectve oroduct develosment

¥a ue enhanc ng acquisitons

What happened in 2022

+ Improved business information
and decision making
(Capex, opex, inventory and
working capital}

+ New investmeant committee
established to review and
approve capital investments
aligned with strategic priorities

- Implementation of a new
hedging policy using interest
rate swaps to fix a portion of
floating rate interest

Sustainability

Mitigation

» Robust and professional
corporate finance function
sufficiently well resourced
and suppaorted by netwaork
of professional advisors

« Full compliance with bank
faciity covenant requirements

+ Improving internal financial
control and reperting
procedures supported by
the external and internal
audit process

» Effective foreign exchange and
interest rate risk monitoring
ard mandgerment

SvironTenta Imoact
Susta nable supoly chams

Cynersecur Ty and data sretection

Empioyee-centric approach

Focus for 2023

+ Continuous improvement in
business information recording
and reporting, and decision
making (manufacturing
vafiances, capex}

+ Launch revised approval
pracess for capital expenditure
and tracking

-+ Review and continue to improve
internal control procedures
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

7 MANUFACTURING RiSK

Business risk

Shocks 1o the global supply
chain impact our ability to
source key materials and the
cost of rmanufacturing

+ Quality control pracess failure
leads 1o product failures or recall

+ Environmenta! or health and
safety incident results in plant
closure and prosecution/fines

- Poorly managed distribution
orlogistics network impacts
delivery and reputation

Delays in new product
introductions

Impacton
« Sales, costs andt profirability

What happenedin 2027-2“

-+ Leveraged UK. facility
Manufacturing Licence
Agreement to increase 50 series
production and reduce reliarice
cn Cadillac facility

+  Reviewed supply chain risk
mitigation plan rolbustness,
defined additional sources for key
raw materials and components,
increased sourcing resource, and
addressed areas of supply chain
weakness that have developed
through the COVID-19 pandemic

- Launched integrated business
planning process project

First delivery order received for
the NG IHPS

< Renewed focus on business
continuity planning for our
facilities, including focus on
environmental/cdimate risks

«  Created sustainability agenda
across all sites to bring the US.
sites up to the same standard
as the UK

DLA ESAPI FAT approval and
managed exit plan from
armor business

B COMPLIANCE AND LEGAL MATTERS

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Link to sustainability

Mitigation
Robust suppher audit and
quality management

Written supply agreements in
place including dual source
where necessary

+ Robust manufacturing/
operational disciplines
and fully functioning and
effective systems

Strong site leadership
and engaged, motivated
manufacturing workforce

Insurance and effective business
continuity planning

-+ Prioritisation of warkforce safety
and wellbeing through the
COVID-19 pandemic

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Focus for 2023

< Continuation and delivery of
integrated business planning
tool under SIOP project
launched in 2022

- Development of sustainability
strategy at site level

+ Implementation of managed
exit from the armor business
including closure of the
Lexington site

- Implement standalone ERP
systern for Team Wendy

- Investrnent in helmet
and respirator production
capacity/flexibility

- Continued focus on recording
supply chain risk and sole
source dependendies

Link to sustainability

Businessrisk

- Failure to comply with export
cantrals slows or remaoves ability
10 ship abroad

+ Prosecution, fines and negative
publicity resulting from bribery
and corruption

- Litigation increases cost and
management iime, negatively
impacting other areas

- Failure to comply with
government contract obligations
results iIn loss of contract

Impact on
Abihity to ship producrs

« Financial loss

feputational damage

What happened in 2022

Deloitte FY22 internal audit
waork programme

Pragramme of compliance
training under new compliance
brand with a relaunch of our
Code of Conduct, redefinea
Information Classification Policy
and cybersecurity training

- Clean UK export control audit
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Mitigation
- Effective export control poficy
supported by training

Effective anti-bribery and
cerruption policy supperred
by training

Embedded and effective Cade
of Conduct

Effective internal legal and
finance functon

« Effective government contract
speciahst knowledge reporing
at a senior ‘evel

Focus for 2023

+ Deloitte FY23 internal audit
work programme

Revised and updated internal
control policies

« Implement 2023 internal
compliance training programme




9 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC STABILITY Overalltrend Linktostrategy  Linkto sustainability

Business risk

« Unpredictable timing/armount
of federal funding for first
responder custamers

U.s. DOD budgerts/
funding withdrawn

Macro events trigger negative
impacts on: trade, regulation,
people, contracts and
intellectual property

Impacton
« Sales and profitability

- Ability to ship products
» Financial loss

- Reputational darnage

What happened in 2022
+ Managed ongoing impact of
COVID-19 on U5, DOD processes

Recruited additional supply
chain/sourcing resource

0 manage disruption to
supply chain

+ Focused on mitigating potential
labour shortage nisk due to U.S.
vaccine mandate and tight U.S.
labour market

+ Monitored and managed
impact of U5 Federal
Government Continuing
Resolution on U.S. DOD budget
and order flow

10 SUSTAINABILITY

Business risk

Fallure 1o make progress
towards net zero target

+ Changing customer
requirements and technology
innovation impact demand for
our praducts

« Extreme wearther causes
disruption to our operations
and supply chain

Impact on
- feputaticnal damage

« Sales, cost and profitability

Key
Trend

NG change

Strategy

Increasing

Decreasing

Growing e core
Se ective preduct deve opmens

Yalue enhancng acquisitons

What happened in 2022

- Engaged with employees,
customers and investors
to determine sustainability
areas most matenal to our
stakeholders

Established a governance
structure for overseeing
sustainability matters including
but not limited to climate-
related risks and opportunities

+ Developed our
sustainability agenda

+ Developed our first qualitative
climate scenarios and reviewed
this with senior leaders to
identify climate-related risks
and oppoertunities. This did not
highlight any material risks that
would impact the business in
the year ahead or significantly
impact assumptions used in
forward looking forecasts in
supporting the carrying value
of assets on the balance sheet.

Sustainability

Mitigation
- Close monitoring of federal
funding and budget position

- Lobbyist/government advisors
and key influencers aligned to
Avon Protection’s interests

Overall trend

Link to strategy

Focus for 2023

« Vaccine mandate dropped for
LS sites to support recruitment
to fill vacancies

- Continued efforts to reduce sole
source supplier risk on key raw
materials and components

+ Continued monitoring and
management of impact of US
Federal Government Continuing
Resolution on U5, budget and
order flow

+ Increase stock and surge
capacity to improve ability
to supply urgent demand
requirements from ongoing
and new conflicts

Link to sustainability

New

Mitigation Focus for 2023
Monitor climate-related - Continue to define our
regulations sustainability agenda in

+ Maintain strong relationships
with custorners and
technology partners

« Sufficlent focus on sustainability
at all levels of the business
and all sites

Agreed and deliverable
Net Zero Plan

Ervironmenta impact
Sustamaole supely chans

Cynersecunty and datz protection

E-nployee-centric anoroach
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particular environmental
initiatives that will resultin
delivery of our medium-term
carbon net zero targets

Embed the sustainability
agenda into the business and
Sustainability Committee
operating cadence

« Roll out KPIs aligned to our
sustainability agenda

- Review scope 3 categories
determine the most relevant
for future reparing
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OUR PRODOUCTS ARE LIFE-SAVING DEVICES; THERE

IS NO ROOM FOR ERROR. THAT IS ONE OF MY
FAVORITE THINGS ABOUT BEING A PART OF THE

AVON PROTECTION TEAM; WE PRODUCE LIFE-SAVING
EQUIPMENT FOR THOSE THAT PROTECT US AND | GET
TO MAKE SURE THAT IT MEETS THEIR REQUIREMENTS
BEFORE IT LEAVES THIS BUILDING.

Dariane Dushane
Quality Auditor
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CHAIR'S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

A STRONG
TEAM

The Board is committed to achieving high standards of governance designed
to protect the long-term interests of all other stakeholders, while promoting
the highest standards of integrity, transparency and accountability.

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

Dear Shareholder,

I'am pleased to present our Corporate Governance Report This report
describes our governance structures and procedures, and summarises

the work of the Board and its Committees and how the Board evaluarted
its effectiveness in 2022. As a Board we recognise the fundamental
importance of ensuring robust governance practices are implemented
and followed in order to promote the long-term sustainable success of the
Company, generate value for shareholders and cantribute to wider society.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board recognises its obligation to ensure effective engagement

with its stakeholders, to understand their different perspectives and to
ensure their interests are considered in Board discussions and decision
making. While we understand the importance of balancing all stakeholder
views, this year we have sought 10 increase the mechanisms under

which we engage with and receve feedback from our employees,
including additional in-person ownhall meetings and site visits Detalls

of stakeholder engagement activities during the year are outlined on
pages 38-41,

Purpose and culture

AL Avon PIOlECTION, our purpose s Cear - 1o provide trusied and
innovative solutions to enakle those at nsk to perform their mission safely
and with corfidence This underpins everything we do, including our
cufture and values The Board understands the iImportance of 1ts rale in
setting the night tone from the top and embedding it throughout the
Group in addition to the Board, the Executive Board has responsibility ta
ensure that the policies and behaviours set at Board level are effectively
communicated and implemented throughout the Group
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Our refreshed Code of Conduct, which was approved by the Board during

the year reflects our purpose and our values, and sets out the standards of
behaviour and business conduct expected from anyone warking for or on

behalf of the Group

Board and Committee evaluation

During the year we completed an evaluation of the Board and its
Committees. The 2022 evaluation was internally facilitated using
questionnaires, led by me and the Company Secretary. It concluded

that the Board, its Committees, the individual Directors and the Char
performed effectively during 2022, both individually and as a collective
unit. It was noted that following the relaxation of COVID-19 restrictions,
relationships between the Board and wider management team had
improved significantly over the prior year In additian, the following areas
of fecus were identified for 2023 and beyond the need to review the
strategy process, further development of the risk process, succession
planming and the need for iIncreased irteractions between the Board and
management teams, Further detadls can be found on page 78

Sustainability

Given its significance, the Board decided to retain responsibility for
development and oversight of our sustairability agenda directly, rather
than estabhishing a soecific Board-level committee. At the management
level we have established a Sustainabifity Steening Committee, chaired by
Rich Cashin, our Chief Financial Office-, 1o tead the implementation of our
agenda and impact plan. This Cornmities will regularly report 1o the Board
on progress, Further details on the rermit of the Sustainability Steering
Commitree car ve found or page 43



AS ABOARD WE RECOGNISE THE FUNDAMENTAL IMPORTANCE OF ENSURING
ROBUST GOAVERNANCE PRACTICES ARE IMPLEMENTED AND FOLLOWED IN

ORDER TO PROMOTE THE LONG-TERM SUSTAINABLE SUCCESS OF THE COMPANY,
GENERATE VALUE FOR SHAREHOLDERS AND CONTRIBUTE TO WIDER SOCIETY.

Annual General Meeting

The 2023 AGM of Avon Protection plc will be held at Hampton Park West,
Semington Road, Melksham, Wiltshire SN12 6NB, at 10.30am on Friday 2/
January 2023, Further details, including the resolutions to be proposed

to our shareholders, can be found in the Notice of Meeting on pages 172
t0 176. The result of the votes on the resolutions put forward at the AGM
will be publicly announced to the stock exchange and published an cur
website as soon as possible following the conclusion of the meeting, | will
be in attendance at the AGM and will be very happy to take any questions
you may have regarding the operation aof the Board during the year. We
look forward 10 seeing you there,

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

22 November 2022

Compliance with the U.K. Carporate Governance Code
The Company reports against the Financial Reporting Council’s (FRC)
LK. Corporate Governance Code 2018 ('the Code’), which is available
at www frc.org.uk. The Board has applied all Principles and complied
with all Frovisions in the Code for the year ended 30 September 2022,
with the exception of Provision 38 in relation to alignment of Executive
Directors’ pensions with those of the wider workforce, As explained
on page 74, we were in full compliance with this provision as from

1 Apnil 2022, when Executive Director pensions were aligned with the
wider workforce, Further details on how the Company applied the
principles of the Code during the year can be found as follows:

See page
BOARD LEADERSHIP AND
COMPANY PURPOSE
Long-term value and sustainability - 2,42
Culture i 75
Shareholder engagement i 403
Employee engagement i 38
Other stakeholder engagement 38
Conflicts of Interest - 107
DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES
Role of the Chair 76
Civision of responsibilites 7%
Non-Executive Directors 78
COMPOSITION, SUCCESSION AND
EVALUATION
Appointments and succession planning 77
Skills, experience and knowledge ) 75
Length of service “ 75
Evaluation 78
Diversity B 80
AUDIT, RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Audit Committee 82
Integrity of financial statements 83
Fair, balanced and understandatle a0
\;temaﬁ Ccontrois and risk rmanagement 7847
External aﬁdét-c;r Ei
Principal and emerging risks 62
REMUNERATION
Palicies and practices B 89
Alignment with purpose, values ard long-term strategy 86
independent judgement ar_wa a\SUE’tiOﬂ 95
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A BOARD WITH
EXPERIENCE

QOur business is led by our experienced Board of Directors,
which focuses on developing the Group's strategy and supporting
management to execute against it.

Bruce Thompson Rich Cashin
Executive Chair Chief Financial Officer

Chloe Ponsonby Bindi Foyle Victor Chavez CBE
Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director
Senior Independent Director

Board membership key
Audit Committee

Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee

Chair

Independent Director
Miles Ingrey-Counter
Group Counsel and
Company Secretary
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Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

First appointed: March 2020
Appointed Chair: December 2020

Skills and experience: Bruce joined the Board
in March 2020 During his executive career,
Bruce was Chief Executive Officer of Diploma
PLC, the FTSE 250 specialised technical products
and services business, for over 20 years. Prior to
joining Dipfoma, Bruce was a Director with the
technotogy and management consulting firm
Arthur D, Little Inc, both in the UK and the U.S.
He is currently the Senior Independent Non-
Executive Director of discover|E Group plc

Rich Cashin
Chief Financial Officer

First appointed: April 2022

skiils and experience: Before joining Avon
Protection, Rich was Presicent, Strategy and
Corporate Development for Ultra Electronics
Holdings plc from June 2019, Prior ta this, he
was Group Head of Investor Relations and,
subsequently, a divisional Finance Director for
Meggitt PLC and held a number of investment
and finance roles at Rolls-Rayce plc and UBS AG.

Chloe Ponsonby
Non-Executive Director
Senior Independent Director

First appointed: March 2016

Skills and experience: Chloe has spent

her 20-year career in financial services, firstin
equity fund management at Jupiter, and then in
investment banking at Altium and Oriel Securities
tnow owned by Stifel) and currently at Panmure
Gordon where she 1s a2 Managing Director in
investment banking She is a Chartered Financial
Analyst and has a first class Economics degree
from the University of Manchester.

Bindi Foyle
Non-Executive Director

First appointed: tMay 2020

Skills and experience: Bindi has been Group
Finance Director of Senior pic, a manufacturer
for the aerospace, defence, land vehicle and
power and energy markets, since July 2017,
having served as an Executive Director since
May 2017 Bind/ Jeined Senior in 2006 as

Group Financial Controfler before becoming
Director of Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications in 2014, Prior to joining Senior,
she held senior finance roles at Amersham pic
and General Electnic, having previously worked
with 80O Stoy Hayward

Victor Chavez CBE
Non-Executive Director

First appointed: Dccember 2020

Skills and experience: Victor has over

30 years of experience in the defence and
security sectors His early career focused an
telecommunications and software before
joining Thales UK. In 1999, He was appeinted
Chief Executive in 2011, retiring in 2020 having
successfully integrated and grown the business
during this period. In recognition of his services
to defence and security for the UK. and France,
Victor was appeinted a CBE in 2015 and a
Chevalier of the Légion d’Honneur in 2020,

Miles Ingrey-Counter
Group Counsel and
Company Secretary

First appointed: October 2067

Skills and experience: Miles is a qualified
solicitor; he joined the Group in fanuary 2004
and has been a member of the Executive Board
since 2008. Miles also has responsibility for all
Group HR matters and is Chair of the Retirernent
and Ceath Benefits Plan. Prior to joining Avon
Pratection, Miles was a solicitor with Osborne
Clarke LLP.
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Board gender diversity (%)

Fernale

Male

Independence (%]}

Executive {including CFO and
Executive Chair}

Non-Executive {excluding Chair)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Introduction

This Corporate Governance Report, along with information in the Strategic
and Remuneration Reports, explains how the principles and provisions of

the UK. Corporate Gavernance Code 2018 (the Code’) have been applied.
A copy of the Code can be found on www frc org.uk.

Statement of compliance with the Code
We are pleased to canfirm that the Board has complied with all provisions
of the Code throughout 2022, with the exception of the following:

- Provision 38 The Code stipulates that pension comtribution rates for
Executive Directors should be aligned with thase available to the
workforce. Pension contributions for new Executive Directors are
aligned with the rate available to the workforce, Paul McDonald’s
pension was aligned with that available to the waorkforce from 1 Aprif
2022 when it was reduced from 15% ta 7.5%, to coincide with the
appointment of Rich Cashin as Chief Financial Officer.

Board leadership

Bruce Thompson, who was previously the Non-Executive Chair, was
appointed Executive Chair with effect from 1 October 2022 until our new
Chief Executive Officer is in place. The Board therefore currently comprises
the Executive Chair, the Chief Financial Officer, wha is an Executive
Director, and three Non-Executive Directors, On 17 October it was
announced that Jos Sclater would join the Board as Chief Executive Officer,
with effect from 16 January 2023, following which Bruce will step down as
Executive Chair and resume his role as Chair of the Board. Further details
about the appointment of the new Chief Executive Officer are disclosed
on page 81. The Board regularly reviews 1ts composition 1o ensure it has
the necessary breadth and depth of skills 1o support the development of
the Group. We believe that the Board continues to have a strong mix of
experienced individuals who provide a unique perspective on Company
matrers and bring specific skifls to the Board

Biographical details for each member of the Board can be found on pages
74 and 75 of this Annual Repart. All Directors wall stand for re-appointment
by shareholders at the 2023 AGM

Company purpose

The Company purpese is stated on page 2. The Board recognises s role in
establishing the purpose, values and strategy of the Group and ensuring
tnat these are embedded throughout the bHusiness, Qur purpose unites Js,
guides ow decisions and Inspires us wherever we operate,

Our culture

The Board clearly recognises the importance of culture and its fink w©
delivering our purpese and strategy Assessing and maonitoring our
culture is IMportant to ensure we retair a successful culture as we grow
Through our employee engagement imtatives, explained in mare detall
o1 page 38, the Board has saought 1o achieve greater engagement with
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the workforce. The Board considers the most effective way of achieving
this engagement 15 via a Global Employee Advisory Forum, which was
established {ast year

Division of responsibilities

Throughout the financial year until 30 September 2022, there was a clear
division of responsibility between the running of the Board by the Chair
and the running of the Group’s business by the Chief Executive Officer. For
an interim penod from 1 October 2022 until Jos Sclater joins the Board as
Chief Executive Officer on 16 January 2023, the Chair has been appointed
Executive Charr,

The Chalr is respansiple for the leadership of the Board and ensuring its
effectiveness in all aspects of 1ts role. The Chief Executive Officer manages
the Group and has the primary role, with the assistance of the Board, of
developing and implementing business strategy. The Chair ensures that
meetings of Non-Executive Directors take place withaut the Executive
Directors present Whilst the Chair s performing the role of Executive
Chair, the Seniorindependent Director assists with these responsibilities,

Rules concerning the appointment and replacernent of Directors of the
Company are contained in the Articles of Association, Amendments to the
Articles must be appraved by a special resolution of shareholders. One of
the roles of the Non-Executive Directors, under the leadership of the Chair,
is to undertake detailed examination and discussian of strategies proposed
by the Executive Directors, so as to ensure that decisions are made in the
best long-term interests of shareholders and take proper account of the
Interests of the Group's gther stakeholders

The Nan-Executive Directors are appointed by the Board on tarms

which allow for termination on three months” notice Copies of Executive
Directors’ service contracts and terms and conditions of appaintment for
Mon-Executive Directors are available for inspection at the registered office.

How the Board operates

The Chair ensures, through the Company Secretary, that the Roard agenda
and all relevant information are provided sufficiently in advance of meetings
and that adeguate time 15 available for discussion of all agenda items, in
particular strategic Issues. The Chief Executive Officer and the Company
Secretary discuss the agenda ahead of every meeting At meetngs, the
Chair ensures that ail Directors are able to make an effective contnbution
and every Director 1s encouraged to participate and provide opinions on
each agenda item, The Chair always sceks to achieve uranimous decisions
of the Baard following due discussion of agenda items,

The Non-Execative Directors fully review the Group's operational
performance and the Board as a whole Fas, with a view 1o reinforcing 't
oversight and controf, reserved a hst of powers solely to itself which are
not to be delegated to management

Tkis st includes appropriate strategic, f'nancal, organisationai ard
compliance issues, ncluding the approval of high-leve' annauncements,
circulars, the Arrual Report and Accounts and certain strategic and
management issues, which include.




+ approval of the annual operating budget and the three-year
strategic plar;

« the extension of the Group's activities into new areas of business and/or
geographical areas {or their cessation);

- changes to the corporate or capital structure,

- financial issues, including changes in accounting policy, the approval of
dividends, bank facilities and quarantees;

» changes to the constitution of the Board;

. the approval of significant contracts, for example the acquisition or
disposal of assets worth more than £1,000,000 or the expostire of the
Company or the Group to a risk greater than £1,000,000;

« the approval of unbudgeted capital expenditure;

« the approval of quotations and sales contracts where the sales
commission payable to an intermediary exceeds 10% of the netinvoice
price, and

- consideration and approval of all proposed acquisitions and mergers

Each Director has full and umely access to all relevant information and
the Board meets regularly with appropriate contact between meetings.
All Directors receive a tailored induction ta the Group fram the Company
Secretary on joining the Board. When appointed, Non-Executive
Directors are made aware of and acknowledge their ability to meet

the time commitrments necessary to fulfil ther Board and Committee
duties. Procedures are in place, which have been agreed by the Board,
for Directors, where necessary in the furtherance of thefr duties, to take
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense and all
Directors have access to the Company Secretary.

The Company Secretary i responsible to the Board for ensurnng that all
Board procedures and governance requirements are complied with. The
removal of the Company Secretary is a decision for the Board as a whole.

Attendance at meetings

Committees of the Board

Of particular importance in a governance context are the three
Committees of the Board, namely the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Audit Committee. Each Committec
operates under clear terms of reference, coples of which are available on
our website Details of the operation of each Committee are provided
within the relevant Committee report.

Bindi Foyle is Chair of the Audit Committee. The Board is satisfied that
Bindi has recent relevant financial experience and her profile appears
on page 75.

Bruce Thompson is Chair of the Nomination Committee but, in accordance
with the Committes’s terms of reference, is not permitted to chair
meetings when the Committee is dealing with matters relating to the
Board Chair's position.

Chloe Ponsonby is Chair of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee’s principal responsibilities are to decide

on remuneration policy on behalf of the Board and to determine
rernuneration packages and other terms and conditions of employment,
including appropriate performance-related benefits for the Executive
Directors and other senior executives. The Remuneration Committee also
has regard to the remuneration of the wider workforce. More details of the
activities of the Remuneration Committee are set out in the Remuneration
Report on pages 86 1o 105,

Composition, succession and evaluation

The Nomination Committee Is responsible for leading the process

for Board appointments and making recommendations to the Board,
puTting in place plans for succession and regularly reviewing the Board's
structure, size and composition, The Committes takes into account the
challenges and opportunities facing the Group and the skills, knowledge
and experience needed by the Board and makes recommendations to the
Beard with regard 1o any changes. Further information and the activities of
the Nomination Committee during the year are detailed on page 81.

All Committee and Board meetings held in the year were quorate. Directors’ attendance during the year ended 30 September 2022 was as follows:

(7 scheduled an:(;aar: Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

hoc meetings) (4 scheduled meetings} {4 scheduled) (2 scheduled)

Bruce Thompson 9 44 4 (4} 7 B 2142
Bindi Foyle ’ 9 (R 4{4) 44 - 242
Chloe Pansonby i 5@ 4@ ) 20)
Victor Chavez 99 414 4 242
Paul McDonald 98 - T - -
Mick Keveth o 5{3) S - : -
Rich Cashin- 4 - _ -

The maximum number of meetings which each Director could have attended is shown in brackers.

1 Nk 4evetr smeppes down from the Boars or 31 Marck 2022

2 RenZashrwas aupe noes tothe Bearz 0n 31 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CONTINUED

Performance evaluation

The Board continually strives to improve its effectiveness and conducts
an annual review af its performance and that of its Committees and the
individual Directors 1o enhance overall Board effectivencss, Given the
number of changes to the Board during the year, with the appointment
of Rich Cashin as Chief Financial Qfficer on 31 March 2022 and the
announcement that Paul McDenald would step down from the Board on
30 September 2022, it was agreed that the 2022 Board evatuation process
would be conducted internally using questionnaires and interviews led by
the Company Secretary. Consideration will be given to the 2023 evaluation
being externally facilitated.

The Board evaluation guestionnaire, completed by all Board members
and the Company Secretary, was structured to provide Directors with
the opportunity tc express views on a variety of topics including Board
rernit and responsibilities, skills and dynamics of the Board, meetings and
content, Group strateqy, Internal control and risk management, decision
rmaking and communication.

A detailed discussion of the findings from the performance evaluation
took place at the Seprember 2022 Board meeting Qverall, the evaluation
concluded that the Board, its Committees, the individual Girectars and
the Chair perfarmed effectively during 2022, both individually and as

a collective unit. It was noted that following the relaxation of COVID-19
restrictions, relationships between the Board and wider management
team had improved significantly over the prior year.

The following areas were identified by the Board as areas of focus for 2023
and beyend

review of the strategy process to maxirnise efficiency and effectiveness,

further development of the risk managerment process ta ensure
sufficient integration into the operatonal side of the business;

« continuing focus of the Nomination Committee on succession
planning; and

- Increased interactions between the Board and management teams
outside of scheduled monthly meetings

Audit, risk and internal control

The Board has an established framework of internal controls covering
both financial and nen-finandial controls. In addition, there 15 a process far
identfying, evaluating and managing significant business risks, including
emerging rsks, faced by the Group. This process was in place throughout
the 2022 financial year

The Code requires that Directors establish procedures to manage sisk,
oversee the Internal conirol framework and determine the nature and
extent of the principal risks the Company is willing to take in order to
achieve Its long-term strategic abjectives

The Board. through the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of
the Group's systerm of internal controls on a continuing basis. The scope
of this review covers all controls including financial, operauonal and
compliance controls, as well as risk management, The Audit Committee

has responsibility to review, monitor and make policy recommendations to

the Board upon al| such matters

The Audit Committee keeps this system under continuous review and
formally considers its cantent and 115 effectiveness on an annual basis.
Such a system can prov'de only reasonable, and not absolure, assurance
against material misstatermnents or losses, The section on nternal
controiin the Audir Committee Report on page 84 and the following
paragraphs describe relevant key procedures within the Group's systems
of internal control and tne process by which the Directors have reviewed
e offoctivenoss
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Systems exist throughout the Group which provide for the creation of
three-year plans and annual budgets; manthly reports enable the Board
1o compare performance against budget and to take action where
appropriate, Procedures are in place to identify all major and emerging
business risks and to evaluate their potential impact on the Group, These
risks are described within the Strategic Report on pages 62 1o 62

Risk management

Risk is managed by the Executive Board during the year, led by the Risk
Cormmittee, which is led by the Company Secretary Various enhancements
1o the risk management process were iImplemented during the year and
these are set outin more detail in the Principal Risks and Risk Management
section on pages 62 10 6%

The Audit Caommittee carried out quarterly reviews of the key risks facing
the Group and risk management activities undertaken duting the year,
following the risk reviews conducted by the Risk Committee with the
business leadership, The Audit Committee also carried out a robust annual
assessment of the major business risks and emerging risks affecting the
Group, including macro risks,

Internal control

There is a clearly defined delegation of authority from the Board to the
business units, with appropriate reporting lines to individual Executive
Directors There are procedures for the authorisation of capital expenditure
and investment, together with procedures for post-completion appraisal.

Internal cantrals are in existence which provide reasonable assurance

of the maintenance of proper accounting records and the reliability of
financial iInformation used within the business or for publication. The
Group finance department manages the financial reporting process

10 ensure that there is appropriate control and review of the financial
infarmation including the production of the consolidated annual accounts.
Group finance 1s supported by the eperational financial managers
throughout the Group, who have responsibility for providing information
in keeping with the policies, procedures and internal best practices

as dacumented in the internal control manual and are accountable
under these.

The Board has issued a Code of Conduct which reinforces the impaortance
of a robust internal control framewaork throughout the Group, The Board
recognises that an open and honest cutture is key to understanding
concerns within the business and to uncovering and investigating any
potential wrongdoing. The Code of Conduct sets out the procedure
whereby individuals miay raise concerns in matters of financial reporung or
any other matter of concern with management or directly with the Chair
of the Audit Comrmittes, or anonymausly through our “Speak Up' process,
to ensure independent Investigation and appropriate follow-up action
The Code of Conduct is reviewed annually

Although the Board itself retains the ultimate power and authonty in
relation to decision making, the Audit Committee meets at least four
times a year with management and the external auditer To review specific
accounting, reporting and finarcial contral matters

This Committea also reviews the interim, prehminary and annual
statements and has primary responsibitity for making a recommendation
on the appointment, re-apgaintment and removal of the external suditor



Relations with shareholders

The Directors regard regular communications with shareholders as
extremely important, All members of the Board receive copies of analysts’
reports of which the Company is made aware and receive an investor
relations report from the Chief Financial Officer at every Board meeting
The Board reports formally to its shareholders in a number of ways,
including via regulatory news announcements, press releases, routine
reporting obligations, a detailed Annual Report and Accounts and, at the
half year, an interim repaort.

Regular dialogue takes place with institutional shareholders, including
presentations after the Company's preliminary announcements of the half
and full year results. The Board receives comments from analyst meetings
and shareholder meetings after both intenm and final results and at other
times during the vear. The AGM inrliures a presentatinn by the Chiof
Executive Officer on aspects of the Group's business and shareholders
have the opportunity to both ask questions and to leave written questions
with the Company Secretary for the response of the Directors. Directors
also make themselves available after the AGM to talk informally 1o
shareholders, should they wish to de so, and respand throughout the year
to any correspondence from individual shareholders.

Special Security Agreement

On 8 Decemnber 2020, our U.S. subsidiary Avon Protection Ceradyne, LLC
{APC) and the Company entered into a Special Security Agreement with
the U.S. Department of Defense The $SA was entered inta in support
ofthe U5 DOD contracting and product development elements of the
balhstic protection business and permits APC to perform classified U.S.
defence contracts. There are & number of specific protocols that the
Company and APC are required to comply with under the 554, including
the appointment to the APC Board of two independent cutside US.
Directors approved by the U S. Government. The S5A imposes certain
restrictions on the degree of influence the Company can exert over

APC and it is therefore important that the Company maintains a strong
relationship with the APC Board, in order to ensure that we are fulfifling our
own governance obligations. A member of our Executive Board is an inside
Director on the APC Board. We anticipate increased engagement with APC
and the outside Directors in the coming year under the governance of the
S5A to support synergy opportunities across APC's product portfolio for
the benefit of our Head Protection business.

Disclosure and Transparency Rules (DTR}

Disclosures in respect of the DTR requirements under OTR 7.2.6 are given
in the Directors’ Report on pages 106 to 109 and have been included

by reference.

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
which the Directors believe to be appropriate for the following reasons:

The Directors have prepared a going concern assessment covering the
12-month period from the date of approval of these financial statements
The assessment indicates that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet
its habilities as they fall due for that period

As part of their assessment, the Directors considered a base caseand a
severe downside scenano involving a 2/7% decline in bank-determined
adjusted EBITDA against the base case. Even in this severe downside
scenario, the assessment indicates that the Group will have sufficient funds
1o meet its liabilities as they fall due, and will continue to comply with its
Inan covenants throughout the forecast period. The Group has committed
RCF facilities of $200 million (see note 5.1) and related loan covenants
include a limit of 3.0 times for the ratio of net debt, excluding lease
labilities, 1o bank-determined adjusted EBITDA {leverage).

On this basis, the Directors are confident that the Group and Company
will have sufficient funds to continue to meet their liabilities as they fall
due for at least 12 months from the approval of these financial staternents.
Accordingly the Group and Campany continue to adapt the going
concern basis in prepanng thelr financial statements.

Viability Statement

The Cirectors have assessed the viability of the Group over a three-year
period ta September 2025, taking account of the Group's current position,
and the potential impact of the principal risks documented in the Strategic
Report. Based on this assessment, the Directors have a reasonable
expectation that the Group will be able to continue In operation and meet
its liabilities as they fall due over the period to September 2025

In making this statement, the Lirectors have considered the resilience

of the Group, taking account of its current position, the principal risks
facing the businessin severe but plausible downside scenarios, and the
effectiveness of any mitigating actions. This assessment has considered
the potential impacts of these risks on the business maodel, future
performance, solvency and liquidity over the period In making their
assessment, the Directors have taken account of the Group's RCF facility
which provides finanang until September 2025. The Directors have a
reasonable expectation that similar financing could be obtained at the end
of the current RCF facility, should this be required for continued operation
or otherwise considered In the Group’s best interest. During the period
the Group has complied with all covenant requirements attached to its
financing facilities.

The Directors cansider the three-year lookout period to be the most
appropriate as this aligns with the Group's own strategic planning period.
The Group has developed an annual business planning process, which
comprises a strateqIc plan, a finzncial forecast for the current year and a
financial projection for the forthcoming three years. This plan is reviewed
each year by the Board as parr of its strategy setting process. Once
approved by the Board, the plan provides a basis for setting all detailed
financial budgets and strategic actions that are subsequently used by the
Board 1o monitor performance. The forecast performance cutioak is also
used by the Remuneration Committee 1o estabiish the targets for both the
annual and forg-term incentive schemes.
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Bruce Thompson
Chair of the Nomination Committee

Attendance at Nomination

Committee meetings

During the year the Nomination Committee held two
scheduled meetings. Attendance of the members of
the Committee 15 recorded in the table below:

Eligible
Scheduled meetings Attended to attend
Bruce Thompson 2 _2
Chloe Ponsonby 2 2
Bindi Foyle 2 2

[}

Victor Chavez 2

Avon Protection plc Annual Report and Accounts 2022

The Nomination Committee comprises all the Non-Executive Directors.

Main responsibilities
The main responsibilities of the Committee are as follows:

10 regularly review the Board's structure, size and compositian, taking
into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Group and
the skills, knowledge and experience needed by the Board and to make
recornmendations to the Board with regard to any change;

+ 1o putin place and periodically review succession plans for Directors
and, mare generally, senior executives; and

+ o lead the pracess for Board appointments and make
recornmendations to the Board.

The Committee’s terms of reference are available within the Corporate
Governance section of the Company's website and are reviewed annually

All Directors are appointed by the Board following a rigarcus selection '
process and subsequent recommendation by the Cormnmittee.

Diversity

The Board recognises the benefits of diversity and believes the Board's
perspective and approach are greatly enhanced by gender, age and
cultural diversity The Nomination Committee is responsible for the Board's
policy in this area, Diversity of skills, background, knowledge, international
and industry experience, and gender, amongst many other factors, will

be taken into cansideration when seeking to appoint new Directors to

the Board. Natwithstanding the foregoing, all Baard appaintments will
always e made on ment, The Board's Diversity Policy can be found in the
Corporate Governance section of the Company's website.

The Balance@Avon initiative, supported by the Commuttee, aims to haip
develop and promote our female leadership, create a forum where we can
identify, nurture and develap the female leaders of the future and ensure
that all women at Avon Protection thrive in their careers The infuative

is driven by a steering group which callaborates on long-term ideas to
help shape the future face of Avon Protection and create an agenda and
platform to help build our future female talent pipeline.

During 2022 we have supported a number of Balance@Avon initiatives,
including International Wornen's Day and the launch of a female
mentonng programme. We have achieved our minirmum target of 33%
fernale representanion on the Board and continue 1o work 1o achieve the
same minimum target representation for the Group Executhve team and its
direct reparts

Further informaton, including the number of women i seniar
management and within the organisaton, 1s shawn in the Sustainabiity
Reporron page 52,



THE COMMITTEE REGULARLY REVIEWS THE BOARD’S STRUCTURE AND
GIVES FULL CONSIDERATION TO SUCCESSION PLANNING FOR DIRECTORS
AND OTHER SENIOR EXECUTIVES, TO ENSURE WE ARE BEST RESOURCED

TO DELIVER THE GROUP’S STRATEGY.

Activities during 2022
During the year, the Committee:

commenced the search for a new Chief Executive Officer to replace Paul
McDonald, who stepped down from the Board on 30 September 2022;

considered and confirmed the appeintment of Rich Cashin as
Chief Financial Officer following the departure of Nick Keveth on
31 March 2022;

reviewed the composition of the Board and its succession plan;
carried out an annual review of the Committee’s terms of reference;

recomrnended re-election of the Board at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting; and

reviewed the Board performance evaluation process,

Board changes

Nick Keveth retired as Chief Financial Officer and stoad down from the
Board on 31 March 2022, Rich Cashin joined the Group as Chief Financial
Officer designate cn 7 March 2022 and was appointed to the Board as

an Executive Director on 31 March 2022, The process followed for Rich's
appointment was disclosed in last year's report Rich's biography, together
with those of all Board Directors, is included on page 75,

As announced to shareholders on 24 May 2022, after five years as Chief
Executive Officer and 12 years with the Cornpany, Paul McDonald stepped
down from the Board as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2022

The recruitment process to find Paul’s replacement commenced in May,
led by me as Chair of the Committee. Independent executive search
consultants Korn Ferry were retained and provided with a detailed
description of the role and associated skills and experience required.
Korn Ferry compiled a longlist of potential candidates based on Initial
interviews, from which a shortlist of candidates was selected by

the Committee.

Following an extensive interview and assessment process invoiving

all Directors, the Committee recommended Jos Sclater to the Board

as its preferred candidate. The Board considered and accepted the
recommendation and Jos Sclater was appointed to the Board as Chief
Executive Officer with effect from 16 January 2023. When Paul stepped
down from the Board as Chief Executive Officer, | was appointed interim
Executive Chair while the recruitment process for his replacement. | will
resurme my role as Chairwhen Jos joins the Board on 16 January 2023,

The Committee has previously agreed that all Directors should be put
forward for re-appointment by shareholders each year at the AGM. Taking
Into account the performance and value that each Director has brought
to the Board, the Cammittee has considered whether the appointment
of each Non-Executive and Executive Director should be renewed for a
further year and has confirmed that this is indeed the case. Accordingly,
resolutions to re-appoint each Director are being put to shareholders at
the forthcoming AGM.

Succession planning

The Committee reviews succession plarning for the Board formally at
least once a year in order to ensure the Board is adequately prepared for
potential changes to key Board positions. In addition, the Committee
reviewed the executive leadership needs of the Group during the year
ard progress was made on the longer-term succession planning of the
Group Executive management team and its direct reports and this will
remain a priority for the coming year,

Alongside this, the Committee also retains oversight of the programmes
in place to assess and facilitate talent development amongst the
rmanagement teams to ensure there s a structured approach to
growing, developing and retaining the Company's future leaders. This
year the Committee oversaw the running of the Group’s Professional
Development Programme.

Committee evaluation

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Committee was conducted
as part of this year's Board performance evaluation. The outcome of the
2022 Committee review was positive and highlighted the need for the
Committee to retain focus on the Group strategy and risk management
process. Further detail on the result of the Board evaluation exercise is
included on page 78 of the Corporate Governance Report.

Bruce Thompson
Chair of the Nomination Committee

22 November 2022
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Bindi Foyle
Chair of the Audit Committee

Attendance at Audit

Committee meetings

During the year the Audit Committee held four
scheduled meetings. Attendance of the rempers of
the Committee 1s recorded m the table below:

Eligible
Scheduled meetings Attended to attend

Bruce Thompson 4 4
Chloe Ponsonby 4 4
Bindi Foyle A 4

4 4

Victor Chavez
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The Committee monitors the integrity of the Group's financial statements
and supports the Board with its ongoing monitoring of the effectveness
of the Group's risk managernent and internal control systems.

During the year, the Audit Committee continued its key oversight role for
the Board of the Group's financial management and reporting 1o reassure
shareholders that theit interests are properly protected.

The Audit Committee works to a set programme of activities, with agenda
items established to coincide with the annual financial reporting calendar.
The Committee reports regularly to the Board on its work,

During the 2022 financial year, the Committee has continued to monitor
the integrity of the Group's financial statements and supported the
Board with its ongoing monitoring of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems. The Committee also determined the focus of
the Group's internal audit activity, reviewed its findings, and verified that
recommendations were being appropriately implemented.

In accordance with the Code, the Committee continued to have oversight
of the Group's whistleblowing function, known as Speak Up', together
with the associated pelicies and procedures. The Committee received
reqular updates on the number and types of Speak Up reports and agreed
follow-up actions thraughout the year from the General Counsel.

Dunng 2022 the Audit Committee undertook a full evaluation exercise of
KPMG's audit approach, 1o ensure the effectiveness of the external audit
function. Reviewing the results of the evaluation of the external audit process,
we are satisfied with both the auditor's ndependence and audit approach

The Audit Committee acts on behalf of the fulf Board, and the matters
reviewed and managed by the Committee remain the responsibility of
the Directors as a whaole.

Main responsibilities of the Audit Committee

The Audit Commuttee has delegated authority from the Board setf outin its
written terms of reference. The terms of reference far the Audit Camemittee
are avaifable forinspection at the Company’s registered office and on

our website.

The key cbjectives of the Audit Committee are:

- 1o provide effective governance and control over the imtegrity of the Group's
financial reporting and roviews toe significant financal reparing jJudgemnents,

- 10 support the Board with its engoing monitoring of the effectivercss
of the Group's system of internal controls and risk manage ment systems;

- 1o monitor the effectiveress of the Group's intermal audit functior and
review its matenal findings;

- 1o oversee e re'aT onship with the external audaor and make
recommendations to the Board in relauon to the re-appointment of
the external sucitor and monitor tne external suditor's objeciraty
and mdeperdence;

« 10 review the adequacy of the Cormpany's whistleblowing arrangements
and the provis.on of approprnate investigation of any matters raised: ard

- W advise the Board an whether the Commuttee believes the
Annual Report and Accounts, faken as a whole, is fair, balanced,
and uncerstandable and provides the information necessary for
shareholders o assess the Cornpany's nosition ard performance,
business model and strazegy



THE COMMITTEE MONITORS THE INTEGRITY OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPORTS THE BOARD WITHITS
ONGOING MONITORING OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF THE GROUP’S
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The members of the Committee are set out on page 77 of the Corporate
Governance Report The Committee members are all independent
Non-Executive Directors and have the appropriate range of financial

and commercial expertise necessary to fulfil the Cornmittee’s terms of
reference. The Board considers that as a serving Group Finance Director
of a UK listed company, | have both the current and refevant financial
experience required to chair this Committee.

The Committee typically invites the Board Chair to attend all Committee
meetings together with the Executive Directors and the Group
Financial Controller,

2022 Annual Report
The main areas of focus considered by the Committee during 2022 were
as follows:

= The presentation of the financial statements and the quality and
acceptability of accounting policies and practices including the
presentation of adjusted performance measures and the adjusting
iterns, The Committee reviewed papers prepared by management,
challenged management's judgements and estimates, and reviewed
the disclosure of adjusted items within the Group's half year and full
year results, agreeing that the position taken in the financial statements
Is appropriale.

- The clarity of the disclosures and compliance with financial
reporting standards and relevant financial and governance reporting
requirements Material areas in which significant jJudgements have been
applied are discussed separately in more detail below.

+ Atthe request of the Board, the Committee considered whether the
2022 Annual Report was fair, balanced and understandable and whether
it provided the necessary information for shareholders to assess the
Company’s position and performance, business model and strategy.
Having taken account of the other information provided to the Board
throughout the year, the Committee was satisfied that, taken as a whole,
the Annual Report and Accounts was fair, balanced and understandable.

The Committee was content, after due challenge and debate, with the
assumptions made and the judgements applied in the accounts and
agreed with management’s recommendations. In addition, the Committee
reviewed and recommended the approval of the statements on corporate
governance, internal control and risk management in the Annual Report
and Accounts and the half year results announcement.

Significant judgements and estimates considered

by the Audit Committee

After discussions with management and the external auditor, the
Comrittee determined that the key risk of material misstatement of the
Group's 2022 financial statements arose in the following areas:

- development costs and ongoing valuation in the financial
staterments; and

- estimation of the defined benefit pension obligation

Development costs
The Group capitalises the development costs of new products and
processes as intangible assets or property, plant and equipment

Initial capitalisation and any subsequent impalirment are based on
management'’s judgement of technological and commercial viability,
ncluding regulatory approvals reguired and forecast customer demand. In
determining the amounts to be capitalised the Group makes assumptions
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount
rates to be applied and the expected pericd of benefits, If either
technological or commercial viability is not demaonstrated then the
capitalised costs will be written off 1o the income statement

The key issues reviewed in the financial year included the angoing
valuation of assets in relation to the General Service Respirator supplied
to the UK. MaD, the MCM100 underwater rebreather and the category
of escape hoods. The Committee concurred with management that
the carrying values as included in the 30 Septembor 2022 balance sheet
WCre appropriate.

The external auditor explained its audit procedures to test development
costs and, based on the work undertaken, KPMG concluded the carrying
values were acceptable. Further amalysis and detail on the Group's
development costs are set out in note 3.1 of the financial statements.

Estimation of the defined benefit pension assets

and obligations

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide
pensicn and death benefits for the employees of its UK. Group companies
employed before 31 January 2003, The plan was closed to future accrual of
benefits on 1 October 2009

The investments held by the pension scheme include both quated and
unguoted securities, the latter of which by their nature invelve assurnptions
and estimates to determine their fair value. Where there is no active market
for the unquoted securities, the fair value of these assets is estimated by the
pension trustees based on advice received from the investment rmanager
whilst also using any available market evidence of any recent transactcns for
an identical asset, The assumptions used in valuing unquaoted investments
are affected by current market conditions and trends which could result in
changes in fair value after the measurement date,

Estimation of the defined benefit pension obligation invalves significant
judgements concerning future changes in inflation, mortality rates, and
the selection of a sutable discount rate, as well as the future performance
and valuation of the scheme’s assets, Changes to these actuarial judgements
could have a significant impact on the estimated pension obligation.

Anindependent actuary is engaged to estimate the defined benefit
pension obligation, undertaking a valuation of the scheme’s assets and
assessrnent of current and future pension liabilities, The Committee
revicwed a report from the independent actuary on the appropriateness
of the assumptions used in assessing the assets and liabilities of the
scherne and agreed that the defined benefit pension ebligation was beinc
estimated appropriately with reasonable judgements being applied.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

Estimation of the defined benefit pension assets

and obligations continusd

The external auditor applied its audit procedures 10 test the carrying value
of the net pension obligation and, based on the work undertaken and
assessment of the actuarial judgements used, reported no inconsistencies
or misstatements that were material in the context of the financial
staternents as a whole. Further analysis and detail on the Group's defined
benefit pension scheme is set aut in note & 2 of the f nancial statements.

External auditor

The Audit Committee considers the appointment of the external auditor
each year, KPMG LLP (KPMG) was appomted as the Group's external suditor
for the 2015 audtt following a tender process In 2018 2022 is KPMG's fourth
year as the Group's external auditar and Andrew Campbell-Orde has acted
as gudit partner since KPMG's appointment.

The Committee oversees the relationship with the external auditor, and
monitors all services provided by, and fees payable to it, to ensure that
potential corflicts of interest are considered and that an objective and
professional relationship is matntained.

In particular, the Committee reviews and monitors the independence

and objectivity of the external auditor and the effectiveness of the audit
process. AL the gutser of the annual audit process, the Committee receives
3 detailed audit plan from the auditor, identifying its assessment of the key
risks and its intended areas of focus. This 1s agreed with the Committee t©
ensure coverage is appropriately focused

The Committee also holds separate discussions with the external auditor
without Executive management being present. In addition, | held separate
meetings with the external auditer dunng the course of the year.

Review of the effectiveness of the external auditor

The Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the external auditor
annually. This evaluation includes a review of the effectiveness of the
external audit process, consideration of whether management had been
adequately challenged, interaction with the Comrittee and quality of the
audit work, Tha 2027 review included reports from the external auditor
and management incorporating feedback against a formal assessment
framework from key members of the Group's finance team and those
employees who had interacted with KPMG during the audit This report
was reviewed at the Cornmittee’s meeting In March 2022, Overall feedback
was positive and where opportumties for improvernent were idenufied in
respect of earlier discussion with management regarding developments
and changes during the year, KPMG was asked 1o take account of that
feedback i the planning for future audit activity. KPMG and management
also undertocok to work together to more clearly define the infermation
required from management during the audit to aid increased audit
efficiency This review concluded that the audit was conducted to a goad
standard with approprate focus and challenge on the key audit risks.

KPMG has discussed maore generally the firrn's process for enhancing audit
quality which includes internal quality reviews
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AQR of the Avon Protection 2021 audit by KPMG
During the year, the 2021 audit of Avon Protection ple by KPMG was
reviewed by the FRC's Audit Quality Review [AQR) tearm.

The AQR highlighted specific areas for improvernent related to how

KPMG evaluated or challenged the required disclosures in relation to the
Company's financial reporting period. The Committee considered the
findings, discussed them with management and KPMG and is satisfied that
the Company's financial reporting period for 2022 and the comparative
period is appropriately disclosed in the 2022 half year results and Annual
Report and Accounts. The AQR raised no concerns on the audit challenge
over the significant risks referenced in the Auditor's Report

No changes were required 1o the accounting applied in the Annual Report
and Accounts 2021.

Audit fees and auditor re-appointment

During 2022, the Committee reviewed and approved the proposed audit
fees and terms of engagemnent for the 2022 audit and recommended to
the Board that it proposes 10 shareholders that KPMG be re-appointed

as the Group's external auditor for 2023 at the AGM to be held on

27 January 2023

Auditor independence

To ensure the independence and objectivity of the external auditor and
avold a situation where the auditor's famillarity with the Group's affairs
results in excessive trust, the Committee maintains a formal Auditor
Independence Policy. The palicy follows the ettucal quidance on auditor
independence issued by the FRC in December 2019 and was reviewed
during the year to ensure 1t remained appropriate. Under the policy all
non-audit services permitted by the FRC require the specific approval of
the Audit Committee.

The policy also establishes guidelines for the recruitment of employees
or former employees of the external auditer. To ensure compliance with
this policy, the Audit Caommittee carried out & review during the year, this
included consideration of the remuneration received by KPMG for audit
services, audit-related services and non-audit work.

The bireakdown of the fees paid 1o the external auditor 15 Included in note

2 5 of the financial staterments KPMG also conducted a half year review on
the interim financial results of the Group. No other non-audit services were
provided by KPMG during the year.

Internal control

The Commities regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal contrals and risk management This involves the manitaring
and review of the effectiveness of internal audit activities, which included
a review of the audits carried out including the recommendations arising,
management’s responses and actions to address recommendations and
approving the internal audit programme and resourcing for 2023

The internal aucit programme is comprised of risk-based audits
undertaken by Deloitte. Deloitte reparts directly 1o the Audit Committee,
whweh considared and approved the scope of the 2022 wternal audit
programme to be undertaken. The Charr of the Cammuttee also holds
separate meetngs with Deloitte, without Executive management being
present. During the year, Deloitte focused its interna! audit work on the
purchase 1o pay process and management, business continuity and IT
resilence, supply chain and pracurement, and capital managerrent -
intar gible spend



Several improvements were identified in respect of developing and
enhancing the Group's risk management pracesses, better documenting
the operation of controls, further integration of purchasing processes
and further enhancing processes around management and timehness of
reviews of capitalised expenditure,

As part of the internal control framework, site controllers and plant
managers are obliged (o positively confirm, on a biannual basis, that
the controls as documented in the internal control manual are in place
and are being adhered 1o, with specific reference to key controls such as
bank and control account reconciliations, This process has been in place
for the year under review and up to the date of approvai of the Annual
Report and Accounts. It has been reviewed by the Board and continues
to be monitored by the Comnmittee, which remains satisfied with

the arrangements,

As part of its work, and in line with its terms of reference, the Caommittee
also considers the discharge of the Board's responsibilities in the areas

of corporate governance, financial reporting and internal control,
including the internal management of risk, as identified in the Code and
the FRC Guidance on Risk Management, Internal Control and Related
Financial Business Reporting In 2022, the Group further strengthened

its risk management procedures and these have been reviewed by the
Committee, Risk management activities are dealt with in more detall in the
Principal Risks and Risk Management section on pages 62 to 69 and the
Corporate Governance Repart on page 78,

Audit Committee effectiveness review

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Audit Committee was
conducted alongside the Board effectiveness review, information on
which is provided in the Corporate Governance Report on page 78.
The review concluded that the Audit Committee continuez ta ocperate
effectively during the year.

Bindi Foyle
Chair of the Audit Committee

22 November 2022
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

LETTER FROM THE
CHAIR

Chloe Ponsonby
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Attendance at Remuneration

Committee meetings

During the year the Remuneration Committee held
four scheduted meetings Attendance of the members
of the Cormrmittee 1§ recorded in the table below:

Eligible
Scheduled meetings Attended toattend
Chloe ansonby 4 4
Bruce Thompsan 4 4
Bindi Foyle 4 4
Victor Chavez 4 4

On behalf of the Board, 1 am plegsed to present the
Directors’ Remuneration Report for the 52 weeks ended
1 Octoker 2022.7his includes the ‘ollowing three sectiors:

« This Annual Statement which summarises the work of the
Remuneration Committee ¢'the Committee’) in 2022 and
sets out the context in which pay decisions were made,

The Directors’ Rermmuneration Policy Uthe Policy’y which was
approved by shareholders at the 2021 AGM and sets the
pararmeters within whizh Direc1ors are remunerated.

« The Annual Report on Remuneration which provides
() details of t~e remuneraticn easned by Cuectors 2ana
the lin< cetween Compary performa-ce and pay in the
52 weeks emded 1 October 2522 and (i) new we intend
to impler-ent the Balicy in 2023

The Annual Statement and the Annual Report on Remuneration
will, together, be subject ©o the usual advisory shareholder
wGte at the AGM an 27 Janaary 2023 The Policy. which wzs
appraved in January 2021, will continue to apply for the 2023
finzncial per ad, the thied year of e trree-year Policy.

Business context

As referred toin the Chair's Statement and the Strateg-c
Repart, 2022 has presented both challenges ard
opportunities for the Group. It 1s pleasing to see results
which reflect solid arder intake and a much improved
operational performance in the second half of the year, after
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a challenging first half We have successfully navigated the retirerent
and replacement of the Chief Financial Officer back in March and the
subseguent departure of the Chief Executive Officer, and the Group has
made solid progress in 2022. We are now well positioned going into 2023
under a new Executive team

The Committee has been particularly mindful of the challenging
economic environment and the impact this has had on all our employees.
The Committee has had gooed visibility of pay practices across the Group
and in particular the significantly higher than normal annual pay increase
for the wider workforce which was implemented on 1 Qctober 2022. This
was between 5% and 8%, with our hourly paid workforce receiving 8%
The annual increases made to senior executive pay this year were at the
lower end of those made for the wider workforce at ¢ 5% for the Executive
Board and 2.5% for the Chief Financial Officer, Itis pleasing to see the
Group's financial performance trggering an annual bonus payment after
the miss Jast year, but disappointing that the performance over the last 3
years has not been sufficient to permit the Long Term Incentive Plan {LTtP)
award to vest.

Remuneration outcomes for FY22

The annual bonus for 2022 was dependent on a scorecard of measures
which included adjusted operating profit (40%), cash conversion {20%),
revenue (20%) and the delivery of strategic ohjectives {20%).

Based on the Company's financial performance for the year and
achievernent against the strategic objectives, the Committee determined
the bonus outcome to he 44.3% of maximurn for Paul McDonald and Nick
Keveth and 48,3% of maximum for Rich Cashin. Full details can be found
on page 98,

Vesting of the Long Term Incentive Plan awards made on 17 March 2020
was based on two measures — relative TSR and EPS growth — over the
three-year performance period. The Group did not meet the threshold
targets and therefore the awards will lapse in full

No discretion was applied in determining the annual bonus and LTIP
vesting outcomes. The Committee agreed the final remuneration
outcomes reflected Group performance over the respective performance
periods and was satisfied the Policy had operared as intended.

Updates on the terms of the 2022 LTIP award

At the ume of signing off last year's Remuneration Report, the Board

was underta<ing a strategic reviews of the armar business and the
Remuneratior Committee wished 1o see the ocutcome of the review before
setting the three-year targets for the 2021/22 award. The measures and
targets, which remain relative TSR ard EPS growth, were set outin the
RNS at the tirne the award was made on 1 February 2022 Reflecting the
failt in the Company’s share price and the impact this bad on the number
of awards being granted, the Commitiee agreed 1o make a reduced LTIP
grant of 125% of salary to Paul McDonald instead of a 173¢ of saiary grant
as permitted urder the Directors’ Rerrureration Policy Full details of the
award granted are set outin the Annual Report on Remuneration.

Board changes

As setoutin the prier penod report, Nick Keveth retired from tre Group as
Chief Financia Officer and ceased to be an employee on 31 March 2022,
Nick received salary and contractual benefits untl the date of cessation
and received no paymentin fieu of not'ce or sayment for loss of office

As a good leaver ard having worked for the first six morths of the financal




THE COMMITTEE SEEKS TO SUPPORT THE DELIVERY OF THE GROUP’S
STRATEGY THROUGH ESTABLISHING REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
WHICH SUPPORT SUSTAINABLE VALUE CREATION FOR OUR
SHAREHOLDERS AND INCENTIVISE MANAGEMENT.

year, Nick was eligible to receive a pro rata bonus for the 2021/22 financial
year and will receive a bonus of 44.3% of maximurn. Nick afso retained

an interest in the LTIP awards that were granted to him in 2019/20 and
2020/21. The perfarmance conditions for the 2019/20 LTIP award were
not achieved (see above) and his 2020/21 awards will vest subject to the
achievernent of performance criteria and will be subject to a pro rata
reduction for time served. Nick did not receive an LTIP award in 2021/22.

In May 2022, the Board announced that, after 5 years as Chief Executive
Officer and 19 years with the Company. Paul McDonald would step down
as Chief Executive Officer on 3G September 2022, Far the remaining term
of his 12-month notice period and in line with his service agreement, Paul
remains available to carry cut certain duties of his employment and during
this time will receive his salary and contractual benefits. Reflecting his
long service with the Company, Paul has been treated as a good leaver
for incentive purposes and will receive a bonus for the 2021/22 financial
year of 44.3% of maximum. Paul's 2019/20 LTiP award did not vest as the
performance criteria were nat achieved His 2020/21 and 2021/22 awards
will vest subject to performance on their normal vesting dates. These
awards will be reduced pro rata to reflect time served and will be subject
to a two-year holding period.

Rich Cashin joined the Group as Chief Financial Officer designate on

7 March 2022 and after a brief handover period was appointed Chief
Financial Officer on 31 March 2022 with an annual base salary of £350,000
p.a2 Consistent with our policy, Rich has an annual bonus opportunity
of 125% of salary and a maximum annual LTIP grant of 150% of salary
For 2022, Rich's bonus cpportunity has been pro-rated for his time in
ermployment and he received a reduced LTIP award upon joining with a
face value of 100% of base salary to reflect his joining part way through
the financial year, His pension provision is aligned with the standard
UK. pension arrangement for the wider warkforce in the UK, being an
ermployer contribution of 7.5% of salary.

After the year end, on 17 Octeber 2022, we were pleased to announce

the appointment of Jos Sclater as Chief Executive Officer with effect

from 16 January 2023, Jos' base salary has been set at £526,594 p.a. and

he wilt receive a UK, workforce aligned pension contribution of 7.5%

of base salary. In line with the shareholder approved policy, Jos' bonus
opportunity will be 125% of base salary {pro-rated for time served in
2022/23) and he wilt be eligible for an LTIP grant of 175% of salary upon
joining. Jos has not forfeited any remuneration upon joining the Company
and therefore there has been no need to make a one-off buyout award.

Jos' base salary has been set based on the market rate for the role following
a comprehensive internal and external search. it reflects what was

required to recruit someone of Jos  calibre and in setting his base salary,

the Remuneration Committee took into account his salary at his previous
employer and an appropriate premium for taking the role of Chief Executive
Officer. The Committee also took Into account Paul McDonald's base salary
(£513,750) which took effect from 1 October 2021 and has set fos’ base
salary by applying a 2.5% increase for 2022 which is 8 modest assessment of
current salary inflation. A 2.5% increase compares with a workforce increase
of between 5% and 8% of salary depending on pasition in the Company
from 1 Cctober 2022,

During the period between Paul McDonald stepping off the Board on

30 Septermnber 2022 and Jos Sclater joining in January 2023, Bruce Thompson
has taken the role of Executive Chair. Bruce agreed with the Remuneration
Committee that he would not receive any additional fees for acting as
Executive Chair and would continue ta receive his Chair's fee only Bruce
will revert to his position as Chair of the Board following Jos Sclater's arrival
During the period of Bruce's appointment as Executive Chair, It was agreed
that he would step down as a member of the Remuneration Committee.

How the policy will be applied in 2022/23

The Committee will seek to implement the Policy as follows:

Base salaries

Reflecting the inflationary enviranment, a range of salary increases will
apply across the business with the general workforce increase for 2022/23
being between 5% and 8% of salary, depending on position in the
Carnpany. The Committee determined that Rich Cashin's increase would
be 2.5%, therefore increasing his salary from £350,000 to £358,750. As set
out above, Jos Sclater's base salary will be £525,594 p.a. when he joins the
business in January 2023, which is 2.5% higher than his predecessor’s salary
which was last reviewed in October 2021,

Annual bonus

Consistent with the approved Policy, the maximum annual bonus
opportunity will be 125% of salary, with 25% of any bonus earned deferred
nte shares for twa years, The bonuses will be based on aperating profit
140%), a metric based on cash generated by the business (20%), revenue
[20%) and strategic objectives (20%]. The targets are commercialiy sensitive
but will be disclosed in full on a retrospective basis in next year's report.

Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

The Committee intends to grant LTIP awards to senior executives in

2023 As evidenced with the approach taken to last year’s LTIP grant,

the Remuneration Committee considers the prevailing share price and
changes over time when determining the LTIP grant. Both Rich Cashin and
Jos Sclater are new recruits to the business and were not in office when
the Company experienced significant market volatility. Recognising this,
the Committee has determined that their LTIP grants will be set at 150%
and 175% of base salary respectively, which is in line with our policy. The
LTIP will be subject to two metrics - relative T5R and EPS growth,

Shareholder and employee views

Underthe UK Corporate Governance Cade, we are required to establish
a mechanism for gathering the views of the workforce on all matters,
including pay Last year the Board agreed that the most effective way

of achieving this in our business with employees across six sites {five of
which are in the U.S} was to create a Global Emplayee Advisory Farum.
Topics of discussion this year have focused an the challenges of the cost of
living crisis and the plans we have developed to address it for our people.
In eddition, we are conducting a remuneration review to ensure that our
pay practices are fair for afl and competitive in the market. As part of this
work, our bonus schermes are being evaluated and the Global Employee
Advisory Forum will be consulted on the autcomes of this work.

We have entered the final year of our Directors’ Remuneration Policy

and later th s year the Remurcration Comm ttee will consider the design
of a new policy to apply from the 2023/24 financial year. In this regard, | am
always happy to hear from the Company’s shareholders and if you would
like to provide feedback on our pay arrangements, or if you have any
questions on this report or more generally in relation to the Company’s
remuneration, you ¢an contact me via the Company Secretary,

Chloe Ponsonby
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

22 November 2022
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONIINUED

REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE

The key clements of Executive Directors’ remuneration packages and our approach to implementation in 2023 are summarised below.

Remuneration 2022

Remuneration 2023

FIXED PAY Salary

(annual base)

CEO {Paul McDonald): £513,750
CFO (Nick Keveth} £359,625
CFO (Rich Cashin): £350,000

CEQ: £526,594 (upon joining in X
January 2023}
CFO: £358.750

Pension CEO reduced 1o 7 5% of salary from 1 April 2022 A 7.5% of salary ernployer contribution
CFO 7.5% of salary from the appomtment of Rich  rate applies. This is aligned with the UK
Cashin as CFO (effective from 1 April 2022} workforce contribution rate
Benefits Includes car allowance, private health insurance  Includes car allowance, private health
and life insurance insurance and life insurance
ANNUAL BONUS Maximum CEQO: 125% of salary 125% of salary

opportunity

CFO: 62.5% of salary each, reflecting Nick Keveth's
retirement from the Board on 31 March 2022
and Rich Cashin’s appointment on 1 April 2022

CEQ's honus pro rated for period as
a Director

Parformance measures revenue (20%j,

Operation Performance measures: revenue (2096),
operating profit (40%), cash conversion (20%) operating profit (40%j, a metric based
and strategic objectives (209%) on cash generated by the business
25% of the overall amount deferred into (20%) and strategic objectives {20%)
shares which vest after two years + 25% of the overall amount deferred into
. Malus and clawback provisions apply shares which vest after two years
Malus and clawback provisions apply
, _
LONG-TERM Award level CEO. 125% of salary CEO 175% of salary grant on appointment
CFQO {Nick Keveth): no award was granted
INCENTIVES CFOr 100% of salary, reflecting Rich Cashin CFO:150% of salary
; Joining partway through the financial year
Operation v Performance measures: relative TSR {50% of Performance measures: relative TSR
award) and EPS with a ROCE underpin (50% of (50% of award) and EPS wath a ROCE
award) underpin (50% of award)
Performance measured over three years + Performance measured aver three years
- Two-year addinonal holding penad applies to Two-year additional holding period
vested awards applies to vested awards
+ Malus and clawback provisions apply Malus and clawback provisions apply
SHAREHOLDING In employment 200% of salary 200% of salary
GUIDELINES Post-employment 200% of salary to be held for two years 200% of salary 1o be held lor Lo years

post-empioyment

post-employment
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

This section of the report sets out our Directors” Remuneration Policy
which was approved by shareholders at the AGM on 29 January 2021 and
took formal effect from that date.

Guiding peolicy

The Company’s guiding policy on executive remuneration is thar:

-« execdtive remuneration packages should be clear and simple, taking
into account the linkage between pay and performance by both
rewarding effective management and making the enhancement of
sharehotder value a critical success factor in the setting of incentives,
both in the short and the long term;

the overall level of salary, incentives, pension and other benefits
should be competitive (Dut not excessive) when compared with other
companies of a similar size and global spread and should be sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate Executive Directors of superior calibre in
order to deliver long-term success; and

- performance-related components should form a significant proportion
of the overall remuneration package, with maximum total potential
rewards being earned through the achievement of challenging
performance targets based on measures that are linked to the
Company’s KPls and to the best interests of shareholders.

Considerations when determining remuneration policy
The Committee undertook a comprehensive review of the current
Directors’ Remuneration Palicy during 2020 to ensure, primarily, that

it continues to: (i) support the strategy and promote the long-term
sustainable success of the Group; {ji) align executive remuneration with
Company culture, purpose and values and clearly provide linkage to
the successful delivery of the Company's long-term strategy; (i} attract,
retain and motivate executive management of the quality required to
run the Company successfully (without paying more than is necessaryy);
amd {iv) have regard (o the views of our shareholders and other
stakeholders and appropriately reflect the best practice expectations of
institutional investors.

The UK. Corparate Governance Code has been a key touchstone and

we have been careful to take full account of the rernuneration-related
provisions in our design considerations, With regard to how we have
sought t comply with the six factors outlined in Provision 40 of the Code,
for example, we believe the following are worth noting in particular:

- Clarity - Qur remuneration framework is structured to support finandial

delivery and the achievement of strategic objectives, aligning the
interests of Executive Directors with those of cur shareholders. Our
Policy is transparent and well understood by our senior executive team.
It has been clearly articulated to our shareholders and representative
bodies (both on an ongoing basis and during consultation when
changes are being made).

Simplicity — Our rermuneration framework is straightforward to
communicate and aperate We have operated the same simple and
transparent overarching structure for many years and applied iton a
consistent basis across all employees,

Risk - Our incentives have been structured to ensure that they are
aligned with the Board's system of risk managemant and risk appetite.
Inappropriate risk taking is discouraged and mitigated through, for
example: (i} the operation of arrangerents that provide an appropriate
balance of fixed pay to short and long-term incentive pay and through
multiple performance measures based on a btend of financial, non-
financial and shareholder return targets; (i) the deferral of a proportion
of annual bonus into shares and the operation of a post-vesting holding
period far the LTIP; (iii} the operation of significant in-employment and
pastemplaymeant sharehalding guidelines: and {iv) the operation of
robust recovery and withholding provisions.

Predictability - Our incentive plans are subject to individual caps,
with our share plans also subject to market standard dilution limits.
The Committee has full discretion o alter the pay-out tevel or vesting
outcome to ensure payments are appropriately aligned with the
underlying performance of the Company

Proportionality — Ensuring Executive Directors are not rewarded for
failure underscores our approach to remuneration {eg the significant
praportion of our packages is based on long-term performance targets
linked to the KP!s of the Company, through our ability and openness

to the use of discretion to ensure appropriate outcomes, and through
the structure of our Executive Directors” contracts). There is a clear link
between individual awards, delivery of strategy and our long-term
performance. As mentioned above, formulaic incentive outcomes are
reviewed by the Committee and may be adjusted having consideration
to overall Group performance and wider workforce remuneration
policies and practices.

Alignment to culture — Our Policy is aligned to Avon Protection’s
culture and values. The Comrnittee strives to instil a sustainable
performance and contindous improvernent culture at the management
level that can cascade down throughout the Company. The Board sets
the framework of KPIs against which we monitor the performance of
the Company and the Committee links the performance metrics of
ourincentive arrangements to those KPis. We are also keen to foster a
culture of share ownership throughout the Company and operate ali-
employee share arrangements in pursuit of this objective,

Further details of the role of the Committee and its decision-making
process can be found in the Annual Report on Remuneration on page 97
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Policy table
The table below sets out the main components of the current Remuneration Policy for Directars, together with further information on how these aspects
of remuneration operate. The Remuneration Commitiee has discretian to amend remuneration and benefits to the extent described in the table and the
written sections that follow it,

Element of

remuneratioh

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance targets

Basic salary

remuneration

To attract and retain
Executive Directors of
superior calibre in order
te delrver lorg-term
business success.

Reftects individual
experience and role,

The Cornmittee’s aim is to
position salaries around
the mid-market level of

companies of a similar size,

scale and complexity.

To provide competitive fixed

Narmally reviewed annually by
the Rermuneration Committee
with increases typicaily effective
1 Outobern

Individual salary adjustments
take into account each Executive
Director’s role, competence

and performance. Significant
adjustments are infrequent and
normally reserved for material
changes in role, a significant
increase in the size/complexity of
the Group, or where an individua)
has been appointed on a low
salary with anintention to bring
them to market levels over time
and subject to performance,

Other factors which will be taken
into account wilf Include pay

and conditions elsewhere In the
Group, progression within the
role, and competitive salary levels
in companies of a broadly similar
size and complexity.

Mo prascribed maximun o
maximum increase,

The normal approach wili be to
limitincreases to the average
level across the wider workforce,
thaugh increases above this

level may be awarded subject

to Commnittee discretion to take
account of certain circumstances,
such as those stated

urder Operation’.

On recruitment or promaotion,
the Committee will consider
previous remuneration and pay
levels for comparable companics
(forexarmple, companies of a
similar size and complexity,
industry sector or locatian),
when setting salary levels, This
may lead to satary being set at a
lower or higher level than for the
previous incumbent,

Although there are no
formal perforrmance
conditions, any increase
in base salary is anly
implermented afrer
careful consideration of
indrvidual contribution
and performance and
having due regard to
the factors set outin the
‘Operation’ column of
this table.

Benefits

To provide competitive
fixed remuneration,

To attract and retain
Executive Directors of
superior calibre in order
to celiver long-term
business success

Executive Directors are entitted
to benefits such as travel-
related perefits including a
car or car allowance, medical
assessments every two years,
private health insurance and life
assurance. Executives will be
eligible for any cther benefits
which are introduced for the
wider workforce on broadly
similar terms,

Any reasonable business-related
expenses and any tax thereon)
can be reimbursed if determined
to be a taxabie benefit.

Executive Directors will be eligible

to participate in ary all-employee
share plan operared by the
Cornpany, on the same terms as
other eligible employees,

Forexternal ard nternat
appointmenits or relocations,
the Company may pay certain
relocation and/or incidental
expenses as appropriare.

As tis not possible to calculate in
advance the cost of alt benefits, &
maximurn is not pre-determined

The maximum level of
participation in all-employee
share plans is subject to the limits
imposed by the refevant tax
authority from time to time

Not applicable.
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Element of
remuneration

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance targets

Pension

To reward sustained
contributions by providing
retirernent benefits,

The Company funds contributions
to a Director's pension as
appropriate through contribution
to the Company's money
purchase scheme or through the
provision of salary supplements
or a combination of these.

Company contribution up
10 7.5% of salary frorm 1 April 2022,

Future appointments to the
Baard will receive contributions
in line with the prevailing rate
offered to the general workforce

{currently 7.5% of salary in the U.K)

in the country where they are
based at the time.

Policy amendment post approval
- the maximum employer
contribution level for all Executive
Directors from 1 October 2022 is
the workforce contribution level.

Not applicable.

Annualbonus

Rewards the achievement of
annual financial and business
targets aligned with the
Group's KPIs.

Maximum bonus only
pavyable for achieving
demanding targets.

Deferred element
encourages long-term
shareholdings and
discourages excessive
risk taking.

Bonus is based on performance in
the relevant financial period. Any
payment is discretionary and will
be subject to the achievement of
stretching performance targets,

Bonus is normally paid in cash,
except 25% of any bonus which is
deferred into shares for two years.

Bonuses are not contractual
and are not eligible for
inclusion in the calculation of
pension arraﬂgomeh[s,

Recovery and withholding
provisions apply in cases of
miscanduct, corporate failure,
reputational damage, error

in calculation of a bonus and
material misstatement of
finaricial results,

Dividends or dividend equivalents
may accrue on deferred shares.

Capped at 125% of salary.

The Committee sets
performance measures
and targets that are
appropriately stretching
each year, taking into
account key strategic
and financia! priorities
and ensuring there is
an appropriate balance
between incentivising
Executive Directors

to meet targets, while
ensuring they do not
drive unacceptable
levels of risk or
inappropriate behaviours.

Financial measures will
normally determine at
least 75% of the bonus
opportunity and the
balance may be based on
non-financial, stratedqic,
personal and/or ESG-
related cbjectives.

A graduated scale of
targets is normally set for
each measure, with no
pay-out for performance
below a threshold level
of performance.

The Committee has
discretion to amend
the pay-out should any
formulaic outcome not
reflect the Commirttee’s
assessment of overall
business performance
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONIINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

Policy table continued

Operation

Maximum potential value

Performance targets

Awards of condrtional shares or nil
Cost aption awards which normally
vest aftar three years subject to
the achievement of performance
targets and continued service.

An additional two-year holding
peniad applies after the end of the
three-year vesting period Recovery
and withholding provisions apply
In cases of misconduct, corporate
failure, reputational damage, error
in calculation of award and material
misstatement of financial results,

Dividend equivalents may be paid
for awards to the extent they vest,

The Committee retains discretion
10 adjust vesting levels in
exceptional circurnstances,
including but not imited to
regard of the overall performance
of the Company or the grantee’s
personal performance.

Executive Directors may receive
an award of up 1 175% of basic
salary perannum.

The Committee will consider

the prevailing share price when
deciding on the number of shares
to be awarded as part of any

LTIP grant,

A 10% in ten years dilution limit
governing the issue of new
shares To sausfy all share schemes
operated by the Company

will apply.

Performance measures
may include, and are not
lirmited to, relative TSR,
EPS, strateqic measures
and ESG-related
objectives,

The Committee retains
discretion to set
alternative weightings or
performance measures
for awards over the life of
the policy.

100% of awards vest for
stretch performance,
up to 20% of an award
vests for threshold
performance and no
awards vest below this.
Underpins may apply.

Element of Purpose and link
remuneration to strategy
Long Term Designed to align Executive
Incentive Directors’ interests with
Plan thase of sharehalders and
to incentivise the delivery
of sustainabile earnings
growth and superior
shareholder returns.
Share To increase alignment
ownership between Executives and
guidelines shareholders.

Executive Directars are required
to retain at least 50% of their net
of tax vested awards untl the
in-employment shareholding
guideline is met,

Nil cost aptions which have
vested but are yet 1o be exercised
and deferred bonus awards
subject to a time condition only
may be considered to count
towards the in-employrment
sharehotding on a notianal
post-tax basis.

Executive Directors are required
to build up and maintain an in-
employment shareholding worth
200% of salary (100% for other
senior management)

Executive Directors are normally
required to hold shares at a

level equal to the lower of their
shareholding at cessation and
200% of salary for two years post-
ernployment (excluding shares
purchased with own funds and
any shares from share plan awards
made before the approval of

this palicyl.

Not applicable.
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Element of
remuneration

Purpose and link
to strategy

Operation

Maximum potential value Performance targets

Chair

and Non-
Executive
Directors’
fees

and benefits

To provide compensation In
line with the demands of the
roles at a level that attracts
high-calibre individuals and
reflects their experience

and knowledge.

Fees are normally reviewed
annually taking into account
factors such as the time
commitment and contribution
of the role and market levels in
companies of comparable size
and complexity.

The Chair is paid an all-inclusive
fee for all Board responsibilities.

Fees for the other Non-Executive
Direc lors may include a base fee
and additional fees for further
responsibilities {(for example,
chairship of Board Committees
or holding the office of Senior
Independent Directar).

The Carmpany repays any
reasonable expenses that a
Non-Executive Director incurs
in carrying out therr duties as

a Director, Including travel,
hospitality-related and other
modest benefits and any tax
liabilities thereon, if appropriate.

If there is a temporary yet material
increase in the time commitments
for Non-Executive Directors, the
Board may pay extra feesana

pro rata basis to recognise the
additional workload.

No prescribed maximum fee or Not applicable.

maximurn fee increase

Increases will be informed by
taking into account internal
benchmarks such as the salary
increase for the general workforce
and will have due regard to the
factors set out In the 'Operation’
column of this table.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY CONTINUED

lllustration of the application of the Policy

The balance between fixed and variable ‘at risk’ elements of remuneration changes with performance. Qur policy results in & significant proportion of ,
remuneration reccived by Executive Directors being dependent on performance. The charts below illustrate how the Policy would function for minimurm,

on target and maximum performance in 2022/23.

Total fixed remyneraton Annudl nonus LTIF Share price growtn
£000 CEO
£2,500
2,262
20%
£2,000
1,801
51% 41%
£1,500 .-
1,107
£1,000 42%
26% 21%
£500 413 21%
100% 37% 23% 18%
£0
Min Target Max Max with
growth

Assumptions for the chart above

-+ Mimimum: comprises fixed pay for the year made up of base salary levels
(applying from 1 Qctober 2022 for Rich Cashin and frorn appointment in
January 2023 for Jos Sclater), the value of pension at 7.5% of annual basic
salary and the estimated value of benefits.

« On-target: bonus achieved at 50% of the maximum cpportunity, i e.
62.5% of salary and with the on-target level of vesting under the LTI?
taken to be 50% of the face value of the award at grant, ie. 75% of salary.

- Maximum: full borus achieved and LTIP vesting in full, ie. 125% of salary
banus pay-out and LTIP awards to the value of 150% of salary

- Share price appreciation of 50% has been assurned for the LTIP awards
under the final 'Max with growth’ scenario

« Amounts relating to all-employee share schemes have, for simplicity,
been excluded from the charts,

Selection of performance measures and targets
Annual bonus

The Executives' annual bonus arrangements are focusec on the
achioverment of the Compary’s short and rmedium-term financial
objectives, with financial measures selected to closely align the
perfarmance of the Executive Directors with the strategy of the business
ang with shareholder value creation. Where non-financial objectives are
set, these are chosen to support the delivery of the longer-term strategic
milestones and which link ta those KPls of most refevance to each
Director's individual resporsibitities.

Details of the measures used for the annual bonus are given in tnis
Remurerarian Report
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1,653
16
1,384 % -
39% 33%
891
30% 32% 27%
398 25%
100% 45% 29% 24%
Min Target Max Max with
growth

Long-Term Incentive Plan

The aim of the LTIP is to motivate Executive Directors and other senior
executives to achieve perfarmance superior to the Company's peers and
to maintain and increase earnings levels whilst at the same time ensuring
that It 15 not at the expense of longer-terrm shareholder returns, This s
reflected in the LTIP's performance conditions which are based on relative
TSR and EPS grewth.

The Committee will review the choice of performance measures and the
appropriateness of the performance targets prior to each LTIP grant.

The TSR measure takes the total return received by the Company’s
shareholders in terms of share price growth and dividends over a
three-year period and compares it with the total returns received by
shareholders in companies within a predetermined and appropriate
comparatar group. The Remuneration Committee's intenticn 1s ta reward
only TSR performance which outperforms the comparator group

The EFS measute is based on growth in adjusted earnings per share
over the perfarmance penod The target range is a sliding scale set at
the ume of award 1aking account of internal and external forecasts, to
encourage centinucus improvement and incentivise the delivery of
stretch performance The Committee will also assess the Group's POCE
performance when zpproving the vesting autcome under the EPS
etement of awards



Flexibility, discretion and judgement

The Remuneration Cemmittee operates the annual bonus and LTIP
according to the rules of each respective plan which, consistent with
market practice, include discretion in a number of respects in relation to
the operation of each plan, Discretions include;

+ who participates in the plan, the quantum of an award and/or payment
and the timing of awards and/or payments;

« determining the extent of vesting;

- treatment of awards and/or payments on a change of control or
restructuring of the Group;

+ whether an Executive Director or a senior manager is 2 geod/bad leaver
for incentive pian purposes and whether the proportion of awards that
vest do su dt the tme of leaving o at the nomal vesting datels),

- how and whether an award may be adjusted in certain crcumstances
{e.g. for a rights issue, a corporate restructuring or special dividends);

« what the weighting, measures and targets should be for the annual
bonus plan and LTIP awards from year 1o year;

« the Committee also retains the ability, within the policy, if events occur
that cause 1t to determine that the conditions set in relation to an
annual bonus plan or a granted LTIP award are no longer appropriate
or unable to fulfil their onginal intended purpose, to adjust targets and/
or set different measures or weightings for the applicable annual bonus
plan and LTIP awards with, in the case of LTIP awards held by Executive
Directors, adjusted performance conditions being not materially fess
difficult to satisfy than the original conditions would have been but for
the relevant event(s);, and

+ the ability o override formulaic outcomes in line with palicy.

All assessments of performance are ultimately subject to the Committee’s
judgement and discretion is retained (o adjust payments in appropriate
circumstances as outhned in this Policy Any discretion exercised (and the
rationale) will be disclosed.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, in approving this Remuneration Policy,
authority was given to the Cempany to honour any previous
commitments entered Into with current or former Directors (such as
the payment of a pension or the unwinding of legacy share schemes or
historical share awards granted before the approval of this policy) that
remain outstanding.

Approach to recruitment remuneration

New Executive Directors will be offered a basic salary in line with the
Policy. This will take Iinto consideration a number of factors including
external market forces, the expertise, experience and calibre of the
individual and current level of pay. Where the Committee has set the
salary of a new appointment at a discount to the market level initially untl
proven, it may receive an uplift or a series of planned increases t bring
the salary 1o the appropriate market position over time For extarnal and
internal appointments, the Comrittee may agree that the Company will
reet appropriate relocation and/or incidental expenses as appropriate.

Annual bonus awards, LTIP awards and pension contributions would not
bein excess of the levels stated in the Policy.

Depending on the timing of the appeintment, the Committee may deem
it appropriate to set different annual bonus performance conditions

for the first performance year of appointment. An LTIP award can be
made shortly following an appointment (assuming the Company 1s not
in a close periad). In the case of an internal appointment, any variable
pay element awarded in respect of the prior role would be allowed 1o
pay out according to its terms, adjusted as relevant to take into account
the appointment

In addition, the Committee may offer additional cash and/or share-based
buyout awards when it considers these to be in the best interests of the
Company {and therefore shareholders) to take account of remuneration
given up at the individual’s former employer. This includes the use

of awards made under 94.2 of the Listing Rules. Such awards would

be capped at a reasonable estimate of the value forgone and would
reflect, as far as possible, the delivery mechanism, time horizons and
whether performance requirements are attached to that remuneraticn,
Shareholders will be informed of any such payments at the time of
appointment and/or in the next published Annual Report.

Forthe appointment of a new Chair or Non-Executive Director, the
fee arrangement would be setin accordance with the approved
Rermuneration Policy.

Service contracts, letters of appointment and policy on
payments for loss of office

Executive Directors

The Company's policy is that Executive Directors should normally be
employed under a contract which may be terminated by either the
Company ar the Executive Director g'ving no more than 12 months’ notice,

The Company may terminate the contract with immediate effect with
or without cause by making a payment in lieu of not'ce by menthly
instalments of salary and benefits, with reductions for any amaunts
received from providing services to others during this period. There are
no obligations to make payments beyond those disclosed elsewhere in
this report,

The Remuneration Committee strongly endorses the obligation on an
Executive Director to mitigate any loss on early termination and will seck
1o reduce the amount payable on termination where itis appropriate to
do so. The Committee will also take care to ensure that, while meeting its
contractual obligatons, poor performance is not rewarded. The Executive
Directors’ contracts contain early termination provisions consistent with
the Policy outlined above,

The Group may pay outplacement and professianal legal fees incurred by
Executives in finalising their termination arrangements, where conadered
appropriate, and may pay any statutory entitlements or settle compromise
claims in connection with a termination of employment, where considered
in the best interests of the Company. Dutstanding savings/shares under
all-employee share plans would be transferred in accordance with the
terms of the plans.

A pro-rated bonus may be paid subject to performance, for the period of
active service only Outstanding share awards may vest In accordance with
the provisions of the various scheme rules.

Under the Deferred Bonus Plan, the default treatment is that any
outstanding awards will contnue on the normal timetable, save for
forfeiture for serious misconduct Clawback and malus provisions will alse
apply. On a change of cantrol, awards will generally vest on the date of a
change of contral, unless the Committee permits (or requires) awards to
roll over into equivalent shares in the acquirer.

Under the LTIP. any outstanding awards will ordinarily lapse; however, in
‘good leaver’ cases the default treatment is that awards will vest subject to
the original performance condition and time pro-ration and the holding
period will normally continue to apply.

For added flexibility, the rules allow for the Committee to decide not to
pro-rate {or pro-rate 1o a lesser extent) if it decides it is appropriate to do
s0, and to allow vesting 1o be triggered at the point of leaving by reference
to performance to that date, rather than waiting until the end of the
performance period. On a change of control, any vesting of awards will be
subject to assessment of performance against the performance conditions
and normally be pro-rated.

Where a buy-out award s made under the Listing Rules then the leaver
provisions would be determined at the time of the award.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Service contracts, letters of appointment and policy on
payments for loss of office continued

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

All Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment rather than
service contracts and are appointed on a rolling annual basis, which may
be terminated on giving three months' notice at any time by either party.

Chair and Non-Executive Director appointments are subject to Board
approval and election by shareholders at each Annual General Meeting

All service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection
at the Company’s registered office.

External appointments

The Campany recognises that its Executive Directors may be invited to
become Non-Executive Directors of other companies. Such Mon-Executive
duties can broaden a Director's experience and knowledge which can
benefit Avon Protection. Subject to approval by the Board, Executive
Directors are allowed to accept Non-Executive appointments, provided
that these appointments are not likely to lead to conflicts of interest,

and the Committee will consider its approach 1o the treatment of any

fees received by Executive Directors in respect of Non-Executive roles as
they arise

Consideration of shareholder views

The Caommittee is committed t@ an ongoing dialogue with shareholders
and welcomes feedback on Directars' rernuneration The Committee seeks
to engage directly with major shareholders and their representative bodies
on changes to the Policy. The Committee also considers sharehalder
feedback received in relation to the remuneration-related resolutions

each year following the AGM. This, plus any additional feedback receved
from time 1o time {including any updates 1o sharehelders remuneraticn
guidelines), 1s then considered as part of the Committee’s annual review of
remuneration policy and its implementation

The policy approved by shareholders was subject to a comprehensive
consultation which elicited feedback from shareholders holding over 65%
of shares in issue, as well as from the main sharehoider representative
bodies, This feedback helped shaped the policy which was approved by
shareholders in January 2021,
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Consideration of employment conditions elsewhere
in the Group

The Committee clasely monitors the pay and conditions of the wider
workforce and the design of the Directors’ Remuneration Policy is
informed by the policy for employees across the Group.

While employees are not formally consulted on the design of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, the Board receives views through a Glabal Employee
Advisory Farum comprising representatives from our Culture Champion
network. Another way in which the Board engages with employees across
the Group on remuneration is through the Employee Opinian Survey,
which includes a section dedicated to pay and benefits The results of this
are shared with the Board,

Differencesin pay policy for Executive Directors
compared to employees more generally

As for the Executive Directors, general practice across the Group is

to recruit employees at competitive market levels of remuneration,
Incentives and benefits to attract and retain employees, accounting for
national and regional talent pools When considering salary increases
for Directors, the Committee will take into account salary increases

and pay and employment conditions across the wider workforce. The
pensian contribution for Executive Rirectors 1s consistent with that for the
general workforce, 36% of employees are able to earn annual bonuses
for delivering exceptional performance, with corporate performance
measures aligned 1o those set for the Executive Rirectors. Allemployees,
including the Executive Directors, have the opportunity to participate in
the tax-approved share incentive plans

There are some differences In the structure of the Remuneration Policy

for the Executive Directors compared 1o that for ather employees

within the organisation, which the Committee believes are necessary to
reflect the differing levels of seniority and responsibility. At senior levels,
remuneration is increasingly long term, and ‘at nsk’ with an increased
ermphasis on performance-related pay and share-based remuneration. This
ensures the remuneration of the Executives is aligned with both the long-
term performance of the Company and the interests of sharehaolders.



ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

Role and composition of the Remuneration Committee
The Board is ultimately accountable for executive remuneration and
delegates this responsibility to the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing and implementing
aremuneration pelicy that supports the Group's strategy and for
determining the Executive Directors’ individual packages and terms

of service together with those of the other members of the Group
Executive management team. When setting the remuneration terms for
Executive Directors, the Committee reviews and has regard to workforce
remuneration and related poficies and rakes close account of the UK,
Corporate Governance Code requirements for clarity, simplicity, risk
mitigation, predictability, proporuonality and alignment to culture.

The Remuneration Committee’s terms of reference are available on the
Company's website and include:

- determining and agreeing with the Board the policy for the
rernuneration of the Company's Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chair and Company Secretary and such other members of the
senior management team as it chooses to consider or is designated to
consider (currently the Group Executive management team), having
regard to remuneration trends across the Group;

« putting in place a remuneration structure that supports strategy and
promotes long-term sustainable success ~ with executive remuneration
aligned to Company purpose and values and clearly linked to the
successful delivery of the Company’s long-term strategy — and
which attracts, retains and motivates executive managerment of the
quality required to run the Company successfully without paying
more thar is necessary, having regard to views of sharcholders and
other stakehaolders,

- reviewing the pay arrangements put in place for the broader workfarce;

- within the terms of the agreed policy, determining the total individual
rernuneration package of each Executive Director including, where
appropriate, bonuses, incentive payments, share opticns and
pENsion arrangernents;

- determining the targets for the performance-related bonus schemes for
the Executive Directors and the Group Executive rnanagement team;

» reviewing the design of all share incentiva plans for approval by the
Board and shareholders;

- for any such discretionary plans, determining each year whether awards
will be made, the overall amount of such awards, the iIndividual awards
to Executive Directors and the Group Executive management team (and
others) and the performance targets to be used; and

+ agreeing termination arrangements for senior executives.

The Committee currently comprises Chloe Ponsonby (Chair), Bindi Foyle
and Victar Chavez. Bruce Thampsan has stepped down from his role on
the Rermuneration Committee during the period of his appointment as
Executive Chair from 1 October 2022,

By invitation of the Committee, meetings are also attended by the Chief
Executive Cfficer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary (who acts
as secretary 1o the Committee), who are consuited on matters discussed
by the Cammittee, unless those matters relate to their own remuneration.
Advice or information is also sought directly from other employees where
the Commitiee feels that such additional contributions will assist the
decision-making pracess.

The Cornmittee is authorised to take such internal and external advice as it
considers appropriate in connection with carrying out its duties, including
the appointment of its own external remuneration advisars. Duning the
periad, the Committee was assisted in its work by FIT Rermuneration
Consultants LLP FIT was appointed in December 2012 and has provided
advice in relation to general remuneration matters and the review of the
remuneration policy. Fees paid to FiITin relation to advice provided to

the Committee during the current period were £51,170 {excluding VAT),
charged on a time/cost basis. FIT also pravided advice to the Company

on technical share plan implementation matters but other than this did
not provide any ather services to the Company. FiT 1s a member of the
Remuneration Consultants Group and, as such, voiuntarily operates under
the Code of Conduct in relation to executive remuneration consulting in
the UK. The Committee is satisfied that the advice it received from FIT was
objective and independent

The Cammittee addressed the following main topics during the
financial period

+ reviewed guidance from investor bodies and institutional shareholders;

- reviewed and approved the remuneration packages for our current
Executive Directors;

- determined the termination arrangements for the departing Chief
Executive Officer and the terms of the incoming Chief Financial
Officer's package;

« approved the annual bonus outcome for the 2021/22 financial period;

« reviewed and confirmed the vesting of the LTIP awards granted in
March 2019; and

- reviewed and approved the terms of the 2022 LTIP awards and
manitored the performance of the outstanding awards against their
performance targets.

Since the end of the 2022 financial peried, the Committee has:

- determined the package for the incorming Chief Executive Officer;

« approved annual bonus outcomes to the Executive Directors and
the Executive Board, following completion of the externat auditin
Novernber 2022 and undertaken a final assessment of the TSR and EPS
performance conditions attached to the March 2020 LTIP awards (based
on performance to 1 Octaber 2022); and

+ agreed the annual bonus structure for the 52 weeks ended
3G September 2023,

Nl
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Single total figure of remuneration for Directors for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (audited)
Directors’ single toral figure of remuneration for the 52 weeks ended 1 Octaber 2022 was as follows:

Basic Fixed Variable
salary Other remuneration Annual remuneration Total
and fees Pension*  benefits* sub-total bonus LTIP? sub-total remuneration
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Current Executive Directors
Rich Cashin' 2022 199 15 s 29 106 - 106 325
Former Executive Directors
Paul McDonald 2022 513 58 7 588 285 - 285 873
2021 500 7 16 591 - 228 228 ED)
Nick Keveth 2022 180 27 10 217 99 - 99 316
o 2021 . 350 -51 16 7 417 ) - 158 158 ?
Non-Executive Directors )
Bruce Thompson 2022 ) 175 ~ - 175 - - - 175
7 202t 154 -~ - 154 - - - 154
Chloe Ponsonby 2022 65 - - 65 - - - 6_‘;
' 2021 ' 67 7 - a7 - 7' 7 67
Bindi Foyle 20227 6Q ~ - 60 - - - 60
oo 57 - o 57 - - - 57
Victor Chavez 2022 50 - - 50 - - - 50
2001 @ - B 2 - . a2
mervaat‘ 2022 i ~ ) - = - - - - 7 -
2021 23 - - 23 - - - 23
David Evans® 2022 - - - B - B N N
2001 24 - - 24 - - - 24

Notes to total figure of remuneration table

1 3 Cashingo ned the Board on 31 Maerch 2022

2 TreLTIF amourts for 2021 relate fe e lorg-temincenrve awad whick was grartec 1n 2019 Tnese f gures Feve been updated “or the or o per o2 Rerwrerat un R2part to eflect the actugl va ue
of veared shares using e share of ce ackievad an the vesting date 6r 20 December 2021 {£11 57, ratnes ar the estimated va Je provided prewicusiy

3 Pau McConald e Ricn Cash nwere members of tie Group's maney purcnase scheme Connbations ¢ the scneme ware fde for Ricn and £4k for 2aul Femar rg peosion coninbuhons waee pad an
3 5alary suop ement Mic< Keveth's contr putioss were paid entirely &5 a 5a acy suzplerment

4 Benegfits for 2022 irclude a ca- zllowance, the cost of private neath Insuarance, crtica L ress cover 4rd execdtve medicd!

5 Pmvervaat and Dav o Evars stepped of the Board or 28 Jaruary 2021 and 2 December 2020 respectrely

Annual bonus for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (audited)

The annual bonus opportunity for Executive Directors for 2022 was 125% of salary and this was based on targets relating to respiratory and head
protection revenue (20%), respiratory and head protection adjusted operating profit (40%), Graup cash conversion {(20%) and the achievement of strategic
objectives {20%)

The targets applying to ach measure and performance against them are set outin the table below:

Threshold Stretch Actual/ % Bonus payable

(0% payable) {100% payable) reported achievement (% of maximum)

Revenue {20%) 5250 0m 5275.0m §263.5m a16% 12 3%

-Adjl,‘.sted cperating pr-ofit [409%) 5310m 5372m 523 4m-7 0 0% G.0%

Eash conversion {20 280 0% 100.0% 7 140 4% 106 0% 200%
ga-teg\c abjectives {20%]) 7 Set outin mare detal below )

Revenue for the year was $253 5 millian which resulted in a partial pay ous uncer this measure Operating prafit was pelow the threshold while the cash
canversion measure was achieved in full
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Rich Cashin's objectives were half based on the scorecard of measures applying to Paul McDonald and Nick Keveth and half based on cbjectives relating
to settting into the rele to reflect his joining partway through the year.,

The strategic element of the bonus for 2022 was based on six broad categories with abjectives assigned to each. The categories and achievements are set

outin the table below:

Head protection: Establish leading position
in head protection by securing contracts and
approvals to support short and rmedium-term
growth of business

Partially met: Orders secured for some but not all contracts tendered.

Outstanding orders for first generation Integrated Head Protection System {IHPS) were completed.
IPS approvals were mostly completed and the first order was received. ACH GEN I programre
tender completed and contract awarded but submission of FAT samples were delayed.

Respiratory protection: Maintain leading giohal
pasition in respiratory protaction

Partially met: Second year of order fulfiiment under the NSPA contract, some of which went 1o Ukraine

.S, DOD requirements met but long term M50 procurement strategy yet to be clarified.

Body and flat armar: Manage the orderly wind-
down of the armor business

Partially met: Wind down plan agreed and final order quantities are being manufactured.
Sale options have been explored.

Operations: Upgrade operational capability to
significantly improve conversion of orders into
revenue on a consistent basis

Partially met: Progress in sales, inventory and operational planning and towards plans for
enhancing the helmet production footprint,

Organisation/overheads: Streamiine organisation
to better reflect strategic priorities and to establish a
sustainable level of overhead cost

Partially met: Overhead reductions well advanced but will not be delivered in full until body and
flat armor business is closed. Organisational structure review underway as part of strategy review
for consideration by new CEQ.

ESG: Finalise the ESG palicy, strategy and
implementation plan, agree with Board and

Partially met: Good progress made on defining the ESG policy but implementation plan requires
further development and not yet commurnicated w shareholders.

commurnicate to shareholders

Objectives within each of the categories were partially met which has resulted in a 60% pay out against the strategic scorecard.

50% of Rich Cashin’s strategic objectives related to his overall performance singe joining in March 2022 (with the other 50% based on delivery of the
objectives in the above 6 categories). The Committee determined that Rich's performance and contribution since joining has been strong, in particular the
leadership of the Executive Board and the wider business shown after it was announced that Paul McDonald would be standing down as CEQ | Therefore,
Rich was adjudged to have achieved an overall score of 80% against his strategic objectives (based on 60% achievement of the objectives set out above
and 100% achievernent relating to his performance since joining).

The Committee believes bonus pay outs of 44.3% of maximum for both Paul McDonald and Nick Keveth and 48.3% of maximum for Rich Cashin are
reflective of the performance of the business over the 12 month pericd. They are also considered appropriate in context of the nil bonus pay out in the
prior period, and the nil vesting of the 2020 incentive award set ocut below,

Incentive awards vesting (audited)

Awards were granted on 17 March 2020 under the LTIR to the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and these are based on three-year
performance targets. Half of the award was subject to a relative TSR condition {measuring performance against the constituents of the FTSE All-Share
excluding investment trusts) and the other half was subject to EPS growth targets,

The TSR measurement period ended on 1 October 2022 The Company’s TSR over this period was confirmed as {35.7)% which ranked the Company below
the median of the peer group and therefore this part of the award will lapse in the 2023 financial period. The Company delivered an adjusted basic EPS of
20 4¢, which was below the threshold growth target. Therefore, this eiement of the award will also lapse

Actual
Weighting Threshold Maximum performance % Vesting
TSR 50% Median Upper quartile Below median 0%
% TSR
Adjusted basic EPS 50% 133.5¢ 162.1¢c 204c¢ 2%
LTIP awards granted in the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (audited)
The table below provides details of share awards made to Paul McDonald on 1 February 2022 and Rich Cashin on 8 March 2022
Number of shares Face value of % vesting End of
Typeofaward  Basis of award underaward’ award (£'000) at threshold performance period
Paul McDonald- Mil cost option 125% of salary 599/3 642 20% (TSR} 31 January 2025 (TSR}
(% {EPS) 30 September 2024 (EPS)
Rich Cashin’ Nil cost option 100% of salary 32,686 350 209 (TSR} 31 January 2025 (TSR}
0% (EPS) 30 Seprember 2024 (EPS)

1 Tre numter of awards was bases on 3 share pnice of £10 71 which was the Co~pany s rve-day average snare price ovar 25 Jzruary 2022 1o 31 anuary 2022
2 Padl Mc dnne g aware was pro-ratec down to 19991 when he steoped down from the Beard cn 30 September 2023 The grant ¢ate face va ue of the remaning 19,9491 shares was 214k

3 RAick Cashon's awdrd upen e ng was reduced ¢ 10005 of salary ta reflecthes jcimirg date of 7 March 2022

The Committee tock into account the prevailing share price at the time of grant and decided to reduce the Chief Executive Officer’s gramt level from /<
of salary 1o 125% of salary to reflect the year-on-year fall in share price. The Chief Financial Officer's grant level was set at 100% of salary which refleczd 7 -
joining part way through the financial year,
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

LTIP awards granted in the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 (audited) continued
The performance conditions for this award will be measured over a thiee-year performance period and are as foliows,

The first performance condition for 50% of the award compares the Company's total sharehalder return (TSR} performance over the performance period
relative 1o a comparator group. The comparator group for the TSR element is the constituents of the FTSE 250 Index (excluding investrment trusts) as at the
start of the performance peniod. No portion of the TSR elemert may vest unless the Compary's TSR performance over the perforrnance period at least
equals the median T5R performance within the comparator group, for which 20% of the TSR element may vest, rising on a straight-line basis to full vesting

of the TSR element for upper quintile or better relative TSR performarice.

The second performance condition for the other 509 of the award 15 based on the Comnpany’s adjusted basic earnings per share [EPS) over the three-year
performance period commencing on 1 October 2021. No portion of the EPS element may vest unless the adjusted EPS for the 2024 financial period fs

at least 100 LS. cents, for which 0% of the EPS element may vest, rising on a straight-line basis to full vesting of the EPS element for EPS of 140 U5, cents
ar better. The EPS element of the awards is subject to a return on capital employed underpin in respect of which the Remuneration Committee retains
discretion to reduce the extent of vesting of the EPS element by regard to the Company’s ROCE performance over the performance period

The Rernuneration Committec also retains a general discretion to reduce the extent of vesting of the awards generally if it considers that the underlying

business performance of the Company does not justify vesting

Directors’ shareholdings and share interests and position under shareholding guidelines (audited)
Beneficial interests of Directors, their families and trusts in ordinary shares of the Company at 1 Qctober 2022 were:

Numbaer of Unvested shares
shares owned subjectto
outright (including performance

connected persons)

conditions?

Shareholding as a
% of salary as at
1 October 2022

Shareholding
guidelines

{200% of salary) met?

Paul McDonald 62,654 70,494 137% NO
Rich Cashir ) ' 0 32,686 o No
-I\I(k Kevethi 7 30468° 2&,237_ N/A, N/A
Bruce Thormpson 11,000 - N/A NAA
Chlog Ponsonby 4,550 - N/7A N/A
Bindi Foyle ) - 500 - NAA NK
MrChavezbi T:[N 5 - N/A N/A
1 TRisfigure ncludes 883 de‘ered sorus shases
2 rwested LT ¥ wnares
3 Numizer of snzres cwned QUINGrT by Nick Xevern are stared as of the Seie o bis 22 rement
Outstanding LTIP awards {audited)
Outstanding
Award held at Granted Vested Lapsed awards at
Award date 2 October 2021 in the period in the period in the period 1 QOctober 2022
Paut McDonald 010222 - 59,973 - 139,982) 19,991
02:02.21 28,153 - - (9.384) 18,769
- 1203 20 1738 _ - - 0738
200319 38,599 - (19,299} (19,300) -
Nick Keveth 0202.21 19,707 - - (8,853} 9,854
- 1703.20 22,058 - - }3,676) 18,383
20.03.1% 26,722 - {13,361} (13,381) —)
Rich Cashin 08.0322 - 32,686 - - 32,686

The outstanding awards are subject to two performance crteria Half the awards are subject toa relative TSR measare and the other half are subject to an

EPS growth conditon

Total Directors’ remuneration for the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 under Schedule 5 {audited)

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Aggregate remuneration, excludirg gains on exercise of share opticns 1,864 1,375
A—g;gate gains on the exercise of share ODtIOF:S 386 1,640
;ggregate contributon 1o defined contrbution pension scheme T 8 5

T Zemsorexert ool srate 50T orsate sre n 2t tme actas 43 a2 Of seuieasnzral s g tre eyt A tate srare o 2

During the pencd pension contributions were aid to defined contnbutior schemes for two Directors (2027 ore Director).
)
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Dilution

The Company reviews the awards of shares made under the all-employee and executive share plans in terms of their effect on dilution limits in any reliing
ten-year period. In respect of the 5% and 10% mits recommended by the Investment Association, in the period of 10 years ending on 1 October 2022, we
issued 300,000 shares in 2013 to satisfy awards under all our share plans, which represents 0.99% of our issued ordinary share capital at 1 October 2022,

it remnains the Company’s practice to use an Employee Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) in order to meet its lizbility for shares awarded under the LTiP.

At 1 Gctober 2022 there were 261,714 shares held in the ESOT which will either be used to satisfy awards granted under the LTIP to date, or in connecticn
with future awards. A hedging committee ensures that the ESOT holds sufficient shares to satisfy existing and future awards made under the LTIP by
buying shares in the market or recommending the Company issues new shares. Shares held in the ESOT do not receive dividends.

Asat 1 October 2022, the market price of Avon Protection plc shares was £11.24 (2021, £19.42). During the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 the highest and
lowest dally closing rmarket prices were £20.74 and £7.3% respectively.

Share Incentive Plan

The Company currently operates the Avon Rubber pl.c. Share Incentive Plan (5IP), approved by shareholders atthe AGM in Fetsruary 2012, A UK. Lax
resident employees of the Company and its subsidiaries are entitled to participate. Under the SIP, participants purchase shares in the Company monthly
using deductions from their pre-tax pay. Paul McDenald and Rich Cashin were not members of the SIP in 2022, Nick Keveth was a member and as at

30 September 2022 had purchased 534 shares through this scheme. On Nick's retirernent from the Company he rerroved his SIP shares frem the scheme
The maximum contribution each month under the SIP is currently £150, a sum which is set by the Government.

Payments to past Directors, including payments for loss of office {audited)

Nick Keveth

Nick Keveth retired from the Board and stepped down from his role as Chief Financial Officer on 31 March 2022 Nick received his salary and contractual
benefits (including pension allowance/contributions) up to the date he ceased employment, 31 March 2022, He did not receive a payment in lieu of notice
and he did not receive any payments by way of compensation for lass of office.

Nick witl receive a pro rata bonus for 6 months worked at 44.3% of maximum and his cycle L LTIP award granted in 2020 will lapse based on performance
1o 30 September 2022. As a good leaver, Nick’s deferred bonus awards will be released on the announcement of the Company’s 2022 annual results
subject to the rules of the plan. His outstanding unvested LTIP awards will vest on their normal vesting dates subject to achievement of performance
criteria and a time pro rata reduction. Any LTIP awards that do vest will have a two-year holding period.

Nick Keveth was a participant in the Avon Rubber Share Incentive Plan (5IP). On his retirement from the Company he was permitted to remove/sell all
shares from the SIP in accordance with the SIP rules and in line with all other employecs, which follow legislation and HMRC guidance for tax advantaged
plans in the LK.

Paul McDonald

Paul McDonald stepped down from the Board and Avon Protection or 30 Soptembser 2022, Paul wall continuc to receive his salary and contractual benefits
{including pension allowance/contributions) up until the end of the contractual notice period on 31 May 2023 These payments in lieu of notice remain
subject to mitigation in the event Paul finds alternative employment.

Paul will receive a full bonus at 44.3% of maximurm and his cycle LLTIP award granted in 2020 will lapse based on performance to 30 Septernber 2022, As a
good leaver, Paul's deferred bonus awards will be released on the anncuncement of the Company's 2022 annual results subject to the rules of the plan. His
outstanding unvested LTIP awards will vest on their normal vesting dates subject to achievement of performance criteria and a tme pro rata reduction,
Any LTIP awards that da vest will have a two-year holding period.

Service contracts and letters of appointment
The table below summarises key details in respect of each Executive Director's contract

Company Executive

Contract date notice period notice period

Paul McDonald 14 February 2017 12 months 12 months
Nick Keveth T o 9 May 2017 12 months 12 months
Rich Cashin 6 January 2022 ‘ 12 months 12 months

Bruce Thompson was appointed as Executive Chair on 1 October 2022 Given this was an interim appointment anly, he was not given an Executive
contract of employment.

The date of each Non-Executive appoimtment is set out below, together with the date of their last re-election by shareholders.

Date of initial Date of

appointment last re-election
Chloe Ponsonby 1 March 2016 29 January 2021
Bruce Thompson T 1 March 2020 29 January 2021_
Brdifoye o - - T May 2020 29 January 2021
\aor Chavez 1 Decernber 2020 29 January 2021

Afl service contracts and letters of appointment are availlable for inspection at the Company's registered office
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Cther appointments
Rich Cashin 1s not currently appointed as a Nan-Executive Director of any company outside the Group.

Total shareholder return performance graph

The following graph illustrates the total return, in terms of share price growth and dividends an a notional investment of £100 in the Company over the
last ten years relative 1o the FTSE 250 Index {excluding investment trusts) and the FTSE All-Share Index {excluding investment trusts). These indices were
chesen by the Remureration Commitiee as d competitive indicator of general UK, market performance tor companies of a broadly similar size.

Total shareholder return performance graph
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Chief Executive Officer’s remuneration
The total remuneration figures, Including annual bonus and vested LTIF awards (shown as a percentage of the maximum that coutd have been achieved),
for the Chuef Executive Officer for each of the last ten financial periods are shown in the table be'ow

Peter Slabbert retired on 30 September 2015, Rob Renmie stood down from the Board and was replaced by Paul McDonald on 15 February 2017, Paul
MiDoenald stepped down as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2022, !

CEO single figure Annual bonus
of total pay-out against Long-term
remuneration maximum incentive
Financial period CEO £000 opportunity vesting
2022 Paul McDonald 873 44% 0% ‘
2021 Paul McDonald 819 0% 7 0% '
2?.20 Paul McDonald ) 1686 66% 100%
2013 Paul McDanald a8 sse 80%
2018 B Paul McDonald 7 i34 80% 8450
2017 Paul McDonald ) 663 871% Qé‘}-é_
i}l? Rob Rermme 213 7 57% -
016 Rob Rennie 7 aga 529 -
2015 Peter Slabbert 1,676- 919% 100%
E Peter Slabbert 1529 1%, 96%
27OT3 Peter Slabbert 1,269 i 86% 1000; ‘

1 ~Coadgs ETumerarar ozl

Q0 CTeTTC MEanne ntmarta
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Percentage change in remuneration of Directors compared with other employees

The following table shows the percentage change in each Executive and Non-Executive Director’s remuneration compared with the average change for
all employees of the Company tor the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022, Changes tor prior peniods are also shown which are buillding up over time to cover
a rolling five-year period.,

Salary/fee Pension and other benefits Annual bonus

2022 2021 2020 2022 2021 2020 2022° 2021 2020
Paul McDonald 2.8% 22.0% 5% (17.6)% 152% 54.9% N/A (100.0)% 257%
Nick Keveth {48.6)% 22 8% 5.6% (44.8)% 13.6% 37.2% N/A (100.00% 26.4%
Rich Cashin N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Bruce Thompson 13.6% 5417% N/A h N/A N/A MN/A N/A N/A N/A
Chloe Ponsonby (3.0)% 19.6% 8.8% N/A N/A N/ZA NZA - WN/’A N/A
Bindi Foyle? 5.3% 2353% N/A o N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/
Victor Chavez? 19.0% A& N/A N/A N/A NAA NAA N/A NAA
Pirn Vervaat? N/A (58.9)% 0.0% N/A N/A N/A N/A NZA N/A
David Evans? N/A (82.9)% 0.0% N/A N/A (100.0)% N/A N/A ) N/A
All employees? 3.2% 47% 50%  3.9% 6.3% 6.9% NA  (10001% 38.2%

Brace Thompson was aupairtes ds Chairen 2 Decermnber 2020
Binci Foyle was eppointed to the Board as Nen-Sxecut’ve [irector watk effect froem 1 May 2020 and took over as Chai’ of me Audit Committee on 29 .aruary 2021

wictor Chavez was appointed o the Beare with effect f-om 1 Becember 2020

Bow

Pim Yarvaa: and Davic Evdns stepped off the 3oarz on 29 January 2021 and 2 ODecember 202C respectively.

5 Asthe only Avon Protection plc emprayaes are the Chief Zxecut ve Cfficer and the Chief Sinanc al Officer, camparat ve figures for all U K employees of the Group have Been set out on a vo antary
basis Te aid companson, the greup of employees se ected are those full ume J K employees wno were employed over the complete two-year pengd

& In 2C21 no nonuses were payabie to Directors or employees, meaning percentage changes are not appl'cakle for 2022

Chief Executive Officer to employee pay ratio
The table below sets out the ratio between the wtal pay of the Chief Executive Officer and the total pay of the employees at the 25th, 50th (median) and
75th percentiies of the LK. workforce.

Financial period Method 25th percentile Median 75th percentile
2022 A 361 281 190

2021 A 301 291 201

* The 2021 figure bas oeer updated from e fguie shown Las” year te reflect the acrua value of vested shases, rather thar the esumated value Jsez o calculare me fiqures last year

The 25th, 50th and 75th percentile ranked individuals have been identified using Option A in accordance with the reporting regulations, selected on the
basis that this provides the most robust and statistically accurate means of identifying the relevant employees. The day by reference to which the 25th,
50th and 75th percentile employees were determined was 1 Qctober 2022. The Chief Executive Officer pay figure 1s the total remuneration figure as set
outin the single figure table and equivalent figures (on a full-time equivalent basis) have been calculated for the relevant 25th, 50th and 75th percentiie
employees,

The total pay and benefits figures used to calculate the ratios for each of the 25th percentile, median and 7Sth percentile employees are set out below:
Financial period 25th percentile Median 75th percentile

2022 124,460 £30.M9 £46,882

The salary element for each of these figures is set out below:
Financial period 25th percentile Median 75th percentite

2022 £22,896 £28,828 £42,590

The Comrittee is satisfied that Chief Executive Officer remuneration is reasonable and consistent with the Company's wider policies on employee pay,
reward and progression; see page 96 for further detals,
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED

ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION CONTINUED

Relative importance of spend on pay

The foltowing table shows the change in Group expenditure between the current and previous financiat periods on remuneration and associated costs
far all employees globally, set aganst distributions to shareholders and other uses of profit or cash flow, being profits retained within the business,
investments in research and development and other capital expenditure.

2022 2021
m $m % change
Overall expenditure on pay (note 6.1) 82.7 780 0.0%
Dividends i 13.4 - 120 - 10.7%
Loss retained {loss for the pernod less dividends and share buyback) (33.4) (37.7) 11 4%
R&D expenditure (including capitalised deve‘lgapmemt costs) 10.9 191 o 429)%
Other capital expenditure {excluding capitalised development cosrts) Bj 16.6 (81 3%

Implementation of policy for the 52 weeks ended 30 September 2023

Basic salary
Rich Cashin's base salary will be £358,750, an increase of 2 5% The wider workforce increase was between 5% and 8%, with the hourly paid workforce

receiving 8%.

2022 2023
£ £
Jos Sclarer - 526,594
Rich Cashin 350,000 358,750
Jos Sclater wiil join the Board as Chief Executive Officer on 16 January 2023
Non-Executive Director fees
There are no changes to Non-Executive Director fees,
2022 2023
£ £
Chair ) 175,000 175,000
Non-Executive Director 50,00C 50,000
Committee Chair 10,000 10,000
Senior Independent Director 10,000° 10,000

*  Thereisa max Mamadzimonal ‘ee of £13000 “the zen ar Irdepe-~cent Jirector a sc chars  Cammi tes

Benefits
Bencfts remain urchanged and include a car allowange, the cost of orivate ~ealth insurance, Ife insurance, critical IIness insurance and executive medical.

Pension
The Executive Directors receive a contribution towards pension of 75% of basic salary, paid either as a non-pensionable salary supplement or delivered
through the Group’s money purchase scheme. This contribution rate is in line with the UK workforce rate.

Annual benus
For the 2023 financial pencd, the maximum opportunity urder the annual bonus plan will be 125% of base salary for bath Executive Directors 25% of the
total bonus payment will be deferred into shares for two years.

Boruses will be based an Group revenue (20%}, Group operating profit (40%}, a metric based on cash generated by the business (20%} and the
achievernent of strategic objectives (20%) The actual targets are commercially sensitive and will be disclosed on a retrospective basis.

2023 LTIP awards
The Committee expedcts to make LTIP awards 10 senior executives in 2023,

Itis expected that the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer will receive awards of 175% and 150% of salary each, respectively. 50% of the
awards will be subject 10 a refative TSR condition versus the censtituent of the FTSE 250 excluding Investment Trusts and 50% will be subject to an EPS
measure for finandial pericd 2025 The details of the targets and measures 1o be applied will be communicated in the accomoanying RNS when the LTiP
awards are made The EPS elernent of the award 15 subject to 2 ROCE underpin in which the Remuneration Committee retains discretion 1o reduce the
extenrt of vestng of the EPS elemert by regard to tne Comoary's ROCE performance or progress over the parformange period.
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Statement of shareholder voting on the Remuneration Report
The shareholder vote on the Remuneration Report for the 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021 at the AGM which took place on 28 January 2022 was

as follows:
Votes for Total {excluding
{including Votes against withheld and third
Resolution discretionary) % for (excluding withheld) % against party discretionary Withheld
Approval of the Directors’
Rermuneration Report 22,486,438 99.16% 189,361 0.84% 22,675,799 8,058

This Rermunieration Report has been approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by:

Chloe Ponsonby
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

22 November 2022
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DIRECTORS® REPORT

The Directors submit the Annual Report and audited financial statements
of Avon Protection pic {the Company’) and the Avon Protection group of
companies ('the Group') for the year ended 1t October 2022, The Company
Is a public limited company incorporated and dorniciled in England and
Wales with company registiation number 32965, The Company's subsicdiary
undertakings, including those located cutside the UK, are listed in note
7.3 of the financial statements

Strategic Report

The Strategic Report, which contains a review of the Group's business
{including by reference to key performance indicators), a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, and commentary an
likely future developments is set out on pages 10 to 69 and is incorporated
into this Directors’ Repart by reference.

Financial results and dividend

The Group statdtory loss for the period after taxation amounts 1o $7.6
million {2021:ioss $25.6 million). Full details are set out in the Consclidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income an page 127,

Anintenm dividend of 14.3 U S cents per share (converted to 11.88p) was
paid in respect of the year ended 30 Septernber 2022 (2021- 10 34p).

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 306 U.5. cents per share,
wihich will be converted into GBP prior to payment to shareholders (2021:
22 51p) resulting in a total dividend distribution per share for the year to
30 Seprember 2022 of 449 1S cents per share (2071, 44 96).

Share capital

The Cormpany only has one class of share capital, which comprises
ordinary shares of £1 each. On 28 January 2022, the Company announced
a Share Buyback Programme, which concluded on 13 April 2022 following
the purchase of 765,098 shares. The Board has no presentintention of
purchasing further shares under the share Buyback Programme, As at 22
Navember 2022 the Company has 30,258,194 shares in issue, with 765,098
held in treasury, and nao shares were 1ssued during the year All shares
forming part of the ordinary share capital have the sarme rights and carry
one vote each. There are no unusual restrictions on the transfer of a share
Further details of the shares in issue during the financial vear are set out in
note 5.5 of the finanual stater-ents

The full rights and obligations attaching to the Company’s shares as
well as the powers of Directars are set out in the Company's Articles

of Association ('the Articles’), copies of which can be obrained from
Companies House or by writing to the Company Secretary, Shareholders
are entitled to receive the Company’s reports and accounts, to attend
and speak at general meetings, to exercise voting rights in person or by
appointing a proxy and 1o receive g dividend where declared or paid
out of profits available for that purpose. There are no restrictions on the
transfer of issued shares or on the exercise of voting rights attached to
them, except where the Company has suspended their voting rights

or prohibited therr transfer following a fallure to respond o 2 notice to
shareholders under sectian 793 of the Comparnies Act 2006, or where the
holder s precluded fror transferring or voting by the Financial Services
Authority's Listing Rules or the City Code on Takeovers and Mergers,

The 261,714 shares held in the name of the Employee Share Ownership
Trust are held as a hedge agairst awards previously made or to be made
pursuant to the Long-Term Incentive Plan and are held on terms which
provide voting nights to the Trustee

The Company 1s not aware of any agreements between its shareholders
which may restrict the transfer of their shares o1 the exercise of their
voting rights, the arly except on to this baing that the Trustees of the two
Employee Share Ownersh.p Trusts have waned their nights to dividends.

Atthe Company’s last AGM held on 28 January 2022, shareholders
authornsed the Company to make market purchases of up to 3,102,329
of the Company's issued ordinary shares. 765,098 shares were purchased
under this autharity duning the year, A resoiution will be put to
sharehalders at the forthcarming AGM to renew this authority.
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The Directors require authority to allot unissued share captal of the
Company and to disapply shareholders’ statutory pre-emption rights.
Such authorities were granted at the 2022 AGM and resolutions 1o renew
these authornties will be proposed at the 2023 AGM; see explanatory
notes on pages 173 to 174, No shares were allotted under this authority
during the year.

Substantial shareholdings
As at 1 October 2022 the following shareholders held 38 or more of the
Company's issued share capital,

Alantra EQMC Asset Management SGIIC SA 10.43%
ﬁempen Capital Manaéemem Ny 967/%
Fidelity Management & Research Com/px - & 37%
Royal Londen Asset Manag?n;; Limited 383%
The Vanguard Group, mi T 3.65%
Hargreaves Lansdown Stackbrokers 3.580/;
Schroder Investment Management Limited 3 38%_
Martin Currie Investrnent Manag?em Limited 3.25%
m Advisors-LLC T 3.25%

Significant agreements - change of control

The anly significant agreements to which the Company is a party which
take effect, alter or terminate upon a change of control of the Company
following a takeover bid are the Company's:

- Revolving credit facllity agreement

- Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘the Plan’)

The unsecured revolving credit facility of $200 million provided by Barclays
Bank PLC, Comerica Bank Inc, Fifth Third Bank MNA, National Westminster
Bank plc, CIC and Bank of Ireland contains a provision which, in the event
of a change of control of the Company, gives each lending bank the

right to cancelits commitments to the Company and to declare all the
outstanding amounts and accrued interest owed to such lending bank
immediately due and payable If a lending bank does not exarcise this nght
within 15 business days of being notified of the change of control, it shall
not be able to cancel its commitments ar require repayment of Its share

of the amounts outstanding under the facility in respect of such change

of contrel,

A change of control will be deemed to have occurred if any person
ar group of persons acting in concert {as defined in the City Code on
Takeovers and Mergers) gains direct or indirect cortrol of the Company

Lindar the rules of the Plan, an a takeaver a prapartion of each
outstanding grant will vest. The number of shares that vest is to be
determined by the Remunerat'on Committes, including by reference to
the extent o which the performance candtion has been satisfied and the
number of months that have passed since the award was made

Itis also possible that the trustee of the persian plan would seek to review
the current fund ng arrangements and aeficit recovery plan as part of or
following a change of cantrol, particularty if that resulted in a weakening of
the employer covenant

The Comparny does rot have agreements with any Director or employee
that would provide cormpensation for loss of off ce or employment
resulting from a change of control, except in relation to the Long Term
Incentive Plan as described above.



Directors

The current Directors as at 22 Novemnber 2022 and therr biographies are
shown on pages 74 and 75. Nick Keveth and Paul McDonald stepped down
from the Board on 31 March 2022 and 20 Septernber 2022 respectively.
Rich ("ashin was appointed Chief Financial Officer on 31 March 2022, los
Sclater will join the Board as Chief Executive Officer with effect from 16
January 2023,

According to the Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to
election by shareholders at the first AGM following their appointment, and
to re-election thereafter at intervals of no more than three years. In line
with best practice reflected in the UK. Corporate Governance Code, all
current Directors will be standing for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM to be held on 27 January 2023,

The remuneration of the Directors including their respective shareholdings
n the Company 15 set out In the Remuneration Report on pages 86 to 105,

The Company’s rules about the appointment and replacement of
Directars, together with the powers of Directors, are contained in the
Artictes. Changes to the Articles must be approved by special resolution of
the shareholders.

Directors’ and Officers’ indemnity insurance

In accordance with the Company’s Articles and subject to the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006 ('the Act’), the Company maintains, at its expense,
Directors’ and Officers’ insurance to provide cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors. This was in force throughout the financial year and
remains in force as at the date of this report.

The Company’s Articles allow the Company to provide the Directors with
funds to cover the costs incurred in defending legal proceedings. The
Company is therefore treated as providing an indemnity for its Directors
and Company Secretary which is a qualifying third-party indemnity
provision for the purposes of the Act,

Conflicts of interest

During the year no Director held any berieficial interest in any contract
significant 1o the Company’s business, other than a contract of
employment. The Company has procedures set out in the Articles for
managing conflicts of interest. Should a Director become aware that they,
or their connected parties, have an interest in an existing cor proposed
transaction with the Group, they are required to notify the Board as soon
as reasonably practicable.

Research and development

The Group continues to utilise its technical and materials expertise to
remain at the forefrant of innovative technology and produce specialist
products and services to maximise the performance and capabilities

of its custorners. The Group maintains its links to key universities in the
WS and UK. and continues to work with new and existing customers
and suppliers to develop its knowledge and product range. Total Group
expenditure on research and development in the year was $10.9 million
(2021: 519.1 milhian), fursher details of which are conta ned in the Strategic
Report on page 59,

Corporate governance

The Company's statement on corporate governance can be found in

the Corporate Governance Report on pages 76 to 79 The Corporate
Governance Report forms part of this Directors’ Report and is incorporated
into it by cross-reference.

Stakeholder engagement

The Board factors stakeholder opinions and feedback into its decisions to
ensure the impact on key stakeholders’ needs and concerms is considered.
More information on how the Board engages with stakeholders can be
found In the Section 172 Staternent on pages 38 to 41,

Employee share schemes and plans

The Group encourages its employees 10 share in the future success of the
Group and operates three share-based incentive plans. The Avon Rubber
Share Incentive Plan (SIP) is open to all efigible U K. employees. Under

the SIP participants are able to purchase shares in the Company monthly
using deductions from their pre-tax pay. The Avon Rubber Employee
Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) 15 open o all eligible WS, employees. Under
the ESPP participants are able to purchase shares in the Cormpany at a
discounted rate from payroll deductions. The Avon Rubber Lang-Term
incentive Plan (LTIP) is designed to align Executive Directors’ and senior
employees’ interests with those of shareholders and to incentivise the
delivery of sustainable earnings growth and superiar shareholder returns,
Discretionary awards are granted under the LTIP over a fixed number of
shares by reference to salary, with awards ardinarily vesting, subject to
meeting performance criteria, on the third anniversary of the grant date.

Environmental and corporate social responsibility
Matters relating to environmental and corporate social responsibility
including reference to our policy on diversity are set outin the new
Sustainability Report on pages 42 to 55.

Greenhouse gas emissions
The disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions required by law are
included in the new Sustainability Report on page 49.

Political and charitable contributions

No political contributions were made during the yvear or the prior year.
Contributions for charitable purposes amounted to $108,403 (2021
$45,132) consisting of nurercus small donations to various community
charities In Wiitshire, Maryland, Michigan, New Hampshire, California,
Ohio and Kentucky, along with sponsership of Bath Rugby's community
programmes.

Policy on employee disability

Avon Pratection provides support, training and development
opportunities to all our employees irrespective of any disabilities they may
have. We give full and fair cansideration to disabled applicants, and where
an existing employee becornes disabled during their employment, we
will make every effort to enable them to continue their employment with
Avon Protection in their original ar an alternative role

Financial instruments

An explanation of the Group policies on the use of financial instruments
and financial risk management objectives is contained in note 54 of the
financial staternents.

Independent auditor

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’
Report confirm that, so far as they are each aware, there is no retevant
audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware, and each
Director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Director
to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Company's auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

KPMG LLP has expressed its willingress to continue in office as
independent auditor and a resolution to re-appoint It and authorising the
Board to agree its remuneration will be proposed at the AGM.

Annual General Meeting

The Company’s AGM will be held at our Hampton Park West facility,
Semington Road, Melksham, Wiltshire SN12 8NB, ont 27 January 2023 at
10.30am. Registration will be from 10.00am The Notice of the AGM and #.:
explanation of the resolutions to be put to the meeting are set outin tr -
Notice of Meeting and can be found on pages 172 1o 176,
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DIRECTORS' REPORT CONTINUED

Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the
Annual Report and the financial statements

The Directors are responsitle for preparing the Annual Report and the
Group and Parent Company financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and Parent
Company financial statements for each financial year Under that law they
are required to prepare the Group financial staternents in ;accordance with
UK. adepted International Accounting Standards.

Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Gioup and Parent Company and of their profitor
loss for that period. In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company
financial staternents, the Directors are required to:

« salect sutabie accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

« make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable, relevant
and rehable;

+ for the Group financial statements, state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with LLK. adopted International
Accounting Standards;

- for the Parent Company financial statements, state whether applicable
UK. accounting standards have been followed, subject 1o any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

« assess the Group and Parent Company's abiiity to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and

« use the going cancern basis of accounting unless they either intend to
liguidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate atcounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain the Parent Company's transactions
and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position
of the Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial
staterments comply with the Companies Act 2006.

They are responsible for such internal control as they deternine is
necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have
general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonabily open to them
to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect frauct and
other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for
preparing & Strategic Repart, Directors' Report, Directors’ Remuneration
Report and Corporate Governance Statement that compilies with that law
and those reguiations The Directors are respansible for the maintenance
and integnty of the corporate and financial infarmation incuded on the
Company's website Legislation in the UK, governing the preparation

and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
ather jurisdictions

I accordance with Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule 41148, the
financial statements will form part of the annual financial repert prepared
using the single etectrenic reporting format under the TO Z3EF Regulat’on
The Auditor's Report cn these financial statements provides no assurance
over the ESEF formart.
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Directors’ confirmations
Each of the Directors, whose names and functions are listed on pages /4
and 75, confitms that 1o the best of their knowledge:

+ the financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable
set of acceunting standards, give a true and fair view of the assets,
Habilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole;

- the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report include a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the position of
the issuer and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken
as a whole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face; and

- the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whole, 15 fair, balanced
and understandable, and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Company’s position and performance,
business model and strategy.

The Directors’ Report and Responsibifities Staternent were approved
by the Board of Directors on 22 November 2022 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Bruce Thompson
Executive Chair

22 Novemnber 2022



WHAT HAS ENCOURAGED ME TO WORK FOR AVON
PROTECTION FOR OVER 156 YEARS? IT WOULD HAVE
TO BE THE PEDOPLE THAT SURROUND ME, | ENJOY
WORKING WITH ANDO HELPING OTHERS TO MEET
OUR TARGETS. | AM PROUD OF THE LIFE-SAVING
PRODUCTS WE MANUFACTURE, AND | STRIVE

TO ACHIEVE ZERO REJECTS.

Adam Freeland
Production Operator
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

The Directors assess the operating performance of the Group based on adjusted measures of EBITDA, operating profit, net finance costs, 1axation and
earnings per sharc, as well 35 other measures not defined under IFRS including orders received, closing arder book, EBITDA margin, cash conversion,
return on capital employed, net deot excluding lease hazilities, and organ ¢ constant currency equivalents for relevant metrics. These measures are
collectively described as Adjusted Performance Measures (APMs) in this Annual Report.

The Directors believe that the APMs provide a useful comparison of business trends and performance, The APMs exclude exceptional items considered
unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group The term adjusted is not defined under IFRS and may not be comparable with similarly
tittled measures used by other companies.

The Group uses these measures for planning, budgerting and reporting purposes and for its internal assessment of the operational performance.

ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The following table summarises the statutory and adjusted prefit and loss account measures for the period together with the adjustments made to each
fine itern.

52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021
Adjusted Adjustments Tatal Adjusted Adjustments Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m

Continuing operations
E‘nue | 271.-9 - 2719 2483 - 424—8-;
Eost of sates - (192.1) (1.6) {193.7) (165 4) 4.9 (?6;5)
Gross profit 798 (1.6) 78.2 329 4n 788
Selling and distribution costs (26.0) - (26.0} 22.2) - (22‘2Jl
Giencral and édmfnistraﬁve expeéses o (43.7) (10.6) {54.3) ' {38.7) ) (46.G) (855
Eperating prafitl(ioss) 10.1 (12.2) 2.1} 220 (51.0) (29.0)
EBITDA 255 1.2 243 376 90 466
Depreciatior, amortusation and impairment {15.4) (11.0} (26.4) {15.6) (60.0) (75 é)
Operating profit/(less) (note 1) 10.1 7 {12.2) (2.1} 220 {51.0)
Net finance costs {note 2) 4.0 (2.4) (6.4) (3.1) (3.5 (6.6)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 6.1 (14.6) 18.5) 189 (54.5) (356
Taxation {note 3) ) Q1 2.8 29 w3y R} A

Profit/(oss) for the period from
continuiNg eperabions 6.2 (11.8} (5.6) 186 430 {24.5)

Discontinued operations - |oss

frtom discontinued operat ons (note 4 - (2.0) (2.0) - an (n
Profit/(loss) for the period (nore 5) 6.2 (13.8) (7.6 186 44.2) [(2568)
Basic (loss}/earnings per share 20.4c (45.5¢) (25.1¢) 60 6¢ (144.1¢) (83 5¢)
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share 20D.4c¢ {45.5¢) {25.1¢) &0.6¢C {14470 18350
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1 Adjustments to operating loss

Adjusted operating profit excludes exceptional items considered unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group. Transactions are classified
as exceptional where they relate to an event that falls outside of the underlying trading activities of the business and where individually, or in aggregate,
they have a material impact on the financial statements,

2022 201
sm $m

Operating loss (FR)] {29.0)
Amortisation of acquired intangibles’ 6.8 4.2
Items related to armor =
Impairment of acquired intangibles o - 1.3
frmpairment of development expenditure - 0.2 81
Impalrment of right of use assets o - 17
Impairment of plant and machinery - 139
Impairment of leasehold improvements o - 01
Inventory provisions n 1.6 1.7
Release of contingent consideration _ (3.9) (]«57)
Transaction costs 0.6 -
Restructuring costs : 1.3
Net (credit)/charge related to armor (0.2) 311
Restructuring costs (including $0.4m right of use asset impairment) 20 -
Impairment of non-current assets {excluding $O4rﬁ -r\'ght of use asset impairment} " 36 -
Inventory fair value acquisition accounting adjustment ) - 24
Acquisition costs B - 26
Write down of brought forward capitalised cloud c;)mputing costs - 0.7
Other adjusting items 5.6 57
Adjusted operating profit 10.1 220
Depreciation a1 0.4
Other impairment charges o 0.4 G4
Other amortisaticn charges - 5.9 4.87
Adjusted EBITDA 255 376

1 MNore of the amartisation charges for acquires irtangihle assels relate 10 the armor business following the prc” penod imparmeants (2021 §7 3 miller;

Amortisation of acquired intangibles
Amortisation charges for acquired intangible assets of 56 8 million {2021: 514.2 million) are considered exceptional as they do not change each period
based on underlying business trading and perfarmance.

ltemns related to armor

On 12 November 2021 the Group announced the next generation VTP ESAP! body armor product had failed first arucle testing. This fallowed a similar
result 1n December 2020 for the legacy DLA ESAPI body armor product. It was alsa announced that the Group was experiencing further delays to
achieving final product approval for the DLA ESAPI product.

The failure of the VTP ESAPI body armor product was considerad an adjusting event that provided evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting periad. As such the Group performed an impairment review of assets at 2 October 2021 removing all future revenue for VTP ESAPI body armor
The review also incorporated reduced revenue expectations for DLA ESAP

The review resulted in total non-current asset impairments of $45.1 million in respect of assets relating 1o the armor business acquired from 3M as part of
the ballistic protection acquisition. ln addition, inventory provisions of $1.7 million were recognised against VTP ESAPl armor materials.

Offsetting these charges, a gain of $15.7 million was recognised to reduce the net present value of the contingent consideration payable to 3M as a result
of the reduced revenue expectations fram the DLA ESAP! body armor contract,

In 2022 revenue expectations from the DLA ESAP. body armor cantract have further reduced, resulting in an additional gain of $3.9 million on release of
the remaining net present value of the contingent consideration payable, Offsetting this credit, inventary provisions of $1 & million were recognised in
respect of raw materials held for the DLA ESAPI body armeor contract. In addition, armar-specific development expenditure was impaired by $0.2 million
for a small number of reclassificd assets {note 31).

The impairment charges, provisions and related release of contingent consideration resulted from changes in recoverable amounts and expected future
payrments ansing from assumptions of forecast trading. As such they are considered unrelated to trading performance.
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SFHNSYIW IDNYWHO4HId JALLYNHI LY



ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

1 Adjustments to operating profit continued

Armor transaction costs

Transaction costs of $0.6 million (2021 $ml} related to a potential sale of the armor busingss in the first half of 2022, This opportunity is ne langer
considered to be in the best interest of shareholders. These costs are considered exceptional as they arc specific to the wind-daown of the armor business
and do not form part of the underlying business trading and performance.

Restructuring costs

Restructuring casts related to the overhead reduction programme were 53.3 million {2021: $nil). These costs include a $0.4 millian right of use

asset impairment refating to the closure of one of our US offices and $0.2 million of professional fees relating to the strategic review of the arrmor
business. These costs are considered exceptional as they relate 1o a specific programme which does not form part of the underlying business trading
and perfarmance.

Impairment of non-current assets

Impairment reviews for the Group's non-current assets resulted in 93.6 million exceprional impairment losses (2021 $nil) a3 the carrying value of certain
cash-generating units exceeded estimated recoverable amounts, Further details are provided in note 3.1. The impairment losses are significant items
resulting from changes in assumptions for future recoverable amounts, As such they are considered unrelated to 2022 trading performance,

In the period the Graup alko recognised $04m other non-curent assetimpairments that were not considered exceptional on the basis of materiality
(note 3.1}

Acquisition costs and accounting adjustments
These charges resulted from twao significant acquisitions by the Group, which are considered exceptional items as they are material and unrelated to the
underiying trading activities of the business.

+ 2021 acquisition costs of 52.6 million relating to the acquisitions of Team Wendy and the 3M ballistic protection business

= Acquigition accounting adjustment of 32.4 rmillion to account for acquired inventory at the underlying hustorical cost before the fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition.

Write down of brought forward capitalised cloud computing costs

In 2021 50 7 million brought forward capitalised costs relating to dloud computing arrangements were written down. This followed updated guidance
from the IFRS Interpretations Committee. The change in guidance was unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group; hence, the write
down was treated as exceptional. Costs associated with configuration and custamisation of cloud computing arrangements after 26 September 2020 have
been expensed as incurred and included within adjusted performance measures.

2 Adjustments to net finance costs
Ad,justed net finance costs exclude exceptional items considered unrelated to the underlying trading performance of the Group

2022 2021

sm $m

Net finance costs 6.4 6.6
Defined benefit peﬁsion unwind discount (1.3) H
Cemﬂa’;genr consideration u;w'\nd discount - (AR} 22
Adjusted net finance costs ) 4.0 31

= $1.3 millon {2021: 51.3 million) unwind of discounting on the UK. defined benefit pension scheme liability is treated as exceptional given the scheme
relates to employees employed prior to 31 January 2003 and was closed to future accrual of benefits on 1 October 2009 (note 6 2).

$1.1 million 2021 $2.2 million) unwind of discounting on contingent consideration related to the acquisition of the 3M ballistic protection business.

3 Adjustments to taxation
Adjustments to taxation represent the tax effects of the adjustments 1o operating profit and retfinance costs Adjusting items do not have significantly
different effective tax rates, with the overall effective rate of 19% (2021 219} approximating statutory rates applicable

4 Loss from discontinued operations
The adjusted profit measures exclude the result fraom discortnued operations relatng r the divestrnent af mukeite | InterPuls

During the period, the Group incurred a loss after tax of 320 milhion on these discontinued operations (2021 loss after tax of 17 millign)
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5 Adjustments to loss for the period

2022 20
$m Sm
Loss for the period {7.6) (25.6)
Amertisation of acquired intangible assets 6.8 142
Impairments related to armorassets_ 0.2 451
Armor inventory provisions 1.6 1.7
Release of contingent considera&?}n o o (3.9 o ) “M({S.'?)
Defined benefit pension unwind discount 1.3 13
Contingent consideration unwind discount 1.1 22
P.e:tructﬁrlng cosg- T o 33 ) -
Impairment of non-current assets 3.6 -
Transaction costs 7 0.6 -
Acqguisition costs - 26
Inventory fair value acquisition accounting adju&ment 7 - 24
Write down of brought forward capitalised cloud computing costs - 07
Tax on exceptional items 7 (2.8) m.4
Loss from discontinued operations 2.0 1.1
Adjusted profit for the period 6.2 186
6 Adjusted earnings per share
Weighted average number of shares 2022 2021
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue used in basic calculation {thousands) 30,308 30,669
Potentially dilutive shares (weighted average) (thousands) 227 189
Diluted number of ordinary shares (weighted average) {thousands) 30,529 30,858
2022 2021
Adjusted continuing earnings pershare $ cents $ cents
Basic 20.4c 606
Diluted 20.4c 60.6
7 Net debt
2022 2021
$m $m
Cash and cash equivalents 9.5 14.1
Bank loans ) (53.7; {40.9)
Net debt excluding lease liabilities (44.2) (26.8)
Lease liabilities {23.8) 29.1)
Net debt including lease liabilities 68.0) (55.9)
8 Adjusted dividend cover ratic
2022 2021
$ cents $ cents
Interim dividend 14.3 4.3
iinal dividend 30.6 3_0._6_
Total dividend 44.9 449
Adjusted basic earnings per share 204 60.6
Adjusted dividend cover ratio 0.5 times 1.3 times

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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ADJUSTED PERFORMANCE MEASURES CONTINUED

9 Cash conversion

Cash conversion exciudes the impact of exceptional items from operating cash flows and EBITDA

2022 2021

$m Sm

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items 36.4 313
;jjusted EBITDA i 25.5 37.6_
Cash conversion 142.7% 83.2%
2022 2027

Cash flows from continuing operations before exceptional items $m $m
Cash flows from continuing operations 34.8 269
Restructuring €osts paid 7 1.0 -
Transaction costs paid 0.6 -
Acquisition and integration costs paid - 4.4
Cash fiows from continuing operations before exceptional items 36.4 313

10 Return on capital employed (ROCE)

Return on capital employed (ROCE} is calculated as adjusted operating profit over average capital employed. The following shows the ROCE calguiations

and reconciling tables

2022 2021
$m sm
Shareholders’ funds 210.5 2054
Current borro;zvings 4.8 7:;
Non-current \iabi\it\‘es- 90.4 121;
Capital employed 305.7 358.7
Average capital employed 332.2 3821
Eij—u_sted operating profit 16.1 220
Return on capital employed 3.0% 5.8%
2022 2021
Average capital employed $m $m
Current period capitai employed 3057 3587
Prior penoé! capital employed - 358.7 i 4054
Average capital employed 7 332.2 3821
2022 2021
Current borrowings sm $m
Current borrowings 4.1 40
Current provnsw’onsforliabi]itiegand charges O.} 35
Current borrowings for ROCE 4.8 75
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11 Organic constant currency reporting

Organic constant currency measures remove the impact of acquisitions and changes in exchange rates. Constant currency measures are calculated by

translating the prior period at current period exchange rates,

The armer business transacts entirely in USD meaning there is no currency impact for this operating segment.

2022 2021

$m $m

(excluding {constant

Group acquisitions) currency)

Orders received 2772 2817

Closing order book 151.3 140.4

Revenue 269.3 246.8

Adjusted EBITDA 24.8 40.3

Adjusted operating profit 9.6 249

Adjusted profit befare tax 5.6 218

Adjusted basfc earnings per share 19.1¢ 70.5¢

2022 2021

Sm $m

{excluding {constant

Respiratory and head protection acquisitions) currency)

Orders received 265.0 2800

Closing order book 151.3 113.8

Revenue 2609 240.3

Adjusted EBITDA 381 487

Adjusted operating profit 229 354

Adjusted profit before tax 19.1 327

Adjusted basic earnings per share 53.4¢ 99.8c

2022 201

$m $m

{excluding {constant

U.K. & International acquisitions) currency)

Revenue 8.8 52.3
Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection ple 117
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ITIS A GREAT POINT OF PRIDE TO KNOW OUR

PRODUCT IS THE LAST LINE OF DEFENSE FOR OUR
WORLD’S MILITARIES AND FIRST RESPONDERS. AT

THE END OF THE DAY, WE HAVE TWO KEY STRENGTHS,

A PRODUCT EVERYONE BELIEVES IN AND A TEAM

THAT BELIEVES IN OUR PRODUCT.

Chandlar Gabara

Continuous Improvement Leader
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC

1. Qur opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of Aven Protection pic (‘the
Company”} for the period ended 1 October 2022 which comprise the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and
Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement,
and the Consolidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in
Equity, and the related naotes, including the accounting policies sections in
both the Group and Parent Company financial statements.

In our epinion

.« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
Group's and of the Parent Company's affalrs as at 1 October 2022 and of
the Graup's loss for the period then ended;

« the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with
Uk -adopted international accounting standards;

- the Parent Company financial staterents have been properly prepared
in accordance with U K. accounting standards including FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework; and

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
requirernents of the Companies Act 2006

Overview

Basis for opinion

We ronducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing {U.K} [15As (U.K)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities are

described below. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion. Our audit opinion is
consistent with our report to the Audit Committee

We were first appointed as auditor by the shareholders on 1 February
2018, The period of total uninterrupted engagement 15 for the 4 financial
periods ended | October 2022 We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
under, and we remain independent of the Group in accordance with, UK.
ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities. No nan-audit services prohibited by that standard
were provided.

51.8 million {2021.51.5 million)
0 66% (2021: 0.6%} of revenue

Materiality: Group financal
statements as a whole

Coverage

100% (2021, 100%) of Group revenue

Key audit matters 2022 vs 2021

Recurring risks

Recoverability of capitalised development expenditure

Parent Company

Recoverability of Parent Company’s investment in subsidianes
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2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material
misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgerment,
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
{whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those which

had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement

The risk

teamn. We summarise below the key audit matters, in decreasing order of
audit significance, in arriving at our audit opinion above, together with
our key audit procedures to address those matters and, as required for
public interest entities, our results from those procedures, These rmatters
were addressed, and our results are based on procedures undertaken,

in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereor, and
consequently are incidental to that opinion, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Our response

Recoverability of Subjective estimate:

capitalised davelopment - Within the rapitaliseil developmert
expenditure expenditure we identfied a number of
Included withir capitalised prod.acts with a higher degree of risk around
development expenditure recoverability, including those whick have
of $21.1 mitlion (2021 no prior track record of revenue and margin
523.2 million) generation, bave low headroom, and those

awaiting requlatory approval.
Impairrrent charges of $20 97es ¥ ape

million (2021: $0.2 miflion) + The estimated recoverable amourt of these

irtangible assers is supported by forecasting
and discounting future cash flows (based

on assumptiors suck as discourt rates and
reverue growth rates), which are inherently
highly judgemental. These uncertainties,
combined with the quantum of the
development costs balance far the higher risk
products, mears that the recoverable amount
of these developmrent costs 1s subject 1o
significant estimation UNCeranty.

- The critical issue Is to establish whether there
is sufficiert demand for the products which
generare these cash flows and whether the
preduct wall meet the requirements of the
customer or required regulatory approval and
the timing of this approval, which is inharently
subjactive as this involves an assessment of
the probability of future outcomes,

+ The effect of these matters is that, as part of
our risk assessment, we determined that the
estimated recoverable amount of these assets
has a high degree of estimation uncertairty,

Risk vs 2021:

Refer to page 83 (Audit
Committee Report), pages 133
and 135 {accounting policy)
and page 142, 143,144, and
145 {financial disclosures).

with a potential range of reasonable cutcomes

greater than our materiality for the firancial
staterrents as a whole, and possibly many
times that amount. The finarcial statements
(page 143} disclose the sensitivity estimated
by the Group.

Our procedures included,

« Historical comparison: We assessed the accuracy of the group’s
farecasting by comparing actual cash flows for products in the periad
to the prior period forecasts,

» Forarisk-based selection of products whereby judgements were made
by the audit team ir respect of said risk-rating, our procedures included:

- Oursectorknowledge: We challenged the detalled forecasts
which suppart the esturmated recoverable amount by referance to
discussions with project managers on the likelihood and timirg of
wher rew products are expected 1o receive customer or regulatory
clearance as compared 1o what was assumed in the forecasts ard the
size of the potential market.

- Benchmarking assumptions: We compared the Group's
assumnptions 1o externally derived data in relation to key inputs such
as revenue growth rates and discount rates.

- Sensitivity analysis: We performed sensitivity analysis to
determine if reasorably possible changes in discount rates, product
margms, and growth rates would result in additional impairments
being recogrised.

« Assess transparency: We assessed whether the Group's disclosures
about the sensitivity of the outcome of the I pairment assessment to
changes in key assumrptions reflect the risks inherert in the estimation
of the recoverable amount of the development costs.

we performed the tests above rather than seeking to rely or any of
the Group's controls because the nature of the balance is such that we
would expect to obtair audit evidence prirmarily through the detalled
procedures described. We performred an assessmert of whether an
over/understaterrert of the recoverability of capitalised development
expenditure dertified through these procedures was material,

Our results

~ We found the development costs balance, and the related impairment
charge to be acceptable (2021: We found the development costs
excluding armor business related costs balance, and the related
impairment charge 10 be acceptalle}.

Annual Regort and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC CONTINUED

2. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement continued

The risk

Our response

Low risk, high value

“he carryirg arrount of the Parert Cormmpary’s
nvestrrents in subsidianes represents 95%
(2021: 93%) of the Compary's tatal assets.
Their recoverability 1s not at a high risk of

Recoverability of Parent
Company’s investments
in subsidiaries

(£191.0 rillion,

2021: £161 0 million)

Fisk vs 2021 Jadgemert. However, due to their matenality
Refer to page 167 {accounting ™ the context of the Parent Company firarcial
policy) and page 168 (firancial
disclosares). kad the greatest effect on our overall Parent

Company aud.t.

sigrificant misstatemert or subject to significant

staternents, thisis considered to be the area thar

Cur procedures included

Tests of detail: Conparirg the carrying amount of 100% of investments
with the relevant subsidiaries’ draft balance sheet ta dentify whether
therr net assets, being ar approximation of their minimum recoverable
armount, were In excess of their carrying amouant and assessing whether
those subsidiaries have historically been profit-making.

Assessing subsidiary audits: Assessirg the work performed by the
subsidiary audit team and the grodp tearr on all of those subsidiaries
and corsidering the results of that work, on those subsidiaries’ profirs
ard net assets.

We performed the tests above rather than seekirg to rely ar any of the
Company's controls because the nature of the balance 1s such that we
would expect to obtain audit evidence primartly through the detarted
proceddres described.

Our results
We found the Company’s conclusion that there 15 ro impairment of its
irvestrnents m subsidiaries to be acceptable (2021 acceptable).

Impairment of armor business related assets and Business Cornbinations were identified as event-driven key audit matters in 2021, There has not been any
equivalent activity of similar magnitude in the current period and therefore we have not separately identified these areas in our report this period.

3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the
scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was setat $1.8
million (2021 $1.5 million), determined with reference to a benchmark

of total revenue, of which it represents 0.66% (2021: 0.6% of revenue)

We consider total revenue to be the most appropriate benchmark as

it provides a more stable measure period on period than group loss
before tax.

Materiality for the Parent Company financial statements as a whole was set
at £10 million {2021: £0.8 million}, which is the component materiality for
the Parent Company determined by the group audit engagement team
This is lower than the materfality we waould otherwise have determined
with reference 10 a benchmark of Parent Company total assets, of which it
represents 0.5% (2021 0.4%)

In line with cur audit methodology. our procedures on individual

account batances and disclosures were performed to a fower threshold,
performance materiality, so as to reduce to an acceptable level the risk that
individually immatertal misstarements in individual account balances add
up to a materal amount across the financial statements as a whole.

Performance materiality was set at 65% (2021: 65%) of matenality for the
Group financial statements as a whole, which equates to $117 million
(2021 50975 millicn), We applied this percentage in our determination of
performance materiality based on the level of identified misstatements
and control deficiencies during the prior period.
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Performance materiality was set at /5% (2021 75%} of matenality for

the Parent Company financial staternents as a whole which equates

to £0.75 million 12021 £0 6 millon}, We applied this percentage in aur
determination of performance materiality because we did not identify any
factors indicating an elevated levei of risk

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected
identified misstatements exceeding 520,000 (2021: $75,000), In addition

to otheridentified misstatements that warranted reporting on

qualitative grounds.

Of the Group's eight (2021: eight) reporting companents, we subjected
five (2021: five) to full scope audits for group purposes and one (2021 one)
to specified risk-focused audit procedures over cash & cash equivalents
[2021: cash & cash equivalents). The latter was not individually financially
significant encugh to require a full scope audit for group purposes, but did
present specific individual risks that needed to be addressed

The compenents within the scope of our work accounted for the
percentages illustrated below. For the residual two components, we
performed analysis at an aggregated group level to re-examine our
assessment that there were ng significant risks of material misstatement,



3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the
scope of our audit continued

The Group team instructed component auditors as to the significant
areas to be covered, including the relevant risks detailed above and

the informaticn to be reparted back. The Group team approved the
component materialities, which ranged from 50.15 million to $1.35 million
{2021: 3015 million to $1.1 million), having regard to the mix of size and
risk profile of the Group across the compoenents The work an one of

the components {2021: one of the components) included procedures
performed by component auditors and the rest, including the audit of the
Parent Company, was performed solely by the Group team The Group
team visited 5 {2021: 5 virtually visited) component locations in the UK.
and U.S,, to assess the audit risk and strategy. In the prior year in person
visits to component locations were prevented by movement restrictions
relating to the COVID-19 pandemic. Video and telephone conference
meetings were also held with the component auditors during which the
findings reparted 1o the Group team were discussed in more detail, and
any further work required by the Group team was then performed by the
component auditor,

Revenue
$271.9m (2021: $248m revenue)

Revenue

$271.9m

Total
revenue

Group revenue

100%

(2021: 100%%)

100
100

Full scope ‘o Croun aud't puroases 2022
Spac fed v sk-‘ocused audir procedures 2022
Fu | scope for Group audit purposes 2021
Scecfied rsk-focused audit procedures 2021
Jesdual components

Group
materiality

Group loss {2021: loss) before tax

100%

(2021: 100%%)

The scope of the audit work performed was predominately substantive
as we placed Iimited reliance upon the Groap's internal contral aver
financial reporting.

4, The impact of climate change on our audit

In planning our audit we have considered the potential
impacts of climate change on the Group’s business and
its financial statements. With the support of our climate
professionals we performed a risk assessment of the
impact of climate change on the financial statements
and our audit approach.

Climate change impacts the Group in a variety of ways including the
impact of climate risk on manufacturing and procurement, potential
reputational risk associated with the Group's delivery of its climate related
Initiatives, and greater emphasis on climate refated narrative and disclosure
In the annual report, The Group's exposure to climate change is primarily
through the acquisition of materials in its supply chain and increased costs
in relation to manufacturing end products.

Group materiality
$1.8m (2021: $1.5m)

$1.8m
Whoie financial staternents materiality
(2021 £1.5m)

$1.17m
Whole financial statements performance
materiality (2021: $0.975m)

$1.35m

Range of materiality at six components
(50.15m-51.25m} {2021: $0.15m to 51.1m}

$0.09m
Misstatements reported to the Audit Cormmittee
(2021: 50.75m)

Group total assets

100%

(2021 100%")

a7
98

‘0 n 2022 and 2021, audis coverage s calculated en the above measures to ncluce all poerations Cassed as
continuing o d scantinued
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC CONTINUED

4, The impact of climate change on our audit continued
As part of our audit we have made enquiries of
management to understand the extent of the potential
impact of climate change risk on the Group’s financial
statements and the Group’s preparedness for this.

We have also read the Group's and the Parent Company's disclosure of
climate related information in the front half of the annual report as set out
on pages 54 to 55. On the basis of the procedures performed above, we
concluded that the risk of climate change was not significant when we
considered the nature of the assets and relevant contractual terms. As a
result, there was no material impact from this on our key audit matters

We have not been engaged to provide assurance over the accuracy of
these disclosures.

5. Going concern

The Directors have prepared the financial statements on the going
concern basis as they do not intend to liguidate the Group or the Company
or to cease their cperations, and as they have concluded that the Group's
and the Company's financial position means that this is realistic. They have
also concluded that there are no marterial uncertainties that could have
cast significant doubt over their ability to continue as a going concern

for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial staterments
("the going concern period”).

We used our knowledge of the Group, its industry, and the general
economic environment to identify the inherent risks to its business model
and analysed how those risks might affect the Group's and Company's
financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period The rnisks that we considered most likely to adversely
affect the Group's and Company’s availabte financial resources and metrics
relevant ta debt covenants over this period were:

«+ inflationary pressures on the Group's cost base;
the managed exit from the armor business;
dependence on a large customer or market, and

disruption to the Group's supply chain;

We considered whether these risks could plausibly affect the liguidity or
covenant compliance in the going concern period by assessing the degree
of downside assumption that, individuaily and collectively, could result in a
liquidity issue, taking into account the Group's current and projected cash
and facilities {a reverse stress test)

Our procedures also included:

« Comparing past budgets 1o actual results 1o assess the Directors' track
record of budgeting accurately.

+ Inspecting the confirmation from the lender of the level of cornmitted
financing including re-financing of existing facilities, and the assaciated
covenant requirements

We assessed the completeness of the going concern disclosure
Our conclusions based on this work

- We consider that the Directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the firancial statements is aporopriare;

We have not identified, and concur with the Directars’ assessment that
there s not, a material uncertainty related ta events or conditions that,
individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt or the Group's
ar Company's abity to continue as a going concern for the going
concern period;

We have nothing material te add or draw attention to in relation to the
Directors’ statement on page 131 to the financial staterments on the use
of the going cancern basis of accounting with fo material uncereginties
that may cast significant doubt over the Group and Company's use

of that basis for the going cencern periad, and we found the going
concern disclosure on page 131 10 be acceptable; and
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The related statement under the Listing Rules set out on page
79 is matenially consistent with the financial statements and our
audit knowledge.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as
subsequent events may result in autcormes that are inconsistent with
judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above
conclusions are not a guarantee that the Group or the Company will
continue in operation.

6. Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -

ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement
due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (‘fraud risks”) we
assessed events or conditions that could indicate an incentive or pressure
o commit fraud or provide an opportunity to cammit fraud Qur risk
assessment procedures included:

Enquiring of Directors, the Audit Committee, internal audit and
inspection of policy documentation as to the Group's high-level policies
and procedures to prevent and detect fraud, including the internal
audit function, and the Group's channel for "whistleblowing”, as well as
whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

Reading Board and Audit Committee minutes.

Considering remuneration incentive schemes (annual bonus scheme &
performance share plan) and performance targets for management and
directors including the total sharehalder return target and EPS target for
management remuneration

+ Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or
unexpected relationships.

We communicated identfied fraud risks throughout the audit team and
remained alert 1o any indications of fraud throughout the audit. This
ncluded communication frem the group to the campaonent audit team of
relevant fraud risks identified at the Group level and request to component
audit teams to report to the Group audit team any instances of fraud that
could give rise to a material misstatement at the Group level,

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible
pressures 1o meet profit targets and our overalt knowledge of the control
envirgnment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management
override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in
particutar the risk that revenue is recorded in the wrong period and the risk
that Group and component management may be in a position to make
INappropiiate accounting entries.

We also identified a fraud risk related to inappropriate capitalisation
of development costs in response 1@ possible pressures to meet
profit targets.

We also performed procedures including:

Identifying journal entries and other adjustments to test for all full scope
components based on risk criteria and comparing the sdentified entries
to supporting documentation These included those posted to unusual
or unexpected accounts.

Fora sample of capitaised developrnent costs, assessing whather
the costs had been capitalised against the correct project, measured
correctly, and were eligible for capitalisation

- Forasample of invoices raised arcund the penod end date, assessing
whether revenue bad been recognised in the appropriate period by
comparing to dispatch notes or terms of specific sa'e agreements

- Assessing sigrif:cant accounting estimarss for bias




Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement
due to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be
expected to have a material effect on the financial statements from our
general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with
the Directors {as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of
the Group's regulatory and legal correspondence and discussed with the
Directors the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws
and regulations

As the Group 15 regulated, our assessment of risks involved gaining
an understanding of the control environment including the entity’s
procedures for complying with regulatory requirements. We
communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team
and remained alert 1o any Indications of non-compliance throughout
the audit. The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the
financial statements varies considerably. This included communication
from the Group audit tearn to component audit teams of relevant
laws and regulations identified at the Group level, and a request for
component auditors to repart to the Group audit team any instances
of non-compliance with laws and reguiations that could give rise 1o a
material misstatement at the Group level.

Firstly, the Group is subject to faws and reguiations that directly affect the
financial statements including financial reporting legislation (including
related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation, taxation
legislation, and pensions regulation and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on
the related financial staterent itemns.

Secondly, the Group is subject to many other laws and regulations where
the consequences of non-compliance could have a material effect on
amounts of disclasures in the financial statements, for instance through
the imposition of fines or Iitigation. We identified the following areas

as those most likely to have such an effect: export controf legislation
recognising the Governmental nature of many of the group’s customers,
product regulation, health and safety, employment law, environmental
legislation, recognising the nature of the Group's activities. Auditing
standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance
with these laws and regulations to enguiry of the directors and inspection
of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore if a breach of
operational regulations 15 not disclosed to us or evident from relevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches
of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable

risk that we may not have detected some material misstatements in

the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed aur audit in accordance with auditing standards For example,
the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the
events and transactions reflected in the financial staterments, the less likely
the inherenty limited procedures required by auditing standards would
identify it

I addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of
non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the averride of internal controls, Qur
audit procedures are designed o detect material misstatermnent. We are
not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannat be
expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

7. We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report

The Directars are responsible for the other information presented in
the Annual Report together with the financial statements Qur opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,
accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except as explicitly
stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Qur responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s,
consider whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the
information therein is materially risstated or inconsistent with the
financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we
have not identified matenal misstatements in the other information.

Strategic report and Directors’ report
Based solely on our work on the other informatior:

- we have not identified materfal misstatements in the strategic report
and the Directors' report;

+ i our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial
period is consistent with the financial staternents; and

- In our opinion those reports have been prepared 1n accerdance with
the Companies Act 2006.

Directors’ Remuneration Report

In our opinion the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to
be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 2006

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and

longer-term viability

We are required to perform procedures to identify whether thereis a
material inconsistency hetween the Directors” disclosures in respect of
emerging and principal risks and the viabllity statement, and the financial
statements and our audit knowledge,

Based on those procedures, we have nothing material to add or draw
attention to in refation to:

- the Directors’ confirmation within the Viability Statement on page 79
that they have carried out a robust assessment of the emerging and
principal risks facing the Group, iIncluding those that would threaten its
business model, future performance, solvency and liquidity;

« the Principal risks disclosures describing these risks and how emerging
risks are identified, and explaining haw they are being managed and
ritigated; and

« the Directors’ explanation in the Viability Statement of how they have
assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period they have done
so and why they considered that period to be apprepriate, and their
staternent as to whether they have a reasonable expectation that the
Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its ligbilities
as they fall due over the period of their assessment, including any
related disclosures drawing attention 1o any necessary qualifications
or assumpticns.

We are also required to review Viability Statement, set out on page

7S under the Listing Rules. Based on the above procedures, we have
concluded that the above disclosures are materially consistent with the
financial statements and our audit knowledge.

Qur work 1s imited to assessing these matters in the context of only the
knowledge acquired during our financial statements audit. As we cannot
predict all future events or conditions and as subseguent events may result
in outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable
at the tme they were made, the absence of anything to repert on these
statements is not a guarantee as to the Group's and Company’s longer-
term viability.

Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures 1o identify whether there is a
material incansistency between the directors’ corporate governance
disclosures and the financial statements and our audit knowledge
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF AVON PROTECTION PLC CONTINUED

7. We have nothing to report on the other information
in the Annual Report continued

Corporate governance disclosures continued

Based on thase procedures, we have concluded that each of the
following is materially consistent with the financial statements and our
audiz knowledge:

the Directors’ staternent that they consider that the annual report

and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and
understandable, and provides the information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group's position and perfarmance, business
model and strategy,

- the section of the annual report describing the work of the Audit
Committee, including the significant issues that the audit commitiee
considered in relation to the financial statements, and how these 1ssues
were addressed; and

+ the section of the annual report that describes the review of
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems

We are required to review the part of the Corporate Governance Statement
relating to the Group's compliance with the provisions of the UK.
Carporate Governance Code specified by the Listing Rules for our review.
We have nothing to report in this respect,

8. We have nothing to report on the other matters on
which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006, we are required to report to you if,

in cur opin‘on:

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent
Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directars’
Rermuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns; or

+ certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are
not made; or

- we have not receved all the information and explanations we require
for our audit

We have nothing to reportin these respects,

9. Respective responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set cut on page 108, the
Directors are responsible for: the preparation of the financial statements
including being sausfied that they give a true and fair view, such internal
control as they determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from maternal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; assessing the Group and Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabie, matters related to
gaing concerr, and wsing the going cancern basis of accourting uniess
mey either intend o liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or o
caase operatcns. or have no realistic alternative but to do sc
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Auditor’s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstaternent,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor’s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (LK) will
always detect a material misstatement when 1t exists, Misstaternents can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial staternents

Afuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website
at www frc.org.uk/auditarsresponsibilities.

The Company is required to include these financial statementsin an
annual financial report prepared using the single electronic reporting
format specified in the TD ESEF Regulation. This auditor's report provides
no assurance over whether the annual financial report has been prepared
in accordance with that format.

10. The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe
our responsibilities

This repart is made salely to the Company’s members, as a bady, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Qur
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's
members those matrers we are reguired to state to them in an auditor's
repert and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company
and the Company’s mernbers, as a body, for our audit work, for this report,
or for the opinions we have formed,

Andrew Campbell-Orde (Senior Statutory Auditor}
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants, 66 Queen Square, Bristol, BS1 4BE

22 November 2022




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

52weeksended 53 weeks ended
10ctober 2022 2 October 2021'
Note $m $m
Continuing operations
Revenue 21 2719 2483
Cost of sales ) i (193.7) (160.5)
Gross profit 78.2 78.8
Selling and distribution costs (26.0} (222
tie'nréral and administrative expenses {54.3) {85.6)
Operating loss 2.1 (2.1 {29.0)
MNet finance costs 52 (6.4) 16 &)
Loss before taxation 25 8.5 (35.6)
Taxation 26 29 111
Loss for the pericd from continuing opera{}oﬁs o N {5.6) 24.5)
Discontinued operations
Loss from discontinued operations 22 (2.0) (L1
Loss for the period (7.6) {25.6)
Other comprehensive income/{expense)
Items that are not subsequently reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement gain recognised on retirement berefit scheme 62 50.1 16.2
Deferred tax relating to retirement benefit scherne 26 (9.6) {3
Deferred tax relating to change in tax rates 26 (3.4) 4.1
Deferred tax relating 1o other temporary differences 26 - 03
Current tax relating to other temporary differences (0.1) ) -
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences offsetin reserves 0.8 06
Cash flow hedges 0.; -
éurrent tax relating to cash flow hedges (0.1) -
Other comprehensive income for the period 38.2 181
Total comprehensive income/{expenselfor the period 30.6 {7.5)
Earnings per share 23
Basic {25.0)c {83.5)c
Diluted {25.1)c (83.5)c
Earnings per share from continuing operations 23
Basic (18.5)c (7991
Diluted 7 (18.5)c (799)c

1 In previous penogs, tie Group reporied “nancial statements to 30 Septermnbier, this being the Campany's accounning re‘ererce cate Feadmngs for the currert and prior penod row snow te actual

cdtes townich the finarcial statements were drawn up This has ne impactor pray ously reposed numbers
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
AT 1 OCTOBER 2022

At 1 October At 2 October
2022’ 2021"
Note Sm sm
Assats
Non-current assets .
Intangible assets . 3,1- - 171.0 181.0
Property, plant and equipment ) 32 39:97“» 48.6
Deferred tax assets 26 26.7 40.2
Derivative financial Instruments 54 -.ﬁ0.3 -
2379 2698
Current assets
Inventories . 43 656 623
Trade and other receivables ) 4.2 30.6 447
Derivative financial Instruments 54 0.2 -
Current tax receivaples 42 78
Cash and cash egquivalents 4.37 8.5 141
0.1 1289
Liabilities -
Current Iiabilities_l
Borrowings i_ B 51 41 40
Trade and other payables "4.4 423 ) 715
Provisions for liabilties and charges ) 71 0.777” 35
47.1 475
Net current assets 63.0 814
Non-current liabilities
Eorrowings o 51 %3.4 660
Deferred rax liabilities 26 58 ~Aé-jlu
Retirement benefit ob\@ations » 62 6.3 ) 63.3
Provisions for \iab;ifies and charges 71 49 54
90.4 1458
Net assets 210.5 2054
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares _ 55 50.3 503
Share premium account 55 54.3 543
Qther reserves - (14.2) (15.00
Cash flow hedging reserve B 0.4 -
Retained earmings 1.7 1158
Total equity 210.5 2054
1 1norew ous cerods, hE reporsea f rancial s1ateme s T 30 S2plemnen Tt s 08 13 "he TOMPEtY § aCC0anTg ratareree tate Head rgs for tha Lurent ara or ur e oa mow 37w Ihe actaal

datesto whee

These financial statements on pages 127 10 163 were approved by the Board of Directors or 22 Navemnber 2022 and signed on its behalf by

Bruce Thompson Rich Cashin

Executive Chair

thadpa™Ca staTements were draws ac Th & vas mo mizagt on o2y cusly repertad rumners

Chief Financiat Officer

The accampanying accounting policies and notes form part of these financial statements

Company number 40032965
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 CCTOBER 2022

52 weeks ended

53 weeks ended

10ctober 2022' 2 October 2021"

Note sm $m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from continumg_operations T ) 43 34.8 269
Cash flows from discontinued aperations 4.3 7 o {1.3) (3.3)
Cash flows from operations 43 335 236
Retirement benefit deficit recovery contributions 62 (8.5) (2.9
Tax receivedf&;;aid) T 3.7 ) {13.3)
Netcash flows from operating activities 287 74
Cash flows used in iuvesting aclivilies
Proceeds from disposal of discontinued operations - 34
Costs of divestment - 0.6}
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 32 (2.9) (1.7}
;mé\}sed dcvclobmeﬁt costs and puréhased soft\n-farem 31 (6.0) (199
Acguisition of business (2021: net of acquired cash of $1.1m) 71 (3.2) (130.9)
Net cash used in investing activities {12.1) {159.7)
Cash flows used in financing activities
Proceeds from loan drawdowns 53 429 42.0
Loan repayments 7 53 (30.1) {(40.6}
Finance costs paid in respect of bank loans and overdrafts 5.2 (2.7) (1.6)
Finance costs paid in respect of leases 5.2 (1.0} 4B
Repayment of lease liability ) 4.1 (3.7
Dividends paid to shareholders 56 (134) (12.1)
Purchase of own shares - Long Term Incentive Plan 5.5 - (4;7
Purchase of own shares — Share Buyback Programme 55 (12.4) -
Net cash used in financing activities (20.8) 21.4)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivatents (4.2) {173.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 14.1 1872
Effects of exchange rate changes (0.4) 0.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 43 9.5 14.1

1 Inprevous penods, the Group reportes financa- statermnerts to 30 September, this be-rg the Company's accounting reference date —eacings for the current end pr of cenod now show the actual

dates to which the firarcial statements were drawn up Ths has ro mipact or oreviodsly reported numbers
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Share Share Hedging Other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserves earnings equity
Note $m sm $m sm sm sm
At 26 September 2020" 50.3 54.3 - (15.6) 1405 2295
Loss for the period - - - - {25.6) {25.6)
Net exchange differénces offsetin reserves - - 7:16 - . VE_
E'eferred 1ax relating o other ter-nporary differeﬁtes 2.6 - - - - 03 03
Remeasurement gain recognised on reticement 7 -
penefit scheme 6.2 - - - - 16.2 162
Eerrred tax relating to change in tax rates 26 - - o - e 41
Deferred tax:é\éténg o retirement benefit scheme 26 - - - - 3.1 3.1
Total comprehensive income/dexpense) for the period - - - a6 {81) (7.5}
Dividends paid 7 5.6 - - - - (]27.1) {12.)
Qwn shares acquiréd 55 - - - - 4.3] —(-‘E
Izai-r_va\ue of share-based payments 5.3 - - - - 05 05
Current tax relating to employee share séhemes ) )
charged to equity 26 - - - - 12 12
Deferred ax refaung © ernployee share schémes - ’ 7
charged directly to equity 26 - - - 9 ]
At 2 October 2021' 50.3 543 - (15.0 158 2054
Loss for the peried - - ~- - (7.6) {7.6}
Nietexcha nge differences offset in reserves - - - 0.8 - c.8
Current tax relating to other temporary differences 26 - - - - (18] (0.1}
Rermeasurement gain recognised on retirement )
enefit scheme 6.2 - - - - 50.1 50.1
Eea;erred tax relating to change in tax rates 26 - - - - ) (3.4) (3.4)
Deferred tax relating to retirement benefit scherme 2.6 - - - - (9.6) 9.6)
Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedge 5.4 - - ) 05 ~ - 0.5_
Current ;éx on interest rate swaps — cash.ﬂow hedge 26 - - {€.1) - . (3]
Total cormprehensive inceme for the period - - 04 0.8 294 30.6
a/i&ends paid - 5.6 - - - - (13.4) (134)
me shares acquire;j 5.5 - - —7 - (12.4) (12.4)
;air value of share-based payments 6.37 - - - - 1.0 1.07
Deferred tax relating to employee share schémes
charged directly to equity 26 - - - - (0.7} 0.7)
At 1 October 2022' 50.3 543 04 {14.2} 19.7 210.5

1 in prev 2us penods, the Graup reportes f ~ancigl statements 10 30 Sentemiger, this ke rg the Company s accountng refererds date t-eamngs fer tme curert ard 27 or per od row 510w "he actual

Zares owb chitbe f narcal statements were drawn up This ads nomMEp2C 01 Drevnusly recerted namcers

Other reserves consist of the capital redemption reserve of $0.6 million (2021, $0.6 million} and the translaton reserve of {($14 8) million (2021 ($15 63 milion).

Al maovernentsin other reserves relate to the translation reserve
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Section 1 - Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below These policies have been
consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

Avon Protection ple is a public limited company incorporated and
domiciled in England and Wales and its ordinary shares are traded on the
London Stock Exchange,

The financial period presents 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 {prior
finandial period 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021). The Company previously
reported that the reporting date for the latest annual financial statements
was 30 Sepfember 2021, heing the Company's accounting reference date.
The actual date ta which the financial statements were drawn up was

2 October 2021 and therefore the headings of the financial statements
have been amended accordingly. This has no impact on previously
reported numbers.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK,
adopred International Accounting Standards. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for
derivative instruments which are held at fair value through profit or lgss,

Going concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
which the Directors believe to be appropriate for the following reasons:

The Directors have prepared a going concern assessment covering the
12-month period from the date of approval of these financial staterments.
The assessrnent indicates that the Group will have sufficient funds to meet
its liabilities as they fall due for that period.

As part of their assessment, the Directors considered a base case and a
severe downside scenario invalving a 27% decline in bank-determined
adjusted EBTDA against the base case, Even in this severe downside
scenario, the assessment indicates that the Group wilt have sufficient funds
to meet its liabilities as they fall due, and will continue to comply with its
loan covenants, throughout the forecast period. The Group has committed
RCF facilities of 3200 million (see nate 5.1) and related Ioan covenants
include a limit of 3.0 umes for the ratio of net debr, excluding lease
liabilities, to bank-determined adjusted EBITDA (leverage).

On this basis, the Directors are confident that the Group and Company
will have sufficient funds to continue to meet their habilities as they fall
due for at least 12 months frorm the approval of these financiaf statements.
Accordingly the Group and Company continue ta adopt the going
concern basis in preparing thelr financial statements.

Revision to IFRS not applicable in 2022

Standards and interpretations issued by the IASE are only applicable

if endarsed by the UK. The Group daoes not consider that any of the
belovw standards, amendrments or interpretations issued by the 1ASB,
but not yet applicanle, will have a atenal impact on the consolidared
financial staternents:

» IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (effective date 1 January 2023)

» Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Finanicial Statements,
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Noen-current and Making
Materiality Judgements (effective date 1 lanuary 2023}

- Amendments 1o 145 37: Onerous Contracts (effective date 1
January 2022)

- Amendments 1o Referencas to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS 3
(effective date 1 January 2022

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equiprment {effective date
1 January 2022}

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020 (effective date
1 lanuary 202 2)

- Amendments to 1AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors (effective date 1 January 2023)

- Amendments to JAS 12 income Taxes: Deferred Tax Related to Assets
and Liahalities Arising from a Single Transaction (effective date
1 lanuary 2023)

£ffective dates are for annual periods beginning on or after the
dates stated

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial staterments incorporate the financial results and
pasition of the Group and its subsidiaries,

Stbsidiaries are those entities over which the Group has power, exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involverment with the entity and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of the Group’s returns.

Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the date on which contrelis
transferred to the Group until the date that control ceases.

Inter-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on
transactions between Group compsanies are eliminated.

Foreign currencies

The results and financial position of all subsidiaries and associates that
have a functional currency different from U.S. dollars are translated into
U.S. dollars as follows:

+ assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the balance
sheet date; and

« Income and expenses are translated at an average exchange rate for the
month where the relevant rate approximates 1o the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions,

All resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component
of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net Investment In entitics with a functional currency other than U.S. dollars,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investrments, are taken to sharsholders” equity. When an entity with
a functional currency other than U.S. dollars is sold, the cumuiative amount
of such exchange difference is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Foreign currency transactions are infually recorded in an entity's functional
currency accounts at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from settiement of such
transactions and from the transiation at exchange rates ruling at the
balance sheet date of manetary assets or liabilities deneminared in foreign
currencies are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, except when deferred in equity as qualifying hedges.

Revenue

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration which is
expected to be received in exchange for goods and services provided,
net of trade discounts and sales-related taxes.

Revenue is recognised when all of the following conditions are satisfied.
- acontract exists with a custamer;

+ the performance abligations within the contract have been identified,
+ the transaction price has been determined;

+ the transaction price has been allocated to the performance obligatr
within the contract; and

- revenue s recognised as or when a performence ebligation is sat -
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Revenue continued

Revenue recognition continued

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when control of the
goods has transferred to the customer, usually being when the goads
have been shipped o the customer in accordance with the contracted
shipping terms.

Provision of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services, including custamer funded
research and development and training, is recognised aver Time as those
services are provided. The Group recognises the amaount of revenue from
the services provided under a contract with reference 1o the costs incurred
as a propartion of total expected costs.

Contract assets and liabilities

Assets and liabilities arising from contracts with customers are separately
identified. Contract assets relate to consideration recognised for waork
completed but not billed at the balance sheet date. Contract liabilities
relate to consideration received but not recognised as revenue at the
balance sheet date. See notes 4 2 and 4.4 for further detalls

Segment reporting
Sagments are identified based on how management manitors
the business

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

- that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incui expenses (including revenues and expenses elating 1o
transactions with other components of the same entity),

- whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's chief
operating decision maker 10 make decisions about resaurces to be
aliocated to the segment and assess its performance; and

- for which discrete financial information is available.

Cperating segments are aggregated Into a single reportable segrnent
only when the segments have similar economic characteristics, and the
segments are similar in each of the following respects’

- the nature of the products and services;
the nature of the production processes,
- the type ar Class of custamer for thewr praducts and services,

the methods used 1o distribute their praducts ar provide their
services; and

the nature of the regulatory environment

The Group Executive team, being the Chief Operating Decision Maker,
assesses the performance of operating segments based on measures of
revenie, adjusted EBITDA and adjusted aperating profit, as weill as other
measures not defined under IFRS including orders received, closing order
book, organic revenue growth, EBITDA margin, cash conversion and return
on capital employed Further details on these measures can be found in
the Adjusted Ferformance Measures section.

The Group has. following a rearganisation, two different cperating

and reportakle segments, these being the core respiratory and head
protecuon business and the armor business which s in the process of
being wound down. In the priar period, the sole reportable segment was
made up of two operating segments, Team Wendy and Avon Protection
Ayon Protection has been disaggregated into armar and respiratary and
head protecuon followirg the decision ta ctose the armer business. Team
wendy has been fully integrated inte the wider resprratary and head
protection segment in the current financial period.
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Employee benefits
Pension obligations and post-retirement benefits
The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans

The defined benefit plan’s asset or liability as recognised in the halance
sheet is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the
projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated cash outflows
using Interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated
in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuanal assumptions are secognised in fullin the period

In which they occur, as part of other comprehensive income. Costs
associated with investment management are deducted from the return
on plan assets. Other expenses are recognised in the iIncome statement
as incurred.

For the defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a rmandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. Contributions are expensed as incurred.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, under which the entity receives service from
employees as consideration for equity instruments {options) of the
Group. The fairvalue of the employee service received in exchange for
the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
1o be expensed i determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

including any market-based performance conditions;

excluding the impact of any service and non-market perfarmance
vesting condmans (for examnple, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an empioyee of the entity over a specified time penod); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for exampie, the
requirement for emplayees to savel,

MNon-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about

the number of options that are expected to vest, The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which 1s the period over which all

of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied At the end of each
reporing period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected 1© vest based on the non-market vesting conditions, It
recognises the mpact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
Consclidated Staterent of Comprehensive Income, with a correspending
adjustment o ecuity.

The proceeds receved net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited 1o share capital (nominal value) and shate premium when the
options are exercised

Exceptional items

Transactions are classified as exceptional where they relare to an event
that falls outsice of the underlying trading activities of the business and
where individually or in aggregate they have a material impact on the
financial stasemearts



Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acguisition over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the ident fiable net assets of the acquired
subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Identifiable net assets include
intangible assets other than goodwill. Any such intangible assets are
amortised over their expected future lives unless they are regarded

as having an indefinite life, in which case they are not amortised, but
subjected to annual iImpairment testing in a similar manner @ goodwill,

Since the transition to IFRS, goodwill arising from acquisitions of
subsidiaries after 3 October 1998 is included in intangible assets. Itis not
amortised but is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an
entity include the carrying amaunt of gooedwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill arising from acquisitions of subsidiaries before 3 October 1998,
which was set against reserves in the period of acquisition under UK.
GAAP has not been reinstated and 1s not included in determining any
subsequent profit or loss on disposal of the related entity

Goodwill 1s tested for impairment at least annually or whenever there is an
Indication that the asset may be impaired. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation s
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose

Any imparrment s recognised immediately in the Cansolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income. Subsequent reversals of impairment losses for
goodwill are not recognised.

Development expenditure

Expenditure in respect of the development of new products where the
outcome s assessed as being reasonably certain as regards viability and
technical feasibility is capitalised and amortised over the expected useful
life of the development (between five and 15 years). Expenditure that
does not meet these criteria is expensed as incurred The capitalised
costs are amortised over the estimated period of sale for each product,
commencing in the period in which the product is available for sale.
Development costs capitalised are tested far impairment annually where
nat yet ready for use or whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the
Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive Income,

UK. development costs have not been tigaled as a realised loss by the
Directors as they relate to specific R&D projects from which the Group is
expecied to obtain significant economic Senefit in the future.

Computer software
Computer software is Included 1n intangibfe assets at cost and amaortised
over its estimated life of three to ten years

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group as part of business
combinations are stated at cost less accumulated amortsation and
impairment losses. The useful lives take account of the differing natures
of each of :he assezs acquired.

The tives used are:
Brands and tradernarks — four to 15 years
« Customer relationships — three 1o 14 years
+ Order backlog - three months to one year
« Technology and licence agreements — two To ten years

Amaortisation is charged on a straight-fine basis over the estmated useful
fives of the assets through genceral and acrministrative expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost or deemed
cost where IFRS 1 exemptions have been applied, less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impairment losses.

Costs Include the original purchase price of the asset and the
costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use including ary gualifying finance expenses,

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation i provided on other assets
estimated to write down the depreciable amount of relevant
assets by equal annual instalmenits over their estimated useful [ives.

In general, the lives used are:

» Freehold - 40 years
+ Leasehold property - over the period of the lease

- Plant and machinery:
- Computer hardware and motor vehicles - three years
- Presses - 15 years
Other plant and machinery - five to ten years

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is greater than its estmated net realisable
value, Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts. These are included in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive income,

Leases

Right of use assets and lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the contract for all leascs conveying the right to
control the associated asset for a peried of time.

The right of use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the
initial measurement of the lease liability pius an estimate of dilapidation
provisions (note 71) where required. Subsequently the right of use assets
are measured at cost less accurmnulated depreciation, any accumulated
imparment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease
In general the lives used are:

- Leasehold property - period of the lease

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease
payments due over the life of the lease. The lease payments are discounted
at the rate implicit in the lease or if that is not readily determined using the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.

The lease term is determined with reference to any non-cancellable period
of lease contracts plus any periods covered by an option to extend/
terminate the lease if itis considersd reasanably certain that the option
will/will not be exercised. In concluding whether or net it s reasonably
certain an option will be exercised for new feases management has
considered the three-year strategic outlook for the Group and other
operational factors,

Subsequently the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying
value 1o reflect nterest on the liability and reducing the carrying value to
reflect lease payments made

The carrying value of lease liabilities and associated assets will
be remeasured to reflect any changes to the lease or other
assumptions applied.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Leases continued

The Group acts as an intermediate lessor for certain properties, and
accounts for its Interests in relevant head leases and subleases scparately
Lease classification of the sublease between finance and operating

is assessed with reference to the right of use asset arising from the

head lease.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined using the first-in, first-out {FIFO) method. The cost of finished
goods and werk in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable valye is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable incremental
selling expenses

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated and
measured at the transaction price.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers and are inmally
recognised at fair value. All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are inftially recognised when the Company becomes a party o the
contraClugzt provisions of the instrurmnent and measured at fair value,

Classification and subsequent measurement
Trade and other receivabies and trade and other payables are classified as
measured at amortised cost,

The Group recognises lass allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on
financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assers (s defined
in IFRS 15)

Loss allowances for rade receivables and comtract assets are
always measured at an armount equal to lifetime ECL; see note 5.4 for
more details.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due
within one year or fess {or in the normal operating cycle of the business If
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current labilities

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and in hand and highly
liquid interest-bearing secunties with maturities of three months or less,
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the
balance sheet,

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group classifies outstanding forward exchange contracts, Interest rate
swaps and corresponding hedged items as cash flow hedges and states
them at fair value through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Incame. Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in
the income statement. See note 54 for more details

Impairment

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets
carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-
impaired” when one or more events that have a detrimenta’ impact on the
estimared future 2ash flows of the financial asset have occurrad

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is wiitten off (either parnalty
ar in full) to the extent that there 1s no realistic prospect of recovery Ses
note 5.4 for details,
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised when

+ the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and

itis probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been rehably estimated,

Where there are a number of similar obligations, for exarnple where a
warranty has been given, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as

a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligation
may be small

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
o be required to settle the obhigation

Borrowings

Borrowlings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred, and subsequently stated at amortised cost. Borrowing costs are
expensed using the effective interest method

Taxation
Income tax on the profit or loss for the period comprises current and
deferred tax,

Taxable profit differs from accounting profit because it excludes certain
items of income and expense that are recognised in the financial
statements but are treated differently for tax purposes. Current tax is

the amount of tax expected 1o be payable or receivabie on the taxable
profit or loss for tre current period. This amount is then amended for any
adjustments in respect of prior periods.

Current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been written into

law {'enacted’) arirrevocably announceddcommitted by the respective
gavernment {substantively enacted’) at the period end date. Current
tax receivable {assets) and payable {liabilities) are offset only when there
is a legal right to settle them net and the entity intends to do so. This is
generally true when the taxes are levied by the same tax authority.

Because of the differences between accounting and taxable profits and
losses reported in each period, temporary differences arise on the amount
certain assets and liabilities are carried at for accounting purposes and
their respective tax values. Deferred tax is the amaount of tax payabie or
recoverable on these temporary differences,

Deferred tax labilities arise where the carrying amount of an asset 1
higher than the tax value (more tax deduction has been taken). This can
happen where the Group invests in capital assets, as governments often
encourage investment by allowing tax depreciation to be recognised
faster than accounting depreciation. This reduces the tax value of the
asset relative 1o its accounting carrying amount. Deferred tax habiliues are
generally orovided on all taxable temporary d fferences "ne ceriads cver
which such temporary differences reverse wil vary depending on the life
of the related asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets anse where the carrying amount of am asset 15 lower
than the tax va'ue (less tax benefit has beer taken) This can happen where
e Group has trading losses, wh.ch cannot be offsetin the current period
But can be carred forward Deferred tax assets are recognised only where
the Group considers it probable that it will be able to use such losses by
offsetiing ther against future taxable profits

However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for iF1t anses from
initial recognition of an asset or habulty in a transaction other than a
business combinaticn that at the tme of the transaction affects nether
accounting nor taxable profit orioss.



Taxation continued

Taxable temporary differences can also arise on investments in foreign
subsidiaries and assaciates, and interests injuint ventures. Where the
Group 15 able to control the reversal of these differences and it is probable
that these will not reverse in the foreseeable future, then no deferred tax
is provided. Deferred tax is calculated using the enacted or substantively
enacted rates that are expected 1o apply when the asset is realised or

the liability s settled. Similarly to current taxes, deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset only when there is a legal right to settle them net and
the entity intends to do so. This normally requires both assets and liahilities
to have arisen in the same country.

Income tax expense reported in the financial statements comprises
current tax as well as the effects of changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Tax expense/credits are generally recognised in the same place
as the items to which they relate. Fer example, the tax associated with

a gain on disposal is recognised in the income statement, in line with

the gain on disposal. Equally, the tax associated with pension obligation
actuaral gains and losses is recognised in other comprehensve income, In
line with the actuarial gains and losses.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial
staternents in the period in which the dividends are approved by
shareholders, while interim dividends are recognised in the period in
which the dividends are paid.

Share capital
Crdinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds,

Where any Group company purchases the Company equity share

capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of iIncome taxes), is deducted from
equity attributable to the Company's equity holders untit the shares are
cancelled, reissued or disposed of, Where such shares are subsequently
sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in equity attributable to the Company's equity holders,

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition accounting
method. identifiable assets and liabilities acquired are measured at fair
value at acquisition date. Costs related to the acquisition, other than

those assoclated with the issue of debt or equity securities, are expensed
as incurred Any contingent consideration payabie is recognised at fair
value at the acquisition date. If the contingent consideration is classified
as equity, it is not rermcasured and settlement 1s accounted for within
equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration are recognised in profit or loss. Unwinding of discount on
centingent consideration is included within finance costs, Changes to the
fairvalue arising from changes in the contingent element, for example,
expected cash ¢ be paid, or timing of when payments will be made, are
included in general and administrative expenses.

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial staternents requires the use of estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise its
Judgement in the pracess of applying the Group's accounting policies.

The key areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements are disclosed belaw.

Judgements and estimates

Development costs

The Group capitalises the development costs of new preducts and
processes as intangible assets or property, plant and equipment.

Initial capitahsation and any subsequentimpairment are based on
management’s Judgement of technological and economic feasibility,
including regulatory approvals required and forecast customer dermand.
In determining the amounts to be capitalised the Group makes estimates
regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount
rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. If either
technological or economic feasibility is not demonstrated then the
capitalised costs will be written off to the income statement.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment by grouping development
assets into the smallest identifiable group of assets generating future
cash flows largely independent from other assets (CGUs). Included in
these CGUs are development expenditure, tangible assets related to
the product group and acquired intangibles where associated with the
development project.

Significant judgements and estimates made and sensitivity In respect of
the assumptions used that could have a significantimpact on the carrying
value of assets in determining the carrying amount of development costs
at the balance sheet date are disclosed in note 3.1.

Estimating the defined benefit pension scheme assets

and obligations

Measurement of defined benefit pension obligations requires estimation
of future changes in inflation and mostality rates, and the selection of a
suitable discount rate.

The investments held by the pension scheme include both quoted and
unquoted securities, the latter which by their nature invoive assurmptions
and estimates to determine ther fair value. Where there is not an active
market for the unquoted securities the fair value of these assets is
estimated by the pension trustees based on advice received from the
investment manager whilst also using any available market evidence

of any recent transactions for an identical asset. The assumptions

used In valuing unguoted Investments are affected by current market
conditions and trends which could result in changes in fair value after the
measurement date.

See note 6.2 for further details,
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Section 2 ~ Results for the period
Within this section you will find disclosures explaining the Group's results for the period, segmental information, earnings per share and taxation, as well
as details of the discontinuen operaiions

2.1 Operating segments
The Group Executive team is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, Operating segments are
therefore reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group Executive team.

The Group has, following a reorganisation, two different operating and reportable segments, these being the core respiratory and head protection
business and the armor bissiness which 1s in the process of being wound down. In the prior period, the scle reportable segrment was made up of two
operanng segments, Team Wendy and Avon Protectian. Avon Prateciiaon has been disaggregated into armor and respiratory and head protecuon
following the decision to close the armar business. Team Wendy has been fully integrated into the wider respiratory and head protection segment

52 weeks ended 1 October 2022

Respiratoryand Adjustments and

Armor  head protection discontinued’ Total

$m sm Sm $m

Revenue 8.4 263.5 - 27118
Adjusted EBITDA (13.3) 38.8 (1.2) 243
Depreciation and amortisation o (15.0) - (15.0}
Impairment charges L - (0.4) 4.2) (4.6
Arnortisation of acquired intangibles - - ) 6.8) 6.8)
Operating {loss)/profit {13.3) 234 (12.2) (2.9
Finance costs 0.3) (3.9 (2.4) (6.4}
{Loss)/profit before taxation (13.6} 19.7 {14.6) (8.5)
Taxation 3.2 3.1 28 29
{Loss)/profit for the period from continuing operations (10.4} 16.6 (11.8) (5.6)
Discontinued operatxgﬁs - loss for the year - - (2.0} 2.0)
(Lossi/profit for the year (10.4) 16.6 13.8) (7.6)
Total assets 23.2 3248 - 348.0
Basic earnings per share {cents) ~ (34.3)c 54.7¢ h (45.5)¢ (25.13¢
Diluted earnings per share (cents) (34.3)c 54.7¢ (45.5)c {25.0)c

53 weeks ended 2 October 2021

Respiratory and Adjustments and

Armor  head protection discontinued’ Total

$m $m $m $m

Revenue 6.5 241.8 - 2483
Adjusted EBITDA (8.4) 460 g.0 466
Depreciation and ameortisation {2.1) {131 - (15.2)
Impairment charges - 0.4 (45 .8 - (46.2)
Armartisation of acquired mtang_rg\es o - - 042 {142)
Operating (loss)/profit s 325 {51.00 129.0)
finance costs - 0.3) o 2.8} (3.5) 6.6
(Lossi/profit before taxation (10.8) 297 (54 5) 135.6)
Taxation 23 12.6) 1.4 na
(Loss)/profit for the year from continuing operations (8.5 271 (431} 124.5}
Discontinued operations - loss for the year o - - (a n
(Loss)/profit for the year (8.5) 271 44 2) (25.6)
Total assets 14.5 3842 - 3987
Basic earnings pervshare {cents; o I é83c {1440 (83.5)c
Diluted earmings per share (cen-tsl‘ ] (27.7)c 88.3¢ (1-44,15.: 835)c
1 Zesss et eeripemerce Measues secs or 0 8 fr Srea g 0 ard 5Te TEg e, ML I PG e 520 3758 ang s, ity reemoszage 113

Revenue includes $1071 million (2021 $130.8 million) of revenues from the U5 DOD, sold directly and through irdirect chanrets. the anly customer which
indwidually contributes more than 10% 1o Group revenuss,
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued

2.1 Operating segments continued
Revenue analysed by geographic origin

2022 2021

$m $m

Europe 73.0 323
Us. 198.9 216.0
Tozal 2719 2483

Revenue by line of business - restated’

52 weeks ended ¥ October 2022

53 weeks ended 2 October 2021"

Head Head
Respiratory protection Armor Total Respiratory protection Armor Total
$m $m $m $m $m $m sm
U5 DOD 35.5 8.4 1071 86.1 391 6.5 131.7
Commercial Americas 25.2 - 65.7 40.4 224 - 628
UK. & International 9.8 - 99.1 42 1.7 - 538
70.5 84 PYAR:] 1686 732 65 2483

1 Follewing a re-orgamisation and further integrat-on of Tearn Wenay, the Group class fies revende into o 5 DOD (comprsing 2 US mlmary revenae), Commercia Amer'cas (which ncludes U4 furst
respander glus all “evenue from ather parts of tne A~encas), and U K &Internatonal icompnsing a | revenae autside the continents of Amencal, 2nor per o8 higures have been reclassified so they are

presented 01 a CoNsIsTent basis with the carrent penea,

Revenue by nature of performance obligation

2022 2021

$m $m

Sale of goods 2707 246.5
Provision of services: 1.2 1.8
215 2483

1 Products transferrec o the customier and therefare revenue recagnised ara pont -r ume

2 Prodacts and serv ces transferred oyer time and therefore reveruc recognisec cver that penod of tme

2.2 Discontinued operations

In Septernber 2020 the Group disposed of the entire milkrite | InterPuls business. As a result of the divestment the milkrite | InterPuls business has been
classified as discontinued. As part of the sale and purchase agreement, the Group entered into a Manufactuning Service Agreement with the purchasers
of milkrite | InterPuls to pravide ongoing manufacturing whilst arrangements are made to relocate manufactunng equipment from our UK. facility. The
Group also entered into agreements to provide certain other information technology and administrative services under a 12-manth Transitional Services
Agreement which has now concluded. As the activities under these agreements are not part of the continuing operations of the Group, the revenue and
costs during the period associated with these agreements have been classified as discontinued operations.

The resuits of discontinued operations are as follows:

2022 2021

$m $m

Revenue 3.2 41
Cost of sales {5.8) 15.3)
Gross loss (2.6 (1.2)
General and admmis&auve expenses - 09)
Operating loss (2.6) 21
Finance costs - -
Loss before taxaton (2.6 2n
Taxatien 0.6 1.0
Loss from discontinued operations (2.0) an
Basic earnings per share (6.6¢) (3.6
Diluted earnings per share - (Gt;c) S (3.60)
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NOTES TO THE GRQUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 2 - Results for the period continued

2.2 Discontinued operations continued
Cash flows from discontinued operations included in the cash flow statement are as follows.

2022 2021

$m $m
Net cash flows from operating activities (1.3} (3.3}
Net cash flows fro}n investing activities - 28
Net cash flows from discontinued operations 0.3 10.5)

2.3 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the eamings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of ardinary shares in
issue during the period, excluding those held in the employee share ownership trust, The Company has difutive potentiat ordinary shares in respect of the
Performance Share Plan,

Reconciliations of the earnings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculations are set out below, As the Graup was loss making on a
statutory basis in the current and prior periods, basic and diluted earnings per share are equivalent.

Weighted average number of shares 2022 2021
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue used in basic calculations (000) 30,308 30,669
Fotentially dilutive shares (weighted average) {000} - o 221 - 189
Diluted number of ordinary shares (weighted average) (‘OOO} 30,529 30858
2022 2021
Earnings S$m $m
Basic (7.6) (256)
Basic — continuing operatioﬂg 7 (5.6 - (24.5)
Basic — discontinued operatians (2.0) [ARM
2022 2021
Earnings per share $cents $cents
Basic (25.1) B35
g{c - continuing operations {18.5} ) (-799}
Basic — discontinued operat}ons (6.6) (3.6
Diluted (25.1) (83.5)
Diluted — continuing operations 7 (18.5) 17/99)
Eifured - drscontmu-ed oparations 6.6} (36)
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued
2.4 Expenses by nature

2022 2021

$m Sm

Employee and other staff costs B81.7 671
Legal and professional fees o 109 97
Depreciation and amortisation charges {notes 3.1 and 3.2) i 21.8 284
Impairment charges (Including $0.4m restructuring-related impairment) 4.6 46.2
Exchange differences - 03 1.2
Transportation expenses 9.2 _?6
Material costs o o 109.7 920
Release of contingent consideration 7 (3.9 {15.7)
Acquisition related costs - 26
Restructuring costs (excluding 504m restructuring-related impairment) 29 -
Transaction costs o 0.6 -
Other expenses o 36.2 371
Tota! cost ofsalé; 7sﬁeli'\ng and distribution costs and general and administrative expenses o 274.0 2773

1 Empioyee costs discloses in “ote 2.4 are presented on @ continung Easis for a'l statf-related costs expensed o the Camolidates Statemert of Cormprehers.ve Income They de not therefore reconc'e
torote&l

Expenses include $3.8 million {2021: 51.8 million} of staff costs and averheads in relaton 1o expensed research and development expenditure.

2.5 (Loss)/profit before taxation

2022 2021
sm $m

[Loss)/profit before taxation is shown after charging/{crediting):
Loss an disposal of property, plant and equipment - -
Repairs and mainterance of prope‘};;, plant and equipment - 4.2 05
Research and developrment 7 5.8 ) 18
impairment of trade reciel\fiab\es {note 5.4 0.1 (0 2)7
Services provided to the Group {including its overseas subsidiaries) by the Company's auditor;
A;dlt fees in respect of the audit of the accounts of the Group including subsidiaries 1.0 06
Audit fees in respect of the audit of the accorﬁ;ofthe Parent Company 0.2 02
Total audit fees 1.2 08
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

section 2 — Results for the period continued
2.6 Taxation

2022 2021
$m $m
[J K. current tax ] 7 0.7 04
LJ.K‘ adjustrment in respect of previous periods 7 (0.6) Tz
E)verseas current tax 7 A 2.7)
E)verseas adjustment in respect of previous periods 0.1 0e)
Tatal current tax charge/(credit) 03 29
E)eferred tax — current period ) ) 4.1) 6.5)
Deferred tax - adjustrnent in respect of previous periods 0.9 1.7}
;ota\ deferred tax charge (3.2) 8.2
Total tax credit {2.9) (1.1

The overseas adiustment in respect of the prior periad of $0.1 million 2021: credit of 50.6 million} includes a $0.3 million creditin connection with the
resolution of a number of prior period uncertain tax positions (2021: 50.3 million)

The above table excludes tax on discontinued operations which amounted to a credit of 50.6 million in the current period (2021 credit of $1.0 million)

The UK. Budget Announcement on 3 March 2021 stated that the corporation tax rate would increase to 25% (effective T April 2023); this increase was
substantively enacted on 14 May 2021 and will increase the Company's future current tax charge accordingly The impact of this increase s also reflected
in these financial staterments for all LLK. deferred tax assets,

The tax on the Group’s ioss)/profit before taxation differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard UK. tax rate applicable 1
profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

2022 2021

$m $m

Loss before taxation (8.5] {(35.6}
Taxation at the average standard rate of 19.0% {2021. 19.0%) 1.6 ©8)
Tex altowances (UK. and US) B 0.4) 03
ion—deducub\e expenses 0.2 0.2
Ehanges in tax rates ) ) (0.8) (O8]
E\fferences in overseas tax rates ) (0.7} 0.7
;dJustmem in respect of previous periods 0.4 o (2.6)
E)ta\ fax credit {2.9) (11

The income tax charged directly to other comprehensive income during the period was $0.2 million (2021: credit of $1.2 million). The deferred tax charged
directly to other comprehensive income during the period was 5157 milhon (2021 credit of $2.6 million} The deferred tax charged directly to egunty
during the pericd was $0.7 million {2021: $1.2 million)

Deferred tax liabilities
Accelerated

capital allowances Total

$m $m

ar 26 Septernber 2020 56 56
awarged to profrut for the pernod G5 - 05
;t 2 October 2021 61 1
aeid;ed to profit for the period ’ ) {0.3) {(0.3)
At 1 October 2022 58 5.8
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Section 2 - Results for the period continued

2.6 Taxation continued
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of temporary differences giving rise to deferred tax assets where it is probable that these assets will

be recovered.

Retirement Other
benefit Share Tax  Pension temporary
obligation  options losses spreading Intangibles Use Assets differences Total
$m $m s$m $m $m $m

At 26 September 2020 15.1 29 1.2 37 37 297
Credited/{charged) against profit
for the period - oAl 34 {1.3) (1.0} 83
lmmpact of change in tax rates
credited to profit for the period - - 08 02 - 0.8
{Charged)/credited to other
comprehensive income {3.1) - - - 0.3 2.8
Impact of change in tax rates
credited to other
comprehensive INCome 41 _ _ _ _ a1
Exchange differences offset
I reserves 10 0.2 @1 0.2 - 13
Charged to equity - (19) - - {19}
At2 October 2021 121 1.3 51 28 3¢ 40.2
Credited/(charged) agamst profit
for the period {1.2) 0.2 1.9 (0.4) 4.4 33
impact of change in tax rates
credited to profit for the period - - - 0.2 - (0.2)
Charged to other
comprehersive inccme (8.6) - - - - (9.6)
Impact of change in tax rates
charged to other
comprehensive income (3.4) - - - - (3.4)
Exchange differences offset
in reserves (1.3) (0.2) (0.6} (0.1) (0.5) 2.7)
Charged to equity - (0.7 - - - 0.7)
At 1 October 2022 1.6 c.6 6.4 2.1 6.9 26,7

The standard rate of corporation tax in the U K. is 19%. The Group has unrecognised deferred tax assets of $3.8 million (2021 $4.7 million) in respect of

capital losses where it s not considered that there will be sufficient available future profits to utilise these losses. The gross amount of unrecognised

deferred tax assets is $15.2 million and has no expiry date.

Deferred tax on pension spreading relates ta excess pension contributions made in the previous periods and in the current period for which tax relief is

spread across four years,

52.8 million {2021: $1.6 million) of the deferred tax asset within other temporary differences relates to inventory reserves and differing cost capitalisation
rules for accounting and tax purposes $1.8 rillion of deferred taxes within other ternporary defferences 1elates 1o the deductabulity of busimess interest
expense under IRC Section 163(), with the remainder of other temporary differences relating ta a number of smaller timing differences between the tax

and accounting teatment,
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 3 - Non-current assets
3.1 Intangible assets

Acquired Development Computer
Goodwill intangibles expenditure software Total
$m $m $m s$m $m

At 26 September 2020
Cast 303 265 g2 102 364
Accumulated amortisation and impairment L 138 290) “2) @0
Net book amount 303 327 204 60 89.4
53 weeks ended 2 October 2021
O_p(;ning net bock amount 30.3 327 204 6.0 894
Exchange differences 0.2 - 0.2 06 1.0
Additions S WUMW*— - 150 49 198
Acquisitions 583 51.7 - o 101
Armor-related impairments - {11.3) 8n - T —(]_9713
Other impairments T - 0.3 0.7 (1.0
Amortisation S - (14.2) 4.0} 08 {19.0)
Closing net book amount 88.8 589 232 101 1810
At 2 October 2021
Cost 38.8 98.2 64.6 151 266.7
Accumulaterd arnortisation and impairment - {39.3) 414 (5.0 (85.7)
Net book amount 888 589 2312 107 1810
52 weeks ended 1 October 2022
Opening net book amount 88.8 589 23.2 101 181.0
Exchange differences (0.1} - (1.2) - . ETB}
Additions - T 5.8 0.2 6.0
Impairments D - (2.0} - (2.0)
Amortisation N - (€.8) 4.7 (1.2) 12.7)
Closing net book amount 88.7 521 211 21 171.0
At1 October 2022
Cost 88.7 ‘49842 69.2 15.3 271.4
Accumulated amorthat{éﬁ_a-n'-ci_ir; pairment - (46.1) {48.1}) (6.2) {100.4)
Net book amount 887 521 211 8.1 171.0

1 Arorgeoirg develapment prejecrwas wr tten off duning the prior perod as 3 Terder 1o 0otain addinona trd party funmng was rot successtul
Camouter s0'Twae 1 Jces the wote down of $07 mion orought forward capitaised costs reiating to the co~figurat or and CJstCMSatcn €Osis 10 £'CUC COMEUTING arange Mer s, see adjustes
performarce measures

ko

The remaining useful economic life of the development expenditure is between four and ten years.
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Section 3 - Non-current assets continucd

3.1 Intangible assets continued

Impairment review

Development costs

The Group tests development cost assets not yet ready for use annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications of impairment.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment by grouping development assets into the smaliest identifiable group of assets generating future cash flows
largely independent from other assets (CGUs). Included in these CGUs are development expenditure as well as tangible assets related to the preduct
group. The CGUs have been tested against their recoverable amount deemed to be their value in use. Cash flows were discounted to give a present
value using pre-tax discount rates ranging between 17.5% and 29.1% {2021: 10.4%-37.2%) depending on the deemed associated risk profiles of each CGU
Discount factors applied to each CGU change year on year, driven by varying market factors and perceived risk profites for each CGU. The increase of the
risk-free rate in the current financial period has led to increased discount factors.

As a result of the review for the period, the following impairment charges were identified:

+ General Service Respirator (GSR), fuily impaired by $2.9 million due to a change made an costing assumptions and forecast cash flow periods, driven by
changes in market factors (0.7 million development expenditure, $2.2 million plant and machinery),

+ other respiratory asset development expenditure, impaired by $1.1 million due to a change in expected forecast cash flows and changing market
factors. 50.7 million of these impairments were considered exceptionat, due to their materiality (see alternative performance measures); and

« armor-specific development expenditure, exceptianally impaired by $0.2 million for a small number of reclassified assets.
Following the impairment charges recognised, recoverable amounts were equal to carrying amounts.
For the GSR the following key assurnptions were used as part of the value in use analysis:

« apre-tax discount rate of 24.19%; and

- rash flow over a period of 2.5 years, including an assumption of contractual extensions and improved gross profit margins.

Sensitivity analysis has shown that if operating profit margins for this product improved by a further 25% in the extended contract periods, a full
impairment would still need to be recognised.

Sensitivity analysis on other respiratory assets has shown that a decrease in forecast net cash flows frorn the relevant product range by 10% would lead to
an additional impairment of $0.2m.

At the year end 312.2 million of development costs relate to technology under development (2021: $13.0 million}, including 51.5 million subject to final
feasibility tests (2021: $3.9 million). If final feasibility tests are unsuccessful or delayed such that the projected ecenomic benefit will not be achieved in the
asset’s fifetime, these costs, along with associated assets, could be subject to impairment,

New product development in its early development stages is subject ta assumptions made regarding demands in the market. If such demand did
not materialise approximately 9% of capitalised developrent casts ($1.9 million} could be subject to impairment, along with associated assets (2021:
510 million).

Goodwill impairment testing

Separately, goodwill was tested for impairment by comparing the carrying values against the value in use of the relevant CGU group, being the respiratory
and head protection operating segment which is now the only operating segment with goodwill (see goodwill section below). The value in use
calculations were based on projected cash flows derived from the latest three-year plan approved by the Board. Cash flows for beyond three years for the
respiratory and head protection CGU were projected to grow by 2.0% p.a. Cash flows were discounted (o give a present value using a pre-tax discount rate
of 14.3% (2021: 8.9%). The post-tax discount rate applied across the Group was 9.9% (2021. 7.4%). These discount rates were derived using external expert
advice taking into consideration current market conditions pased on LS. market data.

Sensitivity analysis demonstrates that a decrease in forecast EBITDA of more than 31% (2021: 58%) could be sustained before an impairment may be
required. In addition, increasing the discount rate by 2% would not lead to any indications of impairment,

2021 armor-related impairments

On 12 November 2021 the Group announced the next generation VTP ESAPI body armor product had failed first srticle testing. This followed a similar
resultin December 2020 for the legacy DLA ESAPI body armor product. It was also announced that the Group was experiencing further delays to
achieving final product approval for the DLA ESAP! product,

The failure of the VTP ESAPI body armor product was considered an adjusting event that provides evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the
reporting period As such the Group's iImpairment review of assets at 2 October 2021 included the removal of all future revenue for VTP ESAPI body armor.
The impairment review also incorporated reduced revenue expectations for DLA ESAPI
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 3 - Non-current assets continued

3.1 Intangible assets continued

2021 armor-related impairments continued

Impafrment testing at 2 October 2021 for assets related 1o the armor business was performed at multiple levels as these assets generate cash inflows along
with assets in other parts of the Group. The levels of impairment testing were as follows.

1) Product level - VTP ESAPI and DLA ESAPL are both separate products. Included in these CGUs are development expenditure, tangible assets related to
the product group, inventory and acquired intangibles where associated with the development project.

2) Armor business level - this includes the VTP ESAPI and DLA ESAPI CGUs, and other armor specific assets such as acquired intangibles as well as PPE
(including right of use assets) which solely relate to the entire armor business.

3) Ballistic level — this includes the armor business assets, and the assets related to the acquired Ceradyne helmet business

4} Avon Protection business level - this includes ballistic assets and other assets that make up the Avon Pratection operating segment, including goodwill
relating to the Ceradyne acquisition {see below).

The impairment review of the prior period resulted in total non-current asset impairment of $45.1 million in respect of assets relating to the Ceradyne
arrnor business acquired from 3M as part of the ballistic protection acquisition - these arose atthe individual product level and the armor business level,
In addition, inventory provisions of $1.7 million were recognised against VTP ESAPI armor materials. Offsetting these charges, a gain of $15.7 million was
recognised to reduce the net present value of the contingent consideration payable to 3M as a result of the reduced revenue expectations from the DLA
ESAPI body armor contract,

In 2022 revenue expectations from the DLA ESAPI body armor contract have further reduced, resulting in an additional gain of $3.9 million on refease of
the rernaining net present value of the cantingent consideration payable Offsetting this credit, inventory provisions of $1.6 million were recognised in
respect of raw materials heid for the DLA ESAP! body armor contract,

The pre-tax discount rates used in FY21 in determining the value in use at each level were between 8.9% on the Avon Protection business level and 62 3%
at the product level, reflecting the level of uncertainty associated with each of the asset groups reviewad for impairment.

There was no further impairment when subseguently testing ballistic protection level assets and finally Avon Protection CGL assets against expected values
in use. Goodwill melating to the Ceradyne acquisition of $28.0 million and the Ceradyre helret intangible assers with a carryineg value of $22.9 milion were
unaffected by the impairment review and have been allocated in full to the respiratory and head protection operating segment.

The impairments fully wrote down armor assets to recoverable amounts The overall armor asset base, impairments charged and remaining recoverable
amounts at 2 October 2021 were as follows

Recoverable

Carrying value Impairment amounts

Armor-specific assets at 2 October 2021 $m sm $m
Acquired intangibles - 1n3 {11.3) -
Die\{e\opmentexpenditure . 8. 8.1) -
Right of use assets n B ] nz . 1.7 -
Plant and machinery ) 14.4 {139 405—
Leasehold improvements 01 @n -
Inventary 133 (1.7} 1.6
Total 588 (46.8) 12.1

There were no further additions or other changes to armor-specific non-current assets in the current period

Recoverable amounts for plant and machinery are based on fair value less casts to sell. These are considered level 2 assets in a fair value hierarchy,
valeed based on rarket dala fur resale vaiues or disposal @ he recoverable armount for all other assets 1s based upor the relevant value in use,

Remanimg non-cunent assers have bBoth tar value less costs 1o sell and vatue imuse of Sl

Changes in the discount rate ar growth rate utiised in the product level and armor level reviews would not have rmaterially changad the total impairment
Impairments were recognised through general and admiristrative expenses in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income.

The failures in tesung wathin the armor business did natimpact respiratory and head protection products, and the Group remains confident future
regulatory approvals will be obtained for these businesses as required,

Goodwill

Goodwill acguired in a business combination is allocated 1 the groups of cash-generating units (CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business
combination. During the prior period additional goodwill of 558 3 millian was recognised on the acquisiter of the assets of Team Wendy Subseguent
to these transactions the fuli carrying value of $58.3 million associated with Team Wendy was recognised in the Team Wendy CGLU with the full carrying
value of $28.0 million associated with the acquisition of tre 3M ballistic orotacnion business beirg recogrised in the Avon Pratectior CGU, ‘ollowing the
incorporation of the 3M ballistic protection business into te Avan Pratectan operatirg segmeart
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Section 3 - Non-current assets continued

3.1 Intangible assets continued

Goodwill continued

Following a reorganisation in the current period, the Avon Protection operating segment has been disaggregated into two operating and reporting
segments, these being respiratory and head protection and armor. Team Wendy has been fully integrated into the wider respiratory and head
protection segment As a consequence, the goodwlll previously recognised within the Team Wendy CGU has been fully allocated to the respiratory
and head protection segment On the creation of armaor as a separate operating segment, the Group evaluated the allocation of goodwill generated
on the acquisition of the 3M ballistic protection business using the relative value method. On this basis, no goodwill was allocated to the armor
operaling segment.

Acquired intangibles
Acquired intangibles include brands, customer relationships and other intangibles:

At

At 2 October 1 October

2021 2022

Netbook amount Additions Amortisation Impairment Net bookamount

$m $m $m $m sm

Brand 1.5 - 1.1) - 10.4
Customer relationships 284 - (3.00 - 254
Other intangibles 19.0 - 2.7) - 16.3
58.9 - (6.8) - 521

At 26 September At 2 October

2020 2021

Netbock amount Additions Amortisation Impairment Netbookamount

$m $m $m $m $m

Brand 22 104 [{R)] - 1.5
Customer relationships 200 28.2 (10.0) 98) 284
Otherintangibles 10.5 131 (3.0 {1.5) 130
327 517 (14.2) 1.3 589

The valuation of acquired assets is determined at point of acquisition, using complex valuation techniques including forecasting and discounting of future
cash flows. This includes assumptions such as discount rates, royalty rates and estimates for growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and useful lives.

In the prior period, the Group acquired additional Intangibles through the acquisition of the Team Wendy business (see note 72) which related to

trade names ($10.4 million), technology 5131 million) and customer contracts (528.2 million). External experts were engaged to support the Group in
establishing appropriate estimates for the fair values of these assets. Trade names and technology were valued using the relief from royalty method, whilst
customer contracts were valued using the excess earnings method. Assumptions adopted for the valuation of the individual assets Included average
annual growth rates of 4.7-5 4% for revenue forecasts, rovalty rates between 1-7.5% depending on the individual assets, relevant qualitative factors and
comparable market data as well discount factors of 10.6-12.6%, based on current market data and the risks associated with each of the individual assets.

Sensitivity analysis has shawn that a reduction of assumed growth rates by 2% would have led to a reduced value of $1.6 million across the acquired
intangibles with a corresponding increase in value of goodwill. A change in assurmed discount factors by 1% would have led to a change in value

of $2.1 milhon and a 10% variance ir assumed royalty rates would have led to a change in value of $2.4 millien across acquired intangibies with a
corresponding change in the valuation of goodwill.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships include two separately identifiable individually material contracts, one with the National Industries for the Blind (NIB) and cne
with the Defense Logistics Agency (DLA). The NI contract was acquired in the prior period through the acquisition of Team Wendy at a fair value of
$14.9 million. As at 1 October 2022, this acquired intangible had a carrying value of $12.3 million and a remaining arrortisation period of nine years.

The DLA contract was acquired in the period ending 26 September 2020 through the acquisition of the 3M ballistic protection business at a fair value of
$20.0 million and an initial amortsation period of three years. As a result of {ower revenue expectations from this contract, an impairment of $8.3 million
was recognised in the prior period within general and administrative expenses to reduce the carrying value to $nit as at 2 October 2021,

Other customer relationships include those associated with the acquisition of the 3M ballistic protection business originally recognised at a fair value of
559 million amartised over five years The remaining carrying value of these assets is $1.6 million, after amartisation charges, and a $1.5 million impairment
in the prior year as a result of the armor review.

Qther customer relatiorsnips also included other Teamn Wendy customer relatonships acquired at fair value of $13.3 million. As at 1 October 2622, thess
acgurred intangibles had a carrying value of $11.5 mithion and a remaining amortsation period of 12 years
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Saction 3 - Non-current assets continued
3.2 Property, plant and equipment

Lease Plant and Leasehold
Freeholds assets machinery improvements Total
$m $m $m ém $m

At 26 September 2020
Cost - 23 375 838 13 1254
Accumulated depreciation and impairment .1 7 1.8 46 6) H - @95
Net book amount 17 257 372 13 659
53 weeks ended 2 October 2021
Opening nét book amo;r_wt .7 257 372 - 13 E
E;change differences - 05 ) 0.5 - 10
Additions ‘ 02 16 20 ) 25 13.3
Acqumitio; _ 31 54 01 7 8.6
Reclassificaton 7 - - 4.0r - 40
Armaor review impairments ‘ - (1.7 (139) ) 0.1 {25.7)
Other impairment o - e on - 7(01)
Depreciation charge oy @2 ) oy (04
Closing net book amount 1.8 150 283 35 486
At 2 October 2021
Cost 30 427 947 39 144.3
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1.2)‘ - (277} 66.4) {0.4) 7 (95.7)
Net book amount 1.8 150 283 35 48.6
52 weaeks ended 1 October 2022
Opening net book amount ) 1.8 15.0 283 35 483"
Exchange differences ) - {1.2) {0.9) - (2.1
Additians - “ 2.2 29 - 7 5.1
Impairments__ - (0.4) (2.2) - (2.6)
Depreciation charge 7 {0.1) (3.0} {5.5) (0.5) 9.1)
Closing net book amount 1.7 126 22.6 30 399
At 1 October 2022
Cost 3.0 432 96.8 39 1469
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1.3) (30.6) - (74.2) {0.9) (107.0)
Net book amount 1.7 12.6 22.6 3.0 39.9

I Following ararterna review of assets acawred . tre paor period as part of e acquisnon of the M e 1shic orotection ousiress, [e Groapnas reclass fec 340 mill on from fxed assets to ryvertory
due to rme arderlyrg natyre of suck assets cerg corsamable ard nav g a short ugefal ecenamic fe

Property, plant and equipment with a net book amount of $29.4 million 15 located within the United States of America (2021: 335 5 million), The balance 1
located in the United Kingdom.

33 7 milhon (2021: 541 milhon) of expenditure included in the carrying value of plant and machinery relates to assets under construction.

The $3.4 milion right of use asset Impairmert relates to the closure of one of our U S. offices under the overkead reduction programme The $2.2 milhion
plant and machinery impairment is detailed in note 31

2021 armor review related impairments
Tre Group performed an impairment review of assets at 2 October 2621 following the falure of the VTP ESAPH bady armor product (note 3 1), As a result of
this reviewy impairments totalling $25.7 milllon were recognised on property, plant and equipment.

The nght of use assetimpairment of $11 7 million fully wrote dawr amourits relating to U S leasehold properties that will be vacated fo lowing clasure of
the armror business

The plart ang machinery irrpairment of $13.9 million wrete down assets related to the armor busiress located at these facilites ta therr estimated
recoverable amount following clasure of the coerations
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Section 4 - Working capital

This section presents disclasures around the Group's working capital balances, inventories, trade receivables, payables and cash.

4.1 Inventories

2022 2021

sm $m

Raw rnaterials 36.6 394
Work in progress 210 86
Finished goods 18.2 169
Imventory — gross 75.8 749
Inventory provisions (10.2} {12.6)
Inventory - net 65.6 623

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost of sales amounted to $1809.7 million (2021: $52.0 million). The amount of inventory

carried as fair value less costs to sell is $nil (2021: Snil)

4.2 Trade and other receivables

2022 201

sm $m

Trade receivables 26.6 398
Less provision for impairment of receivables (0.5} 0.4
Trade receivables — net 26.1 394
Prepayments 4.3 44
Other recevables 0.2 0.3
30.6 447

The Group has no contract assets in the current or prior period

See note 5.4 {ii) Credit risk for further details in relation to the Group provision for impairment of receivables. Changes in provisions for impaired receivables
are included within general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

4.3 Cash and cash equivalents

2022 201
$m ém
Cash and cash equivalents 4.5 14.1
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in U5, dollars, pounds sterling and euros and earn interest based on naticnal rates.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 4 - Working capital continued
4.3 Cash and cash equivalents continucd
The Group generates cash from 1ts operating activities as follows'

2022 2021
$m Sm
Cantinuing operations
Loss for the periad {5.6) {24.5)
Adjustments for ]
Taxation B ‘ o 2.9 (a7
Depreciation ) ) 91 104
Amortisation of intangible assets ) 12,7 19.0
Impairment Of-non—(unent assets {excluding $0.4m right of use asset imp;i-rmemt) o 4.2 4672
Defined benefit pension scheme cost . 0.8 1.2
Finance costs 4.0 ) 31
Gther finance expense - 24 35
Change in contingent consideration ] i (3.9) (157)
lFairvalue of share-based payments 1.0 07
Acquisition costs expensed - 26
Tramsaction costs:cpensed - 0.6
Restructuring costs expensed (En&ludmg 50.4m right of use asset impairment) 33 -
Increase in inventories (5.0) )
Decrease in receivables i e 54
Increasein payat;;s and provisions ) 4.1 02
Cash flows from continuing operations before restructuring, transaction and acquisition costs 36.4 313
Restructuring, transaction and acquisition costs paid {1.6) (4.4)
Cash flows from continuing operations 34.8 268
Discontinued operations
[t;;s far the perx-éa- 7 (2.0} 7 n
AdjustmenE for: 7 _
Taation o 06) G0
Decrease inrecelvables . 0.2 -
Increase/(decrease} in payables and provisions W 1.1 n
Cash flows from discontinued operations (1.3) (33
Cash flows from operations 335 236
4.4 Trade and other payables
2022 2021
sm sm
Trade payables - 20.0 229
Contract Iiabditw'e_s_— 1.7 33
Other taxahior ana social secﬁr'wty N 1.0 08
Other payables 0.3 7 G.2
Accruais B 19.5 128
42.3 400

Contract liabilities represent amourts invoiced under contracts with customers but not recognised as revenue at the balance sheet date and cash
received in advance. $3.3 millior (2021 $09 million) of the balance in contract liabilities at the start of the period was recognised as revenue in the current
penod The outstanding balarce at the end of the period I1s expected 1o be recogrised withir tne next 12 montns,

Other payables comprise sundrey iterrs wiich are not individually sigrificant for disclasure
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Section 5 - Funding

The following section provides disclosures about the Group's funding pasition, including borrowings, finance costs, expasure 1o financial risks and capital

management policies.

5.1 Borrowings

2022 2021
$m $m
Current -
Lease liabilities 7 - S 4.1 N 46
Non-current
Bank loans 537 409
Lease liabifities ) MV'i9‘7 251
73.4 66.0
Total Group borrowings 77.5 700
Bank loans comprise drawings under the revolving credit facility.
The Group has the following undrawn committed facilities:
2022 2021
$m $m
Expiring beyond one year
Jotal undrawn committed borrowing facilities 151.3 164.1
Bank loans and overdrafts uti\lsea 53.7 409
Total Group facilities 205.0 2050

The Group has a revelving credit facility (RCF) with a total commitment of $200 million across six lenders with an accardion option of an additional $50
million, $142 million of the facility matures on 8 September 2025. The remaining $58 millicn matures on & September 2024, subject to a one-year extension

option to 8 September 2025.

The RCF 1s subject ta financial covenants measured on a biannual basis, These include a limit of 3.0 tmes for the ratio of net debt, excluding lease labilities,
to bank-defined adjusted EBITDA (leverage). The Group was in compliance with all financial covenants during the current and prior financial periods

The RCF is drawn in short to medium-term tranches of debt which are repayable within 12 months of draw-down. These tranches of debt can be rolled over
provided certain conditions are met, including covenant compliance, The Group considers that it is highly unlikely it would be unable to exercise its right to
roll aver the debt based an forecast covenant compliance. Even in a severe downside scenario there are mitigating actions {within the control of the Group)
that could be taken to maintain compliance with these conditions, including future covenant requirements. The Directors therefore believe that the Group
has the ability and the intent to roll over the drawn RCF amounts when due and consequently has presented the RCF as a non-current liability.

The RCF is floating rate priced on the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) plus a margin of 1.45-2.35% depending on leverage. The Group has

provided the lenders with a negative pledge in respect of certain shares in Group companies

In addition to the RCF cur U.S. operations have access ta a $5.0 miflion overdraft facility, used to manage short-term liguidity requirements.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding ccntinued

5.1 Borrowings continued
The table below presents the maturity analysis in respect of lease liabilities and bank loans:

2022 2021

sm $m

In one year or less, or on demand 4.1 40
Two to five years - 655 SE

j\lﬂore than five years 7 7 79 102

Total Group borrowings 77.5 700

Lease liabilities relate to land and buildings (nght of use assets) leased by the Group far its office space and manufacturing facilities. The leases typicatly
run for a period of 5-15 years. Most leases include ar option to renew the lease for an additional period of 3-10 years after the end of the contract
term. Where practicable, the Group seeks to include extension options in new leases to provide operational flexibility The extension options held

are exercisable only by the Group and not by the lessors. The Group assesses at lease commencement whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the
extension options. It reassesses whether it 15 reasonably certain to exercise the options if there is a significant change in circumstances within its control
and discloses any potential future lease payments not included in lease liabilities where 1t s reasonably certain extension options will be exercised.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets compnise {T and other equipmenrt

5.2 Net finance costs

2022 2021
$m m
Finance costs
—-Et_eTe_st payable on bank loans and overdrafts (2.5) 7 (14)
- Interest payable in respect of Iv;ases : {1.0) ()
- Amortisation of finance fees ’ {0.5) (0‘6737
(4.0) (3.1
Other finance expenses:
— Net interest cost: U K,_deﬁned benefit pension scheme (note 6.2} (1.3 ’ 1.3)
- Unwinding of discount an contingent censideration (note 7.1) {1.1) {22)
(2.4) (3.5}
Net finance costs (6.4) (6.6)
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet dates were as follows:
2022 2021
Sterling Dollar Sterling Dollar
% % % %
Bank ioans (interest payable on drawn facilities) - 4.75% - 160%
Lease liabilities 7.70% B 2.80% 6.50% 2.50%
Floating interest on bank loans has been hedged using interest rate swaps as described in note 5.4(v)
Movement analysis for interest due on bank loans
At 02 October Non cash Exchange At 01 October
2021 Cash flow movements movements 2022
sm $m $m $m $m
Interest due on bank loans - (2.5) 2.5 - -
At 26 September Non cash Exchange At 02 October
2020 Cash flow movements movements 2021
sm $m $m $m $m
Interest dus on nank loans 0. (1.3) 14 - -

In additior to cash flows disclosed abave forinterest payable, the Group paid $0.2 million in the penod 2021 30 3 milion} reiating o RCF extens.on
options (nate 5.1)
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Section 5 - Funding continued
5.3 Analysis of net cash/{debt)

At 2 October Non-cash Exchange At 1 October

2021 Cash flow movements movements 2022

im Sm sm $m Sm

Cash and cash equivalents 14.1 (4.2) - 0.4) 9.5
Bank loans (40.9) (12.8) - - {33.7)
Net debt excluding lease liabilities (26.8) (17.0) - (0.4) (44.2)
Lease liablities (29.1) 5.1 (1.4) 1.6 (23.8)
Net debt (55.9) (11.9) (1.4) 1.2 (68.0)
At 26 September Non-cash Exchange At 2 October

2020 Cash flow movements movements 201

5m $m $m $m $m

Cash and cash equivalents 187.2 (173.7) - 06 14.
Bank loans (39.5} {14 - - (40.9)
Net cash/{debt) excluding lease liabilities 147.7 (175.1) - 0.6 (26.8)
Lease liabilities (29.0) 4.8 4.2) 0.7 29.10
Net cash/{debt) 18.7 {170 3} 4.2) @1) {55.9)

5.4 Financial instruments

Financial instruments by category

Trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments) and cash and cash equivalents are classified as ‘financial assets” Borrowings and trade and other
payables are classified as ‘other financial liabllities at amortised cost’ Both categories are initially measured at fair value and subsequently held at
armortsed cost.

Derivatives (interest rate swaps) are classified as 'derivatives used for hedging' and accounted for at fair value with gains and losses taken to reserves
through the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income,

Contingent consideration arising from the 3M ballistic protection business acquisiton is accounted for at fair value. For further details see note 7.

Financial risk and treasury policies

The Group's finance team maintains liguidity, manages relations with the Group's bankers, identifies and manages risk and provides a treasury service to
the Group's businesses. Treasury dealings such as investments, borowings and foreign exchange are conducted only to support underlying business
transactions.

(iy Credit risk
Credit nisk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group's receivables from customers and monies on deposit with financial institutions.

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortised cost and contract assets {as defined
in{FRS " 5).

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Cradit losses are measured as the prosent value of all cash shortfalls (e the difference betwoeen
the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are discounted at the
effective interest rate of the financial asset,

Loss aflowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount equal to lifetume ECL

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Company
considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis, based an the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Lifatime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected fife of a financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments continued
Financial risk and treasury policies continued
(i Credit risk continued

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

2022 2021
Carrying amount of financial assets sm sm
Trade receivables 261 394
Other receivables 0.2 09
Cash and cash equivalents 9.5 a 4.1
358 544
The maximum exposure 1o credit risk for financial assets at the reporting date by currency was:
2022 2021
Carrying amount of financial assets $m $m
Pound sterling 2.2 59
U.S. dollar 319 47.2
Euro 1.2 1.2
Other currencies . 0.5 - R
358 544
The ageing of trade receivables and associated provision for impairment at the reporting date was
Gross Provision Net Gross Provision Net
2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
$m $m $m $m $m $m
Mot past due 18.8 - 18.8 366 - 36.6
Pastdue O 30 days 6.9 T - 6.9 25 - 25
Past due 31-60 days 03 (0.2) ol 03 - 03
Past due 61-90 days - - - 01 (eR )] o
Past due more than 91 daysr ) 0.6 (0.3) 0.3 03 0.3) -
266 {0.5) 26.1 398 0.4 394

The total past due receivables, net of pravisions, 1s $7.3 million (2021: $2.8 million)

Individtually impaired receivables relate 1o a small number of specific customers. Provisions for impairment are based on expected creditlosses and are
estimated based on knowledge of customers and historical experience of losses. A portion of these receivables is expected to be recoverad

Movernents on the Group pravision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

2022 2021

$m Sm

AT the beginning of the perod 0.4 [¢23]
Provision for w'-mpawrment of‘trard;firécewvables 0.1 0.2)
At the end of the period 0.5 04

The only significant cencentration of cradit risk is with the U S, Gavernment Department of Defense At the balance sheet date outstanding trade

receivabiles for this customer were $3.0 million (3021: $176 1illion).

The credit risk in relation to trade receivables is managed via credit evaluations for all non-Government customers requiring credit above a certam
threshoid, with required approval levels deperdent on the value of sales Where possible, letters of credit or payments in advance are recerved for

significant export sales.
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Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Finandial instruments continued
Financial risk and treasury policies continued
(i} Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they falt due. The Group's approach ta managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation.

The Group uses weekly cash flow forecasts to monitor cash requirerents and to optimise its borrowing position. Typically the Group ensures that It has
sufficient borrowing facilities to meet foreseeable operational expenses.

The following shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, ncluding interest payments, where applicable, and excluding the impact of netting

agreements and on an undiscounted basis

Carrying Contractual Less than
amount cash flows 12 months 2-5 years After 5 years
Analysis of contractual cash flow maturities $m $m $m $m $m
2 October 2022
Bank loans and overdrafts 53.7 63.6 4.2 59.4 ’ -
Trade and other payables 41.3 a3 41.3 - -
Lease liabilities 238 296 49 141 10.6
Derivatives 0.5 Q.5 0.2 0.3 o
Contimgemrtmgonsid eration - - - - -
119.3 135.0 50.6 738 10.6
Carrying Contractual Less than
amount cash flows 12 months 2-5 years After 5 years
Analysis of contractual cash flow maturities $m $m $m $m $m
1 October 2021
Bank loans and overdrafts 409 445 14 431 -
Trade and other payables 392 39.2 392 - -
Lease liabilities 297 356 5.0 V2.7 139
Derivatives - _ - _ _
Eic;;m[ingent consideration 60 72 35 37 -
115.2 1275 49,1 645 139

(i) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to transactional fareign exchange risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales and purchases
are denominated and the respective functional currencies of Group companies. The functional currencies of Group companies are sterling and U 5. dollars.

Transactional risk 1s minimised through natural hedging of sales and purchase currencies at a Company level. The Group monitors net transactional
exposure and can utilise forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the rernaining currency risk. These contracts are generally designated as cash flow

hedges. At the end of the reporting period there were no forward contracts outstanding (2021: $nil}.

The Group is also exposed 1o translational foreign exchange risk arising when the results of sterling denominated companies are consolidated into the
Group presentational currency, U.S. dollars Group policy is not to hedge translational foreign exchange risk.

In respect of monetary assets and liabilities that are not denominated in Company functional currencies, the Group regularly reviews net exposure and
ensures this is kepi to an acceptable level by monitoring intercompany funding structures and buying or selling foreign currencies where necessary to

address short-term imbalances.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued

5.4 Financial instruments continued

Financial risk and treasury policies continued

(iii) Currency risk continued

Sensitivity analysis

It 15 estimated that, with all other variables held equal (in particular other exchange rates), a one centincrease in the value of the Us dollar against sterling
would have increased the Group's current year profit before interest and tax by $0 2 million (2021:$0 2 million), increased the Group's profit after tax by
502 mill'on (2027 50 2 millicn) and increased shareholders' funds by $6.2 million (20212506 million).

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year

Average rate Closing rate Average rate Closing rate

2022 2022 2021 2021

Pound sterling 0.7841 0.9058 073N 0.7384
{iv) Interest rate risk

2022 2021

Derivative financial instruments —interest rate swaps $m $m

Current 0.2 -

Non-current 03 -

0.5 -

At2 October Non-cash At 1 October

2021 Cash flow movements 2022

sm $m $m $m

Interest rate swaps - - 0.5 05

The RCF is floating rate priced using the Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR). In 2022 the Group has implemented a new hedging policy using
interest rate swaps o fix a portion of SOFR floating rate interest The notional value of interest rate swaps at 1 October 2022 was $30 0 million (2021 $nil),
expiring on 8 September 2025 in line with the RCF.

After taking account of hedging, a 1 0% increase in SOFR would increase interest payable on bank loans by $0.2 million (2021: $0.2 million)

(v) Capital risk management
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue a5 a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakehalders, whilst maintaining an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital ta shareholders or
issue new shares.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, calculated as net debt excluding lease liabilities divided by capital, and ieverage {note 5.1},
The Group's gearing ratic at the balance sheet date was:

2022 2021

$m $m

Net debt excluding lease liabilites {44.2) {26.8)
Group market capitalisation o o 385.0 7 8155
aéarung ratic 7 an 003
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Section 5 - Funding continued
5.4 Financial instruments continued
Financial risk and treasury policies continued

(v} Fair values
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet, are as follows:

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value

2022 2022 2021 20

$m $m $m $m

Trade receivables 26.1 26.1 394 394
Cther receivables 0.2 i 0.2 09 09
Derivatives o 0.5 i 0.5 - -
Cash and cash equivalents ) 9.5 9.5 14.] 14.1
Barik loans and overdrafts (53.7) (53.7) 409) 1409)
Tradg and other payables ) 7(41.3) 41.3) (39.2) 139.2)
-Cdmt(ﬂgeﬁt cémswderatlon - - - {6.0) 6.0

Basis for determining fair value
The following summarises the significant methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial instrurments reflected in the table above.

Derivatives
The Group’s interest rate swaps are not traded in active markets. These have been fair valued using observable interest rates. The effects of non-
observable inputs are not significant for Interest rate swaps.

Counterparty banks perform valuations of interest rate swaps for financial reporting purposes, determined by discounting the future cash flows at rates
determined by year end yield curves.

Secured loans
As the loans are floating rate borrowings, amortised cost is deerned to reflect fair value.

Trade and other receivables/payables
As the majority of receivables/payables have a remaining life of less than one year, the notional amount is deemed to reflect the fair value.

Contingent consideration

The estimated fair value is calculated as the present value of the future expected cash flows relating to the contract discounted using a risk-adjusted
discount rate. Key unobservable inputs into the fair value calculation are the expected future cash flows and the risk adjusted discount rate. The estimated
fair value would change if the expected cash flows were lower than expected or the discount rate applied was higher.

5.5 Equity
Share capital
Ordinary Share Ordinary Share
Number shares premium Number shares premium
of shares 2022 2022 of shares 2021 2021
2022 $m $m 2021 $m $m
Called up allotted and fully
paid ordinary shares of £1 each )
At the beginning of the period 31,023,292 50.3 54.3 31,023,292 503 54.3
At the end of the period 31,023,292 50.3 54.3 31,023,292 503 54.3

Ordinary shareholders are entitled to receive dividends and to vote at meetings of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 5 - Funding continued
5.5 Equity continued
Own shares held — Long-Term Incentive Plan

2022 2021

Number of shares Number ofshares

Opening balance ) 334,933 393,560
;chred in the period ) ) s 95,855
Dispased of on exercise of aptians o (73,219) 2159,482)
Closing balance 261,714 334,933

These shares are held in trust in respect of awards made under the Avon Rubber pl.c Long-Term Incentive Plan Dividends on the shares have been
waived. The market value of shares held in trust at 1 Cetober 2022 was $3.2 million {2 October 2021: $8.8 million}. The shares are held at cost as treasury
shares and deducted frorm shareholders’ equity

In December 2021 73,216 shares vested under the Avon Rubber p.lc. Long-Term Incentive Plan and were distributed to employees (2021, 159,482 shares
vested and were distributed to employees in January 2021).tn the 53 weeks ended 2 October 2021 95,855 shares were acquired by the trust.

Own shares held - Share Buyback Programme
2022 2021

Number of shares Number of shares

Opening balance - _

Acquired in the period 765,098 -
Closing balance 765,098 -

In the 52 weeks ended 1 October 2022 the Group completed a £9.25 million (512 4 million) Share Buyback Programme, purchasing 765,098 ordinary
shares. Dividends on the shares have been waived. Purchased shares under the pragramme are held at cost as treasury shares and deducted from
shareholders’ equity.

5.6 Dividends
On 28 January 2022, the shareholders approved a final dividend of 30.6 cents per qualifying ordinary share in respect of the 53 weeks ended 2 October
2021, This was paid on 11 March 2022 utilising 59.1 million of shareholders funds (2021: $7.7 millian}

The Board of Directors declared an interim dividend of 14 3 cents (2021, 14 3 cents) per qualifying ordinary share in respect of the 52 weeks ended
1 October 2022, This was paid on 2 Septermber 2027 utilisi~g $4.3 million (2021: $4.4 million) of shareholders’ funds.

The Board is recornmending a final dividend of 30 6 cents per share (2021: 30.6 cents) which together with the 14.3 cents per share interim dividend gives a
total dividend of 44 9 cents (2021, 44.3 cents). The final dividend will be paid on 10 March 2023 to shareholders on the register at 10 February 2023 with an
ex-dividend date of 9 February 2023,

Dividend cover

2022 01

$ cents $ cents

Intenm dividend 14.3 14.3
Final dividend 7 30.6 306
Total dividend 449 449
Basic earnings per share - continuing operations (18.5) (799)
Dividend cover ratio (0.4) times (1.8} urnes
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Section & - Key management and employee benefits
The following pages include disclosures on wages and salaries and share option schemes which allow employees of the Group to take an equity interest
In the Group.

This section alse Includes disclosures in relation to both the U K defined benefit scheme which was closed to future accrual of benefitin 2008, and
contributions made to defined contribution schemes,

6.1 Employees
Total remuneration and associated costs for the period, in relation to bath continuing and discontinued operations, were:

2022 2021

$m $m

Wages and salaries 66.3 63.0
Hocial sacuriry costs T 6.0 56
Other pension costs 3.0 29
LS, healthcare costs - 6.4 58
Share-based payments (note 6.3} 1.0 0.7
82.7 78.0

Detailed disclosures of Directors’ remuneration and share options, iIncluding disclosure of the highest paid Director, are given on page 98,

The average menthly number of employees {including Executive Directors) during the period was:

2022 pLor3]
Number Number
Avon Protection 1,024 1,043

At the end of the financial period, the total number of employees in the Group was 1,007 (2021: 1,057).

Key management compensation
The key management compensation below includes the Executive Cirectors pius five (2021: seven) others who were members of the Group Executive
during the period. It does not include Non-Executive Directors,

2021
2022 m
$m restated’
Salaries and other employee benefits 318 31
Post-employment benefits 0.2 03
4.0 34

1 Restated to exclude Mon-Sxecut ve Directors
The value of LTIP share awards held by key managernent that vested during the period was $0.7 raillion (2021: 3.3 million).

6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits
Defined contribution pension scheme
The charge in respect of defined contribution pension schemes was $3.0 million {2021: $2.9 miilion),

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection plc 157

SINIWILVLS TVIONYNI4



NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued
6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continued

Defined benefit pension scheme

Retirernent benefit assets and ltabilities can be analysed as follows

2022 201
sm sm
Net pension liability 6.3 683

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide pension and death benefizs for the employees of Avon Protection plc and its Group
undertakings in the UK. employed prior to 31 January 2003, The plan was closed to future accrual of berefit on 1 October 2009 and has a weighted
average maturity of approximately 12 years. The assets of the pian are held in separate trustee administered funds and are invested by professional
investment managers. The trustee is Avort Rubber Pension Trust Lirmited, the Directors of which are members of the plan. Three of the Directors are
appointed by the Company and two are elected by the members The defined benefit plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as longevity risk,
nflation risk and nvestment visk,

The funding of the plan 1s based on reguldr actuarial valuations. The most recent full actuaral valuation of t~e plan was carred out at 31 March 2079 when
the market value of the plan’s assets was £335.8 million. The fair value of those assets represented 83% of the value of the benefits which had accrued to
members, after allowing for future increase in pensions.

The net pension lizbility for the scheme amounted to $6.3 million as at 1 Octeber 2022 (2021 $68.3 million) The reduction s due to a higher discount rate
being applied to pension liabilities, partially offset by a fall In plan asset values.

During the period the Group made payments to the plan of 58,5 million (2021: 52.9 million} in respect of scheme expensas and deficit recovery plan

payrents, including a $4.0 million prepayment covering all contributons due in FY23. In accordance with the deficit recovery plan agreed following

the 31 March 2019 actuarial valuaton, the Group will make payments in FY24 of $4 3 million in respect of deficit recovery and scheme expenses. These ,
payments are subject to review following the March 2022 actuanal valuation which will be finalised in 2023.

Plan assets inciude Liability Driven Investrnents (LDI) of $54.4 million (2021: $122.9 million), which are held to manage funding risk. The fall in LDI
valuation reflects increases in government bond yields through 2022 The Group is in close contact with the trustees of the scheme to monitor cash
liguidity risk in cantext of recent market volatility, Including collateral requirements for the LD Te the date of this report, the scheme has covered all LD
collateral requirements,

The Directars have confirmed no additional liability is required to be recognised as a consequence of minimurm funding requirements The trustees have
na rights to wind up the scheme or imprave benefits without Company consent,

An updated acruarial valuation for |AS 19 {revised) purposes was carned out by an independent actuary for penod end using the projected unit
credit method

Movement in net defined benefit liability

Defined benefit obligation Defined benefitasset Net defined benefit liability
2022 201 2022 2021 2022 2021 }
$m $m $m Sm sm $m
At the beginning of the period {534.7) (526 3) 466.4 4467 (68.3) (79.6)
Hded in profitor loss - a 7
Admunistrative expenses (d.B) (1.2) - - (0.8} (1 2&
Enterest Cost 7 . (10.3} 7 (8.6) 9.0 73 (1.-3) (1.3)
(11.1) 98) 9.0 73 (2.1) (2.5}
Included in other comprehensive income |
%Teasuremen[(ﬁoss)/gam: B
- Actuarial {loss)/gain arising fram -
- Dernographic assumptions (0.3) 04 - - 0.2} 10.4)
ﬁwancw’a\ 3ssurmprions N 175.4 36 - - 1754 36
*—Expen’ence adjustment 7 (11.3’-) 7 e - (11.3) 7 7
Erum on plan assets excluding interest incorme 7 - - {113.8) 57 ) {113.8} 57
163.9 10.5 (113.8) 57 5041 162
Other 7
Contributions by the employer - - 8.5 29 85 29
Met penefias pad out 215 ias (i?.s) 1245 - -
FX gain/{loss) ) R 75.5 (33.6] (70.0) 283 5.5 —{573}
At the end of the period {284.9) 1534 7) 278.6 486 4 6.3) 163 3)
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Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued

6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continued

Plan assets

The fair value of the assets of the pension scheme analysed by asset category is shawn below:

2022 201

Sm $m

Fauities and other securities 105.6 180.7
Lability Driven Investment o 54.4 1229
Secured income fund N 53 695
Infrastructure fund S 55.2 67.0
Cash o 10.3 257
Total fair value of assets 278.6 466 4

Equity securities are valued using quoted prices In active markets where available, The Liability Driven Investment (LDI) comprises an investment in a
level 2 pooled investment vehicle which combines a series of variable interest-earning cash deposits combined with contracts to hedge interest rate and
inflation risk. The LD is valued using a net asset value published on the Irish Stock Exchange.

$1699 million (2021: 5194.8 million) of the remaining investments are classified as level 3 within the fair value hierarchy. Holdings in unguoted securities are
valued at fair value which is typically the net asset value provided by the fund administrator at the most recent quarter end. Holdings in the infrastructure
fund are valued by an independent valuer using a model-based valuation such as a discounted cash flow approach.

The significant assumptions used in the valuation are the discount rate and the expected cash flows, both of which are subject to estimation uncertainty
Changes in assumptions relating to these variables could positively or negatively impact the reported fair value of these instruments

The Avon Rubber defined benefit pension scheme has an investment strategy which is targeted at raximising investment returns with a low-risk strategy
which still represents a prudent approach to meeting the plan's liabilities and ensuring that mernbers’ benefits are protected, The strategy considers

the need for appropriate asset class diversification to balance the risks and rewards across a range of alternative asset classes The investments heid by

the pension scheme include both quoted and unguoted securities, the latter which by their nature invelve assumptiens and estimates to determine

their fair value, Where there 15 not an active market for the unquoted securities the fair value of these assets are estimated by the pension trustees based
on advice received from the investment manager whilst also using any available market evidence of any recent transactions for an identical asset. The
target weightings under the current asset atlocation strategy are 40% to matching investments, 50% to cash flow driven investments and 10% to return-
seeking investments,

Actuarial assumptions
The main financial assumptions used by the independent gualified actuaries to calculate the liabilities under 1AS 19 {revised) are set out below:

2022 2021

% p.a. % p.a.

Inflation {RP1) 3.60 3.55
Inflation (CPI} 2.80 275
Persion increases post-August 2005 2.30 o 2.30
Pension increases pre-August 2005 3.45 340
Discount rate for scherne liabilities 5.30 2.00
Base mortality 100% of S2NA tables, based on members’ year of birth 100% of S2NA tables, based on members year of birth

Future improvements in longevity  CMI2021 projections with atong-term trend of 1.50% p.a.  ChI 2029 projections with a long-term trend of 1.50% p.a.

RPlinflation has been setin line with market break even expectations less an inflation nisk premium of 0.3% {2021: 0.2%) The impact of the 0.1% change
in inflation risk premiurm reduced period end balance sheet liabiiities by approximately $2.5m.

Changes to RPI

The conclusion of the joint consultation between the UK. Government and the U.K Statistics Authority in Novernber 2020 was that RP! s intended to
be aligned with CPIH from February 203G and therefore the margin between RPl and CPl will reduce over time. As a result, the Company reduced the
long-term gap between RPl and CPI by ten basis points (from 3.5% to 0.8%) in the prior period.
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued
6.2 Pensions and other retirement benefits continued

Mortality rate
Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are set based on advice, published statistics and experience

The average life expectancy inyears of a pensioner retiring at age 65 on the balance sheet date is as follows:

2022 2021
Male 218 217
Female 23.8 7 2;
The average life expectancy in years of a pensioner retiring at age 65, 20 years after the balance sheet date is as follows:

2022 2021
Male 23.4 234
Female ) B 25.6 256

No adjustments have been to mortality assumptions at period end to reflect the effects of COVID-19 as it is too soon to make a judgement on the Impact
of the pandemic on future mortality improverments. Mortality experience analysis for the schemes will be carried out as a part the next full actuarial
valuation.

Sensitivity analysis
Defined benefit obligation

increase/{decrease)

$m

Inflation (1.0% increase} 214
tnflation (1.0% decrease) (22.0)
Discount rate for scheme liabilities {1.0% increase) a (30.7)
Discount rate for scheme liabilities (1.0% decrease) 37.2
Future mortality (one-year increase) 7 h 109

The above sensitivity analysis shows the impact on the defined benefit obligation only, not the net pension liability as it does not take into account any
Impact on the asset valuation Each sensitivity analysis disclosed in this note is based on changing one assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant In practice, this is unlikely to occur

6.3 Share-based payments
The Group operates an equity-settled share-based Performance Share Plan (PSF). Details of the plan are set out in the Remuneration Report, section
‘Long-Term Incentive Plan’ on page 94 An expense of $1.0 million (2021. $§0.7 million) was recognised in the period relating 1o share-based payments
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Section 6 - Key management and employee benefits continued

6.3 Share-based payments continued

The Lable betow summatises the movermnents in the number of share aptions autstanding for the Group, all of which are nil cost cptions:

Number of Number of

options options

2022 201

‘000s ‘000s

Outstanding at the beginning of the period 372 423
Forfeited during the period (165} (13}
Exercised during the period (74) {159
Granted during the period 285 121
Outstanding at the end of the period 418 372

The weighted average remaining contractual life of outstanding share options I1s 17 manths {2021: 14 months). All the share options that vested in the

period vested on 20 December 2021 at a share price of £11.57,

A Monte Carlo simulation was used to calculate the fair value of awards granted that are subject to a total shareholder return performance condition.
The fair value of other awards was calcufatea as the market price of the shares at the date of grant reduced by the present value of the dividends expected

to be paid over the vesting period. The principal assumptions used were;

2022 2021
Weighted average fair value (£) 9.07 2179
Key assumptions used:
Closing share price at date of grant {£) 11.41 31.25
Expected vo-\‘a"t-il'\ty {%) 43.9 367
Risk-free interest rate (%) 11 -
Expected option term (yrs) o 30 28
Dividend Qle\d {96) - -
Volatility is estimated based cn experience over the last three years,
Section 7 - Other
7.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges .
Warranty Property Contingent
provisions obligations consideration Total
$m $m $m $m
Balance at 26 September 2020 - 27 195 222
Provision created during the period - 01 - ] a
Release of contingent consideration o - - (157} ) 5.7}
Urwind of discount on provisions - - 22 2.2
Foreign exchange movernents - Al o - 0.1
Balance at 2 October 2021 - 29 60 85
Transferred from accruals on 3 October 2021 15 - - 15
Provision created during the period o 2.2 0.8 - 3.0
Cash payments (1.3 - {3.2) (4.5)
Release of contingent consideration - - (3.9 {3.9)
Unwind of discount on provisions - - 11 1.1
Farpign exchange mavements (0.1) (0.4) - {0.5)
Balance at 1 October 2022 23 33 - 56
2022 2021
Analysis of total provisions $m $m
Current 0.7 i
Nonfcurr_c;m B T 49 54
5.6 89
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NOTES TO THE GROUP FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

Section 7 - Other continued

7.1 Provisions for liabilities and charges continued

Warranty provisions cover expected costs under guarantees provided with certain praducts. Warranty provisions were previously included within accruals.
On 3 October 2021 warranty provisions were transferred from accruals to provisions for liabilities and charges, this being considered a more appropriate
categorisation. The Directors have reviewed the impact on the pricr period and considered this not material.

Property obligations relate to leased premises of the Group which are subject to dilapidation risks and are expected to be utilised within the next 15 years

The purchase consideration in relation to the 3M ballistic protection business acquisition inciuded contingent consideration up to a maximum of

5250 million depending on the outcome of certain tenders which were pending at the acquisieon date and the level of sales which were generated on
these contracts if secured At acquisition the fair value of the contingent consideration was recagnised as $20 0 million based on the expected value and
timing of those payments after applying a discount rate of 12% to reflect the risk in the cash flows at that date.

The contract that triggered the contingent consideration was awarded shortly after the acquisition date with subsequent orders resulting in payments of
$3.4 million in 2020 and $3.2 million in 2022

The release of $15.7 million in the prior period was due to reduced expectations of the timing and amount of orders ($14.3 million), and an increase to
the discount rate applied to expected future payments (50.8 million) In 2022 the contractual order period closed with no further orders. As a result the
remaining $3.9 million was released.

7.2 Acquisitions and divestments
Acquisition - Team Wendy
The acquisition of the Tearmn Wendy business completed on 2 November 2020.

The Group acquired 100% of the equity for a total consideration of $132.0 million, being the $130.0 million initial consideration and purchase price
adjustments of $2.0 million reflecting the cash and working capital position at close The net assets acquired had a book value of $22.3 million before fair
value adjustments.

Set out below is an analysis of the assigned fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed relating to this acquisition:

Fair value

$m

Customer relationships 282
Brand o ) a 104
Other intangible assets o 131
l;rﬁperry, plant and equipment 86
Inventorlves o 12.2
Trade and O£HE! receivables T 5.8
Cash ' o 1.1
Lease hability 7 (3.1
Trade and other payables - l (26
Net assets acquired 737
Goodwilt 583
Total consideration 132.0
Initial cash consideratian 1300
Post-completion working capital adjustment 05
Cash acquired IR
Total consideration 1320

Goodwill of $58.3 millian was recagnised in respect of this acquisition, representing the amount patd for future sales growth from beth new customers
and new products, operating cost syrergies and employee know-how 100% of the value of goodwill 1s expected to be deductible for tax purposes.

From the date of acquisition to 2 October 2021, Team Wendy generated $41.0 miilon of revenue {including 50 7 milion from other Group comparies)
and reported an operating profit of $4.6 millian, The operating profit is stated after amortisation of acguired intangibles of 34.0 million and expensing
rhe $2 a4 millisn inventary fair value step-up following rhe sell throus= of the acquired inventary. Hard Team Wendy been acquired on the first day »f the
financial period, then the estimated contribution ta revenue wauld have been $44 7 million and operating profit $5 0 million. In 2022 Team Wency has
peen fully integrated inta the wider respiratory and head protection segment (nate 211

Acquisition costs of 52,2 million were expensed in the prior period, follawing the recognimion of 574 million of such costs in 2020, Acquisition costs of
S A millon were paid in the prior penod.
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Section 7 - Other continued

7.3 Other financial commitments

2022 20
$m $m
Capital expenditure committed 1.7 2.8

Capital expenditure committed represents the amount contracted in respect of property, plant and equipment at the end of the financial peried for

which no provision has been made in the financial statements,

7.4 Group undertakings

Country in which

Registered office address Activity incorporated
Held by Parent Company
Avon Polymer Products Limited ) Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK. The manutacture and distribution LK.
of respiratory protection systems
Avon Protection Holdings Limited Hampton Park West, Melksharn, SN12 6NE UK. Investment holding company UK.
Avon Bubber Pension Trust Limited Hampton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK. Pension fund trustee UK

Held by Group undertakings

Awvon Protection Systems, Inc. 503 8th St, Cadillac, MI 43607, United States The manufacture and distribution of respiratory us.
and ballistic protection systems

Avon Rubber & Plastics, Inc 503 8th St, Cadillac, MI 49601, United States Investment holding company us.

Avon Protection Ceradyne, LLC 4000 Barranca Parkway, Suite 100, Irvine, The manufacture and distribution us.
CA §2604, United States of ballistic protection systems

Tearm Wendy LLC 17000 St Clair Ave, Cleveland, OH 44110, The manufacture and distribution us.
United States of helmet systems

Avon Technologies Limited Harnpton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK. Darmant company UK.

Avan Protection UK Limited Harnpton Park West, Melksham, SN12 6NB UK. Dormant company UK.

Sharehaldings are ordinary shares and all undertakings are wholly owned by the Group and operate primarily in their country of incorporation. All

companies have the same financial year end. Avon Polymer Products Limited and Avon Protection Holdings Limited are exemnpt from the requirement to
file audited accounts by virtue of section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 {the Act’). All remaining UK. subsidiaries are exempt from the requirement to
file audited accounts by virtue of section 480 of the Act.

7.5 Related party transactions
Exceptin respect of the defined benefit pension scheme, internal transactions between Group companies, and compensation of key management
personnel there were no related party transactions during the period or outstanding at the end of the period (2021 $ni#). Transactions with the defined

benefit pension scheme are disclosed in note 6.2, Key management compensation is disclosed in note 6.1,
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PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AT 1 OCTOBER 2022

200
2022 £m
Note £m restated’
Assets
Non-current assets
Tangible assets 4 4.4 7”4:57
Intangible assets - -
Investments in subsidiaries 5 191.0 1910
Eéferred tax assets 6 ) 2.5 25
197.9 198.0
Current assefs
Trade and ather receivables 7 20 75
@{and cash equivalents 0.2 5.2
2.2 12.2
Liabilities -
Current Iial;i_liﬁes
Borrowings 10 B 0.5 05
%réde and other payables ’ 3 21.3 2;
21.8 280
Net current liabilities {15.6) (158)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings . 10 5.1 5.4
Provisions for liabilities and charges 9 2.2 1.5
7.3 69
Net assets 171.0 1753
Shareholders’ equity
Ordinary shares i B 310 310
Share prermiurn account 34.7 34_7_
Eapita\ redemption reserve ) 0.5 0.5
Retained earnings 104“8 1081
171.0 175.3

Total equity

1 Seengre 13 for derals of restareraent

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Company profit and loss account.
The prefit for the Company for the period was £15.3 millign (2021 profit of £12.6 million).

These financial statements on pages 164 1o 171 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 Novernber 2022 and signe on its behalf by:

Bruce Thompson Rich Cashin

Executive Chair Chief Financial Officer

The accompanyIing accounting policies and notes form part of these financiat statements
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PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Capital

Share Share redemption Retained Total

capital premium reserves earnings’ equity

Note £m £m £m £m £m

At 26 September 2020 as previously reported 310 347 05 1246 190.8
Restatement’ 3 - - - (15.3) {153)
At 26 September 2020 as rest-atr;d—u o 310 34.7 Q.5 1093 175.5
Profit for the year o i - - - 126 126
Dividends paid I 2 7 . - 87 ©7)
Own shares acquired T n - - T (3.1} 130
Fair value of share_—-ba;ec; p:a;n"we;s 12 - - - 04 04
Deferred tax refating to employee share schemes 6 - - - (1.4} 7 {1.4)
At 2 October 2021 as restated 31.0 347 0.5 1091 1753

Profit for the year o 1 - - - 15.3 15.3
Dividends paid 2 - - - {10.5) (10.5)
QOwn shares acquired n - - - (9.3) {9.3)
Igéirn\}a\ue of share-based payments 12 - - - 0.7 07
Deferred tax relating to empleyee share schemes 6 - - ﬁ - {0.5) (0.5)
At 1 October 2022 31.0 347 0.5 104.8 171.0

I seenate 13 for further gesails of restatemnent
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PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
frinancial statements are set out below, These policies have been
consistently appled 1o alt the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These financial staternents were prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporung Standard 101 Reduced Disclasure Framework {FRS 101,

In preparing these financial staternents, the Company applies the
recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements of International
Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirernents of the
Cornpanies Act 2006 (Adopted IFRSs'), but makes amendments where
necessary in arder to comply with the Companies Act 2006 and has set
out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions has
been taken

presentatian of a cash flow statement and related notes (1AS 7);

comparative period reconciliations for share capital and intangible
and tangitle fixed assets {paragraph 384AS 1,

transactions with wholly owned subsidianes (1AS 24);
capital management {paragraphs 134-136, IAS 1}

+ share-based payments (paragraphs 45ih) and 46-52, IFRS 2);

+ financial instruments (IFRS 7);

« compensation of key managernent personnel (paragraph 17,145 24),
fair value measurernent {paragraphs 91-93, IFRS 13},

- leases (paragraphs 60 -93, IFRS 18);

the requirements of paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors; and

- the requirements of paragraph 18A of 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Group financial
statements,

Foreign currencies

The Company's functionat currency is sterling as this is the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Company operates Foreign
currency iransactions ase recorded at the exchange rate ruling on the
date of transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions, and fror the retranslation at year end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit and loss account,

Pensions

The Group operated a contributory defined benefit plan to provide
pension and death berefits for the employees of Avon Protection ple and
1ts Group undertakings in the UK. emplayed prior t 31 January 2003
The scheme is closed to new entrants and was closed to future accrual of
hernefits from 1 October 2009, Scheme assets are measured using market
vaiues, while liabilities are measured using the projected unit method
One of the Company’s subsidiaries, Avon Polymer Products Limited, 15
tne employer thatis legally responsible for the scheme and the persion
opligations are included in full in its accounts, No asset or provision ras
heen reflected in the Company's balance sheet far any surplus or deficit
ansng n respect of pension obhzstions

The Company also provides pensions by contributing to defined
contribution scheres The charge in the profit and ioss account reflects
tne contributions paid ard payable to these schemes dunng the period
Full disclosures of the UK. pension schemes have been provided in the
Group finangal szatements
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Share-based payments

The Company operates a number of equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, The fair value of the emplayee services received in
exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount 1o be expensed over the vesting period is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions {for example, profitability and
sales growth targets) Man-market vestng conditians are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest. At
sach balarce sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected 1o vest. It recognises the Impact of the revision
w onginal estimates, if any, in the profit and 1055 account. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited

to share capital {(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exerc sed.

Plant and equipment '
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and any recognised impa rment losses.

Costs include the original purchase price of the asset and the
costs attriputable to bringing the asset to its working condition
for its intended use inciuding any qualifying finance expenses.

Depreciation is provided to write down the depreciable amount
of relevant assets by equal annual instalments over their estimated
usefu! lives. !

In general, the lives used are:
+ Leasehold property — period of lease agreement

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date

An asset’s canying armount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is greater than its estimated net realisable
value Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amounts.

Leases

Right of use assets and lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the contract for all leases conveying
the right to control the associated asset for a period of time,

The right of use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the

initial measurement of the lease liability plus an estimate of dilapidation

provisions (note 10) where required. Subsequently the right of use

assets are measured at Cost less accumulated depreciation and any

accumulated impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of

the lease habitiry, .

Depreciation s calculated on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease.
In generaf the lves used are

- Leasehold property — period of the lease

The lease habilty s initalty measured at the presert value of the lease
payments due cver the life of the lease The lease payments are discounted
arthe rate implictin the lease orf that s not readily determined using the
Company’s incremental borrowing rate.



Leases continued

The lease term is determined with reference to any non-cancellable period
of lease contracts plus any periads covered by an option to extend/
terrninate the iease if it is considered reasonably certain that the option
will/will not be exercised In concluding whether or not it is reasanably
certain an option will be exercised for new leases rmanagement has
considered the three-year strategic outlook for the Group and other
operational factors,

Subsequently the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying
value to reflect interest on the liability and reducing the carrying value to
reflect lease payments made.

The carrying vaiue of lease liabilities and associated assets will
be remeasured to reflect any changes to the lease or other
assumptions applied.

Investments in subsidiary undertakings

Investments in subsidiary undertakings are recorded at cost pius incidental
expenses less any provision for impairment. Impairment reviews are
performed by the Directors when there has been anindication of patential
impairment.

Deferred taxation

Because of the differences between accounting and taxable profits and
losses reported in each period, temporary differences arise on the amount
certain assets and liabilities are carried at for accounting purposes and
their respective tax values. Deferred tax is the amount of tax payable or
recoverable on these temporary differences.

Deferred tax liabilities arise where the carrying amount of an asset is higher
than the tax value {more tax deduction has been taken). This can happen
where the Company invests in capital assets, as governments often
encourage investment by allowing tax depreciation to be recognised
faster than accounting depreciation. This reduces the tax value of the

asset relative to its accounting carrying amount. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally provided on all taxable temporary differcnces. The periods over
which such temporary differences reverse will vary depending on the life
of the related asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets arise where the carrying amount of an asset is lower
than the tax value {less tax benefit which has been taken). Deferred tax
assets are recagnised only where the Company considers it probable
that it wili be able to use such losses by offsetting them against future
taxable profits.

However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
nitial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or foss,

Deferred tax is calculated using the enacted or substantively enacted
rates that are expected 1o apply when the asset is realised or the hability
is settled,

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are classified as measured at amortised cost,
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on financial assets measured at amortised cost, Loss allowances for trade
receivables are always measured at an arnount equal to lifetime ECL.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and 1 hand,

highly liquid interest-bearing securities with maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings
in current ligbilities on the balance sheet.

Trade payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course af business from supphers.

Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment 15 due
within one year or less {or In the normal operating cycle of the business if
longern If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities. They are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently held at amortised cost,

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when:

« the Company has aiegal or constructive obhigation as a result of a
pasteven(;and

it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required 1o settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, for example where a
warranty has been given, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as

a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an cutflow
with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligation
may be small,

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
10 be required to settle the obligation.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred and subsequently stated at amaortised cost Borrowing costs are
expensed using the effective interest method.

Dividends

Final dividends are recogrised as a liability in the Cormpany’s financial
statements in the pericd in which the dividends are approved by
shareholders, while interim dividends are recognised in the period in
which the dividends are paid.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or aptions are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of Lax, frore the proceeds.

Where the Company purchases its cwn share capital (treasury shares)
through employee share ownership trusts, the consideration paid,
inciuding any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income
taxes), is deducted from shareholders’ funds until the shares are cancelled,
reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects, is
included in shareholders' funds.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022

1 Parent Company

As a Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income is published, a separate profit and loss account for the Farent Company is omitted from the
accounts by virtue of section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The Parent Company’s profit for the financial year was £15.3 million (2021: £12.6 million).

The audit fee in respect of the Parent Company is set out in note 2 5 t the Group financial statements.

2 Dividends
Details of the Company's dividends are set aut in note 5.6 1 the Group financial statements.

3 Employees

The only employees of the Company during the current peried were the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer to the Group

Detailed disclosures of the Executive Directors’ remuneration packages are provided ir the Remuneration Report on page 98 10 100.

In the prior period, the Company also employed a monthly average of 54 administrative staff. These employees were transferred t© Avon Polymer

Products Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, on 2 October 2021,

4 Tangible assets
Lease assets
£m
Cost
Az2 October 2021 108
Additions i ) OSA
At 1 Qctober 2022 1.3
Depreaciation charge
AT 2 October 2021 63
Charge for the period - i né
At 1 October 2022 69
Net book value
At 1 October 2022 4.4
At 2 October 2021 4.5
Lease assets relate o the Group's feased properties.
5 Investments in subsidiaries
2022 2021
£m £m
Opening net book value 1910 137
Addmons-_ 7 - 773
Closing net book value 191.0 191.0

During the prior period, the Company made an additional cash investrent in Avon Protection Holdings Limited of £77 3 million to support the funding of

the Tearn Wendy acquisition.

The investments consist of a 100% {unless indicated as otherwisel interest in the following subsidiaries

Country in which

Principal activity Registered office incorporated
Avon Polymer Products Limited The manufacture and distrbution Hampron Park West, Melksham, SM12 8NB UK, UK.
of respiratary protection systems
;/on Protection Holdings Lfmwted- Investment company Hampton Park West, Melksnam, SMZ ENB UK, UK
Avon Rubber Pension Trust Limited Pe-nsuon fund trustee Harmpton Park West, Melksham, SN12 8NB UK, UK. o

Dertails of investments held by these subsidiaries are given in nate 7.4 to the Groun financial statements
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6 Deferred tax assets

Accelerated Other
Share capital temporary
options allowances differences Total
£m £m £m £m
At 26 September 2020 23 01 04 28
Credited/(charged) to profit for the year 0.1 on 1.1 11
Charged to equity .4 - - (14)
At 2 Qctober 2021 10 - 15 25
Credited to profit for the year 0.1 - 0.4 0.5
Charged to equity 0.5) - - (0.5)
At 1 October 2022 0.6 - 1.9 2.5
7 Trade and other receivables
2021
2022 £m
£m restated’
Other receivables 0.2 02
Prepayments 1.0 18
Ameunts owed by Group undertakings 0.8 50
20 70
1 Seenote 13 for demais of restatement
Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured, are interest free, have no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand.
8 Trade and other payables
2022 2021
£m £m
restated’
Trade payables 0.3 06
Accruals 3.0 17
Amounts due to Group undertakings 18.0 25.2
21.3 275

1 Seenore 13 for details of restazemert

Amounts due to Group undertakings are unsecured, are interast free, have no fixed date of repsyment and are repayable on demand

Annual Report and Accounts 2022 Avon Protection ple

ity

SIN3WILVLS TYIONVNIZ



NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE 52 WEEKS ENDED 1 OCTOBER 2022 CONTINUED

9 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Property

obligations

£m

Balance at 26 September 2020 15
Addition during the period -
Balance at 2 October 2021 1.5
Addition during the period 0.7
Balance at 1 October 2022 2.2
2022 2021

Analysis of total provisions £m £m
Non-current 2.2 1.5
2.2 1.5

Provisions relate to property obligations arising in relation to leased prermises of the Company which are subject to dilapidation risks and are expected to
be utilised within the next ten years. Property provisions are subject to uncertainty in respect of any final negotiated settlernent of any dilapidation claims
with landlords,

10 Borrowings
The Group has a revolving credit facility with total commitments of $200 million across six lenders with an accordion option of an additional $50 million
Further details regarding credit risks are disclosed in note 54 to the Group financial staternents.

2022 2021
£m £m
CUrrent_ _
Lease liabilities 0.5 0.5
Non-current
Lease liablities 5.1 54
Total borrowings 5.6 59
The table below presents the contractual maturity analysis in respect of tease liabilities:
2022 2021
£m £m
In one year or less, or on dermand 0.5 0.5
Two o f_wve years 2.6 - 23
Maore than five years 7 2.5 3.1
Total lease liabilities 55 5.9

Lease liabilities relate 1o land and buildings llease assets) leased by the Company for 115 office space and manufactunng Faciines of UK. trading subsidiaries.

11 Share capital
Detalls of the Campany’s share capital are set ourin note 55 to the Group financial statements

12 Share-based payments
The Company operates an equity-settled share-based Long Term incentive Plan {LTIP) deta:ls of which are disclosed in note 8.3 to the Group
financial stateme-ts,

The Company recognises share-based payment charges for awards held by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. Share-based
payrent charges for other employees are recharged to the relevant subsidiary
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13 Restatement
Comparatives have been restated for the following items.

1. Therecognition of a net intercompany payable of £15.3 miltion between the Company and its subsidiary Avon Polymer Products Limited arising
from the reallocation of the proceeds received by the Company on the divestment of milkrite | InterPuls in September 2020 but attributable to
Avon Polymer Praducts Limited of £43.3 milfion and the recognituon of a dividend received of £28 million from Avon Polymer Products Limited in
September 2020. Both of these items were previously omitted in the Company's financial statements but were correctly reflected in the 2021 and
2020 Avon Polymer Products Limited company accounts, meaning ne restatement was required at the subsidiary level

2. The gross presentation of intercompany receivables and payables which had previcusly been offset as at 2 October 2021,

There was no impact to the profit and loss account for the 53 weeks period ended 2 October 2021,

A reconciliation of the previously reported figures to the restated figures is presented belows:

Adjustment to

amounts Gross

As reported due to Group intercompany 2 October 2021

2 October 2021 undertakings balances restated

£m £Em £m £m

Amounts owed by Group undertakings - 50 50

Armounts due to Group undertakings (4.9) (15.3) (5.0} (25.2)

Retained earnings (124.4) 153 - {109.7)
Adjustment to
amounts

As reported due to Group 26 September 2020

26 September 2020 undertakings restated

£Em £m £m

Armounts due to Group undertakings (15.7) {15.3} 131.0)

Retained earnings {124.6) 15.3 {109.3}
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT AND REQUARES YOUR IMEDIATE ATTENTION
If you are in any doubt as to what action you should take, you are recommended to seek your own financial advice from your bank manager,
stackbroker, salicitar, accountant or other independent financial advisor authornsed under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000, If you have
sold or otherwise transferred all of your shares in Avon Protection ple, please forward this document, together with the accompanying documents,
as soon as possible either to the purchaser or transferee or to the person who arranged the sale or transfer so they can pass these documents to
the person who now holds the shares.

Notice of Annual General Meeting for the year ended
30 September 2022

Notice is hereby given that the AGM of shareholders of Avon Protection
pic (the Company’) will be held at Harmpton Park West, Semington Road,
Malksham SN12 6NB, Wiltshire om 27 January 2023 at 13:30am for the
purposes set out below,

You will not receive a form of proxy for the AGM in the post. Instead,
you will receive instructions to enable you to vote electronically and
outlining how to register to da so. You may request a hard copy form of
praxy directly from the Registrar, Link Group, 10th Ficor, Central Square,
29 Weliington Street, Leads | S1 401 (Tel 0371 664 0300 or +44 371 664
Q300 if overseas).

Ordinary business
To consider and, if thought fit, pass resolutions 1-12 (inclusive) as
ordinary resolutions:

Resolution 1
To receive the Company’s accounts and the reports of the Directors and
the auditor for the year ended 30 September 2022.

Resolution 2

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report {other than the part
containing the Directors’ Remuneration Policy) for the financial year ended
30 September 2022

Resolution 3
To declare a final dividend of 30.6 ULS. cents per ordinary share as
recormmended by the Directors.

Resolution 4
To elect Jos Sclater as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 5
To elect Rich Cashin as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 6
To re-elect Bruce Thompsan as a Director of the Company

Resolution 7
Ta re-elect Chloe Ponsonby as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 8
To re-elect Binci Foyle as a Director of the Company,

Resolution 9
To re-elect Victor Chavez CBE as a Director of the Company.

Resolution 10

To re-appoint KPMO LLP as auditor of the Company, 1o hold office until the
conclusion of the next gereral meeting ar which accounrts are laid before
the Company

Resolution 11
To authorise the Directers 1o determine the auditor's rermuneration

Resolution 12

That, in accordance with secticns 386 and 367 of the Comparnies Act 2006
(the Act’), the Company and all its subsidiaries dunng the period for whick
this resoiution has effect be and are hereby authonsed, in aggregate, o
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fa) rmake political donations 1o political parties or 1o independert
election candidates not exceeding £100,000in total,

(b) make political donations to political organisations (other than palitical
parties) not exceeding £100,000 in total; and

(¢} incur any palitical expenditure not exceeding £100,000 in total,

during the penod beginning with the date of the passing of this resolution
and ending at the close of business on 27 Decernber 2023 or, if sooner,
the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company. For the purpose of

this resolution ‘political donation’, ‘political party’, ‘political organisation’,
'independent election candidate’ and ‘political expenditure’ are to be
construed In accordance with sections 363, 364 and 365 of the Act.

Special business
To consider and if thought fit, pass resolution 13 as an ardinary resclution
and resolutions 14-1/ (inclusive) as special resolutions:

Resolution 13

That in accordance with section 551 of the Act, the Directors be gererally
and unconditionally authorised 10 aliot Relevant Securittes (s defined in
the notes to this resolution) comprising equity securities (as defined by
saction 560 of the Act) up to an agaregate nominal amount of £10,086,064
but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedientin relation to treasury shares, fractional
entitlements, record dates, legal or practical problems in or under the

laws of any terntory or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock
exchange, provided that this authority shall, unless renewed, varied or
revaked by the Company, expire an the date 15 months after the date of
this resolution o, if earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company save
that the Company may, before such expiry, make offers or agreements
which would or might require Refevant Secunties ta be aflotted and

the Directors may allot Relevant Secunties in pursuance of such offer or
agreement notwithstanding that the authority conferred by this resclution
has expired.

This resolution revokes and replaces all unexercised authorities previously
granted to the Directors to allot Relevant Securities but without prejudice
to any allotment of shares or grant of rights already made, offered or
agreed to be made pursuant to such authorities,

Resolution 14

That, subject to the passing of resolution 13, the Directors be authorised to
allot equity securities (as defined by section 560 of the Act) for cash under
the authority canferred by that resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares
held by the Company as treasury shares for cash, as if section 561 of the Act
did not apply to any such allotrment or sale, provided that this power shall

(a) belirmited o the allatrent of equity secunties or sale of rreasury
shares up © an aggregate nomimal amount of £1,512.909; and

b) expire on the date 15 months after the date of this resalution ar, if
earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company {unless renewed,
varied or revaked by the Company prior to or an that date) save thas
the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement
which would or might reguire equity secunties o e aloted for
treasury shares to be scld) after such expiry and the Directors may
allot equty securinies (or szl Treasury shares) in pursuance of any such
offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this
reselution has expied



Resolution 15

That, sutyect to the passing of resolution 13, the Directors be authorised,
in addition to any authority granted under resolution 13, to allot equity
securities (as defined by section 560 of the Act) for cash under the
authority conferred by that resolution and/or to sell ordinary shares held
by the Company as treasury shares for cash, as if section 561 of the Act did
not apply to any such allotment or sale, provided that this power shall,

{a) be limited to the allotment of equity sccurities or sale of treasury
shares up to an aggregate nominal amount of £1,512,909;

(b} be used for the purposes of financing {or refinancing, if the autharity
15 10 be used within six months after the original transaction) a
transaction which the Directors have deterrmined to be an acquisition
or other capital investment of a kind contemplated by the Statement
of Principles on Disapplying Pre-Emption Rights most recently
published by the Pre-Emption Group pricr to the date of this
Notice; and

(¢} expire on the date 15 months after the date of this resclution o, if
earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company (unless renewed,
varied or revoked by the Company prior ta or on that date) save that
the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement
which would or might require equity securities to be allotted (or
treasury shares to be sold) after such expiry and the Directors may
allot equity securities (or sell treasury shares) in pursuance of any such
offer or agreement notwithstanding that the power conferred by this
resolution has expired.

Resolution 16

That the Company be and is hereby unconditionally and generally
authorised for the purpose of section 701 of the Act to make market
purchases {within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) of ordinary
shares of £1 each In the capital of the Company previded that:

{8} the maximum number of shares which may be purchased is 3,025,819

{b) the minimum price {excluding expenses) which may be paid for each
share s £1;

{c) the maximum price {excluding expenses} which may be paid for each
ordinary share is an amount equal to the higher of:

1 105% of the average of the middle market quotations of the
Company’s ordinary shares as derived from the Daily Official
List of the London Stock Exchange for the five business days
immeadiately preceding the day on which such share is contracted
to be purchased; or

(i} the value of an ardinary share calculated on the basis of the
higher of the price quoted for the last independent trade of
and the highest current independent bid for any number of the
Company's ordinary shares on the London Stock Exchange Daily
Official List at the time the purchase is agreed; and

{dy this authority shall expire on the date 15 months after the date of
this resolution or, if earlier, the date of the next AGM of the Company
{except in relation to the purchase of shares the contract for which
was concluded before the expiry of such authority and which might
be executed wholly or partly after such expiry) unless such authority 1s
renewed prior to sUch time.

Resolution 17
That a general meeting of the Company (other than an AGM} may be
called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

By order of the Board

Miles Ingrey-Counter
General Counsel and Company Secretary

Explanatory notes relating to the resolutions

The Board believes that the adaption of resolutions 1 to 17 will promote
the success of the Company and is in the best interests of the Company
and 1ts shareholders as a whole. The Board unanimously recommends that
all shareholders should vote in favour of 2ll the resalutions 1o be proposed
at the AGM Each of the Directors of the Company intends to vote in favaur
of all resolutions in respect of their own beneficial haldings.

Resolution 1 - Reports and accounts

The Directors are required by law to present to the AGM the accounts, and
the reports of the Directors and auditor, for the year ended 30 September
2022 These are contained in the Campany’s 2022 Annual Report.

Resolution 2 - Directors’ Remuneration Report

This resalution secks shareholders' approval of the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 September 2022 contained
on pages 86 to 105 of the 2022 Annua!l Report. As in previous years, the
vote is advisory only and the Directors’ entitlement to rermuneration is not
conditional on it being passed.

Resolution 3 - Declaration of final dividend

A final dividend can only be paid after the sharehalders have approved it
at a general meeting. The Directers recommend that a final dividend in
respect of the financial year ended 30 September 2022 of 30.6 US. cents
be paid. Subject to approval, the final dividend will be paid on 10 March
2023 to eligible shareholders on the Company’s Register of Members at
close of business on 10 February 2023. The dividend wiil be converted
into pound sterling for payment at the prevailing exchange rate prior ta
payment. The exchange rate will be notified to sharehclders through a
Requlatory News Service in advance of the dividend payment date.

Resolutions 4 to 9 - Re-appointment of Directors

Fach member of the Board has offered himself/herself for election ar
re-election in accordance with best practice corporate governance
standards. The Board unanimously recommends that they each be elected
or re-elected as Directors of the Company. The Chair confirms that each

of the Non-Executive Directors who are seeking re-election at the AGM
continues to be an effective member of the Board and to demonstrate
their commitment to their role, Chloe Ponsonby, in her capacity as Senior
Independent Director, has canfirmed that Bruce Thompsen is an effective
Chair and demonstrates comrmitment to his role as Chair

The Company announced on 17 October 2022 that Jos Sclater would
be appointed to the Board as Chief Executive Officer with effect from
16 January 2023 Resolution 4 proposes his election 1o the Board by
shareholders on the assumption that he will have been appomnted by
the Directors 1o the Board prior to AGM on 27 January 2G23,

Biographical details for each Director are set out on pages 72 and 73 of
the 2022 Annual Report.

Resolutions 10 and 11 - Re-appointment of auditor

and authorisation for the Directors to set the auditor’s
remuneration

The Company is required to appoint an auditor at each general meeting
at which 1ts accounts are presented. The Board is recommending to
shareholders the re-appointment of KPMG LLP as the Cempany's auditor
for the financial year commencing on 1 October 2022

Resolution 12 — Authority to make political donations

The Act requires companies to obtain shareholders’ authority before they
can make donations to political erganisations or incur political expenses.
itis not proposed or intended 1o aiter the Company’s policy of not
making political donations, within the normal meaning of that expression.
However, this resolution is proposed to ensure that the Company and

i1s subsidiaries do not, because of any uncertainty as to the badies or
activities covered by the Act, unintentionally commit any technical breach
of the Act by making pelitical donaticns. Resolution 12, f passed, wili give
the Board authority to make political danations until the close of business
on 27 December 2023 or, if sooner, the next AGM of the Campany fwhen
the Board intends to renew this authority}, up to an aggregate of £100,000
for the Company and its subsidiary companies.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

Resolution 13 - Directors’ authority to allot

This resolution deals with the Directors’ authority to allot Relevant
Securities in accordance with section 551 of the Act. The authority granted
at the last AGM is due to expire at the conclusion of this year's AGM and
accordingly 1t is propesed 1o renew this authority.

This resolution will, if passed, autherise the Directors to ailot Relevant
Securities up to a maximum norminal amount of £10,086,084, which

is equal to approximately one-third of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 22 November 2022 in accordance with institutional
shareholder guideiines The Directors have no present intention of
exeraising this authority. The authority granted by this resclution will
expire on the date 15 months after the date of this resolution or, iIf earlier,
the date of the next AGM of the Company,

I this resolution, ‘Relevant Securities” means:
(a) sharesin the Company other than shares allotred pursuant to:

an employee share scheme (as defined by section 1166 of the Act);

- aright 1o subscribe for shares in the Company where the grant of
the right itself constituted a Relevant Security; or

3 right 1o convert securities into shares in the Company where the
grant of the nght itself constituted a Relevant Security; and

{b) any night to subscribe for or to convert any security into shares in the
Company other than rights to subscribe for or convert any security
into shares allotted pursuant to an employee share scheme {as
defined by section 1166 of the Act). References to the allotment of
Relevant Securities in this resclution include the grant of such rights.

Resclution 14 — General disapplication of pre-emption rights
This resolution will, if passed, give the Directors power, pursuant 1o

the authority t allot granted by resofution 13, to allot equity securities
(a5 defined by section 560 of the Act) or sell treasury shares for cash
without first offering them to existing shareholders in proportion to therr
existing holdings up t a maximum nominal amount of £1,512,909 which
represents approximately 5% of the Company's fssued share capital as at
22 November 2022 and renews the authority given at the AGM in 2021

The figure of 5% reflects the Pre-Emption Group 2015 Statement of
Principles for the disapplication of pre-emption rights {the Statermnent

of Principles’). The Directors will have due regard ta the Staternent of
Principles in refanion to any exercise of this power; In particular they do not
intend to aliot shares for cash on a non-pre-emptive basis pursuant o this
power in excess of an amount equal to 7.5% of the total issued ordinary
share capital of the Company in any rolling three-year period, without prior
consultation with shareholders save as permitted In connection with an
acquisition or specified capital investment as described in the notes for
resolution 15.

The power granted by this resolution will expire on the date 15 months
after the date of this resalution or, iIf earhiar, the date of the next AGM of
the Company

The Directors have no present intent'on to exercise the authonity conferred
by this resolution.

Resolution 15 - Additional disapplication of

pre-emption rights

This resalution seeks a further power, pursuant to the authority granted
by resalution 13, to allot equity secuiit'es (a5 defined by secton 560 of the
Act; ar sell treasury shares for cash without fiest offering tham to existing
shareholders in propaortion to their existing heldings up to & maximurm
nominal amount of £1,512,909 which represents approxmately 5% of the
Company's issued share capital as at 22 November 2022 This isin addition
1o the 5% refoerced ton resolution 14 above

The power granted by tis resolution will expire on the date 13 months
after the date of this resclution or, -f eartier, the date of the next AGM of
the Company
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The Directors will have due regard to the Statement of Principles in relation
to any exercise of this power and in particular they confirm that they
intend to use this power only In connection with & transaction which they
have determined ta be an acquisition or other cagital investrment (of a kind
contemplated by the Staterment of Principles most recently pullished prier
to the date of this Notice) which is announced contempaoraneously with
the announcement of the issue, or which has taken place in the preceding
six-month period and is disclosed in the announcernent of the issue.

Resclution 16 - Authority to purchase own shares

This resolution seeks authority for the Company to make market purchases
of its own shares and is proposed as a special resolution. If passed, the
resclution gives autharity for the Company to purchase up to 3,025,819
ordinary shares of £1 each, representing approximately 10% of the
Company’s issued share capital as at 22 November 2022,

The resalution specifies the mimmum and maximum prices which may be
paid for any ordinary shares purchased under this authority. The authority
will expire on the earlier of the date 15 months after the date of this
resolution and the Company’s next AGM The Campany purchased 765098
shares in the period from the last AGM to 22 November 2022 under the
existing authority.

The Directars have no present intention of exercising the authonty to
make market purchases; however, the authority provides the flexibility to
allaw them 1o do so in the future.

The Dircctors will exercise this authority only when, in light of market
conditions prevailing at the time, they believe that the effect of such
purchases will be to increase the earnings per ordinary share having
regard to the intent of the guidelines of institutional investors and that
such purchases are in the best interests of shareholders generally. Other
investment opportunities, appropriate gearing levels and the overall
position of the Company will be taken into account before deading upon
this course of action, In the event of any purchase under this authority, the
Directars would either hold the purchased ordinary shares in treasury or
cancel them,

Bonus and incentive scheme targets for Executive Directors would not
be affected by any enhancement of earnings per share following a share
re-purchase.

As of 22 November 2022, there were options 1o subscribe outstanding
over 418,028 shares, representing 1.38% of the Company's issued share
capital. If the authority given by resolution 16 were to be fully exercised,
these options would represent 1 53% of the Company's issued share
capital after cancellation of the re-purchased shares. As of 22 November
2022, there were nQ warrants outstanding over shares.

Reseclution 17 — Notice of Meeting
Resolution 17 is a resolution to allow the Company 1o hold general
meetings {other than AGMs) on 14 days’ notice.

Before the introduction of the Companies (Shareholders’ Rights)
Regulations in August 2609, the Company was aole to call general
meetings {other than AGMs) on 14 clear days’ notice One of the
amendments that the Cormpanies {(Shareholders’ Rights) Regulatons 2009
made to the ACt was to Increase the minimum rotice penod for tisted
company general meetings to 21 days, but with ar adility for companies ro
reduce this nenod back 12 14 days {ather than for AGMs) provided that

i) the Compary offers facilities for shareholders to vote by electronic
means; and

() there s an an~ual resolution of shareniolders aporoving the reducton
In the mirimum notice penad rom 27 days 1o 14 days

Resoiuticn 17 is therefare proposead as a special resolution 1o approve
14 days 35 the mirimum perod of notice for all general meaongs of
the Company otner than AGMs The approval will be effective untl

the Company’s next AGM, whes s Intended that the approval be
renewed The Campany wiil use This notice pernod onty when permitted
todo so in accordarca with the Act and when the Directors corsider it
aporopriate to do so.



Notice of Meeting notes

The following notes explain your general rights as a sharehelder and your
right to attend and vote at this AGM or to appoint someone else to vote on
your behalf.

T,

To be entitled to vote on the business of the AGM {and for the
purpose of the determination by the Company of the number of
votes they may cast), shareholders must be registered in the Register
of Members of the Company by close of business on 25 January 2023.
Changes to the Register of Members after the relevant deadline shall
be disregarded in determining the rights of any person to vote on the
business of the AGM

Shareholders are entitled to appoint another person as a proxy to
pxercise all or part of their rights to artend and 0 speak and vate on
their behalf at the AGM, A shareholder may appeint more than one
proxy in relation to the AGM pravided that each proxy is appointed to
exercise the rights attached to a different ordinary share or ordinary
shares held by that shareholder. A proxy need not be a sharehelder of
the Company.

In the case of joint holders, where more than cne of the joint holders
purports to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted by
the most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined

by the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the
Company's Register of Members in respect of the joint holding {the
first named being the most senior).

Avote withheld is not a vote in law, which means that the vote will not
be counted in the calculation of vortes for or against the resolution.

i no voting indication Is given, your proxy will vote or abstain from
voting at his or her discretion. Your proxy will vote {or abstain from
voting) as he or she thinks fit in relation to any other matter which is
put before the AGM.

You can vote gither

« by logging on to www signalshares com and following
the instructiors,

- you may request a hard copy form of proxy directly from the
Reqistrar, Link Group, on Tel: 0371 664 0300 (+44 371 664 0300
if overseas). Calls are charged at the standard gecgraphical rate
and will vary by provider. Calls outside the United Kingdom will
be charged at the applicable international rate. Lines are open
between 9:00 am and 5:30 pm, Monday to Friday excluding public
holidays in England and Wales; or

- inthe case of CREST membaers, by utilising the CREST electronic
proxy appointment service in accordance with the procedures set
out below,

In order for a proxy appointment to be valid, a form of proxy must
be completed. In each case the form of proxy must be received by
Link Group at 10th Floor, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds
LST 40L by 10:30 am {GMT} on 25 January 2023.

If you return mere than one proxy appointment, either by paper or
electronic communication, the gppointment receved last by the
Reqistrar before the latest time for the receipt of proxies will take
precedence. You are advised to read the terms and conditions of
use carefully. Electronic communication facilities are open to all
shareholders and those who use them will not be disadvantaged.

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies through
the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so

for the AGM (and any adjournment of the AGM) by using the
procedures described in the CREST Manual {available from
www.euroclear.com/site/public /BN, CREST personal members or
other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who
have appointed a service provider(s), should refer to their CREST
sponsor or voting service provideris), who will be able to take the
appropriate action on their behalf

In arder for a proxy appointment or instruction made by means of
CREST 10 be valid, the appropriate CREST message ('a CREST Proxy
Instruction’) must be properly authenticated in accordance with
Euroclear UK &lreland Limited's specifications and must contain the
information required for such instructions, as described in the CREST
Manual. The message must be transmitted so as to be received by the
issuer's agent {ID RA10) by 10:30am (UK. time) on 25 January 2023.
For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to mean the time {as
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST
application host frorn which the issuer’s agent is able to retrieve the
message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST.
After this time, any change of instructions to proxies appointed
through CREST should be communicated to the appointee through
other means.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or
voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK. & freland
Limited does nat make available special procedures in CREST faor

any particular message. Normal system timings and limitations will,
therefore, apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions.
Itis the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take {or,

if the CREST member is a CREST personal member, or sponsored
member, or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure
that their CREST sponsor or voting service provider{s) take{s)} such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is transmitted by
means of the CREST systern by any particular time. In this connection,
CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or
voting system providers are referred, in particular, to those sections
of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations of the CREST
systerm and timings. The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy
Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

If you are an institutional investor you may be able to appoint a proxy
electronically via the Proxymity platform, a process which has been
agreed by the Company and approved by the Registrar. For further
information regarding Proxymity, please go to www.proxymity.io.
Your proxy must be ledged by 10.30 am on 25 January 2023 in order
to be considered valid or, if the meeting is adjourned, by the time
which is 48 hours before the time of the adjourned meeting Befare
you can appoint a proxy via this process you will need to have agreed
to Proxymity's associated terms and conditions. It is important that
you read these carefully as you will be bound by them and they will
govern the electronic appointment of your proxy

Unless otherwise indicated on the Form of Proxy, CREST, Proxymity
or any other electronic voting instruction, the proxy will vote as they
think fit or, at their discreticn ar withhold from voting.

Any corporation which is a shareholder can appoint one or more
corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its
powers as a shareholder provided that no more than one carporate
representative exercises powers in relation to the same shares.

. As at 22 November 2022 (being the latest practicable business day

prior to the publication of this Notice), the Campany's issued share
capital consists of 30,258,194 ordinary shares of £1 each, carrying one
vore each. 765,098 ardinary shares of £1 each are held in treasury.
These shares are rot taken into consideration in relation 1o the
payment of dividends or voting Therefore, the total voting rights in
the Company as at 22 Novernber 2022 are 30,258,194

Under section 527 of the Act, sharcholders meeting the threshold
reguirements set out in that section have the nght to require the
Company to publish on a website a statement setting out any
matter relating 10: (1) the audit of the Company’s financial staternents
(including the Auditar's Report and the conduct of the audiy) that are
to be iaid before the AGM; or (i) any circumstances connected with
an auditor of the Company ceasing 1o hold office since the previous
meeting at which annual financizl statements and reports were laid
in accordance with section 437 of the Act (in each casc) that the
shareholders propose to raise at the relevant meeting. The Company
may not require the shareholders requiesting any such website
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED

Notice of Meeting hotes continued
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publication to pay its expenses In complying with sections 527 or 528
of the Act Where the Company is required to place a staternent on a
website under section 527 of the Act, it must forward the statement
to the Company's auditor not later than the time when it makes the
statement availabte on the website. The business which may be dealt
with at the AGM for the relevant financial year includes any staterment
that the Company has been required under section 527 of the Act to
publish on a websita.

The following documents are avallable for inspection at our registered
office from the date of this Notice until the conclusion of the AGM
and at the place of the meeting from at least 15 minutes prior to and
during the meeting until its conclusion:

- copies of the Directors’ letters of appointment or service
contracts; and

- acopy of the current Articles of Association of the Company.

Scanned copies are 3150 be available on request fram the
Company Secretary.

You may not use any electronic address (within the meaning of
section 333(4) of the Act) provided in either this Notice or any related
documents (including the form of proxy) to communicate with the
Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated.
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Term

GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Definition

Adjusted basic earnings per share

Adjusted profit for the year divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue

Adjusted dividend cover

The ratio of adjusted basic earnings per share from continuing operations to the total dividend for the year

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as adjusted operating profit before depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-current assets. It excludes any effect of discontinued operations

Adjusted EBITDA margin

The ratic of adjusted EBITDA to revenue

Adjusted operating profit

Operating profit adjusted to exclude exceptional items

BPS

Basis points

Cash conversion percentage

The ratio of cash generated from aperations before the effect of exceptional items, as @ percentage of
adjusted EBITDA

Closing order book

Orders held by the Group at the end of the year which are not yet fulfilled

Cantinuing operations

The segments of the Group that are expected to still be operating in the future

Discontinued operations

The segments of the Group that no onger function within the core business and which are separately disclosed
within the income statement

Dividend cover

The ratio of basic earnings per share from continuing operations to the total dividend for the year

Dividend per share

Dividends paid/proposed, divided by the weighted average number of shares in issue

EBITDA

The Group's earnings before charging interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-current assets

Exceptional items

Transactions are classified as exceptional items where they relate to an event that falls cutside of the underlying
trading activities of the business and where individually, or in aggregate, they have a material impact on the
financial statements

Intellectual property

Intangible property created by the Group through research and development, that is protected through patents,
copyrights or tradermarks

Net debt

Net debt is the Group's drawn bank debt, overdrafts and lease obligations net of any cash

Orders received

The orders received throughout the year and recognised as revenue togetherwith orders in the closng order bock

Return on capital employed

Adjusted operating profit as a percentage of average capital employed. Capital employed is the sum of
shareholders’ funds adjusted for non-current liabilities and current borrowings

Total research and development

as % of revenue

Total expenditure on research and development expressed as a percentage of revenue

Term Explanation

50 series Range of masks based on the proven technology of the M50 mask system )
AGM Aﬂ;\‘L‘JaJ Ceneral Meeting

APAC Asia-Pacific -

APC Avon Pratection Ceradyne

CBRN Chemical, biclogical, radiclogical and nuclear o )

DLA Defense Logistics Agency

DoD Department of Defense

ESAPI Enhanced Small Arms Protective Inserf"

ESG Environmental, social and corporate governance )

ESPP Employee Stock Purchase Plan -
FAT 7 First Article TegtringA 77777

FTSE Financiai Times Stock Exchange

FX Fareign exchange

FY Financial year

G:;(;_—&’ Greenhouse Gas

H1/H2 First half of[l%_e-'-?‘;;é-nérél vear (Octot;e;—March)/second half of financial year (April-September) o
iTAR International Traffic in Arms Regulation o ‘

JSGPM Joirt service general protection mask

KPIs Key Pesformance Indicators i

LTIP Long-Te'-rrimT\ncent|ve Plan

MENA Middle East and North Africa S

MOoD 7 Ministry of Deferice L

NATO Nortﬁ At\anric_T_reaty Organization
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS CONTINUED

Term Explanation

NG IHPS Next Generation Integrated Head Protection System

NSPAﬁ The NATO Support and Procurernent Agency, the ea;;ecut\ve body of the NATO Suppert and Procurement -
Organisation (NSPQ, of which all 30 NATO nations are members)

PAPR Powered Air Purifying Respirator

PSP Performance éhare Plan

RoW Rest of World

SCBA 7 Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus - o

SIP Share I-ncentive Plan

EA Special Security Agreement

SWAT T Special Weapons and Tactics

TB1 7 Traumatic Brain Injury i

tCOze The amount of greenhouse gasses ém|tted during a gren period, meésured in metric tons of carbon dioxide o
equivalent

TFCD Task Force for Climate Related Financial Disclosures -

TSR 7 Total shareholder return

UN SDGS ) United Nations Susrainarb\e Development Goals ]

VTP Vital Torso Protection
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder information
As at 31 October 2022 the Company had 1,202 shareholders. of which 723
had 1,000 shares or fewer

Financial calendar
Half year results are usually announced in May and year end results
in November.

In respect of the year ended 30 September 2022 the AGM will be held
on 27 January 2023 at Hampton Park West, Sermington Road, Melksharn,
Wiltshire SN12 6NB, England.

Corporate information

Registered office

Hampton Park West, semington Road, Melksham, Wiltshire
SM1Z2 6MB, England.

Registered
In England and Wales No. 32965

VAT No. GB 137 575 643

Board of Directors

Bruce Thompsen {Executive Chair)

Rich Cashin (Chief Financial Officer)

Chloe Ponsonby (Non-Executive Director}
Bindi Fayle [Non-Executive Director)

Victor Chavez CBE (Non-Executive Directon)

Company secretary
Miles Ingrey-Counter

Auditor
KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

Registrar and transfer office
Link Group, 10th Floor, Central Square, 29 Wellington Street, Leeds LS1 40L

Tel. 0371 664 0300 (~44 371 664 0300 if overseas)

Calls are charged atthe standard geographical rate and will vary by
provider; fines are open §00 am-533 pm, excluding public hofidays in
England and Wales

Financial advisor
Rothschild & Co

Brokers
Peel Hunt LLP
Jefferies Group LLC

Financial PR
MHMHP Communications

Lawyer
White & Case LLP

Principal bankers
Barclays Bank PLC
Comerica inc.
NatWest

Fifth Third

Bank of Ireland

ac

Website

wiww avon-protection-pic.com

All Team Wendy product names referenced in this Annual Report
are trademarks of Tearn Wendy LLC. Team Wendy LLC is part of the
Avon Protect on plc group of companies
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Hampton Park West
Semington Road
Melksham, Wiltshire
SN12 6N8B

England

Telephone: +44 (0) 1225 896 800

Email: enquiries@avon-protection.com




